


Dear shareholders,

2007 was a terrible year for our industry. for Indymac and for you,

our owners. The 4" quarter of 2007 marked the eighth quarter of the
current housing downturn (as measured by housing’s contribution to
GDP). making it already the fourth worst housing downturn in modern
times, and many now predict that, before it turns around, it is going to
be the longest and deep'est since the Great Depression.

Non-GSE mortgage lending {i.e.. loans not sold to Fannie
Mae and Freddie Mac or FHA/VA insured loans) has been
devastated by the collapse of the private secondary market.
This collapse in late summer was caused by significantly
worsening mortgage credit fundamentals and tremendous
uncertainty and fear among investors about declining housing
prices and future credit losses. As a result of the housing
bubble bursting, delinquencies and non-performing home
loans increased rapidly in 2607, Importantly. as | write this
note nearly all housing industry participants ... from home
builders and home buying and selling consumers, to lenders,
to investors ... are pessimistic about the near-term outlook
for the housing and mortgage markets, and, as often
happens, market expectations can became self-fulfitling.

2007 in review

As a Federal thrift and major U.S. home lender. with a
sector-specific business model entering this crisis period
that was focused primarily on non-GSE mortgage banking
(Alt-A {ending. securitization and servicing) and home
construction lending. Indymac bore the brunt of the crisis
as it worsened throughout the year. The magnitude and
rapidity of the deterioration of the housing and mortgage
markets was disturbing and shocking to almost everyone,
including Indymac. other financial institutions and our
government. As objective evidence of this decline’s severity,
our non-performing assets (NPAs), which were only $184
million (or 0.63% of assets) at December 31. 2004 increased
eight-fold to $1.51 billion (or 4.61% of assets) at December 31.
2007 and are projected to peak at between 7.5% and 8.0% of -
assets in the second half of 2008,

Impact of the credit crisis on Indymac

As a result of this increase in NPAs. combined with a decline
in delinguency “cure rates™ and an increase in expected loss
severities on the dispesition of non-performing loans and
REO due to the declining housing market and economy.
Indymac, like many financial institutions, took a major step
in bolstering its credit reserves in the 3™ quarter.'taking
credit provisions/costs’ of $408 million pre-tax, roughly
four-fold higher than the 2™ quarter, and increasing our
credit reserves 47% in just one quarter to $1.39 billion.

As credit trends continued to deteriorate in the 4™ quarter. '
we undertook another review of all of our loan portfolios,
including our delinquency roll-rates and loss severities ...
even hiring a nationally recognized consulting firm to
independently review our subdivision and consumer
construction portfolios. It is somewhat of an oversimplification,
hut essentially. for our consumer loan portfolios. we took
the last four months of 2007 delinquency roll-rates (which
were horrible) and assumed these rates would continue
through the 3™ quarter of 2008 and then gradually drop

to 70% of these rates by the end of 2009, Additionally, our
forecast models factored in an additional 8-10% house price
depreciation from today’s levels. consistent with the Moody's
Econemy.com forecast. As a result. we more than doubled
our credit provisions/costs again in the 4" quarter to $843
million, increasing our tolal credit reserves an additional

'Credit provisions/costs include provisions for loan losses, credit marks-to-market
for loans held for sale, provisions to the secondary markel reserve {for potential
loan repurchases), credit write-downs of residual and non-investment grade
securities and REQ losses.
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71% from the 3 quarter to $2.4 billion at December 31, 2007
{with $1.1 billion related to loans and REO and the other
$1.3 billion consisting of gross credit reserves imbedded in
non-investment grade and residual securities). For the full
year of 2007. we took $1.45 billion in pre-tax credit provisions/
costs, by far larger than Indymac has taken in its entire
history. Impartantly. of this $1.45 billion. enly $483 million
represented losses actually realized in 2007, consisting of
$200 million in loan charge-offs, $46 million in REO write-
downs and $237 million of realized credit losses on non-
investment grade and residual securities. |n other words,
$970 million pre-tax tor $591 million after-lax) of Indymac’s
credit provisions/casts in 2007 are related to losses that
were not realized in 2007, but which we project to realize
in 2008, 2009 and biyond.

Based on the establishment of these unprecedented credit
reserves and. io a lesser extent. on the collapse of our
non-GSE mortgage banking business, Indymac lost $609
million for the year. the first annual loss in our 23-year
history. As a result of this loss and panic market conditions
for anything or anyone involved in mortgages, Indymac lost
$2.8 billion, or B5%, of its market capitalization in 2007. The
only good news is that. even with this significant loss. we
remain in a fundamentally sound financial position as

a result of raising $676 million in equity capital in 2007:
$500 million of bank perpetual preferred stock with an 8.5%
coupon in the 2" quarter, $144 million of common equity (at
an average price of $20 per share in the 3™ and 4" quarters)
and $30 million of holding company trust preferred securities,
Our capital levels continue to exceed the levels defined as
“well capitalized™ by our regulators. At year end, Indymac’s
core capital ratio was 6.24%. and our total risk-based capital
ratio was 10.50%, down from 7.39% and 11.72% at December 31,
2006. In addition to maintaining strong capital, Indymac now
has $2.4 billion in ¢crzdit reserves, or four times the $619
million it had at December 31, 2006, which puts us in a
strong position to relurn to profitability sooner than later,
Indeed. based on our new business model (which | discuss
more thoroughly belaw). we are forecasting a small profit

in 2008. even including the 1% quarter of 2008 staff reduction
and office closing costs. and we believe we can maintain
our “well-capitalized’ capital ratios even under worsening
industry conditions.
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Impact on other mortgage
industry participants

Indymac was not alone in suffering major operating losses
and loss of market vatue in 2007. As | write this note, over
225 independent mortgage companies have failed and over
100,000 jobs have been lost in our industey. Countrywide,
the largest independent home lender in the U.S. who had
been in business for nearly 40 years, was forced to sell

at a distressed level to Bank of America. Fannie Mae and
Freddie Mac (the GSEs). who are predominantly confarming
mortgage lenders. have taken significant losses. GE lost
over $2 billion in the mortgage business, Capital One lost
over $1 billion, and both have exited the business. Citigroup

and Merrill Lynch, two of America’s largest financial
institutions. each announced 4™ quarter losses. primarily
related to mortgage lending and securitization, of roughly
%10 billion after-tax each, the worst losses in their histories
for both ... and. unlike Indymac. these two institutions
have substantial business activities other than U.S. home
mortgage lending. UBS, a large European bank, has stated
that it expects to report a loss of $11 billion for the 4* quarter
and a loss of $4 billion for the full year 2007 because of
$14 billion in losses on positions related to the U.S. residential
mortgage market. Even Wells Fargo. who has long been
considered to be the "gold standard” when it comes to
credit risk management. established billions in additional
reserves related to its home lending activities.

Reflecting these issues, the market capitalization declines
(from January 1. 2007 through January 31, 2008) of the top
25 U.S. home lenders entering 2007 have been significant.
even for diversified financial institutions. The targely
diversified commaercial banks in this category are down
18%. with National City being down the most at 51%. The
investment and money center banks are down 32%, with
Citigroup being down the most at 497%; the three thrifts in this
category are down 6%%. with Countrywide being down 84%;
and the twe mortgage REITs in this category are down 100%
(these two went bankrupt. while the third REIT in the group
was acquired in January 2007). In addition, this list does not
include the GSEs, who are down 49%, and the mortgage and
bond insurers, who are down 81%.




Impact on consumers

While financial institutions like Indymac are suffering.
American homeowners are also suffering and struggling to
pay their mortgages and keep their homes out of foreclosure.
Importantly. it is in Indymac’s and its investors’ interest to
work with any barrower who is struggling and try to keep
them in their home and avoid foreclosure. We have embraced
and implemented Treasury Secretary Paulson’s “Hope
Now" program and are also a significant participant with
NeighborWorks® America. a national non-profit organization
created by Congress to provide financial support, technical
assistance and training for community-based revitalization
eftorts. Clearly. recently declining mortgage rates should
help on all fronts by {1} reducing the payment shock for
borrowers on adjustable rate mortgages: (2) allowing
barrowers who gualify to refinance into lower fixed-rate
loans: and (3) helping to stabilize housing prices and the
housing market overall.

In addition. to prevent consumers frem making the wrong
mortgage choice in the future. Indymac has decided to adopt
as our policy that borrowers without $50,000 in demonstrated
liquid assets or $250,000 in demonstrated net worth are not
eligible for the following products:?

- ARM loans with initial fixed terms of less than five years,
- Loans with negative amortization or prepayment penalties.
- Limited documentation loans.

Limited documentation lending

I want to briefly take a minute to discuss limited
documentation lending. a major part of our historicat
volumes. First. | would point out that this business has
been around for decades, and even today nearly the entire
consumer finance sector {autos. credit cards and personal
loans) is limited documentation/stated income loans. The
core limited documentation mortgage product — a low
loan-to-value (LTV)} first mortgage (low 70% average LTV)
with a borrower who has excellent credit {average FICO
score of 700) — is a good loan and continues to perform
wetll. even in the current environment. This product

These amounts are conservatively calculated after the mortgage loan closes.
This palicy does not apply to reverse mortgages, which by their nature are
limited documentation, negative amortization loans.

is needed given the large number of people who are
self-employed. retired, foreign nationals, etc., in our country/
econemy. With the benefit of hindsight, the severe losses that
have occurred are largely the result of loans that layered
limited documentation risk with other risks {i.e.. negative
amortization ARM loans. investor properties. higher LTVs and
lower FICOs). Given the credit tightening we and other lenders
have implemented. this layering of risk has largely stopped.

To put all of Indymac's lending into perspective. since 1993
we have made a total of $345 billion in home loans. and
roughly half of those loans have already been paid in full ...
likely most through refinance transactions. Less than 2% of
these loans have ultimately been foreclosed on, meaning
that 98% have succeeded. And of the $182 hillion in our
servicing portfolio at December 31, 2007, our borrowers have
built up their home equity. on average, from $97.000 at loan
origination to an estimated $121,000. or an aggregate home
equily increase of $14 biltion, fram $41 billion to $75 billion,
just in the few years since we originally made the loans.

Who is to blame for the mortgage
industry’s financial losses and also the
record number of Americans losing
their homes?

All home lenders, including Indymac, were a part of the
problem, and. as Indymac'’s CEO. | take full responsibility for
the mistakes that we made. However. objective reviewers
of this mortgage crisis understand that home lenders and
mortgage brokers were not the only ones responsible.
Systemic problems in our secondary mortgage markets and
credit markets, and our government’s over-stimulation of the
housing market via monetary and tax policies {the capital
gains tax break on home sales encouraged speculation).
were all major factors that contributed to the problem.
Indymac and most home lenders were not “greedy and
stupid” Most of us believed that innovative home lending
served a legitimate economic and social purpase, allowing
many U.5. consumers to be able to achieve the American
dream of homeownership ... and we still do. Homeownership
is the main way we Americans accumulate wealth, and.

in fact. a recent Federal Reserve Bank study shows that
homeowners on average have 46 times the personal wealth
of renters.
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As innovative home lending and loan products became
more widespread, the resull was more people succeeding
(in homeownership) and more people failing (losing their
home) than ever before. But everyone. including both the

government and consumer advocate groups who encouraged

this lending via enforcement of CRA lending requirements,
also bought into the concept that, if lenders and investors
could properly price this increased risk, the higher number
of failures was warth the social and economic goals of
expanded homeownership. And it worked for many years:
the homeownership rate, which had not moved in several
decades. expanded from 84% to 9% from 1994 to 2006,
allowing 4 million additional Americans the opportunity

to have the American dream and build wealth.

However. in retrospect, like many innovations (e.g.. the
Internet, railroads, =tc.), innovative home lending went

too far. The housing bubble, caused primarily by the low
interest rates for ARM hoﬂgages fostered by the Fed’s
accommodative monetary policy and even lower rates for
fixed/long-term mortgages due largely to tremendous
global liquidity. combined with strong demand by
institutional investors for assets with higher yields, resulted
in a “systemic” underestimation of credit risk. This systemic
underestimation of zredit risk was not just for mortgages
but for many forms of credit, By way of example. Indymac
(and many other major financial institutions) has for years
used one of the major credit rating agencies’ models to
assess and price credit risk on home loans. This model
estimates expected lifetime losses on a loan level basis.
and we closely monitor these average estimated lifetime
losses for all of our loan production (that can be evaluated)
on an ongoing basis. This particular rating agency revised
its model in November 2007 {from version 6.0 to 4.1).
Applying version 4.0 to our 4™ quarter of 2006 production
{the version in place at that time) indicated an average
expected lifetime loss rate of 0.88%. which we felt was a
reasonable level of expected losses at which we could
properly and adequately price the loans. However, now
applying the updated version 6.1 to this same 4* quarter of
2006 pool of loans results in an average expected lifetime
loss rate of 1.88%, a 114% increase in expected losses in one
year. This clearly indicates the extent to which the systemic
underestimation of credit risk took place in the mortgage
markets. As we began to realize this. we tightened our
guidelines throughourt the last year, with the result that our
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average expected lifetime loss rate for &% quarter of 2007
declined to 0.45% based on version 4.1, a 76% reduction in

credit risk as compared to 4% quarter of 2006, boding well
for the future credit quality and related credit provisions/

costs of our new business model.

Why didn't mortgage lenders see that
things were going too far?

Lenders didn't see that things were going too far, partly
because we were too close to it. but mostly because
objective evidence of this credit risk did not show up in our
delinquencies and financial performance until it was too late
to prevent significant losses. And there were many events
along the way that confirmed for those of us who believed
that innovative home lending was possibly a paradigm shift
{similar to widespread ownership of stocks by consumers)
and definitely a legitimate marketplace: major financial
institutions were offering these products and spending
billions to purchase companies who specialized in these
products: Wall Street firms and broker/dealers of major
banks were underwriting our and others’ transactions and
also spending hillions as recently as 2006 to buy non-GSE
lenders in order to vertically integrate their home lending
and securitization activities: major mortgage and bond
insurers were insuring individual mortgages and pools of
mortgages or bonds created from these mortgages: major
credit rating agencies were providing strong ratings on our
and others’ transactions; and major investors around the
world were purchasing these mortgage-backed bonds and
even CDOs backed by these bonds {(something we home -
lenders had no involvement in or awareness of). Very few
in the private sector or in government predicted that the
bursting of the housing bubble would be so severe and
would result in the current wave of delinquencies,
foreclosures and credit losses and the eventual collapse

of the non-GSE secondary market ... even for high credit
quality, full-documentation. jumbo home loans.

It is also important to understand that the rapid rise in
housing prices is ane of the key culprits in this current
housing and mortgage crisis. In modern times, housing
prices have declined in certain regions of the country but
never on a nationwide basis. As a result of this fact and

the important social and economic benefits that are clearly
derived from homeownership. the government (first through




FHA/VA programs and then through the GSEs) encouraged
a U.S. mortgage market built upbn very high leverage, with
LTV ratios nearing 100 for first-time homebuyer programs.
However, as home prices decline. either regionally or
nationally. the leverage in a home loan, combined with the
leverage of a financial institution or securitization structure,
can resull in significant losses for financial institutions,
investors and consumers. Add to this mix a housing markel
that has not had a single regional market decline in over

15 years and. in fact, had a huge boom in prices from 2003
to 2006, and you can begin to understand how home lending
was impacted. Automated risk-based models, on which

the entire market relied, replaced portions of traditional
underwriting and credit evaluation, and only in retrospect

is it now clear that these models did not perform as
predicted during a period of severe economic stress. As
events unfelded. this proved to be particularly the case with
respect to pregrams such as piggyback leans and h’igh LTV
cash-out refinance transactions. including home equity and
second martgages. '

The bottom line of the housing crisis for
Indymac and its leadership team

As | said earlier. | take full responsibility for the errors we .
made at Indymac. but | also believe that our cumutative
results from 2001 through 2007 (our first seven years as

a thrift) would not have been that much better even if we
had operated Indymac’s business model flawlessly. Qur
cumulative return on equity for this period is still a positive
7.1%. Indymac earned $1.25 billion from 2001 to 2006 and
essentially lost 49% of that amount in 2007. If we had been
blessed with perfect foresight, we would have pulled back
significantly starting in 2005, and that would have caused
us lo make significantly less in both 2005 and 2006 and lose
significantly less in 2007 ... but we still would have lost
money in 2607, both in earnings and market cap, because
our core business. non-GSE mortgage banking. would still
have cratered due to the broader and unforeseeable collapse
of the private secondary market.

While | said that we made mistakes. we also got some big
things right: {1} We canverted our entire business inte a
Federal thrift structure, savi'ng us from the liquidity event
risk of our previous mortgage REIT structure and what
Countrywide and other mortgage industry participants

experienced: (2) We raised $474 million of equity capital

at better terms than many major banks and investment
banks hefore the crisis period worsened, and we did not
repurchase any shares despite significant pressure to do

50: (3) We bought Financial Freedom, the largest reverse
mortgage lender in the nation, for $85 million in 2004, and
this entity earned a record $53 million in 2007 and (4} We
largely avoided subprime lending and laid off the bulk of our
Alt-A and option ARM credit risk into the secondary market,
including structuring most of our non-GSE transactions so
that we have limited warranty exposure. In addition, our
mortgage-backed securities portfolio has no CDOs and no
exposure to bond insurers. And, importantly. to date not
one Indymac AAA Alt-A bond has been downgraded by

any of the rating agencies. and we estimate that less than
one-tenth of 1% of all AAA Alt-A bonds in the industry have
been downgraded.

With that said. | believe in accountability. and let me assure
you that no one has been held more accountable, financially,
than | have. | did not sell one share or option in either 2006 or
2007. At December 31, 2006, when our stock was $45 a share,
| owned stock and had vested optiens worth a total of $70
million, and | purchased an additional $1 million of stock in
March 2007 at $29 per share. At December 31, 2007, with our
stock at $5.95. | had lost 98% of this value ... value that | and
Indymac’s team had worked 15 years to build. Despite the
mistakes that we made during this period, | am confident that
| am the person most capable of leading Indymac through
this crisis period and rebuilding shareholder value, and | have
the support of the management team. board of directors and
our regulators. If you don't share this view, | respect and
understand this. and you will have the opportunity to make a
leadership change with your vote at Indymac’s shareholders’
meeting on May 1%, If | am not re-elected to the board, | will
respect the shareholders’ decision and resign my positions
as chief executive officer of Indymac and Indymac Bank.

With the above said. in a recent New York Times Magazine
article, Federal Reserve Chairman Ben Bernanke discussed
the Fed’s role in fostering the mortgage crisis. He was of
the viewpoint that the mortgage fiasco "had many fathers”
and alsc expressed his dislike for perfect-hindsight-type
judgn\ents. | feel the same way. It is time to move on and
discuss Indymac’s plan for successfully maneuvering through
the rest of this crisis period and rebuilding shareholder value.
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Looking ahead

The first part of our 2008 plan is to continue with the
conversion of our production model to the current realities
of a tough housing market and the absence of a non-GSE
secondary market and demonstrate that Indymac can be
profitable with this production model. Second, we plan to
achieve a $1.1 billien reduction in our ¢credit provisions/costs
from 2007, which would be the most significant factor
contributing to our return to profitability in 2008. Third, our
goal is 1o reduce our operating expenses, excluding REO
costs, year-over-year hy 29% starting in 2" quarter of 2008,
Finally. we are cominitted to remaining a safe and sound
financial institution with strong levels of capital and liquidity.
With that said, we want to try and avoid raising capital
externally right now given our current stock price relative to
book value per sharz, as any capital raised would be highly
dilutive to existing sharehalders (and we don't have either
the diversified business model or the “name brand” of major
financial institutions: who are raising capital from foreign
government funds and others). As a result. we have to
manage our balance sheet very carefully during this period.

Let's look at each element of our 2008 plan in greater detail,

1. MORTGAGE PRODUCTION MODEL

As most of you know, throughout 2007. we cut products
and preduction channels that contributed to our credit
tosses and, with respect to products. where there was no
longer a secondary rmarket into which to sell them. In 2007,
we permanently discontinued two production channets,

our mortgage banking conduit group and our homebuitder
division, and one product, subprime loans not eligible to be
sold to the GSEs. Entering 2008, we have made the decision
to (1) eliminate all limited documentation lending above

a 75% LTV and belovs a 680 FICO and all ARM loans with
negative amortizaticn as an option and (2} temporarily halt
new consumer canstruction and lot financing. our jumbo
reverse mortgage product for correspondent and non-core
wholesale customers and virtually all new second and
home equity lending programs (except for a de minimis
amount produced in our deposit branch network). You may
ask. “What does that leave you with in 20087" It leaves us
still with a pretty substantial and solidly profitable production
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model that we expect will produce over $40 billion in home
loans {or roughly a 2% share of the U.S. market} in 2008. We
will be a national lender to mortgage brokers. bankers and
community financial institutions (combined, we call this our
Mortgage Professionals Group) and a national retail home
lender, with both channels offering FHA/VA, GSE and prime
jumbo home loan products. In addition, we witl still be one
of the largest reverse mortgage lenders to seniors in the
U.S. (if not the largest) via Financial Freedom.

| have heard it said, “Indymac can't be profitable with GSE
lending margins. or Indymac doesn’t have the scaleto be a
GSE lender’ | believe that these statements are not based on
facts and numbers. Our detailed forecasts provide strong
evidence that we can make a solid profit in this line of
business ... we are projecting our new production mode!
to make $85 million after-tax in 2008. Think about it. Would
the GSEs exist if home lenders selling to them can't make
a reasonable profit? Yes, GSE lending has lower margins.
but it also involves lower risk and we can sell these loans
faster. enhancing our ROEs. Indymac is forecasting $40
billion in annual production, and we have more than $180
billion in servicing, strong automatien and outsourcing ...
we absolutely believe we can make this business solidly
profitable for Indymac and its shareholders in 2008 and
beyond. And slowly but surely, as the private secondary
market and our stock price recover, we should be able to
expand back into the lowest risk parts of non-GSE lending.
With the above said. every regional office or branch leader
at Indymac understands that they need to be profitable now
with the products we offer today or they risk being shut down.

2. CREDIT COSTS

The next part of our plan to return to profitability is to greatly
reduce our credit provisions/costs in 2008 and beyond. Based
on our $2.4 billion of credit reserves at December 31. 2007
we expect to reduce our credit costs in 2008 substantially.
Even assuming a significant worsening of our NPAs, we
project our credit provisions/costs in 2008 to be roughly
$372 million, down roughly $1.1 billion fram the $1.45 billion
we took in 2007. This is the key driver of our expected return
to profitability in 2008, but it is important to point out that
even $372 million would be our second highest year ever in
credit provisions/costs and would be a much higher credit




cost figure than our new. predominantly FHA/VA, GSE and
prime jumbo home lending model warrants. In other words.,
as these high credit provisions/costs are expected to abate in
2009 or so, we believe our underlying new business model's
profitability will be significantly higher than in 2008 ... in the
13% to 15% ROE range long term.

3. OPERATING EXPENSES

Another key driver of our return to profitability is a reduction
in our cost structure. As a result of our well-publicized
workforce reductions and ather cost reduction measures, we
are forecasting that we will reduce our annualized operating
costs. excluding REO costs. year aver year by $264 million.
from $922 million annualized per year in the 2™ quarter of
2007 (the quarter before we began our right-sizing) to $658
million annualized in the 2™ quarter of 2008 (the quarter after
our most recent cost cutting becomes fully effective). While
we expect to report a loss for the 1% quarter of 2008 due
largely to the one-time severance and office closing costs that
we will incur in the quarter, we project that even including
these costs we will be profitable for the year. Clearly, we will
be on a mission to continue 1o drive down our costs and staff
levels until we reach solid profitability for our shareholders.

4. CAPITAL

The next part of our plan is to continue to maintain our status
as a fundamentally safe and sound financial institution, and
the key to that is staying well-capitalized (above 5% core

and 10% total risk-based capital). Qur capital tevels clearly
have declined as a result of the losses we have taken in
establishing significant reserves for future credit losses,

but we still have a solid cushion above the well-capitalized
levels. Since we want to try to avoid diluling our existing
shareholders by issuing new stock at a price well below
book vatue per shara, the key way for us to “raise” additional
capital and increase our capital cushion is to suspend the
dividend and shrink our balance sheel. By suspending our
annual dividend of $1 per share. or reughly $81 million per
year. and shrinking our balance sheet by roughly $4.4 billion,
or 14%. from December 31, 2007 via the production cuts
discussed above. some modest AAA MBS sales, in¢reasing
the speed at which we sell loans to the GSEs and normal
portfolio runoff, we project that we can “raise™/"free up”

roughly $400 millicn of additional capital {an amount that

is substantial in relation to the current market value of the
entire Company today). and we believe we can accomplish
this without “fire-selling” either the entire Company or our
reverse mortgage business, which should be a tremendous
long-term asset for our shareholders. Based on these
strategies and assuming our current financial projections
for 2008, we expect our capital ratios to grow to over 7.25%
core and 12.00% total risk-based by year-end.

5. LIQUIDITY

An equity analyst, who recently published an updated repart
on Indymac and wha has been consistently right about aur
prospects, has a similar earnings forecast to Indymac’s
cumulatively from 4" quarter of 2007 through all of 2008
(we are taking a somewhat bigger loss in 4" quarter of 2007
than this analyst projects, but, as a result, we are forecasting
that we will have a small profit in 2068 versus his projection
of a loss), and this analyst has us at a profit of $1 per share
in 2009. Where | respectfully disagree with this analyst is on
liquidity. Others have also gotten this wrong by comparing
us to Countrywide and the liquidity troubles at their holding
company, where Countrywide had more than 200 creditors.
Indymac does not have this same level of liquidity risk or
any dependence on the credit rating agencies for our sources
of funding. All of our assets and operations, except cash. are
held within Indymac Bank. a federally chartered thrifl. As a
result. we have only one creditor at our holding company,
the investors in our long-term (30-year original term),
trust-preferred securities. Assuming we receive no dividend
payments from our bank and raise no new capital, we have
enough cash at our holding company to pay two years (2008
and 2009) worth of trust-preferred dividend payments, and,
even then, we have the right (that we hope we never have to
exercise) to defer these payments for an additional five years.
And at our bank. we have over $6 billion in operating liquidity
and no market funding sources (no commercial paper or
reverse repurchase borrowings). We are 100% funded with
deposits, FHLB advances. long-term debt and equity, and
over 95% of our deposits are fully insured by the FDIC.
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While there isn’t space in this already long letter to lay out our entire plan for the future,
Indymac Bank will be dedicated to the following KEY PRINCIPLES:

1. Ensure that every loan we make is well understood by each

consumer and suitable for them.

2. Become the best manager of risk in our industry.

Specifically. our goals will be to:

- produce the best (credit quality) loans in the industry:

- have a greater focus on the macroeconomic environment affecting

our business activities and look to curtail or hedge some of our

lending at various points in the cycle: and

- become more of a thrift and reduce our business with Wall Street.

3. Become the low-cost provider of mortgages in the industry.

4. Deliver industry-leading service to our customers.

Many in our industry do not think it should be a lender’s
responsibitity to determine if a loan is suitable for a
consumer. While it is not our legal responsibility. | believe
that determining suitability should be a key part of our
responsibilities and is also “good business” Suitability goes
hand in glove with reducing our credit costs, as a loan that is
not suitable for a consumer is much more likely to defautt.
This also means that, going forward, we will not be as
sensitive to whal our competitors or Wall Street are doing
in terms of the products we offer. We are aggressively
monitoring early delinquencies from month one of loan
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funding and eliminating products, customers, regions,
branches and Indymac personnel that fall outside our now
very stringent credit parameters. To reduce our business
with Wall Street and increase our thrift earnings relative to
mortgage banking. we will work toward limiting our total
annual loan production from all sources to a maximum

of two times our balance sheet and limit non-FHA/VA/
GSE production to 25% of total production (down from
approximately three times and 75%. or so, respectively in
2005 to 2007). In addition, we will attempt to bypass Wall
Street and work directly with private MBS investors to
originate high credit-quality loans they want in simplified
MBS structures they can understand.




But our overriding goal for 2008 is pretty simple: keep
Indymac Bank safe and sound with strong capital and
liquidity levels. stem the losses and return to profitability.
and preserve as much of our $16, or so, of book value per
share as we can. If we can do that. our stock should move
frem its current levels back up toward book value per share,
and, while many shareholders will still be significantly
“underwater” our stock could perform well this year.

And from there it is back to rebuilding shareholder value,
Remember. our book value per share was about $11 per
share in 1999 (after the global liquidity crisis of 1998), and
in seven years we built that up to nearly $28 of book value
per share and a $45.1% stock price by year end 2006. While
clearly the mortgage market may take a long time to
recover and will likely (and thankfully) not ever return to
the frothy levels of the past few years, | think there is a lot
that we can do with a management team that will have
weathered a third severe risk-related market disruption
(the first two being related to interest rate risk and liquidity
risk and this disruption being tied to credit risk). a Federal
thrift with a large national origination and servicing platform.
a tremendous reverse mortgage business and $16, or so,
of book value per share.

What happens if we are wrong and credit costs are higher or
profitability is delayed further? With the above plan. including
the dividend cut and balance sheet shrinkage. we would
have a capital cushion above the well-capitalized limits of
roughty $671 million in core and $374 million in total risk-
based capital at December 31, 2008. In other words, instead
of our current projection of earning roughly $13 million in all
of 2008 after incurring $372 million in credit provisions/costs
for the year. we cauld nearly triple these credit costs and still
be well capitalized. And yes, things could get worse, including
our potentially incurring more right-sizing costs, or selling
NPAs in bulk at a loss or having to raise very dilutive capital,
but they also could get better as a result of low interest rates
and a refinance boemn (which we are experiencing as | write

this note), the Congressional stimulus package (especially
the temporary ability of the GSEs to purchase jumbo loans
and the increased loan limits for FHA/VA loans) and a
potential slow return of the non-GSE secondary market ...
none of which is factored into our current earnings forecast.

In closing. | can assure you that we at Indymac are very
determined to not only preserve sharehaolder value but
rebuild it. And | want to personally thank ali of our employees
for their tremendous efforts and strength during these
tumultuous times for our industry. As bad as this period has
been for us, this environment has created some positives
that should enhance shareholder value over the long run.
We have been able to acquire/build a substantial retail
platform virtually overnight. We have substantially improved
our credit risk management systems at Indymac, which
should result in materially improved credit quality of new
production, an eveniual return of the best performing parts
of the non-conforming market and Indymac being less
exposed to future credit cycles. Importantly. our competition
in the mortgage business has been substantially reduced
and should remain so for some time, helping future
profitability. And with the anticipated closing of the Bank of
America/Countrywide transaction later this year, Indymac
will likely become the largest independent home tender in
the nation ... a business that is huge and at the core of our
American culture and economy.

AR

Michael W. Perry
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
February 12, 2008
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PART |

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain statements contained in this Form 10-K may be deemed to be forward-looking statements within the
meaning of the federal securities laws. Words such as “anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “expect,” “project,”
“plan,” “forecast,” “intend,” “goal,” “target,” and similar expressions, as well as future or conditional verbs, such as
“will,” “would,” “should,” “could,” or “may,” identify forward-looking statements that are inherently subject to
risks and uncertainties, many of which cannot be predicted or quantified. Actual results and the timing of certain
events could differ materially from those projected in or contemplated by the forward-looking statements due to a
number of factors, including: the effect of economic and market conditions including, but not limited to, the level of
housing prices, industry volumes and margins; the level and volatility of interest rates; Indymac’s hedging
strategies, hedge effectiveness and overall asset and liability management; the accuracy of subjective estimates used
in determining the fair value of financial assets of Indymac; the various credit risks associated with our loans and
other financial assets, including increased credit losses due to demand trends in the economy and the real estate
market and increased delinquency rates of borrowers; the adequacy of credit reserves and the assumptions
underlying them; the actions undertaken by both current and potential new competitors; the availability of funds
from Indymac’s lenders, loan sales, securitizations, funds from deposits and all other sources used to fund mortgage
loan eriginations and portfolio investments; the execution of Indymac’s business and growth plans and its ability to
gain market share in a significant and turbulent market transition. Additional risk factors include the impact of
disruptions triggered by natural disasters; pending or future legislation, regulations and regulatory action, or
litigation, and factors described in the reports that Indymac files with the Securities and Exchange Commission,
including this Annual Report on Form 10-K, its Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, and its reports on Form 8-K.
Indymac does not undertake to update or revise forward-looking statements to reflect the impact of circumstances
for events that arise afier the date the forward-looking statements are made.
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References to “IndyMac Bancorp” or the “Parent Company” refér to the parent company alone, while
references to “Indymac,” the “Company,” or “we” refer to the parent company and its consolidated subsidiaries.
References to “Indymac Bank” or the “Bank’ refer to our subsidiary, IndyMac Bank, F.S.B., and its consolidated
subsidiaries. :

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

IndyMac Bancorp, Inc. is the holding company for IndyMac Bank, ES.B., a $33 billion hybrid thrift/mortgage
bank, headquartered in Pasadena, California. Indymac Bank originates mortgages in all 50 states of the U.S, and is
the (1) largest savings and loan headquartered in Los Angeles County, California, and the seventh largest
nationwide, based on assets according to American Banker, (2) the second largest independent mortgage lender
in the nation according to National Mortgage News, (3) the ninth largest residential mortgage originator, based on
third quarter 2007 mortgage origination volume according to National Mortgage News, and (4) the eighth largest
morigage servicer, according to National Mortgage News as of September 30, 2007. Indymac Bank provides cost-
efficient financing for the acquisition of single-family homes and also provides financing secured by single-family
homes and other banking products to facilitate consumers’ personal financial goals. We originate mortgage loans
through our e-MITS® (Electronic Mortgage Information and Transaction System) platform that automates
underwriting, risk-based pricing and rate locking on a nationwide basis via the Internet at the point of sale.
Indymac Bank offers highly competitive mortgage products and services tailored to meet the needs of both
consumers and mortgage professionals.

Indymac was founded as a passive mortgage real estate investment trust (“REIT”) in 1985 and transitioned its
business model to become an active, operating mortgage lender in 1993, In response to the global liquidity crisis
during the fourth quarter of 1998, in which many non-regulated f{inancial institutions, mortgage lenders and
mortgage REITs were adversely impacted or did not survive, we determined that it would be advantageous to
become a depository institution. The depository structure provides significant advantages in the form of diversified
financing sources, the retention of capital to support growth and a strong platform for the origination of mortgages.
Effective January t, 2000, we terminated our status as a REIT and converted to a fully taxable entity, and, on July 1,
2000, we acquired SGV Bancorp, Inc. (“SGVB”), which then was the parent of First Federal Savings and Loan
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Association of San Gabriel Valley, a federal savings association. We contributed substantially all of our assets and
operations to the subsidiary savings association, which we renamed Indymac Bank.

We entered the reverse mortgage industry through the acquisition of 93.75% of the outstanding shares of
common stock of Financial Freedom Holdings, Inc. (“Financial Freedom™), the leading provider of reverse
mortgages in the U.S., and the related assets from Lehman Brothers Bank, E.S.B. and its affiliates on July 16, 2004.
The remaining shares of the common stock of Financial Freedom were purchased by us from Financial Freedom’s
chief executive officer, Jarnes Mahoney, on July 3, 2006. The acquisition was consummated as part of our strategy to
offer niche mortgage products and servicing a broad customer base.

BUSINESS MODEL

Indymac’s hybrid thrift/mortgage banking business model provides a strong framework and the flexibility to
operate efficiently in varying interest-rate environments. Our businesses are aligned into two primary operating
segments, mortgage banking and thrift, Mortgage banking involves the originating and trading of mortgage loans
and related assets, as well as the servicing of these loans. Revenues from mortgage banking consist primarily of
gains on the sale of the loans; interest income earned while the loans are held for sale; and servicing fee income. The
thrift side of our business invests in single-family residential mortgage assets, primarily whole loan and mortgage-
backed securities (“MBS”), which we hold on our balance sheet. Revenues from the thrift side of our business
consists primarily of spread income, which represents the difference between the interest earned on the loans and
the cost of funds.

Mortgage banking is less capital-intensive than thrift investing and offers higher returns on invested capital.
However, mortgage banking is cyclical: origination volumes are significantly correlated to interest rates, rising
when rates fall and declining when rates rise. Thrift investing requires more capital than mortgage banking,
resulting in lower returns on invested capital. However, the returns tend to be more stable and less cyclical than
those from mortgage banking, and they generally improve as returns on mortgage banking decline. As interest rates
rise, there is little incentive for borrowers to refinance, so portfolio runoff (i.e., loan payoffs) is reduced. Thrift
profitability is also more exposed to credit risk as we retain credit risk on most thrift assets. Significant changes in
the asset quality after acquisition impact returns.

During 2007, there has been an unprecedented disruption in the U.S. mortgage market. Secondary markets for
virtually every loan type other than GSE and government guaranteed loan has virtually ceased to exist. Numerous
originators have failed and remaining lenders have dramatically tightened lending guidelines.

This disruption has resulted in home prices declining in virtually all markets in the U.S. The combination of
significantly reduced lending activity and declining home prices has contributed to increasing delinguencies and
foreclosures nationally. These increased loan defaults have been particularly severe in higher LTV lending products
and in second lien products. ‘

These market factors have had a dramatic impact on our business and results both from declining volumes and
increased expectations of credit losses. These factors make comparisons to prior years very difficult.

SEGMENTS

Indymac is structured to achieve synergies among its operations and to enhance customer service, operating
through its two main segments, mortgage banking and thrift. The common denominator of our business is providing
consumers with single-family residential mortgages through relationships with each segment’s core customers via
the channel in which each operates.

For further information on the revenues eamed and expenses incurred by each of our segments, refer to “Item 7.
Manapement’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Summary of Business
Segment Results” and “Note 3 — Segment Reporting” included in our consolidated financial statements incor-
porated herein. :




MORTGAGE BANKING SEGMENT

The mortgage banking segment’s core activities are loan production, loan sales, and the performance of our
servicing functions. Loan production is achieved by delivering a suite of prime mortgage products to our customers
using a technology-based approach across muitiple channels on a nationwide basis supported by 11 strategicaily
distributed regional mortgage centers. Our broad product offering includes adjustable-rate mortgages (“ARMs"),
intermediate term fixed-rate loans, pay option ARMs offering borrowers multiple payment options, fixed-rate
mortgages, and reverse mortgages.

Our largest productioh channel, the mortgage professionals group (“MPG”), originates or purchases morigage
loans through its relationships with mortgage brokers, morigage bankers, and financial institutions. In April 2007,
we acquired the retail platform of New York Mortgage Company (“NYMC”) and hired over 1,400 retail lending
professionals. We also offer mortgages and reverse mortgages to consumers through channels such as direct mail,
internet leads, online advertising, affinity relatiopships, real estate professicnals, including realtors, and through our
Southern California retail bank branches.

We sell mortgage loans, which are usually on a non-recourse basis, but we do make certain representations and
warranties concerning the loans. We generally retain the servicing rights with respect to loans sold to the
government sponsored enterprises (“GSEs’), primarily Federal National Mortgage Association (“Fannie Mae™)
and Federal Home Loan Mortgage Company (“‘Freddie Mac™). The credit losses on these loans are absorbed by the
GSEs. We pay guarantee fees to the GSEs to compensate them for their assumption of credit risk. The continued
severe disruption in the secondary market for loans and securities not sold to the GSEs has caused us to rapidly
change our production business model from a primary focus on non-GSE mortgage banking to a model that now
produces production that is 75%-85% eligible for sale to the GSEs.

We also sell loans through private-label securitizations. Loans sold through private-label securitizations
consist primarily of non-conforming loans and subprime loans. The securitization process involves the sale of the
loans to one, of our wholly-owned bankruptcy remote special purpose entities, which then sells the loans to a
separate, transaction-specific securitization trust in exchange for cash and certain trust interests that we retain. The
securitization trust issues and sells undivided interests to third-party investors that entitle the investors to specified
cash flows generated from the securitized loans. These undivided interests are usually represented by certificates
with varying interest rates and are secured by the payments on the loans acquired by the trust, and commonly
include senior and subordinated classes. The senior class securities are usually rated “AAA” by at least two of the
major independent rating agencies and have priority over the subordinated classes in the receipt of payments. We
have no obligation to provide funding support (other than temporary servicing advances) to either the third-party
investors or securitization trusts. Neither the third-party investors nor the securitization trusts have recourse to our
assets or us, and neither have the ability to require us to repurchase their securities. We do make certain
representations and warranties concerning the loans, such as lien status or mortgage insurance coverage, and if

‘we are found to have breached a representation or warranty, we could be required to repurchase the loan from the

securitization trust. We do not guarantee any securities issued by the securitization trusts. The securitization trusts
represent “qualified special purpose entities,” which meet the legal isolation criteria of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 140, “Accounting for Transfer and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of
Liabilities” (*SFAS 1407), and are therefore not consolidated for financial reporting purposes. We also sell loans on
a whole-loan basis to institutional investors with servicing on such loans either retained by us or released to the
institutional investors.

In addition to the cash we receive from the sale of MBS, we typically retain certain interests in the
securitization trust as payment for the loans. These retained interests may include mortgage servicing rights
(“MSRs”), AAA-rated interest-only securities, AAA-rated principal-only securities, AAA-rated senior securities,
securities associated with prepayment charges and late fee charges on the underlying mortgage loans, subordinated
classes of securities, residual securities, cash reserve funds, or an over collateralization account. Other than MSRs,
AAA-rated interest-only and principal-only securities, AAA-rated senior securities, and the securities associated
with prepayment charges and late fees on the underlying mortgage loans, these retained interests are subordinated
and serve as credit enhancement for the more senior securities issued by the securitization trust. We are entitled to
receive payment on most of these retained interests only after the third party investors are repaid their investment
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plus interest and there is excess cash in the securitization trust. Cur ability to obtain repayment of our residual
interests depends solely on the performance of the underlying mortgage loans. Material adverse changes in
performance of the loans, including actual credit losses and prepayment speeds differing from our assumptions,
may have a significant-adverse effect on the value of these retained interests. '

+

We usually retain the servicing rights for the securitized mortgage loans, as discussed in'the description of
servicing operations below under the caption “Loan Servicing.” As a servicer, we are entitled.Lo receive a servicing
fee equal to a specified percentage of the outstanding principal balance of each loan. This servicing fee is calculated
and payable on a monthly basis. We may also be entitled to receive additional servicing compensa[ion such as late
payment fees or prepayment charges. Our servicing fees have pnomy in payment over each class of securities
155ued by the securitization trusts.

Refer to “Note 13 — Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets” in the accompanying notes to consolidated
financial statements for additional information.

Mortgage Production Division

Consumer Direct Division

This division markets mortgage products directly to existing and new consumers nationwide through direct
mail, Internet lead aggregators, outbound telesales, online advertising, and referral programs, as well as through our
Southern California retail bank branches. '

Through our call center operations and our Southern California retail bank branch network, loan consultants
counsel consumers on the loan application process and make lending decisions using our e-MITS technology. Loans
are processed and funded by our operations group within our regional mortgage centers,

Mortgage Professionals Group

Qur largest production division, the MPG, was responsible for 62% of our total mortgage production during
2007. This group is responsible for the production of mortgage loans through relationships with mortgage brokers,
morigage bankers, financial institutions, capital market participants across the country, realtors, and homebuilders,
and is composed of two channels: retail, and mortgage broker and banker.

Morigage loans could be either funded by us or purchased by us as closed loans on a flow basis from morigage
bankers or community financial institutions. When originating or purchasing mortgage loans, we generally acquire
the rights to “service” the mortgage loans (as described below). When we sell the loans, we may either retain the
related servicing rights and service the loans through our mortgage servicing division or sell those rights. See “Loan
Servicing” below. '

This division targets customers based on their loan production volume, product mix and projected revenue to
us. The sales force is responsible for maintaining and increasing loan production from these customers by marketing
our 5trengths, which include a “one stop shop” for all products, competitive pricing and response time efficiencies in
the loan purchase process through our e-MITS underwriting capability and high customer service standards.

The retail lénding group, a channel of the MPG, provides mortgage financing primarily to home purchase
oriented consumers by targeting realtors, homebuilders and financial professionals via storefront mortgage loan
offices. As of December 31, 2007, we had 182 retail mortgage offices.

During 2007, in light of the current market conditions, Indymac’s MPG did not open any additional regional
wholesale mortgage centers. We had 16 regional mortgage centers as of December 31, 2007, We have decided to
close five regmnal wholesale mortgage centers, including Tampa, Philadelphia, Boston, Columbia (South Carolina)
and Kansas City, and consolidate these mortgage operations into our remaining 11 regional wholesale mortgage
wholesale centers by the end of the first quarter of 2008.

Fmancml Freedom Division

Financial Freedom is the leading provider of reverse mortgages in the United States. This group is responsnble
for the origination, purchase and servicing of reverse mortgage products with senior customers via a retail loan
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officer sales force and a mortgage banker and broker relationship sales force. Reverse mortgages allow homeowners
age 62 and older to convert home equity into cash to supplement their retirement income. The equity may be
withdrawn in a lump sum, as annuity-style monthly payments, as a credit line, or any combination thereof. Reverse
mortgages offered by us feature: no recourse to the borrower, no repayment during the borrower’s occupancy of the
home, and a repayment amount that cannot exceed the value of the home (after costs of sale). Comparing 2007 to
2006, our reverse mortgage volume decreased 6% to $4.7 biflion in 2007 from $5.0 billion in 2006 primarily due to
the expected increased competition and the secondary market disruption in the later half of 2007. As a result, margin
for this product was negatively impacted. However, with the increased familiarity that senior homeowners and their
financial advisors have with this product, the reverse mortgage market is expected to continue to grow.

Mortgage Servicing Division

This division manages the assets we retain in conjunction with our mortgage loan sales. The assets held include
the following: (i) MSRs, interest-only securities, prepayment penalty securities and late fee securities; (ii)} deriv-
atives and securities held as hedges of such assets, including forward rate agreements swaps, options, futures,
principal-only securities, agency debentures and U.S. Treasury bonds; and (iii) loans acquired through clean-up
calls or originated through our customer retention programs. We hedge the MSRs to protect the economic value of
the MSRs.

At December 31, 2007, primarily through our -Home Loan Servicing operation in Kalamazoo, Michigan, we
serviced $198.2 billion of mortgage toans, of which $181.7 billion was serviced for others, an increase of 30% from
$139.8 billion serviced for others in 2006. The servicing portfolio includes prime loans, reverse mortgages,
manufactured housing loans and home improvement loans.

Servicing of mortgage loans includes: collecting loan payments; responding to customers’ inquiries; account-
ing for pﬁﬁcipa] and interest; holding custodial (impound) funds for payment of property taxes and insurance;
counseling delinquent mortgagorls; modifying and refinancing loans; supervising foreclosures and liquidation of
foreclosed property; performing required tax reporting; and performing other loan administration functions
necessary to protect investors’ interests and comply with applicable laws and regulations. Servicing operations
also include remitting loan payments, less servicing fees, to trustees and, in some cases, advancing delinquent
borrower payments to investors, subject to a right of reimbursement.

THRIFT SEGMENT

The strategy of our thrift segment has been to leverage our capital infrastructure with prudent mortgage related
asset growth 1o diversify company-wide earnings, targeting a return on equity exceeding the cost of both core and
risk-based capital. The thrift segment principally invests in single-family residential (“SFR”) mortgage loans
(predominantly prime ARMs, including intermediate term fixed-rate loans), mortgage-backed securities and
construction financing for single-family residences or lots provided directly to individual consumers. The primary
saurces of revenue for the thrift segment are net interest income on loans and securities, and to a lesser extent, the
gain on sale of loans.

Portfolio Divisions

Mortgage-Backed Securities Division
MBS includes predominantly AAA-rated prii.'ate label MBS.

SFR Mortgage Loans HFI Division

Single-family residential mortgage loans held for investment (“HFI”) are generally originated or acquired
through our mortgage banking production divisions and transferred to the thrift. Held for investment loans may also
be acquired from third party sellers and such loans are typically prime loans. The thrift attempts to invest in loans on
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which it can earn an acceptable return on equity. This division had significant asset growth in 2007 as we transferred
a significant amount of loans from held for sale as market conditions made the sale of these loans uneconomic.

Consumer Construction Division

Our consumer construction division provides construction financing for individual consumers who want to
build a new primary residence or second home. Through our streamlined e-MITS online application process, the
division offers a single-close construction-to-permanent loan that provides borrowers with the funds to build a
primary residence or vacation home. This product typically provides financing for a construction term of 6 to
12 months and automatically converts to a permanent mortgage loan at the end of construction. The end result is a
product that represents a hybrid activity between our portfolio lending and mortgage banking activities. We earn net
interest income on these loans during the construction phase. When the home is completed, the loan automatically
converts to a permanent mortgage loan without any additional cost or closing documents, which is typically sold in
the secondary market or acquired by the SFR mortgage loans HFI division. This division also provides financing to
builders who are building single-family residences without a guaranteed sale at inception of project, or on a
speculative basis. Approximately 68% of new commitments are generated through mortgage broker customers of
the mortgage professional group and the remaining 32% of new commitments are retail originations. Beginning in
2008, we have temporarily suspénded production in this division to reduce our balance sheet size. ’

DISCONTINUED BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

As conditions in the U.S. mortgage market have deteriorated, we have exited certain production channels and
are reporting them in a separate category in our segment reporting, “Discontinued Business Activities”. These
exited production channels include the conduit, homebuilder and home equity channels. These activities are not
considered discontinued operations pursuant to Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“GAAP”} under
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-
Lived Assets” (“SFAS 144") due to our significant continuing involvement in these activities. For additional
informmation, see “Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations — Summary of Business Segment Results — Discontinued Business Activities.”

REGULATION AND SUPERVISION

GENERAL

As a savings and loan holding company, IndyMac Bancorp is subject to regulation by the Office of Thrift
Supervision (“OTS") under the savings and loan holding company provisions of the Federal Home Owners’ Loan
Act (“HOLA™). As a federally chartered and insured savings and loan association, Indymac Bank is subject 1o
regulation, supervision and periodic examination by the OTS, which is the primary federal regulator of savings
associations, and the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”), in its role as federal deposit insurer. The
primary purpose of regulatory examination and supervision is to protect depositors, financial institutions and the
financial system as a whole rather than the shareholders of financial institutions or their holding companies. The
following summary is not intended to be a complete description of the applicable laws and regulations or their
effects on us, and it is qualified in its entirety by reference to the particular statutory and regulatory provisions
described.

REGULATION OF INDYMAC BANK
General

Both Indymac Bank and the Company are required to file periodic reports with the OTS concerning our
activities and financial condition. The OTS has substantial enforcement authority with respect to savings asso-
ciations, including authority to bring enforcement actions against a savings association and any of its “institution-
affiliated parties,” which term includes directors, officers, employees, controlling shareholders, agents and other
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persons who participate in the conduct of the affairs of the institution. The FDIC has “backup™ enforcement
authority over us and has the power to terminate a savings association’s FDIC deposit insurance. In addition, we are
subject to regulations of the Federal Reserve Board relating to equal credit opportunity, electronic fund transfers,
collection of checks, truth in lending, truth in savings, and availability of funds for deposit customers.

Qualified Thrift Lender Test

Like all savings and loan holding company subsidiaries, Indymac Bank is required to meet a qualified thrift
lender (“QTL") test to avoid certain restriclions on our operations, including the activities restrictions applicable to
multiple savings and loan holding companies, restrictions on our ability to branch interstate and IndyMac Bancorp's
mandatory registration as a bank holding company under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956. A savings
association satisfies the QTL test if: (i) on a monthly average basis, for at least nine months out of each twelve
month period, at least 65% of a specified asset base of the savings association consists of loans to small businesses,
credit card loans, educational loans, or certain assets related to domestic residential real estate, including residential
mortgage loans and mortgage securities; or (ii) at least 60% of the savings association’s total assets consist of cash,
U.S. government or government agency debt or equity securities, fixed assets, or loans secured by deposits, real
property used for residential, educational, church, welfare, or health purposes, or real property in certain urban
renewal areas. Indymac Bank is currently, and expects to remain, in compliance with QTL standards.

Regulatory C&pital Requireniems

OTS capital regulations require savings associations’ to satisfy three sets of capital requirements: tangible
capital, Tier 1 capital, and risk-based capital. In general, an association’s tangible capital, which must be at least
1.5% of tangible assets, is the sum of common sharcholders’ equity adjusted for the effects of other comprehensive
income (**OCI”), tess goodwill and other disallowed assets. An association’s ratio of Tier | (core) capital to adjusted
total assets (the “core capital” or “leverage” ratio) must be at least 3% for strong associations that are not
anticipating or experiencing significant growth and have well-diversified risks, including no undue interest rate risk
exposure, excellent asset quality, high liquidity, and good earnings; and 4% for others. Higher capital ratios may be
required if warranted by the particular circumstances, risk profile, or growth rate of a given association. Under the
risk-based capital requirement, a savings association must have Tier 1 risk-based capital equal to at least 4% of risk-
weighted assets and total risk-based capital (core capital plus supplementary capital} equal to at least 8% of risk-
weighted assets. Tier | capital must represent at least 50% of total capital and consists of core capital elements,
which include common shareholders’ equity, qualifying noncumulative, nonredeemable perpetual preferred stock,
and minority interests in the equity accounts of consolidated subsidiaries, but exclude goodwill and certain other
intangible assets. Supplementary capital consists mainly of qualifying subordinated debt, preferred stock that does
not meet Tier | capital requirements, and a portion of the allowance for loan losses.

The above capital requirements are viewed as minimum standards by the OTS. The OTS regulations also
specify minimum requirements for a savings association to be considered a “well-capitalized institution™ as defined
in the “prompt corrective action” regulation described below. A “well-capitalized” savings association must have a
total risk-based capital ratio of 10% or greater, a Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio of 6% or greater and a Tier 1 (core)
capital ratio of 5% or greater. Indymac Bank currently meets the requirements of a “well-capitalized institution.”

The OTS regulations include prompt corrective action provisions that require certain remedial actions and
authorize certain other discretionary actions to be taken by the OTS against a savings association that falls within
specified categories of capital deficiency. The relevant regulations establish five categories of capital classification
for this purpose, ranging from "“well-capitalized” 10 “adequately capitalized” through “undercapitalized,” “sig-
nificantly undercapitalized” and “critically undercapitalized.” In general, the prompt corrective action regulations
prohibit an OTS-regulated institution from declaring any dividends, making any other capital distributions, or
paying a management fee to a controlling person, such as its parent holding company, if, following the distribution
or payment, the institution would be within any of the three undercapitalized categories.
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Insurance of Deposit Accounts

Deposits of the Bank are presently insured by the FDIC, up to $100,000 per 'deposilor. The FDIC has
established a risk-based system for setting deposit insurance assessments. Under the risk-based assessment system,
a savings association’s insurance assessments vary according to the leve! of capital the institution holds and the
degree to which it is the subject of supervisory concern. Assessment rates currently range between five and 43 cents
per $100 in deposits. Insurance of deposits may be terminated by the FDIC upon a finding that the savings
association has engaged in unsafe or unsound practices, is in an unsafe or unsound condition to continue operations
or has violated any applicable law, regulation, rule, order or condition imposed by the FDIC or the OTS. All insured
depository indtitutions, including the Bank, are required to pay an additional assessment, currently 1.14 cents per
$100 in deposits, in order to retire Financial Corporation bonds that were issued between 1987 and 1989.

Capital Distribution Regulations

I
OTS regulations limit “capital distributions” by savings associations, which include, among other things,
dividends and payments for stock repurchases. Refer to “Note 22 — Regulatory Requirements” in the accompa-
hying notes to our consolidated financial statements for further discussion,

Community Reinvestment Act and the Fair Lending Laws

Savings associations are examined under the Community Reinvestment Act (“CRA”™) and related regulations
of the OTS on the extent of their efforts to help meet the credit needs of their communities, including low and
moderate-income neighborhoods. In addition, the Equal Credit Opportunity Act and the Fair Housing Act, together
known as the “Fair Lending Laws,” prohibit lenders from discriminating in their lending practices on the basis of
characteristics specified in those statutes. Enforcement of these regulations has been an important focus of federal
regulatory authorities and of community groups in recent years A failure by Indymac Bank to comply with the
provisions of the CRA could, at a minimum, result in adverse action on branch and certain other corporate
applications, and regulatory restrictions on our activities, and failure to comply with the Fair Lending Laws could
result in enforcement actions by the OTS, as well as other federal regulatory agencies and the Department of ] ustice.
Indymac Bank received an overall “Satlsfactory -rating during our most recent CRA evaluation,

Privacy Protection

2

The OTS has adopted privacy protection regulations which require each 'savings' association to adopt
procedures to protect consumers’ and customers’ “nonpublic personal information.” It is Indymac Bank’s policy
not to share custometrs’ information with any unaffiliated third parties, except as expressly permitted by law, or to
allow third party companies to provide marketing services on our behalf, or under joint marketing agreements
between us and other unaffiliated financial institutions. In addition to federal laws and regulations, we are required
to comply with any privacy requirements prescribed by California and other states in wh1ch we do business that
afford consumers with protections greater than those provided under federal law.

INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS

We report our income on a calendar year basis using the liability method of accounting. We are subject to
federal income taxation under existing provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, in generally
the same manner as other corporations. We are also subject to state taxes in the areas in which we conduct business.

EMPLOYEES

As of December 31, 2007, we had 9,907 full time equivalent employees (“FTE"), mcludmg 870 FTE off-shore
as part of our Global Resources program. , .
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COMPETITION

While the current disruptions in the housing and credit markets have reduced the number of competitors, we
still face significant competition for lending volume. Many of our competitors are larger and enjoy both financial
and customer awareness advantages over us. In addition, the reduction in salability of many moertgages has caused
us to temporarily discontinue certain lending products that many of our competitors are able to originate.

While we believe that our current plans and strategies will allow us to compete in the market, there can be no
assurance that we will succeed and as a result, our financial results could be materially worse than we expect.

WEBSITE ACCESS TO UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION FILINGS

All reports filed electronically by us with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”), including
Annual Reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, and current event reports on Form 8-K, as well as
any amendments to those reports, are made accessible as soon as reasonably practicable after filing with the SEC at
no cost on our website at www.imb.com. These filings are also accessible on the SEC’s website at www.sec.gov.

We have a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics that is applicable to all of our employees and officers,
including the principal executive officer, the principal financial officer and the principal accounting officer. In
addition, Indymac has a Director Code of Ethics that sets forth the policy and standards concerning ethical conduct
for directors of Indymac. We also adopted formal corporate governance standards in January 2002, which the
Corporate Governance Committee of the Board of Directors reviews annually to ensure they incorporate recent
corporate governance developments and generally meet the corporate governance needs of Indymac. You may
obtain copies of each of the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, the Director Code of Ethics, and the Board of
Directors” Guidelines for Corporate Governance Issues by accessing the “Corporate Governance” subsection of the
“Investors” section of www.imb.com, or free of charge by writing to our Corporate Secretary at IndyMac Bancorp,
Inc., 888 East Walnut Street, Pasadena, California 91101. lndymac‘intends to post amendments to or waivers of the
Code of Business Conduct and Ethics (to the extent applicable to Indymac’s principal executive officer, principal
financial officer or principal accounting officer) and of the Director Code of Ethics at the website location
referenced above.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
KEY OPERATING RISKS

Like all businesses, we assume a certain amount of risk in order to earn returns on our capital. For further
information on these and other key operating risks, see “Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Risk Factors That May Affect Future Results.”

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our significant leased properties are as follows:

Approximate  Principal Lease
Purpose Location : Square Feet Expiration
Corporate Headquarters/Administration . . .. Pasadena, California 192,000 2010
Corporate Headquarters/Administration*® . .. Pasadena, California 179,000 2016
Mortgage Banking Headquarters . . .. ... ., Pasadena, California 190,000 2017
Corporate IT. . . .................... Tempe, Arizona 28,500 2015
Home Loan Servicing — Customer Service -

and Loan Administration . .........., Kalamazoo, Michigan 46,000 2013
Home Loan Servicing — Master Servicing

and Investor Reporting . . ............ Austin, Texas 106,000 2012
Consumer Cross-Sell and Retention ‘

Headgquarters; Mortgage Bank Operations;

Financial Freedom Headquarters,

Legal/Administration . . ............. Irvine, California 138,000 2012
Regional Mortgage Banking Center, ' .

Consumer Direct Operations and Sales . . . Kansas City, Missouri 53,000 2009
Regional Mortgage Banking Center,

Consumer Direct Operations and Sales . . . Overland Park, Kansas 21,000 2009
Regional Mortgage Banking Center. . . . ., . Ontario, California ’ 41,500 2012
Regional Mortgage Banking Center . ... ... San Ramon, California 46,500 2010
Regional Morigage Banking Center . .. . ... Atlanta (Norcross), Georgia 67,500 2009
Regional Mortgage Banking Center . . .. ... Scottsdale, Arizona 46,000 2009-201!
Regional Mortgage Banking Center. . .. .. . Marlton, New Jersey 62,000 2012
Regionai Morigage Banking Center. . . . ... East Norriton, Pennsylvania 39,000 2011
Regional Mortgage Banking Center . ., ... . Columbia, South Carolina 36,000 2009
Regional Mortgage Banking Center. . .. ... Dallas (Irving), Texas 41,000 2008
Regional Mortgage Banking Center. ... ... Seattle (Bellevue), Washington 31,000 2008
Regional Mortgage Banking Center . . ., .., Sacramento (Rancho Cordova), California 34,000 2012
Regional Mortgage Banking Center . . . . . .. Tampa, Florida 34,000 2013
Regional Mortgage Banking Center . . . . ... Chicago (Schaumburg), lllinois 62,000 2013
Regional Mortgage Banking Center. . . .. .. Boston {Quincy), Massachusetts 26,000 2013
Eastern Operations Center — Financial

Freedom........................ Atlanta, Georgia 44,000 2012
Western Operations Center — Financial " o

Freedom........................ Sacramento (Roseville), California 55,000 2008-2009
l.oan Servicing, Accounting and Finance —

Financial Freedom . ................ San Francisco, California 23,000 2008
Retail Lending Group .. .............. 182 locations in various states 494,000 2008-2013
Consumer Bank Retail Operations. . ... ... 28 locations in Southern California 101,000 2008-2017

2008-2010

Other Sales Offices and Locations . . .. .. .. 55 locations in various states 48,000

* 5,203 square feet relates to a Consumer Bank Retail Operation

In addition to the above leased office space, we own a building in La Mirada, California of approximately
16,500 square feet, which houses our information technology data center. We own an additional four retail banking
properties, containing an aggregate of approximately 56,000 square feet, located in Southern California.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

In the ordinary course of business, the Company and its subsidiaries are defendants in or parties to a number of
legal actions. Certain of such actions involve alleged violations of employment laws, unfair trade practices,
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consumer protection laws, including claims relating to the Company's sales, loan origination and collection efforts,
and other federal and state banking laws. Management believes, based on current knowledge and after consultation
with counsel, that these legal actions, individually and in the aggregate, and the losses, if any, resulting from the
likely final outcome thereof, will not have a material adverse effect on the Company and its subsidiaries’ financial
position, but may have a material impact on the results of operations of particular periods. Refer to “Note 20 —
Commitments and Contingencies” in the accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements for further
discussion.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to a vote of shareholders during the quarter ended December 31, 2007.

PART H
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR INDYMAC BANCORP, INC.’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES
STOCK INFORMATION '

IndyMac Bancorp, Inc.’s common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”) under the
symbol “IMB” effective May 1, 2007. Previously, it was trading under the symbol “NDE".

The following table sets forth the high and low sales prices (as reported by Bloomberg Financial Service) for
shares of IndyMac Bancorp, Inc.’s common stock for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006:

2007 2006

T & 8§
FArSt QUAMET « v« e e e e e e e e e e e e 4582 2627 4324 3771
Second QUAIET . « . v e e et e e e e e e 37.50 2837 5050 40.44
Third QUATET -« « o e e e e e e e e 31.50 1686 4724 37.15
FOurth QUAMET - . .« e vev e et e et e e 2538 575 48.14 4035

ISSUANCE OF COMMON STOCK

The Company has a direct stock purchase plan which offers investors the ability to purchase shares of our
common stock directly over the Internet. Investors interested in investing over $10,000 can also participate in the
waiver program administered by Mellon Investor Services LLC. For the year ended December 31, 2007, we issued
7.427,104 shares of common stock at an average market price of $19.60 through this plan, as compared to the year
ended December 31, 2006, for which we issued 3,532,360 shares of common stock at an average market price of
$42.04 through this plan.
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- SHARE REPURCHASE ACTIVITIES

The followmg summanzes share repurchase activities during the three months ended December 31, 2007:

Total Number of . Maximum Approxlmste
. Total Shares Purchased Dollar Value (In Million} of
+ Number of Weighied as Part of Publicly Shares that may yet be
Shares Average Price Announced Plans or Purchased Under the
Purchased(1) Paid per Share Programs Plans o Programs(2)
Calendar Month: '
October 2007........ - 5 — ) - ) $300
November 2007. . . ... 2,886 17.63 - 300
December 2007 . .. . .. 3715 8.48 — ' 300
Total.............. 3,261 16.58 — 300

(1) All shares purchased duning the periods indicated represent w1lhholdmg of a portion of shares to cover taxes m
connection with vesting of restricted stock or exercise of stock options. .

(2) Our Board of Directors previously approved a $500 milion share repurchase program. Since i1s inception in
1999, we have repurchased a total of 28.0 million shares through this program. In January 2007, we obtained an
authorization from the Board of Directors to repurchase an additional $236.4 mllhon of common stock for a
total current authorization of up to $300 million. - '

As of February 15, 2008, 80,894,900 shares of lndyMac Bdncorp Inc.’$ common stock were held by
approximately 1,847 shareholders of record, - - .

DIVIDEND POLICY

In light of the current financial performance of Indymac, the Board of Directors indefinitely suspended its
quarterly ¢ash dividend payments on our common stock beginning the first quarter of 2008, T

For the years ended December 31, 2007 and .2006, we declared the fol.lowing cash div_idends_:

Dividend Dividend
per Payout
Share Ratio(1)

2007 , .

First Quarter .. ................. e e $0.50 71%
Second Quarter ... ... e . e $0.50 83%
Third Quarter. . ............ .. .. ... ... P D .. $0.50 (18)%
Fourth Quarter. ... ................. S e c... $0.25 (D)%
2006 ' ’

First QUAMET . ..o .ottt et e e e e e e $044 3%
Second QUArer .. ... ... . e e $0.46 31%
Third QUarter. . . . .t e e $0.48 40%
Fourth Quarter. . .. ... ... . . $0.50 52%

(1) Dividend payout ratio represents dividends declared per share as a percentage of diluted earnings {loss) per
share. This ratio was negative for the third and fourth quarters of 2007 due to the Company’s net loss and
resulting diluted Joss per share for those two periods.
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In 2007 and 2006, we funded the payment of dividends primarily from the dividend from Indymac Bank and
cash on hand at the Parent Company. The future principal source of funds for the dividend payments is anticipated to
be the dividends we will receive from Indymac Bank. The payment of dividends by Indymac Bank is subject to
regulatory requirements and review. See “Item 1. Business- Regulation and Supervision-Regulations of Indymac
Bank-Capital Distribution Regulations” for further information. There is no assurance that the Bank will be able to
pay dividends to the Company in the future.

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLANS INFORMATION

The equity compensation plans information required under this Item 5 is hereby incorporated by reference to
Indymac Bancorp’s definitive proxy statement, to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 days after the end
of our 2007 fiscal year.

|
-
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

t{Dollars in millions, except per share data)

Selected Balance Sheet Information (at December 31)(1)

Cash and cash equivalemts . . . ......... e
Securities (trading and available forsale) . .....................
Loansheld forsale ... ...... .. 0t
Loans held forinvestment . . . . ...... ... ... .........., .....
Allowance forloanlosses . ... .. ....... ... ... .. ... .. .. .
Morntgage servicing rights . . .. .. .. ... .. .. . o e
OMher BS5EI8 . . . . . . iy i m e e e e

Deposits . . ... ..
Advances from Federal Home Loan Bank. . ....................
Otherborrowings. . . ............ ... i i,
Other liabilities and preferred stock insubsidiary . .. .. ............

Total Liabilities and Preferred Stock in Subsidiary . ... ..........
Shareholders” Equity . ... ..... ... .. ... . ..

Statement of Operations Information(1)
INEIMETESLINCOME . . . . ot e s e e e e et et iaee e

Gain(lossjonsaleofloans . . .......... .. ...
Service fee IMCOME. . . . . v vt et e e e e e
Gain (loss) on securities , ., . . ... ... ... e
Feeand other income . . . . .. ... ... .. . e e

NEtTEVEMUES. . . o oottt s e i e i ia e e
TOtal EXPENSES. . . v v e e e e
(Provision) benefit for income taxes. . . . ......... ... ... ......

Netearnings (l0ss}. . . ... ... e e

Operating Data

SFR mortgage loan production . . . .. ... 0 oo
Total loan production{(3) .. .. ... .« ..ot e
Mortgage industry market share(®) ... ........... .. ... .......
Pipeline of SFR mortgage loans in process (at December 31} ... ......
Loanssold . . . ... ..., .. .. e e e,
Loans sold/SFR mortgage loans production. . ... ................
SFR mortgage loans serviced for others (at December 31%7) .........
Total SFR mortgage loans serviced (at December 31) .. .. ....... ...
Average number of full-time equivalent employees (“FTEs™) . ........

Per Common Share Data

Basic earnings (loss) pershare(8) . .. ...... ... ... oo oL
Diluted earnings (lossy pershare(®) . .. ..... ... ... ... ... ...,
Dividends declared pershare . ... ........ .. ... .. .. .. ...
Dividend payout ratio{10) . . ... .. ... ... L o e
Book value per share (at December 31y . . .. ... ... ... ... ....
Closing price per share (at December 31) .. .. .. ... ... . ... ....
Average shares (in thousands):

Basic.................... T

Performance Ratios

Returnon averageequity. . .. . ... .. ... i
Return on average assels . . - . . .. . vt i e e
Net interest margin, consolidated ... .................... ... .
Net interest margin, thrift(11). . .. ... ... oo ol
Mortgage banking revenue (“MBR’) margin on loans sold(12) . ... ....
Efficiency ratio(13) . ... ... ... .
Operating expenses to Joan production . . . .. ........ . . ...

Average Balance Sheet Data and Asset Quality Ratios

Average inlerest-carning assels . . . . .. ...ttt e
AVEIAge ASSELS. . . . . L. e e it e
Average equily . . .. ... e e
Debt to equity ratio (at December 31)(14). . ... ... ... ... ... ...
Tier | {core) capital ratio (at December 31){(15) . . .. ........ ... ...
Risk-based capital ratio (at December 31){(15) . .. . ... ............
Non-performing assets to total assets (at December 31) .. .. .. ... ...
Allowance for loan losses to total [oans held for investment

(atDecember 31) . . .. ... ... . e
Allowance for loan losses to non-performing loans held for investment

{at December 31) . . . ... ... . ...

Year Ended December 31

2007 2006  2005(2) 2004(2,3,4) 2003(2,4)
$ 562 5 542 %5 443 0§ 356§ 1S
7.328 5443 4,102 3,689 1.838
3,777 9468 6024 4,446 2,573
16,454 10177 8278 6,750 7.449
(398) (62) (55) (53) (53)
2,495 1822 1,094 641 444
2,516 2,105 1,566 . 997 874
$32734 § 29495 $21452  §16826  §$13,240
$ 17815 5 10898 §$ 7672 % 5743 $ 4,351
11,189 10413 6953 6,162 4935
652 4637 4367 3,162 2,622
1,734 1,519 917 478 301
$ 31390 $ 27467 519909  $15545 $12,209
$ 1344 $ 2028 $ 1543  $ 1280 1,082
$ 567 § 527 § 425 % 405 $ 311
(396) (20) (10) (8) (20)
(354) 668 592 431 387
519 101 44 (12) (16)
(439) 21 18 (24) @3
107 50 37 27 19
4 1,347 1,106 819 650
{999) (791) (621) (483) (382)
380 (213) {192) (134) (107)
$ (615 $§ 3 0§ 293 0§ 2202 0§ 6l
$ 76979 $89951 $60774  $37.902 $29,236
78316 91,698 62,714 39,048 30,036
3.30% 3130%  2.01% 1.37% 0.77%
$ 7506 $ 11,821 $10488  § 6,689 $ 4,116
71,164 79049 52297 31,036 23,176
92% 88% 86% 82% 79%
$181,724  $139,817 $84,495  $50,219 $30,774
198,170 155656 90,721 56,038 37,066
9.518 7,935 6,240 4715 1,882
$ (828 $ 507 § 467 § 341 $ 292
(8.28) 4.82 4.43 327 2.88
1.75 1.88 1.56 121 0.55
@n® 39% 35% 37% 19%
$ 1661 $ 2778 5 2402  § 2065 $ 18.17
5.95 4516  30.02 34.45 2979
74,261 61701 62,760 59,513 55,241
74,261 7,118 66,115 62,010 55,989
GLI0O%  19.09%  2123%  17.38% 17.02%
(L70)%  L17%  1.38% 1.20% 1.38%
1.81% 2% 2.16% 2.61% 2.91%
2.16% 211%  2.27% 2.15% 1.78%
02)%  1L06%  1.36% 1.80% 2.21%
244% 58% 55% 58% 57%
[24% 086%  0.99% 1.24% 1.27%
$ 31232 $ 26028 $19.645  $15521 $10,675
35969 29309 21,278 16,871 11,712
1.977 1,796 1.381 1,167 949
16.2:1 1351 1291 12.1:1 11.8:1
6.24% 739%  §21% 7.66% 7.56%
10.50%  1L72%  12.20%  12.02% 12.29%
461% 063%  034% 0.73% 0.76%
2.42% 061%  0.67% 0.78% 0.1 %
3044%  5751% 127.10%  107.67%  140.04%
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The iterns under the balance sheet and statement of operations sections are rounded individuvally and therefore
may not necessarily add to the total.

2003-2005 data has been retrospectively adjusted to reflect the stock option expenses under Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS™) No. 123(R), “Share Based Payment” (“SFAS 123(R)"). Refer to
“Note 23 — Benefit Plans™ in the accompanying notes to our consolidated financial statements for further
discussion.

For the year ended December 31, 2004, the data is presented on a pro forma basis excluding the effect of
change in accounting principle for rate lock .commitments under Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 105,
“Application of Accounting Principles to Loan Commitments” (“SAB 105™), effective April 1, 2004, and
for the impact of the purchase accounting adjustments for Financial Freedom. The SAB 105 impact for the
year ended December 31, 2004 was $59.5 million. Additionally, the impact of the purchase accounting
adjustment for Financial Freedom totaled $7.9 million before-tax. The pro forma results are provided so that
investors can evaluate our results on a comparable basis. A full reconciliation between the pro forma and
GAAP amounts, with the relevant performance ratios, is as follows: '

Year Ended December 31, 2004

GAAP Adjustments Pro Forma

(Dollars in millions, except per share data)
Gainonsaleof loans. ... .._... ... ... .. ... . ...... $ 364 $ 67 $ 431
I (LB (3111 S U 751 67 818
Otherexpense . . ...ttt 483 — 483
INCOMmE tAXeS . . . . ... . i e 106 27 133
Netearnings .............. it $ 162 $ 40 $ 202
Diluted earnings pershare . ...........ccviuriinnronas $ 2.61 $0.66 $ 3.27
ROE . . e 13.89% 17.38%
ROA . e e e 0.96% 1.20%

The Company previously classified the initial deferral of the incremental direct origination costs net of the
fees collected on the loans as a net reduction in operating expenses. However, during 2005, we revised the
presentation to reflect the deferral of the total fees collected as a reduction of fee and other income and the
deferral of the incremental direct origination costs as a reduction of operating expenses. All prior periods were
revised to conform to the current year presentation. This revision had no impact on reported earnings or the
balance sheet in 2005 or in any prior period. Certain performance ratios based on net revenues or operating
expenses were revised accordingly.

Total loan production includes newly originated commitments on builder construction loans as well as
commercial real estate loan production, which started in March 2007.

Mortgage industry market share is calculated based on our total SFR mortgage loan production, both
purchased (mortgage broker and banker) and originated (retail and mortgage broker and banker), in all
channels (the numerator) divided by the Mortgage Bankers Association (“MBA™) February 15, 2008
Mortgage Finance Long-Term Forecast estimate of the overall mortgage market (the denominator). Our
market share calculation is consistent with that of our mortgage banking peers. It is important to note that these
industry calculations cause purchased mortgages to be counted more than once, i.e., first when they are
originated and again by the purchasers (through financial institutions and conduit channels) of the mortgages.
Therefore, our market share calculation may not be mathematically precise, but it is consistent with industry
calculations, which we believe provides investors with a good view of our relative standing compared to our
top mortgage lending peers.

SFR mortgage toans serviced for others represent the unpaid principal balance on loans sold with servicing'g
retained by Indymac. Total SFR mortgage loans serviced include mortgage loans serviced for others and
mortgage loans owned by and serviced for Indymac.

Net earnings (loss) divided by weighted average basic shares outstanding for the year.
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(9) Net earnings (loss) divided by weighted average diluted shares outstanding for the year. Due to the net loss for
the year ended December 31, 2007, no potentially-dilutive shares are included in the dlluted loss per’ share
calculation as including such shares in the calculation would be anti-dilutive.

(10) Dividend payout ratioc represents dividends declared per share as-a percentage of diluted earnings (loss) per
share. This ratio was negative for 2007 due to the Company’s net loss and resulting diluted loss per share for
the year. L

(11) Net interest margin, thrift, represents the combined margin for thrift, elimination and other, and corporate
overhead.

(12) Mortgage banking revenue margin is calculated using the sum of consolidated"gain (loss) on sale of loans and
the net interest income earned on loans held for sale by our mortgage bankmg productlon d1v151ons divided by
total loans sold. )

(13) Efficiency ratio is defined as operating expenses divided by net revenues, excluding provision for loan losses.

(14) Total debt dmded by total shareholders’ equity. For December 31, 2007, preferred stock in subs:dlary is
included in the calculation.

(15) The Tier 1 (core) capital ratio and risk-based capita! ratio are for Indymac Bank and exclude unencumbered
cash at the Parent Company available for investment in Indymac Bank. The risk-based capital ratio is
calculated based on the regulatory standard risk weightings adjusted for the additional risk weightings for
subprime loans. .
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion-and analysis should be read in conjunction with our consolidated ﬁnan(:lal
statements, and the notes thereto and the other information incorporated by reference herein.

OVERVIEW

The U.S. mortgage industry experienced unprecedented disruption in 2007. A combination of credit tightening
and softening real estate prices throughout the U.S. has resulted in an industry-wide increase in delinquencies and
foreclosures. Many mortgage lenders were forced to sell loans and securities at distressed prices, and many that
were not depository institutions collapsed or were severely affected. As a result of this disruption, Indymac has
made significant changes in its business model. We are currently expecting to originate a significant portion of our
loans for sale to the GSEs as that market remains the only reliable secondary market, at present.

We have reduced our morigage production by eliminating production channels and suspending products. We
have suspended or eliminated many higher risk products, including high CLTV closed-end second liens and
HEL.OCs, consumer and builder construction loans, and most non-conforming loan production. Alse, we exited
certain production channels, including the conduit channel, the homebuilder division and the home equity division.
As a result, production results for 2007 show a significant decline from the prior year.

2007 was also severely impacted by worsening credit conditions as home prices and home sales declined. This
has led to a stgnificant increase in delinquencies in many products, particularly in higher loan-to-value (“LTV™) first
and second lien }oans and builder construction loans. As a result of the significantly worsening trends in home prices
and loan delinquencies, we recorded significant charges, principally related to credit risk in our HFI portfolio,
builder construction portfolio, and consumer construction portfolio. In addition, we recorded significant valuation
adjustments in our loans held for sale, investment and non-investment grade securities and in residual securities.
Finally, delinquency and repurchase demand trends, predominantly in our higher CLTV/LTV loan products,
increased significantly. -

As aresult of these changes, virtually all of our operating segments, except for the mortgage servicing division
and Financial Freedom, our reverse mortgage lending subsidiary, reported material losses in 2007, For the year
ended December 31, 2007, Indymac had a consolidated net loss of $614.8 million. Regarding business segment
performance’, the mortgage production division had a net loss of $96.8 million in 2007 while the mortgage
servicing division had earnings of $181.4 million. Combining mortgage production and servicing, the mortgage
banking segment recorded net earnings of $33.0 million. The thrift segment recorded a net loss of $199.2 million for
2007 and our discontinued business activities recorded a net loss of $281.1 million. As a result of our thrift structure
and strong capital and liquidity positions, we were not forced to sell assets at liquidation prices and our funding
capacity was not materially impacted.

! Net income for the mortgage production division, mortgage servicing division and the thrift segment is before
divisiona! and corporate overhead. Net income for the total mortgage banking segment is after divisional
overhead but before corporate overhead.
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NARRATIVE SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL RESULTS

Year ended December 31, 2007 Compared to Year ended Decémber 31, 2006

The Company recorded a net loss of $614.8 million, or $8.28 loss per diluted share, for the year ended
December 31, 2007, compared with net earnings of $342.9 million, or $4.82 per diluted share, for the year ended
December 31, 2006. The decline in profitability is mainly attributable to higher credit costs and significant
reduction in gain on sale of loans due to spread widening and illiquidity in the secondary mortgage market. We
recorded $1.4 billion of credit costs for the year ended December 31, 2007 compared to $126.1 miltion for the year
ended December 31, 2006. As a result, our total credit reserves increased to $2.4 billion at December 31, 2007
compared to $619 million as of December 31, 2006. See the “Asset Quality” section for further information on
credit reserves.

SFR Mortgage Loan Production

Our total SFR mortgage loan production for the year ended December 31, 2007 dropped 14%, to $77.0 billion,
as compared to $90.0 billion for 2006. This decline in volume is mainly reflected in the 47%, or $14.0 billion, drop
in production from our conduit channel from 2006 as we exited this channel due to its inherently lower profit
margins and the current uncertainty with respect to secondary market spreads and execution. Also, volume from the
mortgage broker and banker channel declined by $1.7 billion, or 4%, from 2006 as we migrated our production
efforts to focus primarily on GSE-eligible loans. Total SFR mortgage loan production, excluding the conduit
channel, produced $60.9 billion in 2007, reflecting a slight increase of 2% from $59.9 billion in 2006. Our retail
channel continued to grow with production reaching $2.0 billion this year, significantly up from $7.0 millien in
2006. The servicing retention channel saw an increase of 70% from 2006. The pipeline of SFR mortgage loans in
process ended at $7.5 billion, down 37% from $11.8 billion at December 31, 2006,

Mortgage Banking Revenue Margin

Net revenues for the Company declined to $3.6 million for 2007 compared to $1.3 billion for 2006. This
decline in net revenues is primarily due to the decline in MBR margin caused by the secondary market disruption
discussed earlier and higher credit costs due to worsening delinquencies in our held for sale (“HFS™), HFI and credit
risk securities portfolios. Qur MBR margin declined to a negative 0.22% for the year ended December 31, 2007
from a positive 1.06% for the year ended December 31, 2006. This year over year MBR margin decline was
primarily due to higher credit costs and the change in product mix of loans sold.

In the fourth quarter of 2007, we transferred HFS loans with an original cost basis of $10.9 billion to HFT loans
as we no longer intend to sell these loans given the extreme disruption in the secondary mortgage market. These
loans were transferred at the lower of cost or market (“LOCOM?”), and, accordingly, we reduced the cost basis by
$0.6 billion, resulting in an increase in HFI loans of $10.3 billion. The $0.6 billion reduction was a combination of
LOCOM reserves existing at the third quarter of 2007 and additional charges to the gain on sale of loans during the
fourth quarter of 2007. Embedded in this reduction are estimated credit losses of $474 million.

During 2007, we sold a total of $71.2 billion in loans and recorded a loss on sale of $354.4 million. By
comparison, we sold a total of $79.0 billion in loans during 2006, which generated $668.0 million in gain on sale.

Other Credit Costs

As discussed earlier, credit costs during the year ended December 31, 2007 significantly increased primarily
due to higher delinquency and foreclosure rates in both our HFS and HFI portfolios. For the HFI portfolio, we
increased the provision for loan losses to $395.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2007 compared to
$20.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2006. We repurchased $613 million of loans for the year ended
December 31, 2007, mainly due to early payment defaults, compared to $194 million during the year ended
December 31, 2006. Based on delinquency trends and demand activity, we expect to repurchase additional loans in
2008 and beyond. Accordingly, we recorded a provision for the secondary market reserve of $232.5 million for the
year ended December 31, 2007, compared to $37.3 million for the prior year.
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Non-interest Income

Total non-interest income, excluding gain on sale of loans, increased 9% from $171.9 million for the year
ended December 31, 2006 to $186.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2007. This increase is largely due to
the strong performance from our mortgage servicing division. Service fee income increased $417.9 million as a
direct result of the growth in our servicing portfolio, slower prepayment rates and effective hedge performance.
These increases were offset by a reduction in revenue from our mortgage-backed securities (“MBS”) portfolio. The
MBS portfolio revenue declined from a gain of $20.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 to a loss of
$439.7 million for the year ended December.31, 2007, primarily due to valuation adjustments on non-investment
grade and residual securities. '

Qperating Expenses

Total operating expenses increased 23% from $789.0 million for'the year ended December 31, 2006 to
$973.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2007. The increase is primarily reflected in the 20% growth of our
average FTEs from 7,935 for 2006 to 9,518 for 2007, which was necessary to support the expansion of our retail
lending group and growth in loan servicing and default management functions. Contributing to the increase in
expenses were REO related expenses, which increased by $42.2 million due to further write-downs on REOs
resulting from the rapid decline in values, as well as higher foreclosures resulting from worsened delinquencies in
our portfolio. In addition, we recorded severance charges of approximately $28 million in the third quarter of 2007
related to the reduction of our workforce.

Year ended December 31, 2006 Compared to Year ended December 31, 2005

Industry loan volumes of $2.7 trillion were 28% below 2003’s historic high level and 10% lower than in 2005,
Mortgage banking revenue margins declined further after sharp declines in 2005, and net interest margins continued
to compress, as the yield curve inverted with the average spread between the 10-year Treasury yield and the 1-morith
LIBOR declining from 89 basis points in 2005 to negative 31 basis points in 2006. The housing industry slowed
down significantly, increasing loan delinquencies and non-performing assets and driving up credit costs for all
mortgage lenders. Yet, despite these challenges, Indymac reached new performance heights in 2006, achieving:

* Record mortgage loan production of $90 billion, a 48% increase over 2005,

* Record mortgage market share of 3.30%, a 64% gain over the 2.01% share we had in 2005;
* Record net revenues of $1.3 billion, a‘ 22% increase over 2005;

« Record eamings per share of $4.82, a 9% gain;

* Record growth in total assets, which increased by $8 billion, or 37%, to $29.5 billion;

* Record growth in our portfolio of loans served for others, which increased by $55 billion, or 65%, 1o
140 billion;

« Strong return on equity of 19%, slightly lower than last year’s 21% level.

Net revenues of $1.3 billion for 2006 reflect an incréase of 22% over 2005. Key drivers of this growth included
the following:

1) Growth in average interest earning assets of 32% from $19.6 billion in 2005 to $26.0 billion in 2006,
leading to an increase in net interest income of 24% to $526.7 million. The increase was primarily driven by the
growth in production, increased retention of securities and loans in our held for investment portfolio, offset by the
sale of loans. Net interest margin declined from 2.16% to 2.02% during a period of inverted yield ¢urve. Factors
contributing to this decline included higher cost of funds and hedging cost, higher premium amortization and
increased non-performing loans. This decline somewhat mitigated the positive impact from the growth in average
interest earning assets.

2) Growth in mortgage production of 48% in 2006 over 2005 to a record high of $90.0 billion, led to a 51%
increase in loans sold to $79.0 billion. Our market share increased from 2.01% in 2005 to 3.58% in 2006. Leading
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this growth were our Financial Freedom and conduit channels with increases in production of 71% and 90%,
respectively. This volume growth mitigated a decline in the MBR margin on loans sold, resulting from a decline in
higher margin pay option ARM volume and a higher mix of lower margin conduit and correspondent channel
volume. The MBR margin on loans sold was 1.06% in 2006, down from 1.36% in 2005.

3) Provision for loan loss increased from $10.0 million for 2005 to $20.0 million for 2006 mainly due to an
increase in cur non-performing assets as delinquencies worsened. As of December 31, 2006, the allowance for loan
losses represented 4.9 times net charge-offs, down from 7.2 times at December 31, 2005 as net charge-offs for 2006
increased 4 basis points to 0.14% of average loans held for investment.

4) Service fee income of $101.3 million in 2006 grew 129% over 2005 driven by the increase in the principal
balance of loans serviced for others combined with effective hedging performance and slowing prepayments
attributable to reduced refinancing and home sales.

Operating expenses of $789.0 million in 2006 reflected an increase of 28%, consistent with the growth in our
operations and infrastructure investments in order to execute on our strategy to increase production and revente.
During 2006, we opened three new regional centers, which mcreased our total regional centers 1o 16 at Decem-
ber 31, 2006. In addition, average FTE increased 27% from 6, 240,10 7,935 during the year supporting this growth,

SUMMARY OF BUSINESS SEGMENT RESULTS

Our segment reporting is organized consistent with our hybrid business model. Mortgage banking involves the
origination, securitization and sale of mortgage loans and related assets, and the servicing of those loans. The
revenues from mortgage banking consist primarily of gains on the sale of the loans, fees carned from origination, net
interest income earned while the loans are held pending sale, and servicing fees. On the thrift side, we generate core
spread income from our investment portfolio of prime SFR mortgage loans, MBS and consumer construction loans.

As conditions in the U.S. mortgage market have deteriorated, we have exited certain production channels and
are reporting them in a separate category in our segment reporting, ‘Discontinued Business Activities” as a result of
our continuing involvermnent with these activities. These exited production channels include the conduit, home-
builder and home equity channels. These activities are not considered discontinued operations as defined by
SFAS 144. We segregated the business activities we have exited so that the segments represent our new business
model. See the “Discontinued Business Activities” section for more information.

We have developed a detailed reporting process that computes net earnings and ROE for our key business
segments each reporting period, and we use the results to evaluate our managers’ performance and determine their
incentive compensation. In addition, we use the results to evaluate the performance and prospects of our divisions
and adjust our capital allocations to those that earn the best returns for our shareholders.

We predominantly use GAAP to compute each division's financial results as if it were a stand-alone entity.
Consistent with this approach, borrowed funds and their interest cost are allocated based on the funds actually used
by the Company to fund the division's assets and capital is allocated based on regulatory capital rules for the specific
assets of each segment. Additionally, transactions beiween divisions are reflected at arms-length in these financial
results, and intercompany profits are eliminated in consolidation. We do not allocate fixed corporate and business
unit overhead costs to our profit center divisions, because the methodologies to do so are arbitrary and would distort
each division’s marginal contribution to our profits. However, the cost of these overhead activities is included in the
following tables to reconcile to our consolidated results and is tracked closely, so the responsible managers can be
held accountable for the level of these costs and their efficient use.

The following rable and discussions explain the recent results of our two major operating segments, mortgage
banking and thrift. These activities, combined with the eliminations and other category, which includes supporting
deposit and treasury costs as well as eliminating entries and discontinued business activities, form our total
operating results, Qur unatlocated corporate overhead costs are also presented and discussed. We have also included
supplemental tables showing detailed division level financial results for each of our major operating segments.
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The following summarizes the Company’s financial results by segment for the years indicated (dollars in thousands):

Mortgage Total Total Discontinued *,
Banking Thrift Eliminations Operating Corporate On-Going Business Total
Segment Segment & Other(1) - Results Overhead Businesses Activities Company
Year Ended December 31, 2007
Operating Results )
Net interest income. . .. ........... $ 93248 § 234865 $ 107937 0§ 436050 § (9437y § 426613 § 140,129 § 566,742
Provision for loan losses . .. ........ — (185,919) — (185,919} — (185919 (209.629) (395,548)
Gain (loss) on sale of leans ... ..... B 96,858 24,409 (168,083) (46,816) — (46,816) (307,544) (354.360)
Service fee income (expense) . .. ... .. 427,490 — 88,357 515,847 — 515,847 3406 519.253
Gain (loss) on securities . .......... (35.595) (339,010) (42,9635) {417,570} — (417.570) (22,143) (439,713)
Gain on sale and |¢aseback of building . . — — — - 23582 23982 — 23,982
(Other income (expense). .. ......... 43,467 29,349 3,582 76,398 1,408 71,806 5402 £3,208
Net revenues {expense). ... ....... 625,468 (236,306} (11,172) 377,990 15,953 393,943 (390.379) 3,564
Operating expenses . . . ......., .. 812,639 ' 97,130 65,182 974 951 161,188 1,136,139 76,912 1,213,051
Severance charges. . .. .......... : — — — -— 31,850 31,850 - 31.850
Pension curtailment gain, ' .. ...... —_ .- — - (10,335) (10,335) — (10.335)
Deferral of expenses under SFAS 91 ., (244,421) (8,251) ) (78) (252,750) — (252,750) (6,403) (259.155)
Pre-tax earnings {(loss). . . . ... .. 57,250 (325,185) (76,276) (344,211)  {166,750) (510,961) {460,886) (971,847)
Minority interests . .. ........... 1,288 1,207 20,029 22,524 48 22,572 449 23,021
Net earnings (loss). . . ... .... $ 32964 $ (199247) 3 (65.797) § (232,080) $(101,599) $ (333,679 § (281,129} § (614.808)
Performance Data
Average interesl-earning assets . .. .. .. $ 8,386,138 $14976,535 §  (88.143) $23274,530 $553,740 $23,828,270 § 7403916 $31.232,186
Allocated capital . .. ............. 823,308 670,476 4,325 1,498,109 58,570 1,556,679 420,253 1,976,932
Loans produced . . .. ... ... PR 58,217,003 2,988,322 N/A 61,205,325 — 61,205,325 17,111,059 78,316,384
Loanssold . ................... 59,148,675 6,363,003 (15,194.611) 50,317,067 —_ 50,317,067 20,846,657 71,163,724
MBRmargin. .................. 0.39% 0.38% N/A N/A NA 0.17% (1.1 )% 0.2Y%
ROE ...... ... ... . ... ..... 4% (30)% N/A (15)% NfA Q1% (67Y% (3%
Net interest margin. . . ......... ... N/A 1.57% N/A 1.87% N/A 1.79% 1.89% 1.81%
Net interest margin, thrift. . ... ... ... N/A 1.57% N/A N/A N/A 2.16% N/A N/A
Average FTE. .. ..............., 7.173 436 333 7,942 1,241 . 9,183 335 9.518
Year Ended December 31, 2006 '
Operating Results
Net interest income. . . . ........... $ 80721 § 197333 § 76,139 § 354,193 $ (8737) $§ 345456 § 181265 § 526,721
Provision for loan losses , . ... ...... — (12,728) .- (12,728) — (12,728) (7,265) (19.993)
Gain (loss) onsale of loans .. ....... 616,594 . 42,649 (67,639) 591,604 — 591,604 76,450 668,054
Service fee income (expense) ... . ... .. 136,790 — (35,939) 100,851 , — 100,851 466 101,317
Gain (loss) on securities . ... ....... 19,173 3434 10,809 33,416 — 33416 (12,934) 20,482
Other income (expense}. . .. ........ 12,268 26,771 (1,664) 37,375 2,220 39,595 10,527 50,122
Net revenues {expense). . .. ......, 865,546 257.459 (18,294) 1,104,711 (6,517) 1,098,194 248,509 1,346,703
Operating expenses . . . . ......... 685,867 81,720 49,009 816,596 168,697 985,293 72,160 1,057.453
Deferral of expenses under SFAS 91 ., (247,047) (8.812) (2,229) (258,088) — (258,088) (8,158) (266,246)
Pre-tax earnings {loss). ... ... .. 426,726 184,551 (65,074) 546,203 (175,214) 370,989 184,507 555,496
Net earnings (loss). . .. ...... $ 0259225 0% 112,394 0§ (34352) § 337,267 H(106,705) S5 230562 % 112,367 5 342929
Performance Data
Average interest-earning assels . . ... .. $ 6,291,661 $12037,309 $ (89,838) $18,239,132 $ 588649 518827781 § 7200495 $26,028,276
Allocated capital ... ............. 636,786 536,943 2,108 1,175,837 182,550 1,358,387 437,873 1,796,260
Loans produced . . .. ............. 56,802,029 2,937,596 — 59,739,625 — 59,739,625 31,958,199 91.697.824
Loanssold . ................... 54,536,739 2,666,610 (9,184,815) 48,018,534 — 48,018,534 31,030,428 79,048,962
MBRmargin................... 1.30% 1.60% N/A N/A N/A 1.42% N/A 1.06%
ROE . ... ... ... .. . ... ... 41% 21% N/A 29 N/A 17% 26% 19%
Net interest margin. . . ............ N/A 1.64% NiA 1.94% Nia 1.83% 2.52% 2.02%
Net interest margin, thrift. .. ... ... .. N/A 1.64% N/A N/A N/A 2.1% N/A N/A
Average FTE. ... ............... 5,586 473 314 6,373 1,232 7,605 330 7,935
Year over Year Comparison
% change in net eamings. ... ....... &M% 2TN% 92)% (169)Y% 5% (245Y% (350Y% 279Y%

% change in capital ... ........... 29% 25% 105% 2% (68)% 15% d)% 10%

(1) Included are eliminations, deposits, and treasury items. See the “Eliminations and Other Segment” section for details.
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MORTGAGE BANKING SEGMENT

Our mortgage banking segment primarily consists of the mortgage production division and the mortgage
servicing division, which services the loans that Indymac originates, whether they have been sold into the secondary
market or are held for investment on our balance sheet. '

The mortgage banking segment reported net earnings of $33.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2007
compared with net earnings of $259.2 million in the prior year. These lower results were caused by a large decline in
earnings from our mortgage production division, which reported a $96.8 million after-tax loss this year, partially
offset by very strong returns and growth in the mortgage servicing division. .

The primary driver of the loss in the mortgage production division in 2007 was the decline in the MBR margin
from 1.29% of loans sold in 2006 to 0.32% of loans sold in 2007. A large increase in production credit costs was the
primary cause of this decline. Mortgage banking revenue was reduced by $476.5 million in pre-tax credit related
costs in 2007, representing a $377.6 million increase from $98.9 million in 2006. As credit conditions in the
U.S. mortgage market have deteriorated, our loan production credit costs have increased. Thus, we discontinued the
offering of products where these losses were concentrated, As a result, substantially all of the production credit
losses we incurred in the fourth quarter of 2007 resulted from products we no longer offer.

In addition to the increased credit losses, the continued severe disruption in the secondary market for loans and
securities not sold to the GSEs has caused us to rapidly change our production business model from a primary focus
on non-GSE mortgage banking to a model that now produces production that is 75%-85% eligible for sale to the
GSEs. This change in our business model has temporarily reduced the profitability of our production divisions, as
we have worked to lower our costs and our salesforce has adapted to selling these GSE products.

The mortgage banking segment was also negatively impacted in 2007 as it includes two start-up businesses, the
retail lending group and commercial mortgage banking division, which are currently unprofitable. These two
businesses reported a combined after-tax loss of $38.8 million in 2007. We expect these businesses to contribute to
mortgage banking profits in 2008. .

The significant disruption in credit and housing markets that occurred during 2007 had a materially negative
impact on our production results. These disruptions have resulted in higher non-GSE mortgage rates, significantly
more restrictive underwriting guidelines and declining home prices, all of which worked to slow prepayments in our
servicing portfolio. The loans in our servicing portfolio prepaid at an annual rate of 10% in 2007 compared with
20% in 2006. The expectation of slower non-GSE prepayments offset the impact of lower market interest rates and
resulted in strong hedging results. As a resuls, the net income from our mortgage servicing division increased 174%
from $66.1 million in 2006 to $181.4 million in 2007 and resulted in a 50% return on the approximately $400 million
of capital we have invested in this division.
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The following provides details on total mortgage banking segment for the years indicated (dollars in

thousands):

Year Ended December 31, 2007
Operating Resulis

Net interest income . . ......coovvenn..
Provision for loan losses . . .. ...........
Gain (loss) on sale of loans . . ... .. .. ...,
Service fee income (expense). .. .........
Gain (loss) on securities . . ... .........,
Other income (expense) . ..............

Net revenues (expense) . .............
Operating expenses. . ... ............

Deferral of expenses under SFAS 91

Pre-tax earnings (loss) . .% ... ......
Minority interests ... .............
Net earnings (loss) . ............

Performance Data

Average interest-earning assets. ... .......
Allocated capital . ................ ...
Loansproduced . . ...................
Loanssold............... .. ... ..
MBRmargin.......................
ROE. ... ... ... i
Netinterest margin. . . ........... .. ...
Average FTE. .. ... ... ... ... ...,

Year Ended December 31, 2006
Operating Results

Net interest income - - . <. ..o
Provision for loan losses . . . .. ..........
Gain (loss)onsale of loans . . . ... ......,
Service fee income {expense). . . ... ......
Gain (loss) on securities . ..............
Other income {expense) . ..............

Net revenues (expense) . .. ...........
Operating expenses . . .. .............

Deferral of expenses under SFAS 91

Pre-tax earnings (loss) .. ..........
Net earnings (loss) . . ... ... .....

Performance Data

Allocated capital . ...................
Loansproduced . ... .................
Loanssold. ........................
MBRmargin.......................
ROE. .. ... .. ... . ... .. .
Net interest margin. . . ................
Average FTE .. .....................

Year over Year Comparison

% change in net eamings . .............
% change incapital ..................

Consumer  Commercial Total
Mortgage Mortgage Mortgage Mortgage Mortgage
Production Servicing Banking Banking Banking
Division Division O/H(1)} Division Segment
$ 132086 $ (40,563) $ 853 $ 872 b 93,248
45,872 56,124 — (5,138) 96,858
38,046 389,441 — 3 427,490
— 35,595) ° — — (35,595)
29,543 12,986 701 237 43,467
245,547 382,393 1,554 (4,026) 625,468
632,431 97,073 73,998 9,137 812,639
{229.972) (13,619) — (830) (244,421}
(156,912) 298,939 (72,444) (12,333) 57.250
604 627 28 29 1,288
$ 96,777y % 181427 $(44,146) $ (7.,540) $ 32,964
$ 7,135,160 81,176,711 $ 2427 $ 71,840 $ 8,386,138
441,917 361,405 14,208 5,778 823,308
53,263,377 4,592,979 — 360,647 58,217,003
55,035,002 4,071,678 — 41,995 59,148,675
0.32% 1.38% N/A N/A 0.39%
22)% 50% N/A (130)% T 4%
1.85% N/A N/A 1.21% N/A
5.433 281 1,420 39 T.173
% 01,648 3 (11489 § 562 $ — ] 80,721
585,501 31,093 — — 616,594
21,141 115,649 — — 136,790
—_— 19,173 — — 19,173
1,958 7,015 3,295 — 12,268
700,248 161,441 3,857 — 865,546
564,200 60,894 59,997 776 685.867
(238,979) (8,068) — — (247,047)
375,027 108,615 (56,140) (776} 426,726
$ 227,739  § 66,147 $(34,189) 5 (4712 $ 259,225
% 5,707,401 $ 581,789 § 247 hS — $ 6,291,661
370,703 253,235 12,848 — 636,786
54,103,697 2,698,332 — — 56,802,029
52,480,834 2,055,905 —_ — 54,536,739
1.29% 1.51% N/A N/A 1.30%
61% 26% N/A N/A 41%
1.61% N/A N/A N/A N/A
4,324 201 1,060 1 5,586
(142)% 174% 29% N/A (8%
19% 43% 11% N/A 29%

(1) Included mortgage production division overhead, servicing overhead and secondary marketing overhead of
$(16.6) million, $(14.1) million and $(13.5) million, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2007. For
the year ended December 31, 2006, the mortgage production division overhead, servicing overhead and
secondary marketing overhead were $(14.4) million, $(10.1) million and $(9.7) million, respectively.
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MORTGAGE PRODUCTION DIVISION

The mortgage production division originates loans through three divisions: mortgage professionals group
(“MPG”), Financial Freedom and consumer direct. The MPG sources loans through relationships with mortgage
brokers, financial institutions, Realtors, and homebullclers and is composed of two channels: retail and mortgage
broker and banker.

The consumer direct division offers mortgage loans directly to consumers via our Southern California retail
branch network and our centralized call center, sourcing leads through direct mail, internet lead aggregators, online
advertising and referral programs.

Within the MPG, the retail channel provides mortgage financing directly to home purchase oriented consumers
by targeting Realtors®, homebuilders and financial professionals via storefront mortgage loan offices. With the goal
of becoming a top 15 retail lender over the next five years, our April 2007 acquisition of the retail platform of
NYMC and the hiring of retail lending professionals provide a model for this lelSlOl‘l As of December 31, 2007, we
have 182 retail mortgage offices/branches throughout the U.S.

Mortgage broker and banker is the largest channel in our MPG, funding loans originated through mortgage
brokers and emerging mortgage bankers nationwide. This channel also purchases closed loans — those already
funded — on a flow basis from mortgage brokers, realtors, homebuilders, mortgage bankers and financial
institutions.

Financial Freedom provides reverse mortgage products directly to seniors (age 62 and older) and through the
mortgage broker and banker channel. Through this division, we remain the leader in the fast growing reverse
mortgage market. Financial Freedom also retains MSRs and receives fees and ancillary revenues for servicing loans
sold into the secondary market.
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The following provides details on the results for the mortgage production division for the years indicated

(dollars in thousands):
Mortgage Professionals Group

Mortgage Total Total
Consumer Broker and Mortgage Financial Mortgage.
Direct Retail Banker Professionals Freedom Production
Division Channel Channel Group Division Division
Year Ended December 31, 2007
Operating Results
Net interest income . . ... .............. $ 1238 3 434 0§ 106736 0§ 111060 $ 19788 § 132,086
Provision for loan losses . . .. ............ — — — — — —
Gain {loss)onsaleof loans . . . ... ........ 7.804 (1,511) {99.838) (101,349) 139,417 45872
Service fee income (expense). . ... ........ — — — —_ 38,046 33,046
Other income {expense) . ............... 726 12,485 15,978 28,463 354 29,543
Net revenues (expense) . . . .. ............ 9,768 15,298 22,876 38,174 197,605 245,547
Operating expenses . .. ... ..o veuar.- 23,917 104,122 367,567 471,689 136,825 632,431
Severance charges . .. ................. — —_ — —_ —_ _—
Deferral of expenses under SFAS 91 .. ... ... (10,856) (37.512) (153,973) (191,485) (27,631} (229,972)
Pretax earnings (loss) . . . ... ......... (3,293) (51,312) (190,718) (242,030) 88,411 (156,912)
Minority interests. . .......... 0. . 0..- 7 46 319 365 232 604
Net earnings {loss) . . . ............. $ (2013) § (31,205 § (116466) $ (147,761) § 52,997 $ (96,777)
Performance Data
Average interest-earmning assets . . . ... ...... $ 116713 $ 171477 $ 5879,797 $ 6,051,274 § 967,173 % 7,135,160
Allocated capital . . . ......... ... ...... 5,710 13,761 288,202 301,963 134,244 441,917
Loansproduced. . .. ......... ... ....... 1,062,934 2,027,631 45,449,927 47,477,558 4,722,885 53,263,377
Loanssold .- ....................... 1,139,515 1,569,648 47,536,034 49,105,682 4,789,805 55,035,002
MBR margin(1). . .. .. e 0.79% 0.18% 0.01% 0.02% 332% 0.32%
ROE. ... . . (35)% (22% (40)% (49)% 39% (22)%
Net interest margin . . ................. L06% . 2.52% 1.82% - 1.84% 2.05% 1.85%
Average FTE . ... ................... 266. 1,005 2814 3819 1,348 5433
Year Ended December 31, 2006 ,
Operating Results
Net interest income . . ................. $ 2478 § 30 $ 79222 % 79252 % 9918 % 91,648
Provision for loan losses . . . . ... ......... — — — — — —
Gain (loss) onsale of loans . . . ........... 32,162 315 392,180 392,495 160,844 585,501
Service fee income {expense). ... ... e — = _ — 21,141 21,141
Other income (expense) . ............... 469 336 : 1 337 1,152 1,958
Net revenues (expense) . . . .............. 35,109 681 471,403 472,084 193,055 700,248
Operating eXpenses . . ..., ..coveee. .., 54,248 3,654 371,052 374,706 135,246 564,200
Deferral of expenses under SFAS 91 .. ... ... (22,330) {98) (184,295) (184,393) (32,256) (238.979)
Pre-tax earmings (loss) . . . .. ..... .., .. 3,191 (2,875) 284,646 281,771 90,065 375,027
Net earnings (loss) . .. ............. $ 1943 § (1,751) $ 173349 § 171,598 § 54,198 § 227,739
Performance Data . '
Average interest-earning assets . . .. .. ... ... $ 202,035 $ 2,637 $ 4885249 5 4887886 3 617,480 § 5,707,401
Allocated capital . . .. ... ... .. ... .. .. 10,814 131 263,328 263,459 96,430 370,703
Loans produced. . . .. ... ... ... ... .. 1,922,448 35,845 47,121,871 47,157,716 5,023,533 54,103,697
Loamssold ... ..., . ... ............ 1,968,766 31,548 45,982,168 46,013,716 4,498,352 52,480,834
MBRmargin(1). . .................... 1.76% 1.09% 1.03% 1.03% 3.80% 1.29%
ROE....... ... .. i 18% NM 66% 65% 56% 61%
Net interest margin . . . ................ 1.23% 1.14% 1.62% 1.629% 1.61% 1.61%
Average FTE . ... ... ... ... ... ..... 72 25 2,655 2,680 1,272 4324
Year over Year Comparison
% change in net earnings ... .........,.. (204)% N/M (167)% (186)% 2)% (142)%
19%

% change incapital . . ................. (47 % NM 9% 15% 39%

(1) MBR margin is calculated using the sum of consolidated gain (loss) on sale of loans and the net interest income
earned on HFS loans by our mortgage production division divided by total loans sold. The gain (loss) on sale of
loans includes fair value adjustments on HFS loans in our portfolio at the end of the year that are not included in

the amount of total loans sold.
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The following summarizes the key production drivers for the morigage broker and banker channel for the years
indicated: g

Year Ended December 31

% Change % Change
2007 2006 2007/2006 2005 2007/2005

Key Production Drivers:

Active customers(l) ........... ... ... . ..., 8,294 7,927 5% 6,728 23%
Sales personnel . . . .. ... ... ... ... 1,140 1,025 11% 712 60%
Number of regional offices . ................ 16 16 — 13 23%

(1) Active customers are defined as customers who funded at least one loan during the most recent 90-day period.

Loan Production

~ Loan production and sales are the drivers of our mortgage banking segment. While the mortgage production
division of our mortgage banking segment contributes 68% to our total loan originations, the following discussion
refers to our total production, through both the mortgage banking and thrift segments and the discontinued business
activities.

We generated SFR mortgage loan production of $77.0 billion for the year ended December 31, 2007, down
$13.0billion from the year ended December 31, 2006, and up $16.2 billion from the year ended December 31, 20035.
Total loan production, including commercial real estate loans and builder financings, reached $78.3 billion for
2007, compared to $91.7 billion for 2006 and $62.7 billion for 2005. At December 31, 2007, our total pipeline- of
SFR mortgage loans in process was $7.5 billion, down 37% from $11.8 billion at December 31, 2006, and down
28% from $10.5 billion at December 31, 2005. On February 15, 2008, the MBA issued an estimate of the industry
volume for 2007 of $2,332 billion, which represents a 14% drop from 2006, and a 23% drop from 2005. Based on
this estimate, our market share is 3.30% for the year ended December 31, 2007 and remained flat compared to the
year ended December 31, 2006, but up from 2.01% for the year ended December 31, 2005.

The decline in our SFR mortgage loan production from 2006 was attributable to the overall drop in industry
mortgage origination volumes and from our transition to becoming primarily a GSE lender as a result of the severe
disruption in housing and credit markets. Total SFR mortgage loan production decreased primarily due to the
$14.0 billion decrease in our conduit business and the discontinuance of various products due to credit and liquidity
concerns. We exited the conduit channel as a response to the disruption in the secondary market. Excluding
production from the conduit channel, total SFR production increased $1.0 billion year-over-year. MPG’s mortgage
broker and banker channel declined $1.7 billion in production from 2006. Our retail channel generated $2.0 billion
in production for 2007. The Financial Freedom division saw a 6% decline in its reverse mortgage production from
2006 as competition intensified in the reverse mortgage market.
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The following summarizes our loan production by division and channel for the years indicated (doilars in
millions);
Year Ended December 31

% Change % Change
2007 2006 2007/2006 2005 2007/2003
Production by Division: .
SFR mortgage loan production:
Mortgage professionals group:

Mortgage broker and banker channel(1)........ $45449  §47,123 4% $34,864  30%
Retail channel. . ......................... 2,027 7 N/M — N/A
Consumer direct division . ..............2.... 1,063 1,951 . (46)%- 2,883 (63)%
Financial Freedom division. .................. 4,723 5,024 (0)% 2,935 61%
Servicing retention division. ... .. ............. 4,593 2,698 T0% 1,079 326%
Consumer construction division(2) ............. 2,988 2,937 : 2% 2,994 - '

Total on-going businesses . ............... 60,843 59,740 2% 44,755 _36%
Conduitchannel . . . ... .................... 16,097 30,101 (47)Y% 15,811 2%
Home equity division(2) ... .................. 39 110 (65)% 208 8%

Total discontinued business activities . ... .... 16,136 30,211 (4% 16,019 %

Total SFR mortgage loan production ... ... .. 76,979 89,951 (1% 60,774 27%
Commercial loan production:

Commercial mortgage banking division — on-going
DUSINESSeS. . . .. ... e 361 —_— N/A — N/A
Homebuilder division(2) — discontinued business .
activities. . .. ... ... e © 976 1,747 © (4% 1,940 _(50)%
Total loan production .................. $78316 $91,698 (15% $62,714 _25%
Total pipeline of SFR mortgage loans in
processat yearend .. ................ $ 7,506  $11,821 (3% $10,488 (28)%

(1) The mortgage broker and banker channel includes $5.3 biilion, $3.3 billion and $1.3 billion of production from
wholesale inside sales for 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The mortgage broker and banker inside sales force
focuses on small and geographically remote mortgage brokers through centralized in-house sales personnel
instead of field sales personnel.

(2) The amounts of HELOCs, consumer construction loans and builder construction loans originated by these
channels represent commitments.
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The following summarizes our loan production by product type for the years indicated (dollars in millions):
Year Ended December 31
' ) . % Change % Change
2007 2006 20072006 2005 2007/2005

Production by Product Type:

Standard first mortgage products: o
Prime(1) .......... ... ... .. ... ... $62917 $71,403 C(12)%  $48,315 - 30%
Subprime(1) ............. ... ... .. 2,617 2,674 )% 2276 5%

Total standard first mortgage products ' o '
(S&Pevaluated). . ................. 65,534 74,077 (12)% 50,591 - - 30%

"Specialty consumer home mortgage : = '
products: . ,

HELOCs(1)/Seconds.. . ............... 3,496 7,199 51)% 3,653 (4)%

Reverse mortgages. . . ... e . 4723 5,024 (6)% 2,935 | 61%

Consumer construction(2) . ............ 3,182 3,651 {13)% 3,595 (1%

Government — FHA/VA(3) ... ......... 44 — NA —  N/A
Subtotal SFR mortgage production . . . . . 76,979 89,951 (14% 60,774 "2‘7%

Commercial loan products: '
Commercial real estate. .. .. ........ . 361 — N/A — N/A

- Builder construction commitments{2) . . . 976 1,747 (44)% 1,940 (50 %
Total production. .. .............. $78316 $91,698 (15)% $62,714 25%
Total S&P lifetime loss estimate(4). . . 1.14% 1.90% 1.49%

(1) The loan production by product type provides a breakdown of standard first mortgage products by prime and
subprime only. As the definition of various product types tends to vary widely in the mortgage industry, we
believe further classification may not accurately reflect the credit quality of loans produced implied through
such classification.

(2) Amounts represent total commitments.

(3) Amounts represent loans insured by the Federal Housing Administration (“FHA") and loans guaranteed by the
Veterans Administration (“VA™). : )

(4) While our production is evaluated using the Standard & Poor’s (*S&P"") Levels model, the data are not audited
or endorsed by S&P. S&P evaluated production excludes second liens, HELOCs, reverse mortgages, and
construction loans. All loss estimates reported here have been restated to use S&P’s new 6.1 model which was
released in November 2007.
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Loan Sale and Distribution

The following shows the various channels through which loans were distributed for the Company during the
years indicated {(dollars in millions):

Year Ended December 31

2007 2006 2005
Distribution of Loans by Channel: ¥
Sales of GSE equivalentfoans . ................ ... ..... . 48% 20% 17%
Private-label securitizations ... ................. .. ... ..... 34% 40% 60%
Whole loan sales, servicing retained. . ... .......... e 17% 38% 20%
Whole loan sales, servicing released. . . ........ ... ..., ...... 1% 2% 1%
Total loan sales percentage. ... . ... e e 100% 100% 100%

Total loan sales . ...ttt $71,164  $79,0490  $52297

Due to the disruptions in the secondary mortgage market, we have tightened our guidelines and focused 6n
GSE eligible mortgage products. As a result, sales to GSEs increased to 48% of total loan distribution for the year
ended December 31, 2007, up from 20% for the year ended December 31, 2006. We expect that a very high
percentage of our loan sales will be to the GSEs until the private MBS market recovers.

In conjunction with the sale of mortgage loans, we generally retain certain assets. The primary assets retained
include MSRs and, to a lesser degree, AAA-rated and agency interest-only securities, AAA-rated principal-only
securities, prepayment penalty securities, late fee securities, investment and non-investment grade securities, and
residual securities. The allocated cost of the retained assets at the time of sale is recorded as an asset with an
offsetting increase to the gain on sale of loans (or a reduction in the cost basis of the loans sold). During the year
ended December 31, 2007, the calculation of gain (loss) on sales of loans included the retention of $988.2 million of
MSRs and $2.8 billion of other retained assets, consisting of investment-grade securities of $581.4 millien and non-
investment grade and residual securities of $169.0 million. During the year ended December 31, 2007, assets
previously retained generated cash flows of $858.5 million. For more information on the valeation assumptions
related 10 our retained assets, see “Table 12. Valuation of MSRs, Interest-Only, Prepayment Penalty, and Residual
Securities” of “Appendix A: Additional Quantitative Disclosures.” . :

The profitability of our loans is measured by the MBR margin, which is calculated using mortgage banklj’ng
revenue divided by total loans sold. MBR includes total consolidated gain (loss) on sale of loans and the net interest
income earned on mortgage loans held for sale by mortgage banking production divisions. Most of the gain (loss) on
sale of loans resulted from the loan sale activities in our mongage banking segment. The gain (loss) on sale
recognized in the thrift segment is included in the MBR margin calculation,

The following summarizes the amount of loans sold and the MBR margin during the years indicated (dotlars in
millions):

Year Ended December 31

% Change % Change

2007 2006 2007/2006 2005 2007/2005

Totalloanssold .................... 371,164 $79,049 (10)% $52,297 36%

MBR margin after production hedging . . . 0.99% 1.41% 3% 1.70% (4%
MBR margin after credit cosis . ........ — 1.28% — 1.62% —

Net MBR margin, ... ............... {0.22)% 1.06% (121)Y% 1.37%  (116)%

For more details on our MBR margin, see “Table 7. MBR Margin” of “Appendix A: Additional Quantitative
Disclosures.”
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MORTGAGE SERVICING DIVISION : ‘

Servicing is a key component of our business model, as it is a natural complement to our mortgage production
operations and its financial performance tends to run countercyclical to the mortgage production business. Our
mortgage servicing platform remains a strong and stable source of profitability in the midst of the current mortgage
market turmoil,

Through MSRs retained from our mortgage banking activities, we collect fees and ancillary revenues for
servicing loans sold into the secondary market. As interest rates rise and/or mortgage spreads widen, the expected
life of the underlying loans is generally extended, which extends the life of the income stream flowing from those
loans. This in turn increases the capitalized value of the associated MSRs. Conversely, as interest rates decline
and/or mortgage spreads tighten, the value of the MSRs may also decline. To mitigate the potential volatility in the
MSRs, we hedge this asset to earn a stable return throughout the interest rate cycle. For more information on
servicing hedges, see the “Consolidated Risk Management Discussion™ section.

During 2007, our MSRs experienced a decline in value due to significantly lower mortgage interest rates.
However, this was more than offset by gains in value in our hedging instruments and from a continued decline in
actual prepayment speeds in the year. Actual prepayment speeds have declined due to the impact of tighter
guidelines on available mortgage loans in the market and declining home prices limiting the refinance capability of
consumers,

Our servicing portfolio provides opportunities to cross sell other products, such as checking accounts,
certificates of deposit, and other deposit services. In a declining interest rate environment, our servicing portfolio
provides an existing base of customers who may be in the market to refinance. Capturing or “retaining” these
customers helps mitigate the decline in the value of our mortgage servicing asset caused by prepayment of the
original loan, .

The fair value of our MSRs is determined using discounted cash flow techniques benchmarked against a third-
party opinion of value. Estimates of fair value involve several assumptions, including assumptions about future
prepayment rates, market expectations of future interest rates, cost to service the loans (including default
management costs), ancillary incomes, and discount rates. Prepayment speeds are projected using a prepayment
model developed by a third-party vendor and calibrated for the Company’s collateral. The model considers key
factors, such as refinance incentive, housing turtiover, seasonality, and aging of the pool of loans. Prepayment
speeds incorporate expectations of future rates implied by the market forward LIBOR/swap curve, as well as
collateral specific current coupon information. For further detail on the valuation assumptions, see “Table 12.
Valuation of MSRs, Interest-Only, Prepayment Penalty, and Residual Securities” of “Appendix A: Additional
Quantitative Disclosures !

. Total capltallzed MSRS reached $2.5 billion as of December 31, 2007, up $673.0 million, or 37%, from
$1.8 billion at December 31, 2006.
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The following provides additional details on the results for the mortgage servicing division for the years
indicated {dollars in thousands):
Mortgage Total

Servicing  Servicing  Mortgage
Rights Retention  Servicing

Channel Channel Division
Year Ended December 31, 2007
Operating Results
Net interest inCOmME (EXPEMSEY . - . v v v v vt v ettt et et rimme e $(52,008) § 11445 $ (40,563)
Provision for loan Josses . . ... . ... .. e e e —_ — —
Gain (loss)onsale of loans . .. ... ... . .. i e 2,241 53,883 56,124
Service fee inCOmeE . . . . . ... . i e e 389,441 — 389,441
Gain (loss) on SeCUrItiEs . . .. ... o i e e e e (35,595) — (35,595)
Oher INCOME . . . . . ottt et e e e e et et et e e 6,042 6,944 12,986
Net revenues (BXpense). . . .. .. ... ittt e 30121 72,272 382,393
Operiling BXPENSES . . . .. oottt i e 48,390 48.683 97,073
Deferral of expenses under SFAS 91, . .. .. .. . i _ (13,619} (13,619)
Prestax earmings {(1oss). . . . . . .. ... .. e 261,731 37,208 298,939
Minority interests. . .. ... ... .. s . 562 65 627
Netearnings (loss). . . . ... ... ... .. .. . i $158.833 $ 22594 $§ 181427
Performance Data
Average intereS-€amMiNg assels . . . .. et e $343595 § 833,116 $1,176,711
Allocated capital . .. ... L 324,001 37,404 361,405
Loans produced . . . .. ... L. e — 4,592.979 4,592,979
Loanssold . ... ... .. . e e _ 4,071,678 4,071,678
MBR Margin. . . ..o e e e N/A 1.32% 1.38%
ROE . e e e 9% 60% 50%
Net interest Margin, . ... ... .ottt N/A 1.37% N/A
Average FTE. . . . .. ... e e e e 91 190 281
Year Ended December 31, 2006
Operating Results
Net interest income (EXPENSE) . . . . . oo vttt e ettt e $(16277) $ 4,788 $ (11,489)
Provision for l0an 1osses . ... ... ... . e —_ — —
Gain (foss)onsale of loans . . . ... .. ... . .. . e 1,994 29,099 31,093
Service fee INCOME . . . . . . ... i ittt et it tenan s e 115,657 (8) 115,649
Gain (os5) OB SECUTILIES . . . . ..o ottt e s 19,173 — 19,173
Other INCOME . . . . . et e e e e e e 1,755 5,260 7,015
Net revenues (BXPEMSE). . . . v o vttt e e e e s 122,302 39,139 161,441
Operating eXperseEs . . .. ..o v e e e 31,529 29,365 60,894
Deferral of expenses under SFAS 91, . .. ... .. .. .. o —_ (8,068) (8,068)
Pre-tax earnings (10sS). . . . . . .. ... L. e 90,773 17,842 108,615
Net earnings (10s8). . . ... ... ... . . i $ 55,281 % 10866 $ 66,147
Performance Data
Average IntereS-¢arming ASSEIS . . . v v v vttt i e $242.837 § 338952 % 581,789
Allocated capitall .. . .. ... L 236,770 16,465 253,235
Loans produced . . . . .. ... i e — 2,698,332 2,698,332
Loans sold . . .. 0. e e 29,961 2,025,944 2,055,905
MBR Margin. . ... e s N/A 1.44% 1.51%
ROE . . e s 23% 66% 26%
Net interest MATZin, . ..o .ot i e e st i e e e N/A N/A N/A
Average FTE. . .. . ... i e e e 88 113 200
Year over Year Comparison
% chatge in RELEAMINES . . . . oottt e e 187% 108% 174%
Dochange incapital . ... ... e e 37% 127% 43%

SFR mortgage loans serviced for others reached $181.7 billion (including reverse morngages and HELOCs) at
December 31, 2007, with a weighted average coupon of 6.89%. In comparison, we serviced $139.8 billion of
mortgage loans owned by others at December 31, 2006, with a weighted average coupon of 7.05%.
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The following provides the activity in the servicing portfolio for the years indicated (dollars in millions):

Year Ended December 31

2007 2006
Unpaid principat balance at beginning of year ... ..... ... ............ $139,817 § 84,495
Additions . .. .. ... e e 72,613 80,237
Clean-up calls exercised .. ............ e e (153) (31
Loan payments and prepayments . .. . ... ..ot i o e (30,553) (24,384)
Unpaid principal balance at end of year . . . ......... ... ... .o s $181,724  $139.817

The following provides additional information related to the servicing portfolio as of the dates indicated:

December 31
07 2006
By Product Type: _
Fixed rate MOTLZAZES . . .. .0ttt et et it e s 36% 35%
Intermediate term fixed-rate loans. . . .. ... ... .. i e 35% 30%
Pay option ARMS . ... .. e 17% 23%
REVEISE MOTLEAZES . o« v v e vt v e e vt ittt a et e e et nnn e 10% 9%
HELOCS . oottt e e e e it e e e 1% 2%
1)1 OO _ 1% _ 1%
17 [ _100% 100%
Additional Information(1)
Weighted average FICO(2). . ... ... i 702 703
Weighted average original LTV(3) . .. ... ... i 3% 13%
Average original loan size (inthousands) . .......... ... ... ... . . oL 247 232
Percent of portfolio with prepayment penalty .. ....... ... .. ... ... ... ot 33% 42%
Portfolio delinquency (% of unpaid principal balance)(4) ..................... 7.31% 5.02%
By Geographic Distribution:
California. . ... .o e 43% 43%
Florida. .. ... e 8% 8%
NewW YOIK .. o it e e e e e e 8% 8%
NEW JBIS Y. & oottt it e e 4% 4%
VIFZINIA . . ..ot e 4% 4%
Other . ... e e e s _33% _33%
Total .o e i _100% 100%

(1) Portfolio delinquency is calculated for the entire servicing portfolio. All other information presented excludes
rfeVerse mortgages.

(2) FICO scores are the result of a credit scoring system developed by Fair Isaacs and Co. and are generally used by
lenders to evaluate a borrower’s credit history. FICO scores of 700 or higher are generally considered in the
mortgage industry to be very high quality borrowers with low risk of default, but in general, the secondary
market will consider FICO scores of 620 or higher to be prime.

(3) Combined loan-to-value (“LTV") ratio for loans in the second lien position is used to calculate weighted
average original LTV ratio for the portfolio.

(4) Delinquency is defined as 30 days or more past the due date excluding loans in foreclosure.
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THRIFT SEGMENT

Our thrift segment invests in loans originated by our various production units as well as in MBS. We manage
our investments in the thrift portfolio based on the extent to which the ROEs exceed the cost of both core and risk-
based capital, or they are needed to support the core mortgage banking investments in mortgage servicing rights and
residual and non-investment grade securities, if the ROEs are below our cost of capital. Additionally, the segment
engages in consumer construction lending. These investing activities provide core spread income and generally, a
more stable return on equity.

In addition to the $33.0 million net earnings in our mortgage banking segment, our thrift segment reported a
$199.2 million net loss in 2007 that was also caused by a large increase in credit related costs. Credit related costs
for the thrift segment are reflected in the provision for loan losses as well as the valuation of our investment grade,
non-investment grade and residual securities. Credit costs in the thrift segment for the year ended December 31,
2007 totaled $748 million pre-tax compared with only $28 million in credit costs in the thrift segment for the year
ended December 31, 2006, as the provision for loan losses was offset by credit related valuation gain on residuat
securities. Although all the divisions in the thrift segment incurred higher credit costs in 2007, the majority of the
increase was concentrated in the non-investment grade and residual securities divisions.
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The following provides details on the results for divisions of our thrift segment for the years indicated (dollars

in thousands):

. Non-
Investiment Total
Investrnent  Grade and  Mortgage- SFR
Grade Residual Backed Mortgage Consumer Warehouse Total
Securities Securities  Securittes  Loans HFl  Construction Lending Thrift
Chanitel Channel Division Division Division Division Segment
Year Ended December 31, 2007 '
Operating Results i
Net inferest income . . .. .. .o v v vvan - $ 37723 % 57033 % 94756 $ 78201 $ 56715 § 5193 $ 234,865
Provision for loan 1osses . . . ... ..o h . — —_ — (145,364) (40,256) (299) (185,919)
Gain (loss) op sale of loans . . .. .......... — E — (7.225) 31,634 — 24,409
Service fee income (expense) . . .. .. ... ..., y— — — — —_ — —
Gain (loss) on securities ., .. ............ (53,206) (284,175) (337.381) —_ (1.629) — (339,010)
Gain of sale and leaseback of building. . . . . . .. — — — — — = —
Other income (expense). . .. . v oo v v v e v 613 [€)] 610 2,065 24,660 2,014 29,349
Net revenues (BXpense). . . . . v v v v v o n e e . (14,870) (227,145) (242,015) (72.323) 71,124 6,908 (236,306)
Operaling €Xpenses . . . . .o oo a e 1,023 2,771 3.794 23,091 66,547 3.698 97,130
Severance charges. . . . ... .. .- —_ — —_ —_ — — —
Deferra) of expenses under SFAS 91, .. ... .. — — _— — (8,251} — (8,251)
Pre-tax earmings (loss) . . ... ...... ... (15.893) (229.916) (245,809) (95.414) 12,828 3210 {325,185)
Minority interests . .. .. ... . ... ... 176 324 500 492 208 7 1,207
Net earnings (loss) . . .. ... .. ... ... $ (9,855  $(140,343) $(150,198) % (58600 § 1604 5 1947 $ (199.247)
Performance Data
Average interest-eamning assets. . . . . ... .. ... $4.850,600 5346845 35197445 56,781,388 $2,802416 $194.286 $14,976,535
Allocated capital . . . . ... . .o 88,879 191,489 280,368 239,633 135,035 15,440 670476
Loans produced. . .. ... e e — —-— — — 2,988,322 — 2,688,322
Loanssold. . ... ... ..o, — —_— — 3,735,736 2,627,267 — 6,363,003
ROE .. ... it (1% (73)% 54)% 4% 6% 13% (3%
Net interest margin, thrift. . .. ............ 0.78% 16.44% 1.82% 1.15% 2.02% 2.67% 1.57%
Efficiency rato. . . .. ..o vneee e M% ()% 2)% 2% 52% 51% (176)%
Average FTE . ... ... .. ... 3 8 11 12 384 29 436
Year Ended December 31, 2006
Operating Results
Net interest ifCOMme . . v v v v v m e v v v e e e v e $ 35,158 $ 37059 § 72217 $§ 76081 $ 45546 $ 3489 $ 197333
Provision for loan losses . ... .. .- .. ... —_ — — (9,225) (3,322) (181) (12,728)
Gain (lossy onsale of boans . ... . ......... (122) _— {122) 3,703 39,068 — 42,649
Service fee income {expense} .. ... —_ —_— —_ — — — —
Gain (loss) on securities . . ... ... ... (1,359) 3,750 2,391 384 659 — 31434
Other income (€Xpense). . . . . v v v e o v 3) — (3) 1,637 23412 1,725 26,771
Nel revenues (expense). . ... ........... 33.674 40,809 74,483 72,580 105,363 5,033 257,459
Operaling expenses . . . . .« .. .v oot 1,131 2418 3.549 4978 69,073 4,120 81,720
Deferral of expenses under SFAS 91, . . ... .. — — —_ — {8,812) — (8,812
Pre-tax earnings (Qoss) . . . ... ........ 32,543 38,391 70,934 67,602 45,102 913 184,551
Net earnings (Joss} . .. ... .. ........ s 19819 $ 23380 § 43,199 § 41170 $ 27468 $ 557 $ 112,394
Performance Data
Average interest-earning assels. . . . ... ... ... $3,329.118 $210,352  $3,539470  $5.876,399 $2,502397  $119,043 $12,037,309
Allocated capital . .. . .......... ..., . 65735 109,616 175,351 227,937 123,273 10,382 536,943
Loans produced. . . . ... .. oo a e -— — —_ - 2.937,596 — 2,937,596
Loanssold. .. ..o vivin i -— — —_ 170,296 2.496,314 — 2,666,610
ROE ..ottt ie et i e 0% 21% 25% 18% 2% 5% 21%
Net interest margin, thrift. .. ... ... ....... 1.06% 17.62% 2.04% 1.29% 1.82% 2.93% 1.64%
Efficiency ratio . . . . ... ... 3% 6% 5% 6% 55% 79% 2%
Average FTE . . . ... ... ... . s 5 7 12 13 422 26 473
Year over Year Comparison
% change innet earnings . . . . . .. ... ... (150)% N/M (448)% (242)% (72¥% 250% 2TN%
% change incapital . .. ... ... ... 0 35% 5% 60% 5% 10% 49% 25%
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The following tables and discussions present supplemental information to help understand the composition
and credit quality of the assets held in our thrift portfolios. This section refers to company-wide assets, a small
portion of which may be held in our mortgage banking segment.

MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES DIVISION

The following provides the details of the MBS portfolio as of the dates indicated (dollars in thousands):

December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006 December 31, 2005
Trading AFS Total Trading AFS Total Trading AFS Total

Mortgage banking segment:
AAA-rated agency securities. . . § — 3 — 5 — % — % 29i15% 2915% — 8 - % —
AAA-rated and agency interest- )

only securities. . .. ....... 59,844 — 59,844 66,581 — 66,581 73,430 _— 73,430
AAA-rated principal-only

securities . ., ... .. ...... 88,024 — 88,024 38478 — 38,478 9,483 — 9,483
Prepayment penalty and late fee ’

securities . . . ... ... 79,678 — 79,678 93,176 — 93,176 73,443 — 73,443
Total mortgage banking . . . . . 227,546 — 227,546 198,235 2915 201,150 156,356 — 156,356
Thrift segment:
AAA-rated non-agency

securities . . ... ... ...... 510,371 5,543,306 6,053,677 43957 4604489 4648446 52,633 3,524,952 3,577585
AAA-rated agency securities . . . — 45,296 45,296 — ., 62,260 62260 — 43,014 43,014
AAA-rated and agency interest-

only securities. . ... ...... — — — 6,989 — 6,989 5,301 — 5,301
Prepayment penalty and other

securities . . ... ... ... 2,349 — 2,349 4,400 — 4,400 2,298 — 2,298
Other investment grade

securities . . . . .......... 275,691 451,798 727489 29015 160,238 189,253 8,829 83,291 92,120
Other non-investment grade

securities . . ... ... ... 93,859 61,889 155748 41,390 - 38,784 80,174 4,480 53,232 57,712
Non-investment grade residual

securities . . ... ... ... ... 112,727 3687 116414 218,745 31,828 250,573 115,065 48,706 167,771
Total thrift . . . ... ........ 994997 6,105976 7,100,973 344,496 4,897,599 5,242,005 192,606 3,753,195 3945801
Total mortgage-backed

securities. . ............ $1,222,543 $6,105,976 $7,328,519 $542,731 $4,900,514 $5,443,245 $348,962 $3,753.195 $4,102,157

AAA-rated MBS represented 85%, 89% and 90% of the total portfolio at December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively. These securities had an expected weighted average life of 3.0 years, 2.9 years and 2.6 years at
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 20035, respectively. Due to downgrades of investment grade securities in January
2008, we anticipate an increase in non-investment grade securities.

In 2007, the Bank securitized $24.0 billion of mortgage loans. The Bank retained $2.8 billion of the securities
and sold $21.2 billion. Of the $2.8 biilion retained securities recorded as MBS, $2.2 billion and $0.6 billion were
classified as available for sale and trading, respectively,

SFR MORTGAGE LOANS HFI DIVISION

The SFR mortgage HFI portfolio is comprised primarily of interest-only loans and adjustable-rate mortgage
loans. ' ‘

"At December 31, 2007, we had $3.0 billion in pay option ARM loans, or 26% of the portfolio, as compared to
$1.2 billion, or 18% of the portfolio, at December 31, 2006. As of December 31, 2007, approximately 91% (based
on loan count) of our pay option ARM loans had negatively amortized, resulting in an increase of $102.3 million to
their original foan balance. This s an increase from 83% at December 31, 2006. The net increase in unpaid principal
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balance due to negative amortization was $75.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2007, which approximated
the deferred interest recognized for the years.

We transferred HFS mortgage loans in the fourth quarter of 2007 with an original cost basis of $10.9 billion to
HFI as we no longer intend 10 sell these loans given the extreme disruption in the secondary mortgage market. These
loans were transferred at LOCOM and, accordingly, we reduced the cost basis by $0.6 billion resulting in an
increase in HFI loans of $10.3 billion. The $0.6 billion reduction was a combination of LOCOM reserves existing in
the third quarter of 2007 and additional charges to gain on sale of loans during the fourth quarter of 2007. Embedded
in this reduction are estimated credit losses of $474 million. During the year, the Bank securitized $24.0 billion, of
which $2.0 billion of mortgage loans came from the SFR mortgage loans HFI division.

The following provides a composition of the SFR mortgage loans HFI portfolio and the relevant credit quality
characteristics as of the dates indicated (dollars in thousands): -

December 31
2007 2006
Qutstanding balance (recorded value)(1) . ... ............ . ... ... $11411,464  $6,519,340
AVETAZE J0AN SIZE. . . ot ittt et e $ 270 % 310
Non-performing foans . ..... ... ... . . ... . i i, 6.47% 1.09%
Estimated average lifeinyears(2). ........ .. ... ... ... ... ... 24 2.6
Estimated average net duration in months(3). ... ................. 2.1 (3.5
Annualized yield . ... ... .. . 7.03% 6.01%
Percent of loans with active prepayment penalty . ... .............. 43% 34%
By Product Type: ' ’
Fixed-rale MOMZAZES . . . .. . ... ..ottt 15% 5%
Intermediate term fixed-rate loans. . .. ........... ... ... ... .. 15% 15%
Interest-only loans . ... .. ... .. . e 43% 60%
Payoption ARMs . ... ... ... ... . . .. 26% 18%
Other. ... i, e e 1% 2%
100% 100%
Additional Information:
Average FICO score. . . ... ..o oo 693 716
Original average LTV . ... ... it ce e 76% 73%
Current average LTV(4) .. ......... LR, 17% 61%
Geographic distribution of top five states:
Southern California ... ... ... ... . . i, 30% 32%
Northern California ... ....... ... .. .. i 15% 20%
Total Californmia . .. ... ...t e 45% 52%
Florida. . . ... e e e 9% 6%
New YOrK .. .. o e e e e e s 7% 4%
NeW JEISBY . . ittt e e e e e 3% 2%
Maryland. .. . ... ... e e e e e e 3% 2%
0 11 = A A ) 33% 34%
o 71 P S 100% 100%

(1) The cutstanding balance at December 31, 2007 includes $286.3 million of lot loans.

(2) Represents the estimated length of time, on average, the SFR loan portfolio will remain outstanding based on
our estimates for prepayments.

(3) Average net duration measures the expected change in the value of a financial instrument in response to changes
in interest rates, taking into consideration the impact of the related hedges. The negative net duration implies an
increase in value as rates rise while the positive net duration implies a decrease in value.

(4) Current average LTV ratio is estimated based on the Office of the Federal Housing Enterprise Oversight House
Price Index Metropolitan Statistical Area data for the year ended December 31, 2007 on a loan level basis.
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CONSUMER CONSTRUCTION DIVISION

Our consumer construction division provided construction financing for individual consumers who want to
build a new primary residence or second home. The primary product is a construction-to-permanent (“CTP")
residential mortgage loan. This product typically provides financing for a construction term from 6 to 12 months
and automatically converts to a permanent mortgage loan at the end of construction. The end result is a loan product
that represents a hybrid activity between our portfolio tending and mortgage banking activities. As of December 31,
2007, based on the underlying note agreements, 80% of the construction loans will be converted to adjustable-rate
permanent loans, 13% to intermediate term fixed-rate loans, and 7% to fixed-rate loans.

The consumer construction division temporarily suspended all new CTP production on January 31, 2008 to
help manage our balance sheet. Our consumer construction division had previously suspended lot and single spec
production in 2007.

During 2007, we entered into new consumer construction commitments of $3.2 billion, which is a decrease of
13%, or $470 million from 2006. Approximately 68% of new commitments are generated through mortgage broker
customers of the MPG, and the remaining 32% of new commitments are retai! originations. Consumer construction
loans outstanding at December 31, 2007 increased 3% from December 31, 2006.

Since the introduction of a monthly adjusting construction period ARM product in the second quarter of 2006,
the percentage of adjustable-rate loans in our portfolio has increased to 72% at December 31, 2007 from 29% at
December 31, 2006. The ratio of non-performing loans increased to 3.31% of the portfolio at December 31, 2007,
compared to 1,14% at December 31, 2006. As a result, we increased the allowance for loan losses to $32.3 million
for the year ended December 31, 2007 from $11.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 and increased the
percentage of allowance for loan losses to recorded value to 1.38% at the end of 2007 from 0.52% at the end of 2006.
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Information on our consumer construction portfolio is presented in the following table as of the dates indicated
{dollars in thousands):

December 31
2007 2006

QOutstanding balance (recorded value) .................. .. $2,343,094  $2,276,133
Total COMMILMENLS. . . . o .ttt ettt et ettt n e e eeeean 3,503,790 3,600,454
Average loan commitment(l) . .. ... e 570 474
Non-performing loans ............. i ininneaannn. 3.31% 1.14%
By Product Type: ‘

Fixed-rate loans . . ... ... ... it i 28% 71%

Adjustable-rate loans .. ........ ... . .. e 2% 29%

' 100% 100%

Additional Information:
Average LTV ratio(2)............. T 73% 73%
Average FICOscore. . ... ... ..o e 722 718
Geographic distribution of top five states:

Southern California ............. ... ... ... . . e, 30% 28%

Northern California ... ....... .. ... ..., 12% 15%
Total California . . ... ... . . i e 42% 43% «
Florida, . .. .. e 7% 9%
Washington .. ............... [P 4% 4%
New York ... oo e 4% 4%
ATMZONA . . i e e e e 4% 3%
101§ 1=) o 39% 37%
B o 7Y 100% 100%

(1} In March 2007, estate lending was introduced for loans on commitments greater than $2.5 million. We
originated approximately $306 million or 96 loans in 2007 for an average loan size of $3.2 million which
contributed to the increase in loan size during the year.

(2) The average LTV ratio is based on the most recent estimated appraised value of the completed project compared
to the commitment amount at the date indicated.

The following provides details on the aggregate maturities of construction loan balances due at December 31,
2007 (dollars in thousands):

Within one yearoress . . ... ... ... i, . ..... $2,229.491
Between one to five years (98% adjusiable-rate and 2% fixed-rate) . . . .......... 112,569
TOtal & ot e e e e e e e e e e $2,342,060

ELIMINATIONS & OTHER SEGMENT

This segment contains the fixed costs of our deposit raising and treasury functions that are not allocated to our
operating divisions, as well as entries to eliminate the impact of transactions between segments. In addition to
selling loans into the secondary market, our mortgage production division regularly sells loans to our SFR mortgage
loans HFI division. These transactions are recorded at arms-length in our segment results resulting in intercompany
gain on sale in the mortgage production division and a premium in the SFR mortgage loans HFI division that is
amortized over the life of the loan. Both the gailll and the premium amortization are eliminated in consolidation.
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The mortgage production division and the morigage servicing division are exposed to movements in the
intermediate fixed-rate loan spreads. Mortgage spread is the difference between mortgage interest rates and LIBOR/
interest rate swap rates. Tighter spreads benefit mortgage production as they lead to improved loan sales execution
while wider spreads lead to slower projected prepayment speeds and an increase in the MSR value. Due to the
inherent difficulty in hedging the movemeni of these spreads, the potential for an internal hedge exists whereby the
risks from the spread movements will be shared between the two groups. Starting in the first quarter of 2007, the
mortgage production division and the mortgage servicing division entered into an inter-divisional transaction to
economically hedge their respective financial risks to mortgage spreads for certain products in the absence of
readily available derivative instruments. With all else remaining constant, when morlgage spreads widen, the
pipeline of mortgage loans held for sale is negatively impacted and mortgage servicing is positively impacted. The
impact of the hedges has been reflected in the respective channel results with the consolidation adjustment recarded
under “Interdivision Hedge Transactions” within “Eliminations”.

The following provides additional details on deposits, treasury and eliminations for the years indicated (doilars
in thousands):

Eliminations

Interdivision
Interdivision Hedge
Deposits  Treasury Loan Sales(1) Transactions  Other Total

Year Ended December 31, 2007
Operating Results
Net interest iNCOME . . . . . .. vttt e e e e e e $ — $45072 $ 37,513 $ —  $25352 % 107,937
Provision forloanlosses . , ... ........ ... .. ... .. — — — —_ — —
Gain (loss)onsaleofloans . . .. .................... —_— — (82,081 (84,921) (1,081) (168,083)
Service fee income . . ... ... ... ... L. . _— —_ — 84,921 3436 88,357
Gain (loss) on Securities . . . . . oo o v i — — — — (42,965)  (42,965)
Other inCOME . . .. . ... . e e 4,431 1,269 —_ —_ (2.118) 3,582
Net revenues (BXPense). . . ..o oo v et iie e 4,431 46,341 (44,568) —_ (17,376  (11,172)
Operating eXpenses . . . . ... ... ..ttt 27815 54,665 — — (17,298) 65,182
Deferral of expenses under SFAS91 ... ... ............ — — — — (78) (78)

Pre-tax earnings (Joss) . . . .. ... ................. (23,384)  (8,324) (44,568) — —_— (76,276)

Minority interests . . . . ... ... ... ... .. ... 3 20,026 — — — 20,029 |

Netearmings (loss) . . .. ...................... $(14,244) $(25,095) $(26,458) $ —_ 8 — % (65,797)

Year Ended December 31, 2006
Operating Results
Net INerest IICOME . . . . . . ottt e e e emn e $ - $ 287235 $32,275 $ — 515629 $ 76,139
Provision for loan losses . . .. ...................... —_ —_ — —_ - —
Gain (foss)onsaleof loans . . . ..................... — —_ (67.639) — — (67,639
Service fee income . . . ... ... ... . e — — {4,361) _ (31,578 (35939
Gain (loss)on securties . . .. ... . ov it in o —_ —_ 10,809 — - 10,809
Otherincome . ... ...ttt e 3476 677 — — (5,817) {1,664)
Net revenues (€Xpense). . . ... ..o i i, 3476 28912 (28,916) —_ (21,766  (18,294)
Operating eXpenses . . ... .. ... vinn e 26,764 40,107 — - (17,862) 49,009
Deferral of expenses under SFAS91 . .. ............... — —_ — —_ (2,229) (2,229)

Pre-tax earnings {loss) . . . ... ................... (23,288) (11,195) (28,916) — (1,675}  (65,074)

Netearnings(loss) . ......................... $(14,182) $ (6,818) $(17.610) 5 — $ 4258 § (34,352

(1} Includes loans sold of $15.2 billion and $9.2 billion for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively. '
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CORPORATE OVERHEAD SEGMENT

As previously mentioned, we do not allocate fixed corporate overhead costs to our profit center divisions,
because the methodologies to do so are arbitrary and distort each division’s marginal contribution to our profits.
These unallocated corporate overhead costs are reported in the corporate overhead segment. The after-tax loss from
this segment increased from a loss of $106.7 million in 2006 to a loss of $101.6 million in 2007.

DISCONTINUED BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

As conditions in the U.S. mortgage market have deteriorated, we have exited certain production channels and
are reporting them in a separate category in our segment reporting. These exited production channels include
conduit, home equity and homebuilder. Of the $698.6 million in total credit costs we reported in 2007,
$543.5 million were in these discontinued businesses, driving the total after-tax loss of $281.1 million for these
discontinued businesses for the year. These activities are not considered discontinued operations as defined by
SFAS 144 due to our significant continuing involvement in these activities.
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The following provides details on the results of our exited businesses for the years indicated (dollars in

thousands): ’
Discontinued Business Activities
Home
Conduit Equity Homebuilder
Channel Drivision Division Other Total

Year Ended December 31, 2007 ’
Operaling Resulis
Nel interest inCOME . . . .. i e et e ien s o eeeannns $ 63658 $ 28072 $ 46602 $1,797 § 140,129
Provision for loan losses .- . . . ..., ... ... v —_— (29,9600 (178,144) {1,525) (209,629)
Gain (lossyonsaleofloans. . ...................... (205,207  (102,337) — — (307,544)
Service fee income (expense) .. .................... —_ 3,406 — — 3,406
Gain on sale and leaseback of building . . . .. ... ........ — (22,143) — — (22,143)
Other income (expense) . . .. ...........voemn.... (316) 6,295 (571 _— 5,402
Net revenues (BXpense). .. .. .. ... .ot {141,865} (116,667) (132,119 272 (390,379)
Operating eXpenses . . ... .o ittt 37,667 15,461 23,539 245 76,912
Severancecharges ... ... ... . ... i iiia —_ — —_ — -
Deferral of expenses under SFAS91. .. ... ......... ... — (455) (5,950) — (6,405)

Pre-tax earnings (1oss). . . . ... .. . ... {179,532)  (131,673) (149,708) 27 {460,836)

Minority interests . . . .o vn et e 133 234 78 4 449

Netearnings{(loss) . . . . ......... ... ... .0 $ (109468 $ (80424) 3 (91,250) $ 13 & (281.129)

Performance Data .
Average inlerest-carming assets. . . .. .. ... e e e $ 4,517,142 §$1,632317  $1222,646 $31,811 § 7403916
Allocated capital ... .. ... ... .. i 202,651 122,980 91,802 2,820 420,253
Loansproduced. . ............ ... . ... ... ... ... 16,096,606 ' 38435 976,018 — 17,111,059
Toanssold . . ... ... .. . ... . .. .. e 19,836,221 1,010,436 — — 20,346,657
MBRmMargin .. ... ... 0.7)% N/A - N/A N/A (1.17%
ROE . . e e (54)% (65)% (99Y% —_ 6%
Net interest margin . . ... ... ... . ... .. .. .. 141 % 1.72 % 3181% 565 % 1.89 %
Net interest margin, thrift . . . ... ... .. .......... .. N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Efficiency ratio . . . .. ... .. ... N/A (17)% . B% 14 % 39)%
Average FTE . . .. ... ... .. .. . . i 135 79 121 — i3s
Year Ended December 31, 2006
Uperating Resulls ’
Netinterest inCOMe . . ... .. ..ottt eeennnn. $ 79,138 § 39503 § 60422 $2202 $§ 181,265
Provision forloan losses. . . . ........... ... ........ —_ (1,800) (3,800 (1,665) (7.265).
Gain (loss)onsaleof loans. . . . .................... 52,465 23,996 — (11) 76,450
Service fee income (expense) .. ....... ... ... ... - 466 — — 466
Gain (loss) onsecurities . . . . .. ... ... . i e —_ (12,934) — —_ (12,934)
Other income (EXPENSE) . ... ... vin v (63) 8,723 1,867 — 10,527
Net revenues (EXpPense). . . oo oot it vt it in i i 131,540 57,954 58,489 526 248,509
Operating eXpenses . . .. v vt n e i e 29,841 20,496 21,516 307 72,160
Deferral of expenses under SFAS91. .. ............... — (1,165) (6,993) —_ (8,158)

Pretax earnings (Joss). . ... ..................... 101,699 38,623 43,966 219 184,507

Netearnings (1oss). . .. ..............cceuuvunn $ 61935 % 23523 % 26775 $§ 134 § 112,367

Performance Data
Average Interest-earning assels. . . ... .. ... £ 4,149,226 $1,934.429 $1,076213 340,627 $ 7,200,495
Allocated capital . . . ... ... ... ... L. 182,133 148,033 104,123 1,584 437,873
Loans produced. . . ... ... ittt 30,102,134 109,375 1,746,690 — 31,958,199
Loanssold . ........ ... . . i i 28,425,553 2,604,875 — — 31,030,428
MBRmargin ......... .00t 046 % N/A N/A N/A N/A
ROE ... e e Mo 16 % 26 % 4% 26 %
Netinterest margin . .. ... .coviir it reenenas 1.91 % 2.04 % 56l % 542% 252 %
Net interest margin, thoift . .., . .................... N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Effictency ratio . . . .. .. ... . N/A 2% 23 % 14 % 25%
Average FTE .. ... ... . . ... . 147 75 108 — 330
Year to Year Comparison
%change innetearnings .. ... 2TN% (442)% (441)Y% 90)% (350)%
% change incapital ... ..... ... ... ... ... .. 11 % {(17% (12)% 21)% {(4)%

CONDUIT CHANNEL

The conduit channel purchased pools of closed loans for portfolio, resale, or securitization and this channel
was characterized by its low cost operations and quick asset turn times. For the year ended December 31, 2007, our
loan production from the conduit channel dropped 47% to $16.1 billion as compared to $30.1 billion for the year
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ended December 31, 2006. This decline in volume was attributable to the fact that we exited this channel due to its
inherently lower profit margins and the current uncertainty with respect to secondary market spreads and execution,
The conduit channel recorded a net loss of $109.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2007, down 277% from
net earnings of $61.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2006.

HOME EQUITY DIVISION

The home equity division provided HELOC and closed-end second mortgages nationwide through our retail
and mortgage broker and banker channels. We have ceased new originations in this division as a response to ex{reme
disruptions in the housing and mortgage markets.

At December 31, 2007, our total HELOC servicing portfolio amounted to $4.2 billion, an increase of
approximately $599.4 million from December 31, 2006. We produced $2.2 billion of new HELOC commitments
through our mortgage banking segment and internal channels during 2007, sold $1.0 billion and realized a net loss
on sale of $85.0 million primarily due to LOCOM adjustments of $100.0 million. During 2006, we produced
$3.9 billion of HELOC loans and sold $2.6 billion with a corresponding net gain on sale of $24.6 million.

Cur HELOC securltlzatlon agreements contain provisions that, under certain circumstances, the securitization
enters a “rapid amortization period”. During this period, all new draws on revolving HELOC loans are allocated to a
seller’s interest on cur consolidated balance sheets. This causes the outstanding bonds to pay down quickly.

Qur securitization agreements treat our seller’s interest as “pari passu” to the securitization trust, Accordingly,
any cash received on the underlying loans is distributed on a pro-rata basis, and our seller’s interest is not -
subordinated to the securitization trust, even in rapid amortization. As of December 31, 2007, none of our
securitizations were in a rapid amortization period. However, we believe one or more securitizations will enter, rapid
amortization in 2008. Since our seller’s interest is not subordinated, the expected impact on our financial statements
is projected to be a small increase in HELOC loans outstanding, which will likely be offset by the run-off in the
existing HFI portfolio. '

All HELOC loans are adjustable-rate loans and indexed to the prime rate. Information on the combined
HELOC portfolio, including both HFS and HFI loans, is presented as of the dates indicated (dollars’in thousands);

December 31
. 2007 2006
Outstanding balance (recorded value) ... ..... R $1,628,282 $ 656,714
"Total commitments{l) ... .. ... . e 3,239,902 2,211,298
Average spread over PHME. . 1 e 1.16% . 1.39%
Average FICO score. ... ......vveenn... [ - 736 737
Average combined LTV ratio(2) . .. .. .. .o 7% " 77%




Additional Informatien on HELOC Portfolio

Averagé Loan Current 30+ Days
December 31, 2007 Outstanding Commitment Average Spread Average Delinquency
Combined LTV Balance Balance Over Prime FICO F(3)
96% to 1009% ... ... ... .. L $ 70,936 $ 85 2.44% 709 9.92%
MNPto9S5% ... 264,639 91 1.77% 720 5.82%
Bl1%1090% . ........c. i 538,212 80 1.55% 718 4.12%
TI%tw80% ........ ... 431,064 136 0.57% 744 2.06%
T0% orless. ... ... i 323,431 142 0.40% 755 1.07%
Total. ... i $1,628,282 108 1.16% 736 3.50%

Average Loan Current 30+ Days
December 31, 2006 Outstanding Commitment Average Spread Average Delinguency
Combined LTV Balance Balance Over Prime FICO %(3)
9%t 100% ........... ...l $ 87718 $141 2.14% 728 4.16%
N%to95% . ...t 115,868 124 2.17% 715 0.62%
81%to90% . ....... .. 226,440 114 1.58% 719 2.34%
TN%t080% ... v iie e 129,441 198 0.63% 746 0.77%
FO0%orless. ......... ... ... . 97,247 200 0.35% 754 0.90%
Total. . . ... § 656,714 156 1.39% 737 1.76%

(1) On funded loans.
(2) The combined LTV combines the LTV on both the first mortgage loan and the HELOC.

(3) 30+ days delinquency include loans that are 30 days or more past the due date including loans in foreclosure.

HOMEBUILDER DIVISION

The homebuilder division has ceased new originations in response to the extreme disruptions in the housing
and mortgage markets. We do not anticipate being in this business once the current portfolio is worked out and paid
off. We are monitoring this portfolio very closely, as the housing fundamentals are expected to continue to weaken,
which affects both the underlying collateral values and the projected repayment sources for these loans. Accord-
ingly, we expect to have additional downgrades, additional provisions for loan losses, and charge-offs relating to
this portfolio.

The rapid deterioration in the California and Florida real estate markets and the disruption in the mortgage
market nationwide that began in the third quarter of 2006 had a significant impact on our homebuilder borrowers
and on our portfolio of loans. Classified assets were $675.3 million, or 56% of outstandings at December 31, 2007,
up from $121.2 million or 11% of outstandings at December 31, 2006. At December 31, 2007, non-performing
loans rose to $480.2 million, from $9.0 million at December 31, 2006. A loan is considered non-performing if the
loan becomes delinquent in excess of 90 days from the due date or full payment of interest or principal is no longer
anticipated. It can also be considered non-performing if the accrual of interest from the interest reserve will cause a
loss.

There were 1,288 unsold units under construction or completed at December 31, 2007 compared to 1,254
unsold units at December 31, 2006. The weighted average LTV ratio of this portfolio increased to 82% at
December 31, 2007 compared to 73% at December 31, 2006,

The increase in non-performing and classified assets resulted in a provision to the allowance for loan Josses of
$178.1 million for 2007, or 14.49% of average loans for the year, up from $3.8 million, or 0.35% of average loans
for 2006. The total allowance for loan losses increased to $198.6 million, or 16.66% of recorded value of total loans,
at December 31, 2007, up from $20.5 million or 1.79% of recorded value of total loans, at December 31, 2006.
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There were no charge-offs and REQ in 2007, but we believe we will have charge-offs and REO in 2008 although we
cannot predict at this time the extent of any future charge-offs or REO.

Information on our homebuilder portfolio is presented in the following table as of the dates indicated (dollars
in thousands):

December 31
2007 2006

Outstanding balance (recorded value) . . ... .. ... ... . . ... L. $1,192,093  $1,144,835
Total commitments. . . ... ... . i i e e e e 1,662,060 2,010,727
Average loan COMMUIMENIS. . . .. ... .ttt ittt e e e e e 8,480 10,810
Percentage of homes under construction or completed thatare sold . .. ......... 30% 37%
Non-performing loans. . . .. ... ... e e e e 40.28% 0.78%
Allowance for loan losses as a percentage of recorded value . ... ............. 16.66% 1.79%
Additional Information:
Average LTV ratiof]) . .. ..t e e e e e 82% 73%
Geographic distribution of top five states:

Southern California. . .. ... .. o i e e 37% 41%

Northern California. . . ... ... .. . L. 29% 19%
Total Califormia . . ... . e e e 66% 60%
Florida. . . ... . e e 10% 11%
HROiS . o o e e e e e e 7% 9%
L0 54 4% 6%
ATIZOMA .« . L e e e 3% 4%
Other. . . e e 10% 10%
Total . . e e e e e . 100% 100%

(1) The average LTV ratio is based on the most recent estimated appraised value of the completed project compared
to the commitment amount at the date indicated.

The following provides details on the aggregate maturities of construction loan balances due at December 31,
2007 (dollars in thousands):

Within one year or less . .. ... . ... .. ... ... $ 988,590
Between one to five years(1) . . ... ..o i e e 202,964
More than five years . .. ... .. .t i e e e 539

TOAD) . . oo et e e e $1,192,093

(1) 71.5% of these loans are scheduled to mature in 2009 while the remaining loans are scheduled to mature
through 2012.

(2) 100% of these construction loans have all floating rates.

CONSOLIDATED RISK MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

We manage many types of risks with several layers of risk management and oversight, using both a centralized
and decentralized approach. Qur philosophy is to put risk management at the core of our operations and establish a
unified framework for measuring and managing risk across the enterprise, providing our business units with the
tools — and accountability — to manage risk. At the corporate level, this consolidated risk management is known .
as Enterprise Risk Management (“ERM”). ERM, in partnership with the Board of Directors and senior manage-
ment, provide support to and oversight of the business units.
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ERM, as a part of management, develops, maintains and monitors our cost effective yet comprehensive
enterprise-wide risk management framework, including our system of operating internal controls. ERM fosters a
risk management culture throughout Indymac and exists to help us manage unexpected losses, earnings surprises
and reputation damage. It also provides management and the Board with a better understanding of the trade-offs
between risks and rewards, leading to smarter investment decisions and more consistent and generally higher long-
term returns on equity.

CAMELS FRAMEWORK FOR RISK MANAGEMENT

The framework for organizing ERM is based on the six-point rating scale used by the OTS, our regulating
body, to evaluate the financial condition of savings and loan associations. A discussion of the areas covered by
CAMELS (Capital, Asset Quality, Management, Earnings, Liquidity and Sensitivity to Market Risk) follows.

CAPITAL

The Bank is subject to regulatory capital regulations administered by the federal banking agencies. As of
December 31, 2007, Indymac Bank met all of the requirements of a “‘well-capitalized” institution under the general
regulatory capital regulations. Refer to “Note 22 — Regulatory Requirements” in the accompanying notes to
consolidated financial statements for further discussion.

Our business is primarily centered on single-family lending and the related production and sale of loans. Due to
the disruption of the secondary markets, loan sales were adversely impacted, resulting in lower than normal volume.
Thus, we significantly changed our production model and transitioned to primarily become a GSE lender.

The accumulation of MSRs is a large component of our strategy. As of December 31, 2007, the capitalized
value of MSRs was $2.5 billion. OTS regulations effectively impose higher capital requirements on the amount of
MSRs that exceeds total Tier 1 capital. These higher capital requirements could result in lowered returns on our
retained assets and could limit cur ability to retain servicing assets and even cause our capital levels to decline
significantly if the value of our MSRs grows. While management believes that compliance with the capital limits on
MSRs will not materially impact future results, no assurance can be given that our plans and strategies will be
successful.

Capital Management and Allocation

As a federally regulated thrift, we are required to measure regulatory capital using two different methods: core
capital and risk-based capital. Under the core capital method, a fixed percentage of capital is required against each
dollar of assets without regard to the type of asset. Under the risk-based capital method, capital is held against assets
which are adjusted for their relative credit risk using standard “risk weighting” percentages. We allocate capital
using the regulatory minimums for well-capitalized institutions for each applicable asset class. The ratios are below
the regulatory minimums due to the use of wrust preferred securities as a form of regulatory capital. '
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The following provides information on the core and risk-based capital ratios for the two segments and each of
their operating divisions for the year ended December 31, 2007 (dollars in thousands):

Total Comipany. . .. ....... $35.969,022  100.0% $1.976,932 100.0%

Total Assets Core Risk-Based"
% of Avg. % of Avg % of
. Average Total  Allocated Total . Capital/ Allocated Tota  Capitall -
Year Ended December 31, 2007 Assets Assets Capital Capital Assets  ROE Capital Capital  Assets ROE
Mortgage Banking Segment:
Consumer Direct Division . ... $ 121,984 0.4% $ 4,800 0.2% 39% @)% § 5710 0.3% 4.7% (35)%
Retail Channel . ......., .. 187,865 0.5% 6,972 04% 3.7% (454)% 13,761 0.7% 7.3% Q2%
Mongage Broker and Banker .

Channel . . ....... s 5,900,356 16.4% 232,224 11.7% 3.9% 51)% 288,202 14.6% 4.9% {40%
Total Mortgage Professionals .

Group . ..... e 6,088,221 16.9% 239,196 12.1% 31.9% (63)% 301,963 15.3% 5.0% 49%
Financial Freedom Division . . . 1,247,910 3.5% 142,607 7.2%  114% 3% 134,244 6.8% 10.8% 39%
Total Mortgage Production

Division. . ............ 7,458,115 20.8% 386,603 19.5% 5.2% (20)% 441917 22.4% 59% (2%
Morigage Servicing Rights

Chamnel . . ............ 3095917 8.6% 204,790 10.4% 6.6% T4% 324,001 16.4% 10.5% 49%
Servicing Retention Channel . . . 836318 2.3% 32,687 1.7% 3.9% 68% 37,404 1.9% 4.5% 60%
Total Mortgage Servicing .

Division . ... ... ....... 3,932235 10.9% 237,477 12.1% 6.0% 4% 361,405 18.3% 9.2% 50%
Mortgage Bank Overhead. . . . . 149,312 0.4% 5,635 0.3% 38% NA 14,208 0.7% 9.5% N/A
Total Consumer Moﬁga;gp

Banking ... ........... 11,539,662 32.1% 629,715 31.9% 5.5% 5% 817,530 41.4% 7.1% 5%
Commercial Mortgage Banking

Division . . ............ 73,956 0.2% 2,616 0.1% 35% (295Y% 5,778 0.3% 78% (130)%
Total Mortgage Banking '

Segment. . ............ . 11,613,618 32.3% 632,331 320% - 54% 4% 823,308 41.7% 7.1% 4%
Thrift Segment:

Investment grade securities . . . . 4,876,783 13.6% 192,983 9.8% 4.0% )% 88,879 4.5% 1.8% (10%
Non-investment grade and

residuls securities . . ... .. 401,745 1.1% 12,225 0.6% 3.0% NM 191,489 97% 47.7% (73)%
Total Mortgage-Backed o

Securities . .. .......... 5,278,528 14.7% 205,208 10.4% 31.9% (75)% 280,368 14.2% 53% 5%
SFR Mortgage Loans HFI : )

Division., ............. 6,799,552 189% 266,148 13.5% 3.9% (21)% 239,633 12.1% 3.5% 24)%
Consumer Construction

Diviston . . ............ 2.811,039 7.8% 109,977 5.6% 3.9% 6% 135,035 6.8% 4.8% 6%
Wirehouse Lending Division . . 190,374 0.5% 7.531 0.4% 4.0% 20% 15,440 " 0.8% 8.1% 13%
Total Thrift Segment. ... ... 15,079,493 41.9% 588.864 29.9% 3.9% (35Y% 670476 33.9% 4.4% 30y%
Consumer Bank — Deposits . . . . 51,727 0.1% 2.031 0.1% 39%  NA 4,325 0.2% 84% N/A
Treasury ............... — _— 374,618 18.7% N/A N/A — — N/A N/A
Eliminations . . . .......... — — — — N/A N/A — — NiA N/A
Total Operating . . . . . SR 26,744,838 74.3% 1,597.844 80.7% 6.0% (13)% 1,498,109 75.8% 56% (15)%

. Corporate overhead . . ... ... 1,773,748 4.9% 86,171 4.4% 49% N/A 58,570 3.0% 13% N/A
Total On-Going Busi ... 28,518,586 79.2% 1,684,015 B5.1% 5.9% (IN% 1,556,679. 78.8% 55% 21)%
Discontinued Business ' '
Activities: .
Conduit Channel . .. ....... 4,566,315 12.7% 181,077 9.2% 4.0% 61)% 202,651 10.3% 4.4% (54)Y%
Home Equity Division. . . ... . 1,673,594 AT% 64,413 13% 318%  (130)% 122,980 6.2% 7.3% (65)Y%
Homebuilder Division .. .. ... 1,182,714 33% 46,376 2.3% 39% (200)% 91,802 4.6% 78% B9%
Other ................. 27513 0.1% 1,051 0.1% 3.8% ()% 2,820 01%  102% —
Total Discontinued Business
Activities . .. ... _... ... 7,450,436 20.8% 292,917 14.9% 3.9% (98)% 420,253 21.2% 5.6% (67Y%
5.5% (3% m 100.0% 55% 3%

As the table shows, certain asset types require more or less capital depending on the capital measurement
method. For example, non-investment grade and residual securities are allocated 3.0% core capital and 47.7% risk-
based capital. These differing methods result in significantly different ROEs as shown, We attempt to manage our
business segments and balance sheet to optimize capital efficiency under both capital methods.
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ASSET QUALITY

Indymac uses both a centralized and a decentralized approach to credit risk management. At the corporate
level, ERM oversees the development of a framework (through people, policies and processes) for credit risk
management the business unit leaders use to document and “matrix manage” their credit and fraud risk. This
framework includes the establishment and enforcement of strong corporate credit governance to maintain invest-
ment, lending and fraud policies that are simple, but highly effective. Each business unit has its own chief credit
officer to oversee and implement these procedures. By tracking historical credit losses and factors contributing to
the losses, we continuously implement changes to significantly reduce the likelihood of similar losses repeating.
This ongoing analysis of credit performance provides a feedback loop that serves to continually refine and enhance
credit risk policies.

We assume risk through our origination of loans, investments in whole loans and mortgage securities, and our
construction lending operations. As a result of standard representations and warranties to investors, we also retain
credit exposure from repurchase obligations on certain types of mortgage sales.

The following shows a summary of reserves against our key credit risks as of December 31, 2007 (dollars in
millions):

“Reserve”

Credit Risk Area Reserve Type Balance Balance UPB
Mortgage Banking:
Loans held for sale(l)............ Market valuation reserve $3777 § 3 8§ 371
Repurchase risk(2) .............. Secondary market reserve N/A 180 181,724
Thrift:
Loans held for investment(3). . ... .. Allowance for loan losses and

estimated credit losses embedded in

basis reductions due to loans

transferred from HFS 16,454 872 16,728 °
Nen-investment grade and restdual

securities(d} . ................ Loss assumption in valuations 272 1,262 22,437

Foreclosed assets . .............. Reduction in book value due to

liquidation costs and/or property

value deterioration 196 6l 257

Total Credit Reserves . . .. ... .. . ittt e e ta et aaar e $2,378

(1) Risks include possible borrower credit deterioration which could adversely impact loan salability; potential
further deterioration of credit quality of loans previously repurchased for repurchase/warranty issues or through
called deals; and actual losses exceeding losses that are assumed in our valuations. The reserve is for delinquent
loans.

(2) Risks include repurchase of impaired loans due to early payment default or other repurchase and warranty
violations beyond the amount reserved at time of sale.

(3) Risk includes credit losses exceeding the risk reserved for in the allowance. Total reserves include $398 million
of allowance for loan losses and $474 million of credit losses estimated in the determination of the market value
discount on transferred loans. :

{4) Reserve balance for non-investment grade and residual securities represents the expected remaining cumulative
losses. .

Total credit-related reserves were $2.4 billion at December 31, 2007, compared to $619 million. at
December 31, 2006. For 2007, we recorded credit costs of $1.4 billion compared to $126.1 million for 2006.
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Non-Performiqg Assets

.The following presents the details of our loan portfolio by product as of the dates indicated (dollars in
thousands):

December 31

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
e of % of % of % of % of
Total Total Totak Total Total
Balance Loans Balance Loans Balance, Loans Balance Loans Balance Loans
Total held for sale .
portfolio . . ..... $ 3,776,904 187% $ 9.467.843 48.2% 5 6,024,184 42.1% $ 4,445,572 39.7% $ 2,573,248 25.7%
SFR mottgage loans
and HELOCs . . .. 12,555,889 62.1% 6,507,221 33.1% 5427270 38.0% 4,450,921 39.7%  5,587.409 55.7%
Land and other
mortgage loans . . . 660,550 33% 375.215 1.9% 260,615 1.8% 158,468 1.4% 162,329 1.6%
Builder construction
loans . ........ 818,035 4.0% 786.279 4.0% 612,061 4.3% . 512,191 4.6% 438.873 4.4%
Consumer : -
construction
loans . ........ 2,342,060 11.6%  2,225979 11.3% 1,883,674 13.2% 1,574,378 14.1% 1,191,050 11.9%
Revolving warehouse :
lines of credit . . . . 48,633 0.2% 246,778 1.3% 48,616 0.3% -— — -— —
Tolal core held for
investment loans . . 16,425,167 81.2% 10,141,472 51.6% 8,232,236 57.6%  6,695958 59.8% 7,379,661 73.6%
Others(1) ... ..... 28,879 0.1% 35,737 0.2% 46,133 0.3% 53,795 0.5% 69,524 0.7%
Total held for
investment
portfolio . ... ... 16,454,046 81.3% 10,177,209 51.8% 8,278,369 579% 6,749,753 60.3% 7449185 743%
Total loans. . . ... $20,230950  100.0% $19.645,052 100.0% $14,302,553 100.0% $11,195,325 1000% $10,022,433 1000%

{1} This includes manufactured home loans and home improvement.

Loans are generally placed on non-accrual states when they are 90 days past due. Non-performing assets
include non-performing loans and foreclosed assets. We réecord the balance of our assets acquired in foreclosure or
by deed in lieu of foreclosure at estimated net realizable value.

The following summarizes our non-performing assets as of the dates indicated (dollars in thousands):

December 31
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

Non-performing loans HFL. . . ... ... ... ... $1,308,148 $108,483 $43404 $ 49,122 $ 37,592
Non—perf_orming loans HFS .. ............. 5,737 54,347 20,805 54611 38,855
Total non-performing loans . .............. 1,313,885 162,830 64,209 103,733 76,447
REO...... ... . . . 196,049 21,638 8,817 19,161 23,677

Total non-performing assets . . .. ......... $1,509934 $184468  $73,026 $122,894 $100,124
Past due 90 days or more as to interest or

principal and accruing interest .. ... ...... $ 4081 $ 185 § — § — § —
Total non-performing assets to total assets . . .. 4.61% 0.63% 0.34% 0.73% 0.76%

At December 31, 2007, non-performing assets as a percentage of total assets was 4.61%, increasing from
0.63% at December 31, 2006. The weakening real estate market and the general tightening of underwriting in the
mortgage industry continue to have a negative impact on our portfolios. It became increasingly difficult for
distressed borrowers to find alternative financing in order to avoid foreclosure. This resulted in a higher percentage
of loans going through foreclosure and a longer average time for us to liquidate our REQ. We expect to have an even
higher level of non-performing loans in the future due to the continued market disruption. In addition to our non-
performing loans, we have loans classified as sub-standard in the amount of $1.7 billion at December 31, 2007 as
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disclosed in our Thrift Financial Report filed with the OTS. We consider the sub-standard loan classification when
determining the allowance for loan losses.

Non-performing loans held for investment increased by $1.2 billion from December 31, 2006 to $1.3 billion at
December 31, 2007, while non-performing loans held for sale decreased by $48.6 million during the same time
period to $5.7 million. As a result of the increased delinquencies in these portfolios, foreclosure activities rose
during the period, leading to REO of $196.0 million at December 31, 2007. ’

The following provides additional comparative data on non-performing loans for the loans HFI portfolio by
division as of the dates indicated (dollars in thousands);

December 31
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

SFR mortgage loans HFL. . . ... ...... $ 736,159 $ 66,360 $27,960 $20,957 $11,227
Consumer construction .. ........... 77,562 25,957 0,446 9,553 9,025
Total on-going businesses . ... ....... 813,721 92,317 37,406 30,510 20,252
Homebuilder. . ................... 480,157 8,981 — 11,546 9,704
Other(1) .. ... ot i e ns 14,270 7,185 5,998 7.066 7,636
Total discontinued business activities. . . 494,427 16,166 5,998 18,612 17,340

Total non-performing loans HFI. . . . . $1,308,148 $108,483 $43,404  $49,122 $37,592

Allowance for loan losses to non-

performing loans HFI(2) . .... ... 30% 58% 127% 108% 140%

{1} Includes loans from the home equity and discontinued products divisions.

(2) For December 31, 2007, including the embedded credit reserves of $474 million in transferred loans increase
this ratio to 67%.

The increase in non-performing HFI loans is mainly seen in the SFR mortgage loans HFI division and the
homebuilder division portfolios. As previously noted, the increases in non-performing loans in our SFR mortgage
loans HFI division portfolio is primarily due to the delinquency worsening credit environment and declining home
prices primarily as it relates to higher LTV products. The non-performing loans in our homebuilder division’s
portfolio are in markets that have seen both price and sales declines over the last several months. For further
discussion on this portfolio, see “Summary of Business Segment Results — Discontinued Business Activities —
Homebuilder Division™.

Our non-accrual/non-performing loans by collateral type are summarized as follows (dollars in thousands):

December 31
2007 2006 2005
Homebuilder toans ................ e $ 480,157 3% 8981 § —
Consumer construction loans . . ... .. ....... . ... ... ..., 77,562 25,957 9,446 .
SFR mortgage loans HFI and other non-accrual/non-performing
JOANS . o ot e e 756,166 127,892 54,763
Total non-accrual/non-performing loans . ... .............. $1,313,885 $162,830  $64,200

: Of the total non-accruat loans at December 31, 2007, approximately $480.2 million of impaired homebuilder
toans were accounted for in accordance with SFAS 114, “Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan”
(“SFAS 1147™). As of December 31, 2006 and 2003, there were no impaired loans accounted for in accordance with
SFAS 114. For the year ended December 31, 2007, the average balance for the SFAS 114 impaired loans was
$127.1 million. The allowance for loan losses related to those SFAS 114 impaired loans was $95.0 million at
December 31, 2007. For the year ended December 31, 2007, no interest income was recognized on the SFAS 114
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impaired loans once they were deemed impaired. There were no significant non-accrual loans accounted for under
SFAS 114 at December 31, 2006 and 2005,

Troubled debt restructurings, where management has granted a concession to a borrower expetiencing
financial difficulty, were approximately $33.1 million as of December 31, 2007. We have no significant com-
mitments to lend additional funds to borrowers with restructured loans. There were no significant troubled debt
restructuring loans at December 31, 2006 and 2005.

Allowance for Loan Losses

For the loans held for investment porifolio, an allowance for loan losses is established and allocated to various
loan types for segment reporting purposes. The determination of the level of the allowance for loan losses and,
correspondingly, the provision for loan losses, is based on delinquency trends, prior loan loss experience, and
management’s judgment and assumptions regarding various matters, including general economic conditions and
loan portfolio composition. Management continuously evaluates these assumptions and various relevant factors
impacting credit quality and inherent losses. A component of the overall allowance for toan losses is not specifically
allocated (“unallocated component™). The unallocated component reflects management’s assessment of various
factors that create inherent imprecision in the methods used to determine the specific portfolio allocations, Those
factors include, but are not limited to, levels of and trends in delinquencies and impatred loans, charge-offs and
recoveries, volume and terms of the loans, effects of any changes in risk selection and underwriting standards, other
changes in lending policies, procedures, and practices, and national and local economic trends and conditions. As of
December 31, 2007, the unallocated component of the total allowance for loan losses was $72.5 million, compared
to $17.2 million at December 31, 2006.

In the fourth quarter of 2007, we transferred mortgage loans with a net investment amount of $10.9 billion from
HFES to HFI. We recorded a reduction to the net investment in the amount of $0.6 billion resulting in a net increase in
HF1 loans of $10.3 billion. A portion of the valuation reduction in net investment represents credit losses we
estimated in determining the market value of loans. This amount, which totals $474 million, represents a “reserve”
for future realized credit losses. If our estimate of inherent credit losses in the transferred pool increases, we may
record a provision for loan losses which will increase the allowance for loan losses.

The following summatizes our loans HFI portfolio by division and the corresponding allowance for loan losses
as of the dates indicated (dollars in thousands):

December 31
2007 06 2005 2004 2003
ALL as a% ALL asa% ALL as a% ALL as 2% ALL as a%
of Recorded of Recorded of Recorded of Recorded of Recorded
By Division ALL Value ALL Value ALL ' Value ALL Value ALL Value
SFR mortgage loans '

HFI(1) . e $i31,345 12% $21,540 03% §$17.848 0.3% $15575 04% $15774 0.3%
Consumer construction . ... 32317 14% 11,179 05% 11,775 06% 11474 07% 10,769 09%
Warchouse lending . ... ... 344 0.7% 298 0.1% 117 0.2% — N/A - N/A

Total on-going

businesses. . ........ 164,006 12% 33,617 04% 29,740 04% 27,049 0.5% 26,543 0.4%
Homebuilder . .. .. ...... 198,590 16.7% 20,448 1.8% 16,648 1.9% 15,748 24% 14838 2.5%
Home equity . . ......... 30,452 21% 2452 10.4% 2,443 7.7% 2,394 52% 4,263 0.6%
Other . ............... 5,087 17.6% 5,869 16.4% 6,337 13.7% 7,700 14.3% 7,001 10.1%

Total discontinued business

activities. . .. ....... 234,129 87% 28,769 24% 25428 27% 25,842 34% 26,102 1.9%
Total HFI portfolio . . ... .. $398,135 24% $62,386 0.6% $55,168 07% $52,891 0.8% $52,645 0.7%

(1) The recorded value as of December 31, 2007 includes basis adjusﬁnents of $581 million created upon the
transfer of $10.9 billion of loans from HFS to HFI in the fourth quarter of 2007.

For the homebuilder division, the allowance for loan losses increased to $198.6 million, or 16.7% of the
recorded value of its portfolio. We are monitoring this portfolio very closely due to rapidly changing conditions
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affecting both the underlying collateral values and the projected repayment sources in the current environment. The
allowance for loan losses increased substantially on the SFR mortgage ioans HFI division, homebuilder division,
and home equity division portfolios as well as higher realized delinquency rates and other current environmental
factors have resulted in our projecting higher future losses than were previously expected.

Summarized below are changes to the allowance for loan losses for the years indicated (dollars in thousands):
Year Ended December 31

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

Balance, beginning of year........... $ 62,38 $55168 $52,891 $52645 § 50,761
Allowance transferred to loans HFS . . .. (7,574) — — —_ —
Provision for loan losses . .. e 395,548 -19,993 9,978 8.170 19,700
Charge-offs; _

SFR mortgage loans HFI division. ...  (29,186) (6,003) (2,116) (1,810) (2,382)

Consumer construction division . . ... (19,835) (3,549) (2,422) (1,492) (1,621)

Homebuilder division............. — — — - (3,136)

Other(l) ...................... (7,138) (5,586) (4,979) (6,829  (12,242)
Total charge-ofts ... ... .. .......... (56,159)  (15,138) (9,517 (10,131  (19,381)
Recoveries:

SFR mortgage loans HFI division. . . . 1,200 470 639 336 233

Consumer constiuction division . . . . . 117 231 127 29 102

Other(1} ........ ..o vivon.. 2,617 1,662 1,050 1,842 1,230
Total recoveries. .. ....oo v v, 3,934 2,363 1,816 2,207 1,565
Total charge-offs, net of recoveries. . . .. (52,225 (12,775) (7,701) (7.924) (17,816)
Balance,end of year ............:.. $398,135 $62,386 $55168 §$ 52,891 § 52,645
Annualized charge-ofis to average loans

HFL. ... et 0.52% 0.14% 0.10% 0.11% 0.34%

(1) Includes loans from the warehouse lending, home equity and discontinued divisions.

In 2007, net charge-offs increased to $52.2 million from $12.8 million in 2006, primarily in the SFR mortgage
loans HFI division and the consumer construction division portfolios. This is consistent with the overall conditions
in both the mortgage and the housing markets that contributed to the overall increase in de]mquenmes and loans
migrating through the foreclosure process.

While we consider the allowance for loan losses to be adequate based on information currently available,
future adjustments to the allowance may be necessary due to changes in economic conditions, declines in real estate
values, delinquency levels, foreclosure rates, or loss rates. The level of allowance for loan losses is also subject to
review by the OTS. The OTS may require the allowance for loan losses be increased based on its evaluation of the
information available to it at the time of its examination of the Bank.

With respect to mortgage loans HFS, pursuant to the applicable accounting rules, we do not provide an
allowance for loan losses. Instead, a component for credit risk related to loans HFS is embedded in the market
valuation for these ioans. Given the changes in our production volume and quality, we expect this amount to be
significantly less in 2008 than in 2007.

Credit Discounts

Due to the disruption in the secondary mortgage market, our HES loans in 2007 decreased by $5.7 billion from
2006 primarily due to the $10.9 billion of cost basis in mortgage loans transferred from HFS to HFI in the fourth
quarter of 2007.
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The following summarizes our HFS portfolio, the corresponding market valuation reserves and non-per-
forming assets as of the dates indicated (dollars in thousands):

- December 31
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 !

Loans HFS before market .

valuation reserves....... $3,780,368  $9,507,307  $6,034,4290  $4,456,604 $2,587.,240
Market valuation reserves . . . (3,464) (39,464) {10,245) (11,032) (13,992)
Net loans HFS portfolio . ... $3,776,904  §9,467,843  $6,024,184  $4,445572  $2,573,248
Market valuation reserves as ' .

a % of gross loans HES .. 0.09% 0.42% 0.17% 0.25% 0.54%
Non-performing loans HFS

before market valuation

FESEIVES . . v ie e ens hy 8227 $ 78238 % 31,050 3% 65643 $ 52847
Market valuation reserves. . . (2,490) (23,891) (10,245) (11,032) (13,992)
Net non-performing loans’

HFS . ... ... ... .... 5737 % 54,347 0§ 20805 $ 54611 $ 38,855
Non-performing loans held

for sale as a % of net

loans HFS portfolio . . ... 0.15% 0.57% 0.35% 1.23% 1.51%

Secondary Market Reserve

We do not generally sell loans with recourse. However, we can be required to repurchase loans from investors
when our loan sales contain individual loans that-do not conform to the representations and warranties we made at
the time of sale (including early payment default provisions). We maintain a secondary market reserve for losses
that arise in connection with loans that we may be required to repurchase from whole loan saies, sales to the GSEs,
and securitizations. The reserve has two general components: reserves for repurchases arising from representation
and warranty claims and reserves for repurchases arising from early payment defaults.

The following reflects our loan sale and repuschase activities for.the years indicated (dollars in millions):
Year Ended December 31

. 2007 2006 2005
Loans sold: 4
GSEsand whole loans. .. ........... ... ... oo, $46,798  $47,878  $20,924
SeCUrtIZAtON IHUSIS .« o v ot et e e e e e e e e e e e 24,366 31,171 31,373
TOWL . oo oo et $71,164  $79,040  $52,297
Total repurchases(1). . ... ... oovunn.. . P, $ 613 § 194 $ 108
Repurchases as a percentage of total loans sold during the year. ... 0.86% 0.25% 0.21%

(1) Amounts exclude repurchases that are administrative in nature and penerally are re-sold immediately at liule or
no loss.
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The following reflects our activity in ‘the secondary market reserve for the years indicated (dollars in
thousands):

. Year Ended December 31 .
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

]
Balance, beginning of year . ... ...... $ 33932 $27638 $35610 $34000 § 37,636
Additions/provisions . . ... ... P 232_,536 37,333 19,551 22,922 26,706
Actual losses/mark-to-market .. ...... (88,022) (32,817)  (28,860) (24,843) (34,805)
Recoveries on previous claims ....... 1,346 1,778 . 1,337 3,531 4,463
Balance, end of year. . .......... ... $179,792 $33932 527638 $35610 3 34,000

Reserve levels are a function of expected losses based on actual pending and expected claims and repurchage
requests, historical experience, loan volume and loan sales distribution channels and the assessment of the
probability of investor claims. While the ultimate amount of repurchases and claims is uncertain, management
believes the reserve is adequate. The provision for the secondary market reserve increased to $232.5 million for the
year ended December 31, 2007 from $37.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2006. This increase s due to the
rise in representation and warranty demands and expected demands due to the deteriorating loan performance,
particularly in 80/20 products where we have observed increasing delinquency and repurchase demands. We had
charges to the secondary market reserve of $88.0 million in 2007, mainly for mark-to-market adjustments on loans
repurchased during the year, of which 80/20s and pay option ARMs accounted for over 80% of the adjustments. As
previously noted, we no longer originate 80/20s and pay option'ARMs. We will continue to evaluate the adequacy of
our reserve and allocate a portion of our gain on sale proceeds to the reserve going forward although we cannot
predict at this time the extent to which we will allocate such gain on sale to the reserve. This secondary market
reserve is included on the consolidated balance sheets as a component of “Other Liabilities™.

Credit Reserves Embedded in Non-Investment Grade and Residual Securities

As part of the securitization process, we create non-investment grade and residual securities which historically
could be.sold into the secondary market or retained on our balance sheet. These securities provide credit
enhancement to absorb the losses in the securitization trust. Worsening loan performance has necessitated an
increase in the amount of credit losses estimated in these securities. '

The following shows more information on our non-investment grade and residual securities for the years
indicated (dollars in millions):

Year Ended December 31

2007 2006 2005

Non-investment Grade and Residual Securities:

Fair market ValUG. . . ..o ottt et e e $ 272 % 331 § 225
As a percentage of Tier 1 (core} capital . ......... ... ... ... ... . ..., 14% 16% 14%
UPB of underlying collateral . ... ........oureurernereoneeaaneanss 22437 13361 7961
Credit reserves embedded invalue .. ... ... ... ot 1,262 477 266
Additions to credit reserves .. ... ... ... e 1,020 238 136
Net realized credit 10SSe8 . . . ... o ittt i e e 235 27 15
Credit reserves/non-performing assets . . . ......... ... .. ... i i 78% T7% 140%

MANAGEMENT

We manage key CAMELS risks through policies and procedures that begin with the Board, senior executives
and the ERM group, creating standardized frameworks and processes for the business units to implement. We strive
for accountability, transparency and consistency, including a semi-annual certification process that keeps business
units up to date on the administration of key CAMELS risks. Management maintains a central database of internally
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identified findings, and this, in conjunction with operational and financial controls, requires follow-up and
accountability for any issues identified in this process.

Models are used as key decision making tools in executing transactions, such as the pricing and trading of
loans, and in hedging risks. They are also used to assist us in valuing assets and liabilities that don’t have readily
available market prices. Given the importance of these models to our operations and financial position, it is the
responsibility of Corporate Model Management and Research (“CMMR”) to develop and maintain an effective
model management framework across the Company. CMMR determines that key models are consisient and
accurate (e.g., utilize the best available assumptions, particularly for prepayment and credit) across the enterprise
and result in the correct economic decisions being made and assets and liabilities being properly valued (both on a
GAAP and economic basis).

EARNINGS ’

Our regulators evaluate the quality and consistency of our earnings. See “Narrative Summary of Consolidated
Financial Results” and "Summary of Business Segment Results” for a discussion of our earnings for the years ended
December 31, 2007 and 2006.

LIQUIDITY

During 2007, the secondary market for MBS and asset-backed securities {“ABS") experienced significant
disruption resulting in a further decline in overail market liquidity. In response to these disruptions, we further
increased our emphasis of its_funding strategy to deposits and borrowings from the Federal Home Loan Bank
(“FHLB™). As a result of this effort, we were able to increase our dcpos:ts and advances from FHLB by $6.9 billion
and $0.8 billion, respectively, during the year.

QOur principal financing needs are to fund acquisitions of mortgage loans and our investment in mortgage loans,
MBS and MSRs. Our primary sources of funds used to meet these financing needs are loan sales and securitizations,
deposits, advances from the FHLB, borrowings, custodial balances and retained earnings. The sources used vary
depending on such factors as rates paid, collateral requirements, maturities and the impact on our capital.
Additionally, we may occasionally securitize mortgage loans that we intend to hold for investment to lower
our costs of borrowing against such assets and reduce the capital requirement associated with such assets.

At December 31, 2007, we had total liquidity of $6.3 billion consisting of $0.5 billion in short-term liquidity
(primarily cash), and $4.8 billicn in operating liquidity, which represents unpledged liquid assets on hand plus
amounts that may be immediately raised through the pledging of other available assets as collateral pursuant to
committed financing facilities, and we also had access to $1.0 billion in financing at the Federal Reserve Discount
Window. We currently believe our liquidity level is sufficient to satisfy our operating requirements and meet our
obligations and commitments in a timely- and cost effective manner,
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The following presents the components of our major sources of funds as of the dates indicated (dollars in
thousands):

December 31

2007 2006
Deposits. . ..ot $17,815,243  $10,898,006
Advances from FHLB . ... ... ... ... . o 11,188,800 10,412,800
Other Borrowings:
Asset-backed commercial paper. . ... ..... .. ... .. oL — 2,115,839
Loans and securities sold under agreements to repurchase . . . .. — 1,407,199
HELOC notes payable . ........... .. ... ... ... ........ 212,747 659,283
Trust preferred debentures. ... . .......... ... ... .. .... 441,285 456,695
Othernotes payable . ......... ... ... ., iuiininin. .. = 1,009
Others(1) . . ... o (1,254) (3,025)
Total other borrowings . .............. e 652,778 4,637,000

$29.656,821  $25,947.806

(1) This represents unamortized portion of the facility issue cost and commitment fee.

Principal Sources of Cash

Loan Sales and Securitizations

Our business model has relied heavily upon selling the majority of our mortgage loans shortly after acquisition.
The proceeds of these sales are a critical component of our liquidity. Due to the disruption of the MBS and ABS
secondary markets, loan sales and securitizations were adversely impacted, resulting in lower than normal volume.
Thus, we significantly changed our production model and transitioned to become a GSE lender. During the year
ended December 31, 2007, we sold $71.2 billion of mortgage loans, which represented approximately 92% of our
funded mortgage loans during the year, to third-party investors through three channels: (1) GSEs; (2) private label
securitizations; and (3) whole loan sales, Our prime SFR mortgage loans HFI portfolio also acquired $10.9 billion
of loans for our portfolio of HFI mortgage loans from our HFS portfolio due primarily to our inability to sell these
loans in the secondary market. These ioans will also provide future interest income. The remainder of our funded
mortgage loans during the vear is retained in our HFS portfolio for future sale.

Our business model has been negatively impacted as our sales channels continue 1o be disrupted. As a result,
our earnings were also adversely impacted. If these disruptions continue, or there are other economic events or
factors beyond our control, our earnings could continue to be negatively impacted.

Deposits/Retail Bank

We solicit deposits from the general public and institutions by offering a variety of accounts and rates through
our network of 33 branches (up from 29 branches as of December 31, 2006) in Southern California and our
telebanking, Internet, and Money Desk and Institutional channels. Through our web site at www.imb.com,
consumers can access their accounts 24-hours a day, seven days a week. Online banking allows customers to
access their accounts, view balances, transfer funds between accounts, view transactions, download account
information, and pay their bills conveniently from any computer terminal. Total deposits increased to $17.8 billion
at December 31, 2007, up from $10.9 billion at December 31, 2006. We estimate that in excess of 95% of our total
deposits are fully insured by the FDIC.

Advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank

The FHLB system functions as a borrowing source for regulated financial depositories and similar institutions
engaged in residential housing finance. As a member of the FHLB of San Francisco, we are required to own capital
stock of the FHLB and are authorized to apply for advances from the FHLB, on a secured basis, in amounts

57




- determined by reference to available collateral. SFR mortgage loans, agency and AAA-rated MBS are the principal
collateral that may be used to secure these borrowings, although certain other types of loans and other assets may
also be accepted pursuant to FHLB policies and statutory requirements. The FHLB offers several credit programs,
each with its own fixed or floating interest rate, and a range of maturities.

Currently, Indymac Bank is approved for collateralized advances from FHLB of up to $16.7 billion. At
December 31, 2007, advances from the FHLB totaled $11.2 billion, of which $7.2 billion were collateralized by
mortgage loans and $4.0 billion were collateralized by MBS,

QOther Borrowings

Other borrowings, excluding the subordinated debentures underlying the trust preferred securities, consist of
asset-backed commercial paper (“ABCP”), loans and securities sold under committed financing facilities and
uncommitted agreements to repurchase, and notes payable. Total other borrowings decreased to $0.2 billion at
December 31, 2007, from $4.2 billion at December 3 1, 2006. Our repurchase agreement borrowings and extendible
asset-backed commercial paper remained unused as of December 31, 2007 as a result of our strategy to increase our
deposits and advances from the FHLB.

Our credit facilitics do not have default triggers tied to our credit rating. While a change in rating would
therefore not directly affect our current borrowing capacity in a material manner, it might affect our lenders’
decisions to renew credit facilities with us or it may change market perceptions and impact our trading and loan
sales activities.

Below are the corporate ratings assigned to IndyMac Bancorp and Indymac Bank at December 31, 2007 and
January 24, 2008:

Dominion Bond Fitch, TBCA,
Moody’s Standard & Poor’s Rating Service Duff & Phelps
2007 2008(1) 2007 2008 2007 2008(1) 2007 2008
IndyMac Bancorp:
Review for
Outlook ............ downgrade @ —  Negative Negative Negative —  Negative Negative
Long term issuer
credit ............ Ba2 — BB+ BB+ BBH — BBB— BB
Short term issuer
credit ............ N/A™ — B B R4 — F3 B
Indymac Bank:
Review for
Outlook ............ downgradle = —  Negative Negative Negative —  Negative Negative
Long term issuer
credit ............ Bal —  BBB- BBB-  BBBL — BBB- BB
Short term issuer
credit ............ NP — A3 A3 R3 — F3 B

{1) We terminated the rating relationship with Moody’s and Dominion, and they subsequently withdrew their
ratings at our request in January 2008.

The Enterprise Risk Management Committee, in its capacity as a committee of the Indymac Board of
Directors, is directly responsible for the oversight of the Company’s relationships with external credit rating
agencies. For fiscal year ended December 31, 2007, Indymac paid approximately $17.7 million in aggregate fees to
external credit rating agencies, of which $15.1 million was for services related to securitizations, with the balance
for services related to servicer ratings and other corporate rating related transactions.
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Direct Stock Purchase Plan

Our direct stock purchase plan offers investors the ability to purchase shares of our common stock directly over
the Internet. During the year ended December 31, 2007, we raised $145.6 million of capital by issuing
7,427,104 shares of common stock through this plan. '

SENSITIVITY TO MARKET RISK

A key area of risk for us is interest rate risk sensitivity. This is due to the impact that changes in interest rates
can have on the demand for mortgages, as well as the value of loans in our pipeline and assets on our balance sheet,
particutarly the valuation of our MSRs. To manage interest rate risk sensitivity we have a Centralized Interest Rate
Risk Group (“CIRRG™). CIRRG fosters an interest rate and market risk management culture throughout the
Company and exists to assist in protecting the Company from unexpected losses, earnings surprises and reputation
damage due to interest rate risk. It also provides management and the Board with a better understanding of the trade-
offs between risk and rewards, leading to smarter risk management and investment decisions, and more consistent
and generally higher long term returns on equity. We hedge our assets at the portfolio level to ensure accountability
and make certain that each portfolio can stand on its own.

To evaluate our ability to manage interest rate risk, there are a number of performance measures we track.
These include net interest margin for both the total Company as well as our segments, the fluctuation in net interest
income and expense and average balances, and the net portfolio value of our net assets.
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Net Interest Margin

The following presents information regarding our consolidated average balance sheets (all segments are
‘combined), along with the total dollar amounts of interest income and interest expense and the weighted-average
interest rates for the years indicated (dollars in thousands):

. Year Ended December 31
2007 2006 2005

Average . Yield!  Average Yield/  Average - Yield/
Balance - Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate
Assets . . \
Securities. .. .......,.. $ 5,753,699 $ 406,376 7.06% 3 4,658402 § 319,846 6.87% $ 3,652,102 § 208,560 5.71%
Loans held forsale ...... 14,063,412 964,886 7.07% 11,488,630 797,460 6.94% 7,746,762 430,857 5.56%
Mortgage loans held for
investment . ......... 7,039,623 460,898 6.55% 6,243,353 365,158 . 5.85% 5,282,342 256,427 4.85%
Builder construction loans . . 812,129 72,179 8.89% 735,841 76,006 10.33% 578,865 51,772 8.94%
Consumer construction .
lpans . ............. 2,237,413 179,706  8.03% 2,014213 144,574 7.18% 1,627281 97.656 6.00%
Investment in FHLB stock . .
andother ........... 1,325,850 73,662 5.56% 887.837 47972  5.40% 757,659 20083  3.84%
Total interest-carning
assets. , . ... ... 31,232,186 2,187,707 7.00% 26,028,276 1,751,016 6.73% 19,645,011 1,074,355 547%
' Mortgage servicing assets . . 2,201,169 1,436,725 786,622
Other ............... 2,535,667 1,843,873 846,260
Total assets . .. ....... $35,969,022 $29,308.874 $21,277,893
Liabilities and
Shareholders’ Equity
Interest-bearing deposits . . . $12,790,494 663,217 5.19% $ 8,663,777 408208 4.71% § 5938,147 195528 3.29%
Advances from Federal .
Home Loan Bank . . . ... 13,531,225 701,226 5.18% - 10,560,896 491300 4.65% 8.439903 281,929  3.34%
Other borowings. . . ... ., 4,393,049 256,522 5.84% 5,985,486 324,787 543% 4235298 172,187 4.07%
Total interest-bearing :
liabilities . . .. ...... 30,714,768 1,620,965 528% 25210,159 1,224,295 4.86% 18,613,348 649,644  3.49%
Other ............... 3,277,322 2,302,455 1,283,678
Total liabilides. . ... ... 33,992,090 27,512,614 19,897,026
Shareholders’ equity . . . . 1,976,932 ' 1,796,260 1,380,867
Total liabilities and
shareholders’ equity . . . $35,969,022 $29,308,874 $21,277,893
Net interest income . ... .. $ 566,742 $ 526,721 $ 424711
Net interest spread(l) . . . . . 1.72% 1.87% 1.98%
Net interest margin(2). . . . . 181% 2.02% 2.16%

(1) Netinterest spread calculaied as the yield on total average interest-earnings assets less the yield on total average
interest-bearing liabilities.

{2) Net interest margin calculated as annualized net interest income divided by total average interest-earning
assets,

Average balances are calculated on a daily basis. Non-performing loans are included in the average balances
for the years presented. The allowance for loan losses is excluded from the average loan balances and included in the
average other assets line. Minority interests and perpetual preferred stock in subsidiary are included in average other
liabilities.
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Interest income and interest expense fluctuations depend upon changes in the average balances and interest
rates of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities.

The following details the changes in interest income and expense by key attribute for the years indicated
(dollars in thousands): ’

. Increase/(Decrease) Due to
Volume(1) Rate{ 2) Mix(3) Total Change

Year Ended December 31, 2007 vs. 2006
Interest income: .
Mortgage-backed securities . .. ........... o $ 75203 $ 9171 3§ 2156 $ 86,530
Loans held forsale ........ ... .. ... .. ........ 178,723 15,279 3,424 197,426
Mortgage loans held for investment . . ... ........... 46,572 43,607 5,561 95,740
Builder construction loans . . .. ......... . e 7,880 (10,607) (1,100) (3,827)
Consumer construction loans . . ................... 16,025 17,201 1,906 35,132
Investment in Federal Home Loan Bank stock and
other . ... .. ... e 23,667 1,355 668 25,690
Total interest income . . .. .. ... ..., 348,070 76,006 12,615 436,691
Interest expense: '
Interest-bearing deposits . ........... ... ... P 194,437 41,029 19,543 255,009
Advances from Federal Home Loan Bank . .. .. .. L... 138,182 55995 15749 209,926
Other borrowings . ........ ... i (86,409) 24,722 (6,578) {68,265)
Total Interest eXpense. . ... ... vvve v eanrenn.. 246,210 121,746 28,714 396,670
Net interest income {(expense) . ................. ,'$101,860 $(45,740y  $(16,099) % 40,021
Year Ended December 31, 2006 vs. 2005
Interest income:
Mortgage-backed securities . .............. .. ... .. $ 57467 $ 42,193 §$ 11,626 $111,286
Loans held forsale .. ..... ... ... ... ... ... . ..... 208,114 106,869 51,620 366,603
Mortgage loans held for investment . .. ......... ceo., 46,651 52,524 9,556 108,731
Builder construction loans . . . . ................... 14,039 8,020 2,175 24 234
Consumer construction loans . . .. ................. 23,220 19,145 4,553 46,918
Investinent in Federal Home Loan Bank stock and
Oother .. . e - 4997 11,855 2,037 18,889
Total interest income . . . ............... e 354,488 240,606 81,567 676,661
Interest expense: . I
Interest-bearing deposits . ........... ... ... ... .. 89,748 84,257 38,675 212,680
Advances from Federal Home Loan Bank .. ......... 70,850 110,701 27,820 209,371
Other borrowings .............. PR TOUDI ‘_. .. 71,154 57,631 23,815 152,600
Total interest @XpPense. . .. ... v, 231,752 252,589 90,310 574,651
Net interest income (EXPENSE) ... vvvvvrenvnnrns $122,736  $(11,983) §$ (8,743) $102,0i0

{1) Changes in volume are calculated by taking changes in average balances multiplied by the prior year’s average
interest rate.

(2) Changes in the rate are calculated by taking changes in the average interest rate multiplied by the prior year’s
average balance.

{3) Changes in rate/volume (“mix”") are calculated by taking changes in rates times the changes in volume.
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Net Interest Margin by Segment

The following summarize net interest margin by segment for the years indicated (dollars in millions):

. Year Ended December 31
2007 2006 : 2005

Average Net Net Average Net Net Average Net Net
Earning Interest Interest Earning Interest Interest Earning Interest Interest
Assets Income Margin Assels Income Margin Assets Income Margin
By Segment:
Thrift segment and other . ... $15442  $334 2.16% $12,536  $265 2.11% $10,228  $232 2.27%
Mortgage banking segment . . 8,386 93 1.11% 6,292 81 1.28% 4,689 63 1.34%
Total on-going businesses, . 23,828 427 1.79% 18,828 346 1.83% 14,917 295 1.98%
Discontinued business
activities. . ... ....... 7,404 140 1.89% 7,200 181 2.52% 4,728 130 2.75%
Total Company . . . ...... $31,232 5567 1.81% $26.,028 $527 2.02% - $19,645 $425 2.16%

The consolidated net interest margin during 2007 was 1.81%, down from 2.02% for.2(506. Thrift net interest
margin of 2.16% for 2007 increased slightly from 2.11% for 2006.

Loans Held for Sale and Pipeline Hedging

We hedge the interest rate risk inherent in our pipeline of mortgage loans held for sale to protect our margin on -
sale of loans. We focus on trying to maintain stable profit margins with an emphasis on forecasting expected fallout
to more precisely estimate our required hedge coverage ratio and minimize hedge costs. By closely monitoring key
factors, such as product type, origination channels, progress or “status” of transactions, as well as changes in market
interest rates since we committed a rate to the borrower (“‘rate lock commitments™), we seek to quantify the optional
component of each rate lock, and in turn, the aggregate rate lock pipeline. By accurately evaluating these factors, we
can minimize the cost of hedging and also stabilize gain on sale margins over different rate environments.

We also attempt to hedge the type of spread widening caused by the secondary market disruptions started in the
first quarter of 2007. However, given the current uncertainties and resulting volatility in the secondary market, our
hedging activities may not be effective. When spread widening does occur, we increase our loan pricing to attain our
target MBR margins on future production.

In addition to mortgage loans held for sale, our hedging activities also include rate lock commitments. Rate
lock commitments on mortgage loans that are intended to be sold are considered to-be derivatives pursuant to
SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” (“SFAS 133"). The rate lock
commitments are initially valued at zero and continue to be adjusted for changes in value resulting from changes in
market interest rates, pursuant to SAB 105. Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 109, “Written Loan Commitments
Recorded at Fair Value Through Earnings” (“SAB 109”) supersedes SAB 105 and is effective prospectively for
Joan commitments issued or modified beginning January 1, 2008. Upon adoption of SAB 109, we will recognize
revenue at the inception of a rate lock commitment.

We economically hedge the risk of changes in fair value of rate lock commitments by selling forward contracts
on securities of Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac, Eurodollar futures and other hedge instruments as we deem appropriate
to prudently manage this risk. These forward and futures contracts are also accounted for as derivatives and
recorded at fair value.
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The following summarizes the effect that hedging for interest rate risk management had on our gross mortgage
banking revenue margin for the years indicated:

Year Ended December 31
2007 2006 % Change 2005 % Change
Gross MBR margin . ........................ 1.00% 1.50% (331)% 1.59% (3%
MBR margin after hedging(1).................. 0.99% 141% 30)% 1.70% (42)%

(1) Before credit costs and SFAS 91 deferred costs.

Hedging Interest Rate Risk On Servicing-Related Assets

We are exposed to interest rate risk with respect to the investment in servicing-related assets. The mortgage
servicing division is responsible for the management of interest rate and prepayment risks in the servicing-related
assets, subject to policies and procedures established by, and oversight from, our management-tevel Interest Rate
Risk Committee (“IRRC"), Asset and Liability Valuation Committee (“ALVC”) and ERM group, and our Board of
Directors-leve]l ERM Committee.

.

The objective of our hedging strategy is to maintain stable returns in all interest rate environments and not to
speculate on interest rates. As such, we manage the comprehensive interest rate risk of our servicing-related assets
using various financial instruments. Historically, we have hedged servicing-related assets using a variety of
derivative instruments and on-balance sheet securities. As there are no hedge instruments that would be perfectly
correlated with these hedged assets, we use a mix of the instruments designed to correlate well with the hedged
servicing assets.

In addition to the hedging gain (loss) on MSRs, we also use other hedging strategies to manage our economic
risks associated with MSRs.

A summary of the performance on MSRs, including AAA-rated and agency interest-only securities, and
hedges for the respective years follows (dollars in thousands):

Year Ended December 31

2007 2006 2005

Valuation adjustment due to market changes and external

benchmarking . ........ ... . it $156,327 $ 7,721  $(13.460)
Hedge losson MSRs . . .. ... o i 61,476 (32,353) 2,360
Hedge (loss) gain on AAA-rated and agency interest-only

SECUTII S . v v vt ittt e e e e e e 2,346 (8,678) 2,348
Unrealized gain on AAA-rated and agency interest-only

LTS 11 ] -3 (734) 3,136 (13,864) -
Unrealized (loss) gain on principal-only securities . .......... (1,852) 81D (704)
Unrealized (loss) gain on prepayment penalty securities . . . . ... (44,215) 23,625 21,694
Net (loss) gain on MSRs, AAA-rated and agency interest-only

securities, and hedges . ......... ... .. . v I $173,348 % (7.360) § (1,626)

The above gains and losses include costs inherent in transacting and holding the hedge instruments. If these
assets were perfectly hedged, a net loss would have been reported representing these costs. In 2007, hedges on the
servicing-related assets had a net gain of $61.5 million as they benefited from the decline in market interest rates.
Moreover, our MSRs experienced a decline in value less than expected from the decline in interest rates as a result of
slower prepayment rates currently and in the future.

Value-at-Risk

We use a value-at-risk (“VAR™) measure to monitor the interest rate risk on our assets. The measure
incorporates a range of market factors that can impact the value of these assets and supplements other risk
measures such as duration gap and stress testing. VAR estimates the potential loss over a specified period at-a
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specified confidence level. We have chosen a historical approach that uses 500 days of market conditions along with
current portfolio data to estimate the potential one-day loss at a 95% confidence level. This means that actual losses
are estimated to exceed the VAR measure about five times every 100 days.

In modeling the VAR, we have made a number of assumptions and approximations. As there is no standardized
methodology for estimating VAR, different assumptions and approximations ceuid result in materially different
VAR estimates.

As of December 31, 2007, the combined portfelio of MSRs and interest-only securities (the “MSR/1O
portfolio™) and the mortgage-backed securities portfolio were valued at $2.4 billion and $6.4 billion, respectively.
The average VAR (after the effect of hedging transactions) for the year on the MSR/IO portfolio was $3.4 million, or
14 basis points of the recorded value, and the average VAR (after the effect of hedging transactions) for the year on
the MBS portfolio was $1.3 million, or 2 basis points of the recorded value. During the year, the VAR measure
ranged from $1.3 million to $7.8 million and from $0.8 million to $2.6 million for the MSR/10 and MBS portfolios,
respectively.

Net Portfolio Value

In addition to our hedging activities to mitigate the interest rate risk in our pipeline of mortgage loans held for
sale, rate locks and our investment in servicing-reiated assets, we perform extensive, company-wide interest rate
risk management. A primary measurement tool used to evaluate interest rate risk over the comprehensive balance
sheet is net portfolio value (“NPV”") analysis. The NPV analysis and duration gap estimate the exposure of the fair
value of net assets attributable to changes in interest rates.

The following sets forth the NPV and change in NPV that we estimate might result from a 100 basis point
change in interest rates as of the dates indicated (dollars in thousands):

December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006
Effect of Change in Effect of Change in
Interest Rates Interest Rates
Decrease Increase Decrease Increase
Fair Value 100 bps 100 bps Fair Value 100 bps 100 bps
Cash and cash equivalents .. $ 561,567 $ 561,567 § 561,567 $ 541,545 3§ 541545 § 541,545
Trading securities . ....... 1,221,319 1,277,821 1,181,673 541,175 573,028 522,503
Available for sale

securities. . . ....... ... 5,892,727 6,011,674 5,725,050 4,183,629 4,272,980 4,064,097
Loans held for sale .. ..... 3,814,287 3,977,569 3,804,344 9,566,224 0,645,767 9,440,968
Loans held for investment. .. 15,655,523 15,944,607 15,351,165 10,191,350 10,266,772 10,081,430
MSRs................. 2,495,407 1,953,198 2,898,889 1,822,455 1,393,979 2,142,276
Other assets .. .......... 1,807,917 2,084,403 1,610,292 1,992,698 2,317,284 1,813,516
Total assets. . ........... $31,448,747  $31,810,839  $31,132,930 $28,839,076  $29,011,355  $28,606,335
Deposits . .. ............ $17,886,754  $17,933,343  $17,840,519  $11,045977 $11,076,458 311,015,812
Advances from Federal )

Home Loan Bank. ...... 11,355,215 11,559,467 11,153,554 10,409,767 10,565,054 10,256,128
Other borrowings. . . ...... {1,150) (1,150) (1,150) 3,464,250 31,466,577 3,462,006
Other liabilities . .. ....... 477,180 477,180 477,180 775,455 775,455 775,455
Total liabilitles ., ,....... $29,717,999 $29968,840 $29470,103  $25,695,489  $25,883,544  §25,509.401
Sharcholders’ equity

(NPV), ... . ... ... wm $ 1,841,999 § 1,662,877 § 3,143587 3 3,127,811 § 3,096,934
% Change from base case. . . 6.43% (3.92)% (0.50)% (1.48)%

Our NPV model has been built to focus on the Bank alone and excludes $226.7 million of assets held at
Indymac Bancorp and its non-bank subsidiaries.
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The decrease in the NPV of shareholders’ equity from December 31, 2006 to December 31, 2007 is primarily
due to net operating losses and declines in asset values relative to liabilities during the year. This NPV analysis is'
based on an instantaneous change in interest rates and does not reflect the impact of changes in hedging activities as
interest rates change nor changes in volumes and profits from our mortgage bankmg operations that would be
expected to result from the interest rate environment. -

_ In conjunction with the NPV analysis, we also estimate the net, sensitivity of the fair value of our financial
instruments 10 movements in interest rates using duration gap. This calculation is performed by estimating [he
change in dollar value due to an instantaneous parallel change in the interest rate curve. The resulting change i in’
dollar value pér one basis point change in interest rates is used to estimate the sensitivity of our portfolio. The dollar
values per one basis point change are then aggregated to estimate the portfolio’s net sensitivity. To calculate

duration gap, the net sensitivity is divided by the fair 'value of total interest-earning assets and expressed in months.’

A duration gap of zero implies that the change in value of assets from an instantaneous rate move will be

accompanied by an equal and offsetting move in the value of debt and derivatives, thus leaving the net fair value of |

equity unchanged. i

The assumptions inherent in our interest rate shock models include expected valuation changes in an
instantaneous and parallel interest rate shock and assumptions as to the degree of correlation between the hedges
and hedged assets and liabilities, These assumpnons may not adequately reflect factors such as the spread-widening
or spread- tlghtemng risk among the changes in rates on Treasury securities, the LIBOR/swap curve, mortgages,
changes in the shape of the yield curve and volatility. In addition, the sensitivity analysis described in the prior
paragraph is limited by the fact that it is performed at a particular point in time and does not incorporate other factors
that would impact our financial performance in these scenarios, such as increases in income associated with the
increase in production volume that could result from a decrease in interest rates. Consequently, the preceding
estimates should not be viewed as a forecast, and it is reasonable to expect that actual results could vary significantly
from the analyses discussed above. '

At December 31, 2007, net duration gap for our morigage banking and thrift segments was negative,

16.9 months and 0.8 months, respectively, with the overall net duration gap of negative 3.0 months. Fair value.

gains and losses will generally occur as market conditions change. We actively manage duration risk through asset.

selection by appropriate funding and hedging to within the risk limits approved by senior management and the
Board of Directors. The duration gap measures are estimated on a daily basis for the mortgage servicing rights,
mortgage backed securities, whole loan investment, and plpelme portfolios and on a monthly basis for the other
assets in our thrift portfollo ‘

EXPENSES

‘

Qur operating expenses for the year ended December 3] 2007 were $973.7 million, up 23% from $789 0 mil-
lion for the year ended December 31, 2006. '

The increase in expenses is primarily due to the increase in our salaries and related expenses by $80.7 miltion: -

This is due to the 20% growth of our average FTEs from 7,935 for the year ended December 31, 2006 to 9,518 for
the year ended December 31, 2007, which was primarily the result of the expansion of our retail lending group and
some necessary growth in loan servicing and default management-functions. We continued our investments in the
retail channel and commercial mortgage banking division, with the bulk of the increase coming from the April 1,
2007 acquisition of the retail lending platform of NYMC, including roughly 400 employees, and the hiring of over

1,400 retail lending professionals in the third quarter of 2007 primarily from American Home Mortgage. In

addition, we recorded $28 million severance-related charges in the third quarter of 2007 as a result of the reduction

of our workforce through both the voluntary resignation with severance program and targeted involuntary layoffs

for regular employees and reductions in our offshore and temporary workforce. These increases were offset
partially by the reduction of roughly 1,500 positions, or 15% of our non-retail lending workforce in 2007,

~ Another factor contributing to the increase in expenses were REO related expenses which significantly
increased by $42.2 million in 2007 as compared to 2006. The significant increase was driven by the further write-
downs on REOs resulting from the rapid decline in values. Also, our REQ related expenses increased due to higher
foreclosures resulting from worsened delinquencies in our portfolio.
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Refer to “Note 16 — Non-Interest Expense” in the accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
for a summary of expenses. : :

PROSPECTIVE TRENDS AND FUTURE OUTLOOK

We have a solid and a realistic plan that we believe will return Indymac to profitability in 2008. While
forecasting continues to be a challenge as the housing and mortgage market remain uncertain and volatile, we
believe that our new, more GSE-oriented mortgage production business will be profitable beginning in the second
quarter of 2008. While we are projecting a loss in the first quarter of 2008, which is driven by restructuring charges
from the workforce reduction we announced in January, we currently project a return to profitability in the second
quarter of 2008 and growth in profits in the subsequent quarters of the year.

We expect our return to profitability to be driven by reduced credit costs and operating expenses, conversion of
our production model and the continued strong performance of our mortgage servicing business. We believe we will
see significant improvement in credit costs in 2008, given the large reserves we established in 2007 and because the
new loans we are now originating are predominantly those eligible for sale to the GSEs, whereas the vast majority of
the loans causing the losses in 2007 are in loan types that have been cut from our guidelines. In addition, we are
rapidly making the transition from primarily an Alt-A lender to being a GSE lender, and we are seeing our mortgage
production volumes stabilize. Also, we expect the reduction in our workforce announced in January 2008 and other
efficiency measures to provide us with substantial annual savings and be essential in our drive to returning Indymac
to profitability. '

This “Prospective Trends and Future Outlook” section contains certain forward-looking statements. See
“part | — Forward-Looking Statements” for a description of factors which may cause our actual results to
differ from those anticipated.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

In the ordinary course of our business, we engage in financial transactions that are not recorded on our balance
sheet. These transactions are structured to manage our interest rate, credit or liquidity risks, to diversify. funding
sources or {0 optimize our capital usage.

Subst'antially all of our off-balance sheet arrangements related to the securitization of mortgage loans. Our
mortgage loan securitizations are normally structured as sales in accordance with SFAS 140, which involves the
transfer of the mortgage loans to “qualifying special-purpose entities” that are not subject to consolidation. In a
securitization, an entity transferring the assets is able to convert those assets into cash. Special-purpose entities used
in such securitizations obtain cash to acquire the assets by issuing securities to investors. We also, generally, have
the right to repurchase mortgage loans from the special-purpose entities if the remaining outstanding balance of the
mortgage loans falls 10 a level where the cost of servicing the loans exceeds the revenues we eam.

In connection with our loan sales that are securitization transactions, there are $74.8 billion in loans owned by
off-balance sheet trusts as of December 31, 2007. The trusts have issued bonds secured by these loans. We have no
obligation to provide funding support to either the third-party investors or the off-balance sheet trusts. Generally,
neither the third-party investors nor the trusts have recourse to our assets or us, and they have no ability to require us
to repurchase their loans other than for non-credit-related recourse that can arise under standard representations and _
warranties. We maintain secondary market reserves mostly for losses that could arise in connection with loans that
we are required to repurchase from GSEs, whole loan sales and securitizations. For information on the sales
proceeds and cash flows from our securitizations for 2007, see “Consolidated Risk Management Discussion —
CAMELS Framework for Risk Management — Liquidity — Principal Sources of Cash — Loan Sales and
Securitizations.”

We usually retain certain interests, which may include subordinated classes of securities, MSRs, AAA-rated
and agency interest-only securities, prepayment penalty and residual securities in the securitization trust. The
performance of the loans in the trusts will impact our ability to realize the current estimated fair value of these assets
that are included on our balance sheet. For more information on MSRs and other retained assets, see “Summary of
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Business Segment Results — Mortgage Banking Segment — Mortgage Servicing Division™ and “Summary of
Business Segment Results — Thrift Segment — Mortgage-Backed Securities Division.”

Management docs not believe that any of its off-balance sheet arrangements have or are reasonably likely to
have a current or future material effect on our financial condition, changes in financial condition, revenues or
expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital resources.

AGGREGATE CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

The following summarizes our material contractual obligations as of December 31, 2007 (dollars in
thousands): .

Payment Due(4)
January 1, January 1, January 1,

2008 2009 2011 .
through through through After
Note December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
Reference 2008 2010 2012 2012 Total
Deposits Without a Stated Maturity . . . 9 $ 2,488,855 § — % - % — §$ 24883855
Custodial Accounts and Certificates of

Deposits . .. ................. 9 15,085,947 189,649 50,665 127 15,326,388
FHLB Advances . ............... 10 3,584,000 4,236,000 2,594,800 774,000 11,188,800
HELOC Notes(1) .............., 11 = — — 212,747 212,747
Trust Preferred Debentures. . .. ... .. 11 — — — 414,285 414,285
Accrued Interest Payable . ......... — 238,458 — — — 238,458
Deferred Compensation . .. ........ — 41,100 3,343 3,674 4,936 53,053
Operating Leases(2) ............. 20 51,536 85,052 57,255 71,564 265,437
Employment Agreements(3}........ — 8,431 14,072 6,716 — 29,219
Purchase Obligations . . . .......... — 6,841 8,652 1,495 — 16,988
Total ............ P $21,505,168 $4,536,768 $2,714,605 $1,477,689 $30,234,230

(1) HELOC notes are non-recourse and secured by AAA-rated HELOC certificates.
(2) Total lease commitments are net of sublease rental income, ' i

{3) With the exception of our Chief Executive Officer, the amounts represent compensation for ten senior
executives and include both base salary and estimated bonuses, calculated based on the terms in their respective
written employment agreements. According to our Chief Executive Officer’s employment agreement, his
bonus is contingent upon our future financial performance and cannot be reasonably estimated for future years.

‘As a result, only his base salary and his actual 2007 bonus to be paid in 2008 are included above.
i

(4) The payment amounts represent those amounts contractually due to the recipient and do not include any
unamortized premiums or discounts, hedge basis adjustments, or other similar carrying value adjustments.

The following schedule presents significant commitments at December 31, 2007 (dollars in thousands):
Payment Due

Undisbursed loan commitments:

Reverse Mmorgages . ... ... ... i e $ 349,208 |
Builder construction . ......... .. e 465,688
Consumer COnStMUICHON . .. ...ttt et i et e it e e 1,148,188
HELOCS . . . e e e e 1,573,522
Revolving warchouse lending. . . ... ... ... ... . ... ... ... i 379,037
Stand-By Letters of credit. . . ... ... ... ... .. . ... ... e 4,308




At December 31, 2007, there were:no loan pilrchase commitments under our ciean-up call rights. See
“Note 20 — Commitments and Contingencies” in the accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements for
further details of our clean-up call rights.

In connection with standard representations and warranties on loan sales and securitizations, we are occa-
sionally required to repurchase loans or make certain payments to settle claims based on breaches of these
representations and warranties. In 2007, our active mortgage banking operations have sold $71.2 billion in loans and
repurchased $613 million loans, or 0.86% of total {oans sold. To provide for probable losses related to loans sold, we
established a reserve based on estimated losses on actual pending and expected claims and repurchase requests,
historical experience, loan sales volume and loan sale distribution channels and the assessment of the probability of
vendor or investor claims, which is included in “Other liabilities” on the consolidated balance sheets. The balance in
this reserve totaled $179.8 million at December 31, 2007. For further information, see “Consolidated Risk
Management Discussion — CAMELS Framework for Risk Management — Asset Quality — Secondary Market
Reserve.” ' ’

L)

RISK FACTORS THAT M‘AY AFFECT FUTURE RESULTS

RISKS RELATED TO OUR BUSINESS GENERALLY
The continuation of current market conditions could adversely impact our business.

Our business is affected, directly and indirectly, by domestic and international economic and political
conditions and by governmental monetary and fiscal policies. Conditions such as inflation, recession, real estate
values, unemployment, volatile interest rates, government monetary policy, and other factors beyond our control
may adversely affect our results of operations. Adverse economic conditions could result in an increase in loan
delinquencies, foreclosures and nonperforming assets and a decrease in the value of property or other collateral
which secures our loans, all of which could adversely affect our results of operations.

In 2007, a significant disruption in global credit and housing markets throughout the United States culminated
in an industry-wide increase in borrowers unable 1o make their mortgage payments and increased delinquency and
foreclosure rates. Lenders in certain sections of the housing and mortgage markets were forced to close or limit their
operations. In response, financial institutions, including Indymac, have tightened their underwriting standards,
limiting the availability of sources of credit and liquidity to consumers. Any continued economic slowdown or
recession may be accompanied by a further decreased demand for consumer credit, decreased real estate values, and
increased rates of delinquencies, defaults and foreclosures. In addition, mortgage loans we originaie during an
economic slowdown may not be as valuable to us because potential purchasers of our mortgage loans might reduce
the premiums they pay for the mortgage loans to compensate for any increased risk arising during such periods. Any
sustained increase in delinquencies, defaults or foreclosures is likely to significantly harm the pricing of our future
morigage loan sales and also our ability to finance our mortgage loan originations. If these negati\"e market

- conditions become more widespread or continue for a prolonged period of time, our earnings and capital could be

negatively impacted.

1

Current and anticipated deterioration in the housing market and the home!guilding i'ndustry may lead to
increased loss severities and further worsening of delinquencies and non-performing assets in our loan
portfolios. Consequently, our results of operations may be adversely impacted.

Recently, the housing and the residential morigage markets have experienced a variety of difficulties and
changed economic conditions. If market conditions continue to deteriorate beyond what is anticipated in our loss
models, they may lead to additional losses in our loan portfolio and real estate owned as we continue to reassess the
market value of our loan portfolio, the loss severities of loans in default, and the net realizable value of real estate
owned. T

The homebuilding industry has experienced a significant and sustained decline in demand for new homes and
an oversupply of new and existing homes available for sale in various markets, including the ones in which we lend
through our homebuilder division. Our builders/borrowers face a greater difficulty in selling their homes in markets
where these trends are more pronounced. We do not anticipate that the housing market will improve in the near-
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term. Accordingly, additional downgrades, provisions for loan losses and charge-offs relating to this loan portfolio
may occur.

The current dislocations in the morigage market, and the current weakness in the broader financial
markets, could adversely affect us.

From 2004-2006, the mortgage market was characterized by increased competition for loans and customers
which simultaneously lowered profit margins on loans and caused lenders to be more aggressive in making loans to
relatively less qualified customers. By the end of 2006, the sustained pricing competition and higher risk portfolios
of loans reduced the appetite for loans among whole loan buyers, who offered increasingly lower prices for loans,
thereby shrinking profit margins. In addition, the higher levels of credit risk taken on by lenders resulted in higher
rates of delinquency in the loans held for investment and in increasing frequency of early payment defaults and
repurchase demands on loans that had been sold. These trends accelerated during 2007, and the industry
experienced a period of turmoil which has continued into 2008. At the end of 2007, more than 225 mortgage
companies operating in the mortgage industry failed and many others faced serious operating and financial
challenges.

Also, as a result of conditions within the mortgage industry, rating agencies, financial guarantee insurers and
investors have recently begun and may continue in the future, to require additional credit enhancements to support
the mortgage loans sold into the secondary market. This requirement generally has the effect of reducing our
earnings and increasing the overall expense of selling mortgage loans into the secondary market,

We may be required to raise capital at terms that are materially adverse to our shareholders.

We suffered a loss in excess of $600 million during 2007 and as a result, saw our shareholders’ equity and
regulatory capital decline in the second half of the year. While we currently have regulatory capital ratios in excess
of the “well capitalized” requirement and have implemented a plan to reduce our balance sheet and increase our
capital ratios, there can be no assurance that we will not suffer material losses or that our plans to reduce the balance
sheet will succeed. In those circumstances, we may be required to seek additional regulatory capital to maintain our
capital ratios at the “well capitalized” level. Such capital raising could be at terms that are very dilutive to existing
shareholders and there can be no assurance that any capital raising we undertake would be successful given the
current level of disruption in financial markets.

We expect to sell a significant portion of our loan production to GSEs and actions by the GSEs could impact
our results.

Given the disruption in U.S. housing and mortgage markets, the ability to sell mortgages in the private label
securitization market is virtually non existent at December 31, 2007. As a result, we have changed our loan
production so that a significant majority of our production will be salable to the GSEs. While the GSEs remain
active purchasers of loans, they have limited certain types of loans and imposed higher fees on production. There
can be no assurance that actions by the GSEs will not have a materially adverse impact on our results and ability to
originate loans.

A sustained reduction of our mortgage origination volume could harm us financially.

The volume of mortgage loans we originate has declined substantially in recent periods. This is a result of
decreased demand for mortgage loans by investors, which is primarily the result of increased delinquencies and
early payment defaults. Additionally, demand among borrowers for mortgage products has decreased significantly
in recent months as the real estate market has experienced significant turmoil. Any sustained period of reduced
origination volume is likely to significantly harm our business.

Changes in interest rates may adversely affect our business, including net interest income and earnings.

Changes in interest rates, including changes in the relationship between shon-term rates and long-term rates,
may have negative effects on our net interest income and, therefore, our earnings. Changes in interest rates may
affect our mortgage banking business in complex and significant ways. For example, changes in interest rates can
affect gain on sale on mortgage loans and loan servicing fees, which are the principal components of revenue from
sales and servicing of home mortgage loans. When mortgage rates decling, the fair value of MSR assets generally
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declines and gain from mortgage loans tends to increase, to the extent we are able to sell or securitize mortgage
loans in the secondary market. When mortgage rates rise, we generally expect toan volumes and payoffs in our
servicing portfolio to decrease. As a result, the fair value of our MSR asset generally increases and gain from
mortgage loans decreases. In recent periads, however, declines in general interest rates have not resulted in an
increase in prepayment rates, due in part to the reduced liquidity in the mortgage markets making refinancing by
borrowers more difficult. '

Economic downturns or disasters in our principal lending markets, including California, New York,
Florida, Washington and New Jersey, could adversely impact our earnings.

A majority of our loans are geographically concentrated in certain states, including California, New York,
Florida, Washington and New Jersey, with 38% of our loans receivable balance at December 31, 2007 being in
California. Any adverse economic conditions in these markets, including a continued downturn in real estate values,
will likely cause the number of loans acquired to decrease resulting in a corresponding decline in revenues and an
increase in the overall credit risk in our loan portfolios. Also, we could be adversely affected by business disruptions
triggered by natural disasters or acts of war or terrorism in these geographic areas.

Actions undertaken by current and potential competitors could adversely impact our earnings and financial
position.

While the current disruptions in the housing and credit markets have reduced the number of competitors, we
still face significant competition for lending volume. Many of our competitors are larger and enjoy both financial
and customer awareness advantages over us. In addition, the reduction in salability of many mortgages has caused
us to temporarily discontinue certain lending products that many of our competitors are able to originate.

While we believe that our current plans and strategies will allow us to compete in the market, there can be no
assurance that we will succeed and as a result, our financial results could be materially worse than we expect.

We are subject to changing government laws and regulations, which could adversely affect our operations.

The banking industry, in general, is heavily regulated. As a savings and loan holding company, we are subject
to regulation by the OTS, and Indymac Bank is subject to regulation by the OTS and the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (“FDIC™). The economic and political environment influence regulatory policies, and as such, any or
all of our business activities are subject to change if and when our primary regulators change the policies and
regulations. Asa result of recent negative publicity surrounding the mortgage industry, politicians and regulators are
likely to impose additional laws, rules and regulations that could adversely affect our operations. Several pieces of
legislation are under consideration at both the federal and state levels that could affect the ways in which we make
loans, as well as the ways in which we are able to proceed against delinquent borrowers. Our business is subject to
the laws, rules and regulations of various federal and state government agencies. These laws, rules and regulations,
among other things, limit the interest rates, finance charges and other fees we may charge, require us to make
extensive disclosure and prohibit discrimination. We also are subject to inspection by the OTS and the FDIC, The
federal regulations also have been revising the risk-based capital rules, and the results of these revisions may affect
our lending business or our competitive position relative to large mortgage lenders.

Our business is also subject to laws, rules and regulations regarding the disclosure of non-public information
about our customers to non-affiliated third parties. Our operations on the Internet are not currently subject to direct
regulation by any government agency in the United States beyond OTS regulations and regulations applicable to
businesses generally. A number of legislative and regulatory proposals currently under consideration by federal,
state and local governmental organizations may lead to laws or regulations concerning various aspects of business
on the Internet, including: user privacy, taxation, content, access charges, liability for third-party activities, and
jurisdiction. The adoption of new laws or a change in the application of existing laws may decrease the use of the
Internet, increase our costs or otherwise adversely affect our business.

Regulatory and legal requirements are subject to change. If such requirements change and become more
restrictive, it would be more difficult and expensive for us to comply and could affect the way we conduct our
business, which could adversely impact our operations and earnings.
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Our financial condition and results of operaiions are reported in accordance with GAAP. While not impacting
economic results, future changes in accounting principles issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board
could impact our earnings as reported under GAAP. As a public company, we are also subject to the corporate;
governance standards set forth in the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, as well as applicable rules and regulations
promulgated by the SEC and the New York Stock Exchange. Complying with these standards, rules and regulations
may impose administrative costs and burdens on us.

Additionally, political conditions could impact our earnings. Acts or threats of war or'terrorism, as well as
actions taken by the U.S. or other governments in response to such acts or threats, could impact business and
economic conditions in which we operate.

Qur business is highly dependent upon technalogy for execution of our business model.

Our business performance is highly dependent on solidly executing our mortgage banking business model. We
must properly price and continue to expand our products, customer base and market share. In addition, the executmn'

of our hedging activities is critical as we have significant exposure to changes in interest rates.
4

We are highly dependent on the use of technology in all areas of our business and we must take advantage of
advances in technology to stay competitive. There are no guarantees as to our degree of success in anticipating and
taking advantage of technological advances or that we will be more successful in the use of technology than our
competitors.

Our business process outsourcing and information technology outsourcing activities in India may be
adversely impacted by instability in the Indian business environment caused by political factors or data security
breaches involving outsourcing firms.

Through the Global Resources program, we utilize an off-shore workforce in India predominantly in non-
customer-facing back office functions to enhance service levels and improve efficiencies. Political instability,
increasing labor disputes and public uprisings may cause disruptions to the general business environment in India.
We do not believe these issues should materially impact our outsourcing activities. However, if political and social
unrest in India dramatically worsens, our outsourcing activities may be adversely impacted.

Additionally, there have been reported incidences of alleged security breaches and loss of customer datlé
involving the outsourcing industry in India. While we have not been affected by any such security breaches and we
believe our overall information security framework is very solid, we cannot guarantee that ail potential security
risks abroad have been eliminated.

We may be affected by the further right-sizing of our workforce.

During 2007, we reduced our workferce by roughly 1,600 staff through a successful voluntary resignation
program, targeted layoffs and eliminations of various outsourced and temporary personnel. In January 2008,
Indymac announced further reductions of roughly 2,400 staff. These reductions have been spread throughout the
Company’s global workforce. We anticipate additional staff reductions of 500 to 1,000 in the first half of 2008. We
believe rightsizing of our workforce is not unusual due to the unprecedented disruption of the mortgage market.
- However, should this rightsizing hinder our ability to retain or attract talented employees, it may have a negative
effect on our business and operating results.

RISKS RELATED TO OUR INTEREST RATE HEDGING STRATEGIES

Certain hedging strategies that we use to manage our assets and liabilities may be ineffective to mitigate the
impact of interest rate changes,

We utilize various hedging strategies to mitigate the interest rate risk and prepayment risk inherent in many of
our assets, including our mortgage pipeline, our portfolio of interest-only securities, our mortgage servicing rlghts
portfolio, and other financial instruments m which we invest.

Due to the characteristics of our ﬁnanCIal assets and liabilities and the nature of our business activities, our
liquidity, financial position, and results of operations may be materially affected by changes in interest rates in
various ways. The objective of our hedging strategies is 10 mitigate the impact of interest rate changes, on an
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economic and accounting basis, on net interest income and the fair value of our balance sheet. The overall
effectiveness of these hedging strategies is subject to market conditions, the quality of our execution, the accuracy
of our asset valuation assumptions and other sources of interest rate risk discussed further below.

Certain hedging strategies that we use to manage our mortgage pipeline may be ineffective to mitigate the
risk of overall changes in fair value of loans held for sale and interest rate lock commitments. :

The mortgage pipeline consists of our commitments to purchase mortgage loans, or interest rate focks, and
funded mortgage loans that will be sold in the secondary market. The risk associated with the mortgage pipeline is
that interest rates will fluctuate between the time we comrmnit to purchase a toan at a pre-determined price, or the
customer locks in the interest rate on a loan, and the time we sell or commit to sell the mortgage loan. These
commitments are managed net of the anticipated loan funding probability, or fallout factor. Generally speaking, if
interest rates increase, the value of an unhedged mortgage pipeline decreases, and gain on sale ma'rgins are
adversely impacted. Typically, we hedge the risk of overall changés in fair value of loans held for sale by either
entering into forward loan sale agreements, selling forward Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac MBS or using other
derivative instruments to hedge loan commitments and to create fair value hedges against the funded loan portfolios.
If the hedging strategies we use to mitigate interest rate risk in our mortgage pipeline are ineffective,-our gain on sale
margins may be compressed and our earnings may be adversely impacted.

Certain hedging strategies that we use to manage our investment in Mortgage Servicing Rights and other
retained assets may be ineffective to mitigate the risk of changes in the fair value of these assets due to changes in
interest rates. ' )

We invest in MSRs and other retained assets to support our mortgage banking strategies and to deploy capital at
acceptable returns. The value of these assets and the income they provide tend to be counter-cyclical to the changes
in production volumes and gain on sale of loans that result from changes in interest rates. We also enter into
derivatives and other mortgage-related securities to hedge our MSRs and other retained assets to offset losses in fair
value resulting from increased prepayments in declining interest rate environments. The primary risk associated
with MSRs and other retained assets are that they will lose a substantial portion of their value as a result of higher
than anticipated prepayments occasioned by declining interest rates. Conversely, these assets generally increase in
value in a rising rate environment. Qur hedging strategies are highly susceptible to prepayment risk, basis risk,

- market volatility and changes in the shape of the yield curve among other factors. In addition, our hedging strategies
rely on assumptions and projections regarding our assets and general market factors. If these assumptions and
projections prove 1o be incorrect or our hedging strategies do not adequately mitigate the impact of changes in
interest rates or prepayment speeds, we may incur losses that could adversely impact our earnings.

Certain hedging and asset/liability management strategies that we use to manage our other financial
instruments may be ineffective to mitigate the risk of interest rate fluctuations.

Certain other financial instruments that we invest in tend to decrease in value as interest rates increase and tend
to increase in value as interest rates decline. These include fixed rate mortgage loans held for investment, fixed rate
investment grade and non-investment grade mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities. To a lesser extent,
adjustable mortgage loans held for investment and mortgage securities supported by adjustable rate mortgage loans
may change in value as interest rates change, if the timing or absolute level of interest rate adjustments on the
underlying loans do not correspond to applicable changes in market interest rates. We invest in these assets to carn
stable spread income. Such assets are subject to interest rate risk because actval future ¢ash flows may vary from
expected cash flows primarily due to borrower prepayment behavior.

We use hedging and asset/liability maﬁagemeni strategies to mitigate the impact that changes in interest rates
will have on these financial instruments. These strategies require us to make certain assumptions and use estimates
that may prove (o be incorrect and make these strategies ineffective to mitigate the interest rate risk embedded in
these financial instruments. If these strategies are ineffective our net interest income and earnings may be adversely
impacted. .
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There can be no assurance that our interest rate risk strategies or their implementation will be successful in
any particular interest rate environment.

We seek to mitigate our interest rate risks through the various strategies described above. However, there can
be no assurance that these strategies (including assumptions concerning the correlation thought to exist between
different types of instruments) or their implementation will be successful in any particular interest rate environment,
as market volatility cannot be predicted. '

The following are the primary sources of risk that we must manage in our hedging strategies:

Basis Risk. In connection with our interest rate risk management, basis risk is most prevalent in our hedging
activities, in that the change in value of hedges may not equal or completely offset the change in value of the
financial asset or liability being hedged. While we choose hedges we believe will correlate effectively with the
hedged asset or liability under a variety of market conditions, there are no assurances that the hedges we choose will
be perfectly correlated with the assets or liabilities we attempt to hedge. Further, we make assumptions in our
financial models as to how LIBOR/swap, treasury, agency and private-label mortgage rates, and other hedges that
we might use will change in relation to one another. From time to time, in certain interest rate environments, the
relative movement of these different interest rates and the corresponding change in value of the applicable hedge
instruments do not change in accordance with our assumptions, which may result in an imperfect correlation
between the values of the hedges and the hedged assets making our hedges ineffective in mitigating basis risk which
may result in our earnings being adversely impacted.

Options Risk.  An option provides the holder the right, but not the obligation, to buy, sell, or in some manner
alter the cash flows of an instrument or financial contract. Options may be stand-alone instruments, such as
exchange-traded options and over-the-counter contracts, or they may be embedded within standard instrurments.
Instruments with embedded options include bonds and notes with call or put provisions, loans that give borrowers
the right to prepay balances, and adjustable rate loans with interest rate caps or floors that limit the amount by which
the rate may adjust. Loans that give borrowers the right to prepay balances present the most significant option risk
that we must manage. There are no assurances that the hedges that we select for any type of option will effectively
offset the interest rate risks.

Repricing Risk. Repricing risks arise from the timing difference in the maturity and/or repricing of assets,
liabilities and off-balance sheet positions. While such repricing mismatches are fundamental to our business, they
can expose us to fluctuations in income and economic value as interest rates vary. We monitor and manage repricing
risk by calculating and menitoring the duration gap on our individual positions and in the aggregate, and
maintaining certain risk tolerances. In certain circumstances, however, this internal risk management process
may not eliminate repricing risk. If we inadequately manage our repricing risk through our hedging strategies, our
operations and earnings may be adversely impacted.

Yield Curve Risk. The value of certain loans, securities and hedges we hold is based on a number of factors,
including the shape or slope of the appropriate yield curve, as the market values of financial assets and hedge
instruments are based on expectations for interest rates in the future. Yield curves typically reflect the market’s
expectations for future interest rates. In valuing our assets and related hedge instruments, in formulating our
hedging strategies and in evaluating the interest rate sensitivity for risk management purposes, our models use
market yield curves, which are constantly changing. If the shape or slope of the market yield curves changes
unexpectedly, the market values of our assets and related hedges may be negatively impacted and/or changes in the
value of the hedges may not be effectively correlated with the changes in the value of the hedged assets or liabilities.

RISKS RELATED TO OUR VALUATION OF ASSETS

We use estimates in determining the fair value of certain assets, such as Mortgage Servicing Rights, AAA-

rated and agency interest-only securities, non-investment grade securities, and residual securities. If our
estimates prove to be incorrect, we may be required to write down the value of these assets which could
adversely impact our earnings.

We hold assets that we retain in connection with the sale or securitization of mortgage loans, including MSRs,
AAA-rated and agency interest-only securities, prepayment penalty securities, non-investment grade securities and
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residuals. We use third party vendor financial models to value each of the asset types referred to above. These
models are complex and use asset specific collateral data and market inputs for interest rates. In addition, the
modeling requirements of MSRs and residual securities are significantly more complex than those of AAA-rated
and agency interest-only securities because of the high number of variables that drive cash flows associated with
MSRs and the complex cash flow structures, which may differ on each securitization, that determine the value of
residual securities. There are no assurances that we can properly manage the increased complexity of our models
and valuations to ensure, among other things, that the models are properly calibrated, the assumptions are
reasonable, the mathematical relationships used in the model are predictive and remain so over time, and the data
and structure of the assets and hedges being modeled are properly input.

Even if the general accuracy of the valuation modet is validated, valuations are highly dependent upon the
reasonableness of our assumptions and the predictability of the relationships which drive the results of the model.
Such assumptions are complex as we must make judgments about the effect of matters that are inherently uncertain.
As the number of variables and assumptions affecting the possible future resolution of the uncertainties increases,
those judgments become even more complex. If loans in our investment portfolio, or loans underlying certain assets
in our investment portfolio prepay faster than estimated or loan loss levels are higher than anticipated, we may be
required to write down the value of certain assets which could adversely impact our earnings.

Our valuation assumptions regarding securities acquired from third party issuers may be incorrect, which
could adversely impact our earnings.

From time to time, we may acquire securities from third party issuers. We value these securities with complex
financial models that incorporate significant assumptions and judgments, which could vary significantly as market
conditions change. If our assumptions with respect to these types of assets are incorrect, we may be required to write
down the value of some or all of these assets which could adversely impact our earnings.

RISKS RELATED TO OUR ASSUMPTION OF CREDIT RISK

The rate of loan losses we incur may exceed the level of our loss reserves, which could adversely impact our
earnings.

We establish reserves for various credit risk exposures. These reserves are often based on estimates of borrower
behavior and the value of underlying collateral. Both our business units and corporate oversight groups review the
adequacy of these reserves and the underlying estimates on a periodic basis and we make adjustments to the reserves
when required. There is no assurance that our actual losses will not exceed our estimates and adversely impact our
earnings.

We hold in our portfolio a significant number of builder construction loans, which may pose more credit risk
than other types of mortgage loans typically made by savings institutions.

We ceased offering residential construction loans for builders and developers. Builder construction loans are
considered more risky than other types of residential mortgage loans. Due to the disruptions in credit and housing
markets, many of the builders we lend to experienced a dramatic decline in sales of new homes from their projects.
As a result of this unprecedenied market disruption, a significant portion of our builder construction portfolio is
expected to become non-performing as builders are unable to sell homes in volumes large enough for orderly
repayment of loans. '

While we believe we have established adequate reserves on our financial statements to cover the credit risk of
our builder construction loan portfolio, there can be no assurance that losses will not exceed our reserves, which
could adversely impact our earnings. Given the current environment we expect that the non-performing loans in our
builder construction portfolio will increase substantially and these non-performing loans could result in a material
level of charge-offs that will gegatively impact our earnings, liquidity and capital. Our failure to adequately address
the related risks could have an adverse effect on our business and results of operations.
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Qur risk management policies and practices may not adequately manage our exposure to credit risk in our
business operations.

We have assumed a degree of credit risk in connection with our investments in certain mortgage securities and
loans held for investment and sale, as well as in connection with our construction lending operations and our
mortgage banking activities. We have established risk management and credit polices to manage our exposure to
credit losses in each of these business operations. We have also established a central credit risk management group
to monitor the credit quality of our balance sheet and preduction. We cannot be sure, however, that the risk
management polices and practices in place will provide adequate oversight of our credit risk.

Our earnings could be adversely impacted if the assumptions underlying our risk-based pricing models
prove to be incorrect.

Our morigage loan underwriting process, including our e-MITS underwriting and pricing system, depends
heavily on risk-based pricing models. Our risk-based pricing modets, including the risk-based pricing models
utilized in e-MITS, are based primarily on standard industry loan loss data supplemented by our historical loan loss
data and proprietary logic developed by-us. Because the models cannot predict the effect of financial market and
other economic performance factors, there are no assurances that our risk-based pricing models are a complete and
accurate reflection of the risks associated with our loan products which may reduce the quality of our loan portfolio
and could adversely impact our earnings.

We are exposed to credit risk related to counterparties in many of our businesses. If these counterparties are
unable to perform according to the terms of our contract, our earnings may be adversely impacted.

In connection with our trading and hedging activities, we do business only with counterparties that we believe
are established and sufficiently capitalized. In addition, with respect to hedging activities on the pipeline of
mortgage loans held for sale, we enter into “master netting” agreements with the Fixed Income Clearing
Corporation, an independent clearinghouse. This entity collects and pays daily margin deposits to reduce the
risk associated with counterparty credit quality. We do not engage in any foreign currency trading. All interest rate
hedge contracts are with entities (including their subsidiaries) that are approved by a committee of our Board of
Directors and that generally must have a long term credit rating of “A” or better (by one or more nationally
recognized statistical rating organization) at the time the relevant contract is consummated.

Our earnings could be adversely impacted by incidences of fraud and compliance failures that are not
within our direct control.

We are subject to fraud and compliance risk in connection with the purchase or origination of mortgage loans.
Fraud risk includes the risk of intentional misstatement of information in property appraisals or other underwriting
documentation provided to us by third parties. This risk is typically higher in the acquisition of a loan from a third-
party seller. Compliance risk is the risk that loans are not originated in compliance with applicable laws and
regulations, and to our standards. There can be no assurance that we can prevent or detect acts of fraud or violations
of law or our compliance standards by third parties that we deal with. Frequent incidences of fraud or violations of
law or our compliance standards may require us to repurchase loans that we have originated and sold at a more
frequent rate than we have anticipated and could have an adverse impact on our earnings.

We are exposed to credit risk from the sale of mortgage loans.

We retain limited credit exposure from the sale of mortgage loans. We make standard representations and
warranties to the transferee in connection with all such dispositions. These representations and warranties do not
assure against credit risk associated with the transferred loans, but if individual mortgage loans are found not to have,
fully complied with the associated representations and warranties we have made to a transferee, we may be required
to repurchase the loans from the transferee or we may make payments in lieu of curing such breaches of these
representations and warranties. Given the significant delinquencies in higher CLTV/LTV products, we expect that
claims for repurchases pursuant to contractual representation and warranties will increase. While we have
established reserves for what we consider as probable and reasonably estimable losses, there can be no assurance
that losses will not ultimately exceed our reserves and materially impact future results.
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Our management of the credit risk associated with non-investment grade MBS and residual securities
depend upon estimates and assumptions that may not be accurate.

We assume a certain degree of credit risk in connection with investments in non-investment grade MBS and
residual securities that we occastonally acquire from third-party issuers or retain from our own securitizations. Non-
investment grade securities (rated below BBB) may or may not represent the second loss position, depending on the
rating, but are typically subject to a disproportionate amount of the credit risk. Residuals represent the first loss
position and are not typically rated by a nationally recognized rating agency. In general, non-investment grade
securities bear losses prior to the more senior investment grade securities, and therefore bear a disproportionate
amount of the credit risk with respect to the underlying collateral.

Non-investment grade securities represent leveraged credit risk as they absorb a disproportionate share of
credit risk as compared to investment grade securities. These securities are recorded net of discount that is based
upon, among other things, the estimated credit losses, expected prepayments, as estimated by internal loss models
and/or perceived by the rarket, and the coupons, associated with these securities. The adequacy of this discount is
dependent upon how accurate our estimate is of both the amount and timing of the cash flows paid to the non-
investment grade securities, which is primarily based upon our estimate of the amount and timing of credit losses
and prepayments on the underlying loan collateral.

Residual securities possess a greater degree of risk because they are relatively illiquid, represent the first loss
position and require a higher reliance on financial models in determining their fair value. Realization of this fair
value is dependent upon the accuracy of our estimate of both the amount and timing of the cash flows paid to the
residual securities, which are based primarily on our estimate of the amount and timing of credit losses on the
underlying loan collateral and to a lesser extent prepayment rates on the underlying loan collateral.

If we do not adequately estimate the credit losses, prepayments and the amount and timing of cash flows
associated with non-investment grade and residual securities that we hold, our earnings and cash flows may be
adversely impacted. ’

RISKS RELATED TO OUR LIQUIDITY

If current market conditions persist, our ability to increase liguidity, including through the sale of mortgage
loans in the secondary market or otherwise, could be limited, which could adversely affect our earnings.

Our liquidity may be affected by an inability to access the capital markets, which may anse due to
circumstances beyond our control, such as general market disruption. During 2007, and continuing into 2008,
there has been significant volatility in the mortgage market, including non-conforming residential mortgages. Since
the second quarter of 2007, liquidity in the secondary market for nonconforming residential mortgages and
securities backed by such loans has diminished significantly. While these market conditions persist, our ability to
increase liquidity through the sale of mortgage loans in the secondary market will be adversely affected. We cannot
predict with any degree of certainty how long these market conditions may continue or whether liquidity for
nonconforming residential mortgages will improve. .

Our ability to borrow funds and raise capital could be limited, which could adversely affect our earnings.

We have significant sources of liquidity as a result of our federal thrift structure. During 2007, we paid off all of
our borrowings under reverse repurchase facilities and asset backed commercial paper facilities as market
conditions made the cost and availability of funds from these facilitics more onerous. We significantly increased
our deposits and as of December 31, 2007, our only significant borrowings were from the FHLB, deposits and long
term liabilities. As a thrift, we also have access to significant liquidity from the Federal Reserve Discount Window,
although we have not utilized that facility. In order to further reduce our risk and strengthen our liquidity, we focus
our deposit gathering on deposits that are fully insured by the FDIC. We estimate that approximately 95% of all
deposits are fully insured. While our sources of liquidity are strong and have been stable throughout this current
market disruption, there can be no assurance that actions by the FHLB or the Federal Reserve would not reduce our
borrowing capacity or that we would be unable to attract deposits at competitive rates. Such events could have a
material adverse impact on our results of operations and financial condition.
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Additionally, we are required to maintain adequate capital by the OTS. There is no guarantee that we will be
able to adequately access capital markets when or if a need for additional capita! artses which could limit our ability
to increase the assets on our balance sheet and adversely impact our earnings.

The accumulation of MSRs is a large component of our strategy. As of December 31, 2007, the capitalized
value of MSRs was $2.5 billion. OTS regulations effectively impose higher capital requirements on the amount of
MSRs that exceeds total Tier 1 capital. These higher capital requirements could result in lowered returns on our
retained assets and could limit our ability to retain servicing assets and even cause our capital levels to decline
significantly if the value of our MSRs grows. While management believes that compliance with the capital limits on
MSRs will not materially impact future results, no assurance can be given that our plans and strategies will be
successful.

Significant illiquidity, volatility and spread widening (i.e., an increase in credit risk premiums required by
investors between mortgage-backed securities and comparable duration Treasury securities) in the secondary
markets could have a material adverse impact on our mortgage production earnings and the earnings of the
Company overall.

We rely heavily on the secondary markets, having sold 25% of the loans we sold in the fourth quarter of 2007
and 34% of the loans we sold in the year ended December 31, 2007 in private label securitizations, and 0% and 18%
for the same periods, respectively, to whole loan investors. The secondary markets are currently experiencing
morigage spread widening and reduced liquidity, and this could continue or worsen in the future. One factor
contributing greatly to secondary market uncertainty at present is uncertainty with respect to potential actions to be
taken by the major agencies who rate mortgage-backed securities (Standard and Poor’s, Moody’s and Fitch). The
agencies have recently downgraded many securities, announced that others are under review and stated that they are
reviewing their models for determining subordination levels given mortgage industry credit deterioration, which
will likely result in increased subordination levels and, therefore, increased morigage credit costs for borrowers.

Spread widening can be severe and happen abruptly, as has happened recently. Indymac hedges the interest rate
risk inherent in our pipeline of mortgage loans held for sale and rate-locked loans in process to protect our MBR
margins. We attempt to hedge the type of spread widening caused by the secondary market disruptions we have
experienced in 2007. Severe and abrupt spread widening, as we have recently experienced, can have a material
adverse impact on our near-term earnings. Given the current uncertainties and resulting volatility in the secondary
market, the risk of further spread widening must be considered significant, and our hedging activities may not be
effective.

Illiquidity in the secondary market at present means that with respect to private label securitizations, there is

reduced investor demand for mortgage-backed securities. Hliquidity is also reducing demand from whole loan

investors. Under these conditions, we use our capital capacity and liquidity to hold increased levels of both

securities and loans. While our capital and liquidity positions are currently strong, our capacity to retain loans and

securities on our balance sheet is not unlimited. A prolonged period of secondary market illiquidity could result in -

us having to implement further mortgage guideline tightening, which would result in lower mortgage production
volumes. This could have a material adverse impact on our future earnings.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND JUDGMENTS

Several of the critical accounting policies important to the portrayal of our financial condition and results of
operations require management to make difficult and comptex judgments that rely on estimates about the effect of
matters that are inherently uncertain due to the impact of changing market conditions and/or consumer behavior, We
believe our most critical accounting policies relate to: (1) assets that are highly dependent on internal valuation
models and assumptions rather than market quotations, including MSRs and non-investment grade securities and
residuals; (2) derivatives and other hedging instruments; (3) allowance for loan losses (“ALL™); (4) loans held for
sale, including estimates of fair value, LOCOM valuation reserve and sale accounting treatment; and (5) secondary
markel reserve.

Management discusses these critical accounting policies and related judgments with Indymac’s Audit
Committe¢ and external auditors on a regular basis. We believe the judgments, estimates and assumptions used
in the preparation of our consclidated financial statements are appropriate given the factual circumstances at the
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time. However, given the sensitivity of our consolidated financial statements to these critical accounting policies,
the use of other judgments, estimates and assumptions could result in material differences in our results of
operations or financial condition. Our accounting policies are described in “Note | — Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies.”

FAIR VALUE INSTRUMENTS

With "the exception of the ALL, these items are generally created in connection with our loan sale and
securitization process. The allocated cost of the retained assets at the time of the sale is recorded as a component of
the net gain (loss) on sale of loans. Such retained assets were comprised of MSRs and to a much lesser degree, AAA-
rated agency and non-agency securities, AAA-rated and agency interest-only securities, AAA-rated principal-only
securities, prepayment penalty securities, late fee securities, investment grade and non-investment grade securities,
and residual securities...

Fair values for these assets are determined by using available market information, historical performance of the
assets underlying cotlateral and internal valuation models as appropriate. The reasonableness of fair values will vary
depending upon the availability of third party market information, which is a function of the market liquidity of the
asset being valued. In connection with our mortgage banking and investment portfolio operations, we invest in
assets created from the loan sale and securitization process, for which markets are relatively limited and illiquid. As
a result, the valuation of these assets is subject to our assumptions about future events rather than market quotations.
These assets generally include MSRs, AAA-rated and agency interest-only securities, non-investment grade
securities and residuals. ‘As the number of variables and assumptions used to estimate fair value increases and as the
time period increases over which the estimates are made, such estimates will likely change in a greater number of
periods, potentially adding volatility to our valuations and financial results, For further information regarding the
sensitivity of the fair value of these assets to changes in the underlying assumptions, refer 1o “Note 13 — Transfers
and Servicing of Financial Assets” in the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Company.

We use fair value hedge accounting for a portion of our loans held for sale. There is a risk that at times we might
not satisfy the requirements for fair value hedge accounting under SFAS 133, as amended, for a portion of our loans
held for sale because we do not meet the required complex hedge correlation tests. This could cause temporary
fluctuations in our reported income but not in the ultimate economic results. Any potential fluctuation in our
reported results if hedge accounting is not achieved would be over a very short period during 2007 and the economic
effect of both the hedges and loans would be recorded once the sale was completed. In addition, any imprecision in
valuation of these items would be adjusted and recorded in a short period through our gain (loss) on sale margin
once the sale of the loans was completed.

MORTGAGE SERVICING RIGHTS

MSRs are created on the sale of loans to GSEs, in private-label securitizations, and sometimes, from the sale of
whole loans. We also purchase MSRs from time to time from third parties: The carrying value of MSRs in our
financial statements represents our estimate of the present value of future cash flows to be received by us as servicer
of the loans. In general, future cash flows are estimated by projecting the service fee, plus late fees and reinvestment
income associated with interest earned on “float,” after subtracting guarantee fees on agency portfolios, the cost of
reimbursing investors for compensating interest associated with the early pay-off of loans, the market cost to service
the loans, the cost of mortgage insurance premiums (if applicable), and estimated prepayments.

MSRs are recorded at fair value with valuation changes, net of hedges, being reported in “Service fee income”
in the consolidated statements of operations. We use option adjusted spread (“OAS™) to determine the fair value of
MSRs and benchmark this value to a third party valuation model. The key assumptions include prepayment rates
and, 1o a lesser degree, reinvestment income and discount rates. Based on these assumptions, our model calculates
implied discount rates, which we compare to market discount rates and risk premiums to determine if our valuations
are reasonable.

78




In addition to considering actual prepayment trends, future prepayment rates are estimated based on the
following factors: -

1) Relative Coupon Rate. The interest rate the borrower is currently paying relative to current market rates
for that type of loan is the primary predictor of the borrower’s likelihood to prepay. We assume a borrower’s
propensity 1o prepay increases when the borrower’s loan rate exceeds the current market rates.

2) Seasoning. Based on prepayment curves and other studies performed by industry analysts of prepayment
activity over the life of a pool of loans, a pattern has been identified wheréby prepayments typically peak in years
one to three, consistent with borrower moving habits,

3) Seascnality. Seasonality refers to the time of the year that prepayments occur. All else being constant,
prepayments tend to be higher in summer months due to borrowers’ tendency to move outside of the school year and
lower in winter months due to the holiday season.

4) Burn Out. Burn out is associated with a pool of mortgage loans which has endured a variety of high
prepayment environments such that # may be assumed that the remaining borrowers are insensitive to any
subsequent decline in interest rates. Consequently, all else being equal, projected prepayment speeds for such a pool
of loans would be lower than a newly originated loan pool with comparable characteristics.

As cash flows must be estimated over the life'of the pool of mortgage loans underlying the MSRs, assumptions
must be made about the level of interest rates over that same time horizon, which is primarily three to five years. We
atilize a credit spread over the market LIBOR/interest rate swap forward curve to estimate the level of mortgage
interest rates over the life of the pool of loans. We believe a forward curve, as opposed to static or spot interest rates,
incorporates the markel perception about expected changes in interest rates and provides a more realistic estimate of -
lifetime interest rates and therefore prepayment rates. '

The discount rate represents the implicit yield a knowledgeable investor would require to purchase or own the
projected cash flows. Using an OAS model, embedded options and other cash flow uncertainties are quantified
across a large number of hypothetical interest rate environments. The OAS is essentially the credit spread over the
risk free rate after the option costs (e.g., hedge costs) are considered. Overall, we evaluate the reasonableness of the
discount rate based on the spread over the risk free rate {duration adjusted LIBOR securities) relative to other cash
flow sensitive investments with higher and lower risk profiles.

Reinvestment income represents the interest earned on custodial balances, often referred to as float. Custodial
balances are generated from the collection of borrower principal and interest and escrow balances which we
generally hold on deposit for a short period until the required monthly remittance of such funds to a trustee.
Reinvestment income is reduced by compensating interest, or “interest shortfall,” which we must pay to investors to
compensate for interest lost on the early payoff of loans pursuant to our servicing obligations. Our estimate of
reinvestment income is a function of float, which is derived from our estimate of prepayment speeds, and an
estimate of the interest rate we will earn by temporarily investing these balances. The reinvestment rate is typically
based on the Federal Funds rate, and we factor in the markei forward curve to derive a long-term estimate.

The valuation of MSRs includes numerous assumptions of varying lower sensitivities in addition to the
assumptions discussed above. For example, other assumptions include, but are not limited te, market cost to service
loans, prepayment penalties, delinquencies and the related late fees and escrow balances.

NON-INVESTMENT GRADE SECURITIES AND RESIDUALS
General

Non-investment grade securities and residuals are created upon the issuance of private-label securitizations.
Non-investment grade securities (rated below BBB) represent leveraged credit risk as they typically absorb a
disproportionate amount of credit losses before such losses affect senior or other investment grade securities.
Residuals represent the first loss position and are not typically rated by. the nationally recognized agencies. The
value of residuals represents the present value of future cash flows expected to be received by us from the excess
cash flows created in the securitization transaction. In general, future cash flows are estimated by taking the coupon
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rate of the loans underlying the transaction less the interest rate paid to the investors and contractually specified
servicing and trustee fees, and ecstimated prepayments and credit losses.

Cash flows are also dependent upon various restrictions and conditions specified in each transaction. For
example, residuals are not typically entitled to any cash flows unless over-collateralization has reached a certain
level. The over-collateralization represents the difference between the bond balance and the collateral underlying
the security. A sample over-collateralization structure may require 2% of the original collateral balance for
36 months. At month 37, it may require 4%, but on a declining balance basis. Due to prepayments, that 4%
requirement is generally less than the 2% required on the original balance. In addition, the transaction may include
an over-collateralization “trigger event,” the occurrence of which may require the over-collateralization to be
increased. An example of such a trigger event is delinquency rates or cumulative losses on the underlying collateral
that exceed stated levels. If over-collateralization targets were not met, the trustee would apply cash flows that
would otherwise flow to the residual security until such targets are met. A delay or reduction in the cash flows
received will result in a lower valuation of the residual.

We consider certain of our investment grade securities to be economic hedges of our non-investment grade
securities and residuals. We classify these investment grade securities as trading securities in order to reflect
changes in their fair values in our current results. Residuals are generally classified as trading securities so the
accounting for these securities will mirror the economic hedging activities. All other MBS, inciuding a portion of
our non-investment grade securities, are classified as available for sale. At least quarterly, we evaluate the carrying
value of non-investment grade securities and residuals in light of the actual performance of the underlying loans. If
fair value is less than amortized cost and the estimated undiscounted cash flows have decreased compared to the
prior period, the impairment is recorded through earnings. We classnfy our non-investment grade residuals as
trading and therefore record them at fair value, with changes in fair value being recorded through earnings. We usc a
third-party model, using the “cash-out” method to value these securities. This method reflects when we receive the
cash, which may-be later than when the trust receives the cash. The model takes into consideration the cash flow
structure specific to each transaction (such as over-collateralization requirements and trigger events). The key
valuation assumptions include credit losses, prepayment rates and, to a lesser degree, discount rates.

Loss Estimates

We use a proprietary loss estimation model to project credit losses. This model was developed utilizing our
actual loss experience for prime and subprime loans. The modeling logic has been reviewed by ERM. The expected
loan loss is a function of loan amount, conditional default probability and projected loss severity. Characteristics
that impact default probability vary depending on loan type and current delinqiléncy status, but generally include
the borrower’s credit score, loan-to-value ratio, loan amount, debt-to-income ratio, and loan purpose, among other
variables. Characteristics that impact loss severity includes unpaid principal ‘balance, loan-to-value, days to
liquidation and mortgage insurance status. The loss esnmauon modcl also includes conditional default curves,
which relate to the expected timing of the estimated loss. In our expenence default probabilities generally reach a
peak within two to three years of loan origination and become less likely after four to five years. While there can be
no assurance as to the accuracy of the model in predicting losses, we have “back tested” the model’s default
probability logic. The model is updated and recalibrated periodically based on our on-going actual loss experience.

Prepayment Speeds

We estimate prepayments on a collateral-specific basis and consider actual prepayment activity for the
collateral pool. We also consider the cuerent interest rate environment, the market forward curve projections and
prepayments estimated on similar collateral pools where we own MSRs. While higher prepayment speeds tend to be
closely correlated with a reduced credit environment, increasing prepayments may reduce the value of residual
securities since these securities represent excess spread on the underlying collateral. Therefore, higher prepay-
ments, in isolation, reduce the life of the residual and total cash flows resulting in a reduction in the fair value of the
residual.
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Discount Rates

We determine static discount rates based on a number of factors, including but not limited to the collateral type
and quality, structure of the transaction, market interest rates and our ability to generate an appropriate after tax
return on equity given the other valuation assumptions and resulting projected cash flows. We also review the
discount rates used by other investors for similar securities to evaluate the appropriateness of our assumptions. As
non-investment grade securities and residuals are our higher risk assets, and liquidity is generally the lowest for
these assets on a duration adjusted basis, the spread over the risk free rate is also the highest of all of our cash flow
sensitive assets. o

DERIVATIVES AND OTHER HEDGING INSTRUMENTS"

The accounting and reporting standards for derivative financial instruments are established in SFAS 133,
SFAS 133 requires that we recognize zll derivative instruments on the balance sheet at fair value. The accounting for
changes in fair value of these instruments depends on the intended use of the derivative and the associated
designation. If certain conditions are met, hedge accounting may be applied and the derivative instrument may be
specifically designated as a fair value‘hedge or a cash flow hedge. In designating hedges of certain funded mortgage
loans in our pipeline and our borrowings and advances as fair value hedges and cash flow hedges, respectively, we
are required by SFAS 133 to establish at the inception of the hedge the method we will use in assessing the
effectiveness of the hedging relationship, for hedge accounting qualification, and in measuring and recognizing
hedge ineffectiveness, for financial reporting purposes. In accordance with the requirements of SFAS 133, these
methods are consistent with our approach to managing risk. '

In complying with the requirements of SFAS 133, our management team has made certain judgments in
identifying derivative instruments, designating hedged risks, calculating hedge effectiveness, and measuring,
recognizing, and classifying changes in value. Critical judgments made with respect to our hedge designations
include: : v

* Hedge Effectiveness Testing Methodeology. SFAS 133 requires we identify and consistently follow a
methodology justifying our expectation that our hedges will continue to be highly effective at achieving
offsetting changes in value. In devising such a methodology, which is consistent with our risk management
policy, we have exercised judgment in identifying: (1) the scope and the types of historical data and
observations; (2) the mathematical formulas and quantitative steps to calculate hedge effectiveness; and
(3) the frequency and necessity of updates to our calculations and assumptions. As discussed in the footnotes
to our financial statements, we have designated certain forwards, futures, and interest rate swaps to hedge the
benchmark interest rate risk in our funded mortgage loan pipeline and borrowings exposures, respectively, as
SFAS 133 hedges. If the results of our hedge ‘effectivenéss tests determine that our hedges are not effective,
we do not adjust the basis of our pipeline mortgage loans, in the case of disqualified fair value hedges, or
defer derivative gains and losses in “Other comprehensive income” (“OCI™), in the case of disqualified cash
flow hedges, from the date our hedges were last effective to the date they are again compliant with SFAS 133.
Therefore, the ability to recognize hedge accounting basis adjustments and OCI deferrals may cause us to
report materially different results under.different conditions or using different assumptions.

* Hedge Ineffectiveness Measurement. Regardless of our method of proving hedge effectiveness, we are
required to recognize hedge ineffectiveness in earnings to the extent that exact offset is not achieved, as
defined by SFAS 133. As discussed in the footnotes to the financial statements, the estimated fair value
amounts of our financial instruments have been determined using available market information and
valuation methods we believe are appropriate under the circumstances. These estimates are inherently
subjective in nature and involve matters of significant uncertainty and judgment to interpret relevant market
and other data. The use of different market assumptions and/or estimation methods may have a material
effect on the estimated fair value amounts, and, therefore, on the recognition of basis ddjustments and OCI
deferrals for hedged mortgage loans and forecasted borrowing/advance cash flows, respectively, as well as
the hedge ineffectiveness recognized in the income statement for both hedge types.
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Some of our hedges, including certain elements of our pipeline which are required to be carried at fair value as
derivative instruments in accordance with SFAS 133, and other derivative instruments for which we do not
designate hedging relationships for accounting purposes, involve estimates of fair value where no direct exchange-
traded or indirect “proxy” market prices are immediately available. As noted above and in the footnotes to our
financial statements, we employ available market information and valuation methods we beheve are appropriate
under the c1rcumstances and, as applicable, within the range of industry practlce

Changes in either the mix of market information or the valuation methods used would change the fair values
carried on the balance sheet, the associated impact on the income statement, and the application and impacts of
SFAS 133 hedge accounting.

SAB 105 provides guidance regarding loan commitments accounted for as derivative instruments. As noted in
the footnotes to the financial statements, interest rate lock commitments are valued at zero at inception in
accordance with SAB 105. The rate locks are adjusted for changes in value resulting from changes in market interest
rates. SAB 109 supersedes SAB 105 and is effective prospectively for loan commitments’issued or modified
beginning January 1, 2008. Upon adoption of SAB 109, we will recognize revenue at the inception of a rate lock
commitment. . . ' )

Non-derivative contracts sometimes contain embedded terms meeting the definition of a derivative instrument
under SFAS 133. In certain circumstances, management has concluded such terms are appropnately excluded from
fair value accounting as they are clearly and closely related to the economic characteristics of the non-derivative
“host” contract, in accordance with SFAS 133. Under different facts and circumstances, should such embedded
terms not be considered clearly and closely related, recognition of such embedded derivatives on the balance sheet
at fair value would be required by SFAS 133,

ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

For the loans held for investment portfalio, an ALL is established and allocated to various loan types. The
determination of the level of the ALL and, correspondingly, the provision for loan losses, is based on delinquency
trends, prior loan loss experience, and management’s judgment and assumptions regarding various matters,
including general economic conditions and loan portfolio composition. Management continuously evaluates these
assumptions and various relevant factors impacting credit quality and inherent losses. We utilize several meth-
odologies to estimate the adequacy of our ALL and to ensure the allocation of the ALL to the various portfolios is
reasonable given current trends and economic outlook. In thls regard we segregate assets into homogeneous pools
of loans and heterogeneous loans. ! :

Homogeneous pools of; loans exhibit similar characterlsucs and, as such can be evaluated as pools of assets
through the assessment of default probabilities and correspondmg loss severities. Our homogeneous pools include
residential mortgage loans, consumer construction loans, HELOCs, closed-end seconds, manufactured home loans
and home improvement loans. The estimate of the ALL for homogeneous pools is based on recent product-specific
migration patterns and recent loss experience. :

Our builder construction loans generally carry higher balances and involve unique loan characteristics that
cannot be evaluated solely through the use of default rates, loss severities and’ trend analysis. To estimate an
appropriate level of ALL for our heterogeneous loans, we constantly screen the portfolios on an individual asset
basis to classify problem credits and to estimate potential loss exposure. In this estimation, we determine the level of
adversely classified assets (using the classification criteria described below) in a portfolio and the related loss
potential and extrapolate the weighting of those two factors across all assets in the portfolio.

Our asset classification methodology was designed in accordance with guidelines established by our super-
v1sory regulatory agencies as follows: . :

» Pass — Assets classified Pass are assets that are well protected by the net worth and paying capacrty of the
borrower or t‘)y the value of the asset or underlying collateral.

» Special Mention — Special Mention assets have potential weaknesses that require close attention, but have
not yet jeopardized the timely repayment of the asset in full. =~
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* Substandard — This is the first level of adverse classification. Assets in this category are inadequately
protected by the net worth and paying capacity of the borrower or by the value of the collateral. Substandard
assets are characterized by the distinct possibility some loss will occur if the deficiencies are not corrected.

* Doubtful — Assets in this category have the same weaknesses as a substandard asset, with the added
characteristic that based on current facts, conditions and values, liquidation of the asset in full is hlghly
improbable.

* Loss— Assets in the Loss category are considered uncollectible and of such little value that the continuance
as an asset, without establishment of a specific valvation allowance, is not warranted.

A component of the overall ALL is not specifically allocated (“unallocated component™). The unallocated
component reflects managemeat’s assessment of various factors that create inherent imprecision in the methods
used to determine the specific portfolio allocations. Those factors include, but are not limited 1o, levels of and trends
in delinquencies and impaired loans, charge-offs and recoveries, volume and terms of the loans, effects of any
changes in risk selection and underwriting standards, other changes in lending pohcles procedures, and practices,
and national and local economic trends and conditions.

Impaired loans include loans classified as non-accrual where it is probable we will be unable to collect the
scheduled payments of principal and interest according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. When a loan
is deemed impaired, the amount of specific allowance required is measured by a complete analysis of the most
probable source of repayment, including the present value of the loan’s expected future cash flows, the fair value of
the underlying collateral less costs of disposition, or the loan’s estimated market value. In these measurements, we
use assumptions and methodologies that are relevant to estimating the level of impaired and unsealized losses in the
portfolio. To the extent the data supporting such assumptions has limitations, our judgment and experience play a
key role in enhancing the ALL estimates.

We transferred mortgage loans HFS to HFI and recorded a reduction to the net investment, a portion of this
reduction represents credit Josses we estimated in determining the market value of loans. This amount represents a
“reserve” for future realized credit losses. If our estimate of inherent credit losses in the transferred pool increases,
we may record a provision for loan losses which will increase the ALL.

As the housing and mortgage markets deteriorated during 2007, we made adjustments to key assumptions used
to establish our loss reserves. Generally, we adjusted our assumptions as to frequency of mortgage loans moving to .
default and the expected severities of losses from sales of underlying REO properties. We also adjusted assumptions
on our builder construction portfolio to give consideration to the project and market specific condition for loans in
this portfolio that have or are expected to default.

LOANS HELD FOR SALE

Loans held for sale are carried at the lower of aggregate cost, net of purchase discounts or premiums, deferred
fees, deferred origination costs and effects of hedge accounting, or fair value. Historically, the fair value of loans
held for sale was determined using current secondary market prices for loans with similar coupons, maturities and
credit quality. Given recent market disruptions, these current secondary market prices generally relied on to value
conditions of the HFS loans were not available. As a result, the Company considered other factors, including:
1) quoted market prices for to be announced (“TBA”™) securities (for agency-eligible loans); 2) recent transaction
settlements or traded but unsettled transactions for similar assets; 3) recent third party market transactions for
similar assets; and 4) modeled valuations using assumptions the Company believes a reasonable market participant
would use in valuing similar assets (assumptions may include oss rates, prepayment rates, interest rates, volatilities,
mortgage spreads). At December 31, 2007, the majority of the Company’s loans HFS are GSE-¢ligible. As these
loans have reliable market price information, the fair value of these loans continues to be based on quoted market
prices of similar assets. For the non GSE-eligible loans, including loans transferred to HFI at the lower of cost or fair
value, the valuation of these loans requires more reliance on recent third party market transactions for sirnilar assets
and modeled valuations using assumptions the Company believes a reasonable market pammpant would use in
valuing similar assets.
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Since there was very limited available price discovery due to the collapse of the secondary market for non-GSE
morigages, the estimation of fair value in the second half of 2007 required significant management judgment.

While management believes its determination of fair values is reasonable in the circumstances, even smail
changes in the underlying assumptions, application of different valuation approaches or a different assessment of
the weight of evidence from the available sources of information could have resulted in significantly different
estimates.

Our recognition of gain or loss on the sale of loans is accounted for in accordance with SFAS 140. Typically, we
structure such transfers to meet the sale accounting criteria as set forth in SFAS 140 and record the commensurate
gain on sale. SFAS 140 requires a transfer of financial assets in which we surrender control over the assets be
accounted for as a sale to the extent that consideration, other than beneficial interest in the transferred assets, is
received in exchange. The carrying value of the assets sold is allocated between the assets sold and the retained
interest based on their relative fair values.

SFAS 140 'requires, for certain transactions completed after the initial adoption date, a “true sale” analysis of
the treatment of the transfer under state law as if we were a debtor under the bankruptcy code. A “true sale™ legal
analysis includes several legally relevant factors, such as the nature and level of recourse to the transferor and the
nature of retained servicing rights. The analytical conclusion as to a “true sale” is never absolute and unconditional,
but contains qualifications based on the inherent equitable powers of a bankruptcy court, as well as the unsettled
state of the common law. Once the legal isolation test has been met under SFAS 140, other factors concerning the
nature and extent of the transferor’s control over the transferred assets are taken into account in order to detefmine
whether derecognition of assets is warranted, including whether the special-purpose entity has complied with rules
concerning qualifying special-purpose entities.

SECONDARY MARKET RESERVE

As part of the normal course of business involving loans sold to the secondary market, we can be required to
repurchase loans or make payments to settle breaches of the standard rcpresehtationé and warranties made as part of
our loan sales or securitizations. We can be required to repurchase loans from investors when our loan sales contain
individual loans that do not conform to the representations and warranties we made at the time of sale (including
early payment default provisions). We maintain a secondary market reserve for losses that arise in connection with
loans that we may be required to repurchase from whole loan sales, sales to the GSEs, and securitizations. The
reserve has two general components: reserves for repurchases arising from representation and warranty claims and
reserves for repurchases arising from early payment defaults.

The reserve level is a function of expected losses based on actual pending claims and repurchase requests:
historical experience, loan volume and loan sales distribution channels, the assessment of probable vendor or
investor claims and even small changes in assumptions could result in a significantly higher or lower estimate. Qur
analysis includes an estimate of representation and warranty demands, expected demands due to deteriorating loan
performance and probable obligations related to disputes with investors and vendors with respect to contractual
obligations pertaining (o mortgage origination activity. An increase to this reserve is recorded as a reduction of the
“Gain (loss) on sale of loans” in our consolidated statements of operations and the corresponding reserve is recorded
in “Other liabilities” in our consclidated balance sheets. At the time we repurchase a loan, the estimated loss on the
loan is charged against this reserve and recorded as a reduction of the basis of the loan. The significant increase in
the secondary market reserve is due to our expectation of significantly higher volumes of repurchase demands and
increased loss severity from declining home prices.

SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS

Changing the assumptions used to estimate the fair value of AAA-rated and agency interest-only securities,
MSRs, principal-only securities, prepayment penalty securities, late fee securities, investment grade securities, non-
investment grade securities and residuals (“the retained assets”) could materially impact the amount recorded in our
balance sheet and. in our gain on sale of loans. Initially, the estimation of the fair value of the retained assets from
loan securitizations and sales impacts the financial statements of our mortgage-banking segment. Thereafter,

84




adjustments to fair value impact the retairied assets and servicing division’s financial statements. Provisions to the
secondary market reserves and adjustments to the ALL may impact any of our segments. Refer to “Note 13 —
Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets” in the consolidated financial statements of Indymac for further
information on the hypothetical effect on the fair value of our retained assets using various unfavorable variations of
the expected levels of certain key assumptions used in valuing these assets at December 31, 2007.

REGULATORY UPDATE

In December 2007, the OTS endorsed a private-sector initiative to help families avoid foreclosure and stay in
their homes. The American Securitization Forum (“ASF”), representing mortgage investors, and the HOPE NOW
alliance (“HOPE NOW™), whose members represent more than 80% of the subprime mortgage servicing market,
developed the details of the streamiined process for refinancing and modifying subprime adjustable-rate mortgages
The new process is intended as a bluepnm for standard mdustry practice.

The OTS endorsed private-sector initiative consists of the Strear_nlmed Foreclosure and Loss Avoidance
Framework (the “ASF Framework™), which was issued by the ASF during the same month. The ASF Framework
requires a borrower and its U.S. subprime residential mortgage variable loan to meet specific conditions to qualify
for a modification under which the qualifying borrower’s loan interest rate would be kept at the existing rate,
generally for five years following an upcoming reset period. The ASF Framework is focused on U.S. subprime first-
lien adjustable-rate residential mortgages that have an initial fixed interest rate period of 36 months or less, are
included in securitized pools, were originated between January 1, 2005 and July 31, 2007, and have an initial
interest rate reset date between January |, 2008 and July 31, 2010. Any loan modifications we make in accordance
with the ASF Framework will not have a material impact on our accounting for the mortgage loans.

Prior to the aforementioned endorsement in December 2007, the OTS, as well as other federal banking
agencies, issued a statement related to loss mitigation strategies for servicers of residential mortgages. This
statement, which is broader than the ASF Framework, provides guidance to servicers under the governing
securitization documents to take appropriate steps when an increased risk of default is identified, including,
proactively identifying borrowers at heightened risk of delinquency or default, such as those with interest rate
resets; contacting borrowers to assess their ability to pay; assessing whether there is reasonable basis to conclude
that default is “reasonably foreseeable”; and exploring where appropriate, a loss mitigation strategy that avoids
foreclosure or other actions that result in a loss of homeownership. Management believes the Company’s loss
mitigation activities comply with this OTS issued statement.

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS

Under OTS regulations, limitations have been imposed on all capital distributions, including cash dividends.
IndyMac Bancorp, as the holding company for the Bank, is substantially dependent upon dividends from the Bank
for cash used to pay dividends on common stock and other cash outflows. We are required to seek approval from the
OTS in order to pay dividends from the Bank to the Parent Company, There is no assurance that the Bank will be
able to pay such dividends in the future or that the OTS will continue to grant approvals. While the holding company
maintains cash balances at all times to manage its liquidity, a disruption in dividends from the Bank could cause the
holding company to reduce or eliminate the dividends paid on common stock.

For holders of the Bank’s Series A preferred stock and IndyMac Bancorp’s common stock, dividends we pay
will be treated as dividends for U.S. federal income tax purposes only to the extent paid out of our current or
accumulated “earnings and profits.” Any dividend that we pay at a time when we do not have any current or
accumulated earnings and profits will not be taxable as a dividend for U.S. federal income tax purposes, and instead
will be treated first as a return of capital, reducing a holder’s basis in its stock to the extent of such basis, and
thereafter as capital gain. Any dividends we pay that are not treated as dividends will not be eligible for the
dividends-received deduction or the reduced rates of taxation available for certain holders subject to U.S. federal
icome tax.
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APPENDIX A: ADDITIONAL QUANTITATIVE DISCLOSURES

We believe the information provided in the body of this Form 10-K provides a good overview of our business
and our results for 2007. However, we include the following for a more detailed analysis of our operations:
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TABLE 1. PRODUCT PROFITABILITY ANALYSIS

As part of our process of measuring results and holding managers responsible for specific targets, we evaluate
profitability at the product level in addition to our segment results. We currently have four product groups: standard
consumer home loans held for sale, specialty consumer home loans held for sale and/or investment, home loans and
related investments, and specialty commercial loans held for sale and/or investment.

As conditions in the U.S. mortgage market have deteriorated, we have discontinued certain products and are
reporting them in a separate category, “Discontinued Products”. Discontinued products include closed-end second
liens (“seconds™), HELOCs, subdivision loans and manufactured housing loans.

See the table below for details on the products included with;n each product group.

Standard Consumer Home
Loans Held for Sale .. ........

Specialty Consumer Home
Loans Held for Sale and/or
Investment. . ................

Home Loans and Related
Investments. . ...............

Includes first mortgage products originated for sale through the various
Indymac channels (excluding the servicing retention channel and consumer
construction division). These products include prime and subprime loans.

- Prime

First mortgage loans for sale that meet the underwriting guidelines of Fannie
Mae and Freddie Mac or that have prime credit characteristics but do not
meet the GSE underwriting guidelines.

Subprime

Includes first mortgage loans that are extended to borrowers with impaired
credit with one or more of the following characteristics: 1) FICO score of

less than 620; 2) late mortgage payment in the last 12 months; or 3) bank-

ruptcy in the last 2 years.

Includes specialty mortgage products originated through the various Indy-
mac channels and adjusted for intercompany activity. These products
include reverse mortgages and CTP/Lot.

Reverse Mortgages i .
Reverse mortgage loans extended to borrowers age 62 and older secured by
equity in a primary residence,

CTP/Lot .

CTP loans made to homeowners for the construction of new custom homes
which automatically convert to permnanent mortgage loans at the end of
construction; and lot loans. |

Includes all investment related activity including home loans held for
investment, variable cash flow instruments, mortgage-backed securities
and other related investments.

Retained Assets and Retention Activities

Mortgage banking, trading and hedging activity associated with the pur-
chase, management and sale of mortgage banking assets and variable cash
flow instruments retained in connection with the Company’s loan sales.
Activity also includes loans acquired through clean-up calls and originated

-through customer retention programs.
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Specialty Commercial Loans

Held for Sale and/or

Investment. .........

Discontinued Products

MBS
Trading and investment activity related to the purchase, management and
sale of investment grade and non-investment grade mortgage-backed

securities.

SFR Loans Held for Investment

.

Company-wide loan investment activity related to the purchase, manage-
ment and sale of single family residential mortgage loans held for
investment. - '

Includes the consolidated loan activity associated with loans that are made to
commercial customers such as commercial builders and mortgage brokers
and bankers for the purposes of either building residential homes or financ-
ing the purchase of these homes.

Single Spec

L.oans that are made to homebuilders to build individual custom homes for -
resale to consumers.

- Warehouse Lending

Warehouse lines of credit to mortgage brokers to finance their inventory of
loans prior to sale.

Commercial Real Estate Lending

L}

Permanent loans for multi-family and commercial properties.

Includes all fixed operating costs associated with production divisions and
servicing loans that are not allocated to the respective products for which
these services are provided. In addition, it includes all corporate fixed costs
that do not vary in the short term with changes in business activity. These
fixed costs include corporate administration, financial management, enter-
prise risk management, centralized information technology and other unal-

located fixed costs.

HEILOCs/Seconds

Home equity lines of credit and closed-end second lien mortgages.
Subdivision

Subdivision lending for commercial acquisition, development and construc-
tion loans to commercial builders.

. Other

Dealer originated manufactured housing and home improvement loans.
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The following summarizes the profitability for each of the four praduct groups and the discontinued products
group for the years indicated (dollars in thousands):

Standard Specialty Lr)[:l;.sle& Specialty Total
Consumer  Consumer Related  Commercial On-Going Discontinued  Total
Home Loaris Home Loans Investments Loans Treasury Overhead Products Products  Company
Year Ended December 31, 2007
Operating Results
Net interestincome . . . . ... ... . $ 156573 $ 82226 § 1628621 $ 16,646 $ 23597 5 16462 8 43135 S 167§ 566742
Provision for loan losses . . . ..., . — (35,856) (145,364) 4.699) — — (185,919) {209,629) {395,548)
Gain {loss) on sale of loans . . . . . . (233,739 177,324 48,899 (5.138) — (192) (12,846) (341514) | (354,360
Service fecincome . . ... ... ... — 38046 454,695 '3 — 2,263 495,007 24,246 519,283
Gain (loss) on securities . . . . ..., . — {1,629) (301,775) — — — {303,404} 136,309) @ ndy
Gain on sale and leasehack of .
buildig. . ... ..., ... .. ,— — — - - 23982 23982 - 23982
Other income . . ... ..., ..... 23.25.3 22,247 10,771 5018 1,26% 4,894 72452 10,756 83,208
Net revenue (expense) . . . ... . . {48913 © 282,358 229847 11,830 3,866 47409 526,397 (522.833) 3.564
Variable expenses . .. ... ... 274,90t 116,610 24,236 3817 — —_ 419,564 34,458 454,022
Severance charges . .. ... .. .. — - - — - 31,850 11,850 —_ 31,850
Deferral of expenses under
JSEASOT L L (189,542) (35,585} (10440 (1,127 — — (236,694) (22461) (259,155)
Fixedexpenses , . . .. ....... 243,211 82,369 90,677 13,411 12,190 277,843 719,701 28.993 748,694
Pre-tax earnings (loss) . . . . . . (377.483) 118,964 125,374 {4,271) {8324)  (262,284) (408,024) (563.823) (971,847 ~
Minority interests . . ... ... . 456 412 1,522 64 7,630 12,475 22,559 462 23,021
Net earnings (loss), .. ... . $ (30343 0§ TIA23 0§ T4 $ (2,666)  $(12699) 8171528 § (270978) 8 (343R30) § (614.308)
Performance Dats , .
Average interesi-¢aming mssets. . ., . $10,241,209 $ 3548742 $13,007.665 $478.210 $  —  $530109 $27.812995 83419491  §31,232186
Allocated capital . . ... ... ... . $ 474759 $ 172351 $ 801757 3 33843 3 —  §$160305 § 1648015 5 328917  § 1976932
Lozn production. . . . .. .. ..., . 59,529,001 9,617,560 4,156,353 543,931 - —  T3B46845 4,469,539 78,316,384
Loamssold. . . ............. 53,730,005 74171012 7,807,414 — — — 68954581 2,209,143 71,163,724
MBRmargin . ............. 0.09% iM% 0.63% N/A N/A N/A 0.24% (14.29% 0.2)%
ROE. ..., .0 (49)% 4% 9% M% NIA Nia {16)% (105% (31)%
Netinterest maygin . . . .. .. .. .. 1.53% 231% 1.25% 348% N/A N/A 1.57% 3.79% 1.81%
Efficiency ratio . ..., ........ 135Y% $L% B% 9% NiA NiA 111% (1% U4%
Year Ended December 31, 2006
Operating Results . f
Net interest income . . . . . ... ... § 126582 5 58214 § 168025 $ 16,795 ${3343) § 6992 5§ 373265 5 153456 § 526721
Provision for loan losses . . . ... .. — T (2906) (9.225) (597) - — (i2,728) (1.265) (19,993)
Gain (loss) on sale of loans . . . . . . 432,508 201,603 35,058 — — — 669,171 ’ (1117 668,054
Service feeincome . . ... ... ... - 21,141 72,227 — — 1,951 95319 5998 101,317
Gain {loss) on securities . . .. .., . — 659 313 — -_ - 37.990 (17.508) 20,482
Otherincome . . . .. ......... - 20,512 . 6920 511 617 3917 37,803 12,319 50122
Net revenue {expense) . . .. .. .. 559090 29225 310,336 21975 {2,666) 12,860 1,200,820 145,883 1,346,703
Variable expenses .. . ... ... . 233,344 Conem 11,994 2,694 — - 364,734 61,428 426,162
Deferral of expenses under . : . .
SFASOL . .......... ... (178,637 (40,760) 53712 (308) - - (225477) (40,769) (266.246)
Fixedexpenses . ... .. ...... 186,182 83,002 52818 6,817 8,529 269,174 606,522 24,769 631,291
Pre-tax earnings (boss) . . . . . . 318,201 140,281 251,296 12,772 (1L,195)  (256,314) 455,041 100,455 555,496
Net earnings {loss) . . . . ... § 193785 $ B9 § 15308 5 LI $(6818) S$(150812y § 281,752 % 61177 0§ 342929
Performance Data
Average interest-camning assets. . . . . $ 8,536,707 $ 2,866,578  § 9915750 $363,337 §  —  §s5e224t 522244613 33,783,663 526028276
Allocated capital . . . ... ... ... § 308215 5 14882 S 62545 $ 29,694 § —  $266316 0§ 1454623 5 331637 5 1,796260
Loan production. . . . . . . PR 70,043,484 10,284,979 2232454 190,908 — — 82751825 8945999 91,697,824
Loanssold. . .. ... ... P 63,635,182 6,994,666 2,226,201 — - — 72856049 6192913 79,048,962
MBRmargin . . ............ 0.88% 1.56% 1.57% N/A NIA NIA 1L1% 0.58% 1.06%
ROE. . ................. y 49% 63% 4% %% | NA NIA 19% 18% 19%
Netinterest margin . . .. . ... ... 148% 203% 1.69% 4.62% N/A Nia 1.68% 4.06% 202%
Efficieney ratio . . . .. ...... .. 43% 5% 13% 41% NIA NiA 61% 30% 58%
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The following provides details on the profitability for the standard consumer home loans held for sale for the
years indicated {dollars in thousands}:

Standard Consumer Home Loans

: Prime ) Subprime Total
Year Ended December 31, 2007
Operating Results .
Net INterest INCOME . . . v oot i et e ettt ettt ans $ 149249 § 7324 % 156,573
Provision for loan losses . . .. ... ... ... . ..., ... v ..., — —_ -
Gain (loss)onsaleof loans. .. ........... ... ... ... .... (206,277} (27,462) (233,739
Service feeincome . .. ... ... ... . e e e, — am —
Gain (loss) On SECUTItES ... .. ...t i ittt e e — — —
Other INCOME . . . . . e e e e e e e 27,367 886 28,253
Net revenues (EXpense) . .. ... ... vt in i (29,661} (19,252) (48,913)
Variable expenses . . ... ... ... e - 250,261 24,640 274,901
Deferral of expenses under SFAS 91 .. .................. (172,224) (17,.318) (189,542}
Fixedexpenses . ... ... ... .. ... . ... . ... ... R 224 547 18,664 243 211
Pre-tax earnings (loss) . .. ......................... (332,245) (45,238) (377,483}
Minority interests .. .......... i e 449 7 456
Netearnings (loss) . ...... ... ... ... 0 iiirnany, $ (202,786) $ (27.557) $ (230,343
Performance Data
Average interest-earning assets . ... ... ... ... ...l $ 9,996,322 $ 2443887 $10,241,209
Allocated capital . . . ... ... ... . ... $ 460,005 $ 14,754 3 - 474,759
Loanproduction . . ...... ... ... .. . i 56,986,937 2,542,064 59,529,001
Loans sold .. ... .. i i e, 51,466,679 2,263,416 53,730,095
MBR margin ....... e i e, (0.06)% (0.85)% (0.09%
ROE. .. e e e e 4% (187 % {(49)%
NetintereSt margin . . .. ... ..ot n i n it it et 1.49% 2.99% 1.53%
Efficiencyratio. . . . ... ... .. . i N/M (135)% N/M
Year Ended December 31, 2006
Operating Results
Netinterest iNCOME. . . . ... . it i i e e e e $ 110903 $ 15679 § 126,582
Provision for loan losses . . . ... .. 0t — — C—_
Gain (loss)on saleof loans. . . ....... ... ... v n... 409,503 23,005 432,508
Service fee INCOME . . . .. ...ttt et — — —
Gain (loss) On SECUMILIES . .. ... vttt e i e iin e — — —
Other INCOMIE . . .. .. et ettt e e e ee e — — —
Net revenues (EXpPense) . . ....cvv e veriuneeonnes 520,406 38,684 559,090
Variable eXpenses ... ... ...t e e . 204,391 28,953 233,344
Deferral of expenses under SFAS 91 .. ..... .. .... .. ... (156,352) (22,285) (178,637)
Fixedexpenses . ... ... ... .. iy 168,511 17,671 - 186,182
Pre-tax earnings (loss) ., .. ... ... ... ... ... .. ... 303,856 14,345 318,201
Net earnings (10Ss) . .. ..., $ 185049 § 8736 § 193,785
Performance Data :
Average interest-earning assets . . ... ......c.ouiiaeena ... $ 7,956,667 $ 580,040 $ 8,536,707
Allocated capital . . ... ... . ... ... .. ... .. .. ... ... ... $ 362396 $ 35819 § 398215
Loanproduction . . ... ... ittt i 67,458,207 2,585,217 70,043,434
Loanssold . ... ... . . . .. 61,013,270 2621912 63,635,182
MBR margin ........ ... . i i 0.85% 1.48% 0.88%
ROE. . e e e e 51% 24% 49%
Net interest margin . . .. ... .. ... ... i e 1.39% 2.70% 1.48%
Efficiency ratio. . . ..ottt e 2% 63% 43%
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The following provides details on the profitability for the specialty consumer home loans held for sale and/or
investment for the years indicated (dollars in thousands}):

Specialty Consumer Home Loans

Reverse
Mortgages CTP/Lot Total
Year Ended December 31, 2007
Operating Results
Net interest inCOmE. . . . ..ottt ittt i e i et e et eeans $ 19,788 $ 62438 § 82,226
Provision forloan losses . ... ... ... ... ... it — (35,856) (35,856)
Gain (loss)onsaleofloans. .. ....... ... . . . . . . 139,417 37,907 177,324
Service fee income . . . .. .. ... .. ... ... e 38,046 — 38,046
Gain (JOSS) ON SECUMHES . . o . oo v oo s e et et ie e ere e — (1,629) (1,629
Other INCOME . . ... .. i e et e 354 21,893 22,247
Net revenues (EXPense) . . ..o vr vttt eneiaeaeans 197,605 84,753 282,358
Variable @Xpenses .. .. ... .. 83,354 33,256 116,610
Deferral of expenses under SFAS 91 . .............. ... ... (27,631) (7,954) (35,585
Fixed expenses . .. ... .. ... ... 53,471 28,898 82,369
Pre-tax earnmings (loss) . ... ........ ... ... ... .. ... .. 88,411 30,553 118,964
Minority interests . ... ... ... .ttt 232 180 412
Netearnings (loss) . . ........ ... ... ... v nvuno.t. $ 52997 $ 18426 § 71,423
Performance Data ~
Average inlerest-earning assels ... ... ..vnvnnrnnrneana., $ 967,173 $2,581,569 § 3,548,742
Allocated capital . ... ................... [ $ 55627 § L6724 § 172351
Loan production . . ... ... ... .. i e 4,722,385 4,894,675 9,617,560
Loanssold . ... . i i e e e 4,789,805 2,627,267 7,417,072
MBR Margin. ... ...t i i 3.32% 1.44% 3.01%
ROE.........covvvn. [P 95% 16% 41%
Netinterest margin ... ...t any 2.05% 2.42% 2.32%
Efficiency ratio. . ... .. v u i e 55% " 45% 51%
Year Ended December 31, 2006
Operating Results
Net interest income., . . .............. o oon.. e $ 9918 § 4829 § 58214
Provision for loan 1esses . . . ... ...ttt e e — (2,906) (2,906)
Gain (loss)onsaleof loans. . .. ... . iinnn.an, 160,844 40,761 201,605
Servicefeeincome . ............ ... ... ...... T 21,141 _— 21,141
Gain (loss)on securities . .. ... ... .. . i e e, — 659 659
Other INCOME . . ... . i ettt e annannn 1,152 19,360 20,512
Net revenues (EXpense) . . .. ... v et 193,055 106,170 299,225°
Variable eXpenses . . ... ...t e 79,858 36,844 116,702
Deferral of expenses under SFAS 91 ... ... ... .. ... .. ... (32,236) (8,504) (40,760)
Fixed expenses .. ... ...ttt 55,388 27,614 83,002
Pre-tax earnings (loss) . . . ... .. ... .. ... ... . ... ... 90,065 50,216 140,281
Netearnings(loss) .. ........ ... ... . ... ... ... .0% 54,198 $ 30,581 % 84,779
Performance Data
Average intereSt-earning assets . ... ..... ... $ 617480 $2,249098 §$ 2,866,578
Allocated capital . ... ... ... e $ 31,712 % 103,230 $ 134,942
Loan production . . ........ ... . ... e 5,023,533 5,261,446 10,284,979
Loans sold . .. ... it e e e 4,498,352 2,496,314 6,994,666
MBR Margin. . .ot te ettt vt se e e e et 3.80% 1.63% 3.56%
ROE. . ... e e e e e e 171% 30% 63%
Net interest margin . ... ... .ottt i it e i s 1.61% 2.15% 2.03%
Efficiency ratio . . ... ...t ie i 53% 51% 53%
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The following provides details on the profitability for the home loans and related investments and the loan
servicing operations for the years indicated (dollars in thousands): ' -

Home Loans and Related Investments

Retained Servicing SFR Loans
and Retention Held for
Activities MBS Investment Total
Year Ended December 31, 2007 )
Operating Results
Net interest income . .. ............... . $ 4,197 $ 74652 $§ 83772 % 162,621
Provision for loan losses . ................ — — (145,364) (145,364)
Gain {(loss)onsaleof loans . . .. ........... 56,124 — (1,225) 48,899
Service feeincome ........... ... ... .... 454,695 — — 454,695
Gain (loss) on securities .. ............... {37,968) (263,807) = (301,775)
Otherincome ...... ... .. 8,096 610 2,065 10,771
Net revenues {expense) . ............... 485,144 (188,545) (66,752) '229,847
Variable expenses . ................... 24,236 — J— C 24236
Deferral of expenses under SFAS 91. . ... .. (10,440) — — (10,440)
Fixed expenses .. ......... ... ... .... 63,792 3,794 23,091 90,677
Pre-tax earnings (loss) .............. 407,556 (192,339) (89,843) 125,374
, Minority interests . .. ................ 614 416 492 1,522
Net earnings (loss). .. ............. $ 247,588 $(117,550) $ (55,206) $ 74,832
Performance Data .
Average interest-earning assets........... $1,172,090 $5,074,815  $6,760,760  $13,007,665
Allocated capital . .«., ... ... .......... $ 353415 $ 209,563 $ 238,779 § 801,757
Loan production . .................... 4,156,353 — — . 4,156,353
Loanssold.............. e 4,071,678 — 3,735,736 7,807,414
MBRmargin . ....................... 1.38% N/A N/A 0.63%
ROE ... . e 70% (56)% 23)% 9%
Net interest margin .. ....... ... ....... 0.36% 1.47% 1.24% 1.25%
Efficiency ratio . ..................... 16% (2)% 29% 28%
Year Ended December 31, 2006
Operating Results .
Netinterest inCOmMe . . ... ...covvivernnn $ 12,752 $ 72217 % 83056 $ 168,025
Provision for loan losses . ................ — — (9,225) . (9,225)
Gain (loss)on saleof loans . . ............. 31,477 (122) 3,703 35,058
Service fee income . ... ... ... ... ... ..., 72,227 — — 72,227
Gain (Joss) on securities ., ... ...... .. ... . 34,556 2,391 384 37.331
Otherincome ............. e e 5,286 (3) 1,637 6,920
Net revenues (expense) .......o......... 156,298 74,483 79,555 310,336
, Variable expenses .. ........ ... ... ... 11,994 — — 11,994
Deferral of expenses under SFAS 91. ... ... (5,772} — — (5,772
Fixed expenses ...................... 44 291 3,549 4,978 52,818
Pre-tax earnings (loss) . ............. 105,785 70,934 74,577 251,296
Net earnings (loss). .. ............. $ 64,423 $ 43,199 § 45417 § 153,039
Performance Data .
Average interest-earning assets. . ......... $ 520,965 $3,539,470 $5,855,315 $ 9.915,750
Allocated capital ... ........:......... $ 223,023 $ 175352 § 227081 $ 625456
Loan production ... .................. 2,232,454 — —_ 2,232,454
Loanssold. . . ..o 2,055,905 - —_— 170,296 2,226,201
MBRmargin........................ 1.53% N/A N/A 1.57%
ROE ..\ e 29% 25% 20% - 24%
Net interest margin . ... ............... 2.45% 2.04% 1.42% 1.69%
Efficiency ratio . ..................... 2% 5% 6% 18%
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The following provides details on the profitability for the specialty commercial loans held for sale and/or

investment for the years indicated (dollars in thousands):
Specialty Commercial Loans

Commercial
Warehouse Real Estate
. Single Spec Lending Lending Total
Year Ended December 31, 2007
Operating Results .
Net interest iMCOME . . ... oottt i e s $10581 $ 5193 § B72 $ 16646
Provision for loan losses . .. ........ ... ... ........ (4,400) (299) — (4,699}
Gain (loss)onsaleofloans. .. ..................... — - (5,138) (5,138)
Service feeincome . . ... ... ... ... . . . e — — 3 3
Gain (loss) on secunities . ...........vert i e —_ — — —
Other income . . ............... P 2,767 2,014 237 5,018
Net revenues (Xpense) . ... ... oo e v v nnnnn. 8,948 6,908 (4,026) 11,830
Variable eXpenses . . ... ... ... 2,328 — 1,489 3,817
Deferral of expenses under SFAS91 ............... (297) — (830) a,12n
Fixed expenses . .. ............ . ... ... . .. 2,065 3,698 7,648 13,411
Pre-tax earnings (loss} . ... ................... 4,852 3,210 {12,333) 4,271)
Minority interests .. ...... ... ... ... 28 7 29 64
Net earnings (loss) ............. I $ 2927 $ 1947 § (7,540) § (2,666}
Performance Data . 7
Average interest-earning assets. . .................. $212,144  $194286 $ 71,840  $478,270
Allocated capital . ............ ... . ... ........ . % 17625 315440 $ 5778 3% 38,843
Loan production . ....... ... .. iiiiiniinnnrannn 183,284 — 360,647 543,931
Loanssold ....... ... ... i — —_ — . —
ROE . ... .. i e e i e 17% 13% (130)% (NH%
Net interest margin . .. ... ... .o ereeennnnren . 4.99% 2.67% 1.21% 3.48%
Efficiency ratio . , . ... ..... ... .. .. ... ... ... 31% 51% © (206)% 97%
Year Ended December 31, 2006
Operating Results
Net inferest iMCOME . . v o oot et e et e e ee e ee e $ 13306 $ 3489 § — 316,795
Provisionforloan losses . . ..........ivvv v, (416) (181) — (597)
Gain (loss)onsaleofloans. .. ........ ... v, _ — — —_
Servicefeeincome . ......... ... . . i, — — — —
Gain (loss) on securities .. ...........cciuiennn. — — —_ —
Other inCome . ...t e 4,052 1,725 — 5717
Net revenues (EXpense) . .. .....oviveennnnnenn. .. 16,942 5,033 — 21,975
Variable expenses . . .......... . i 2,694 —_— —_ 2,694
Deferral of expenses under SFAS 91 .. ... e (308) — — (308)
Fixed expenses .............. e 1,921 4,120 776 6,817
Pre-tax earnings (loss) . . . .. ... ... ... ........ 12,635 913 {(776) 12,772
Net earnings (loss) ............ e $ 7694 % 557 $ A72) $ 7,779
Performance Data
Average interest-earning assers. . . ................. $244.294 3119043 $ - $363,337
Allocated capital . .. ...... ..ot $ 19312 §$ 10382 § — % 29,694
Loan production .. ................. . 190,908 —_ — 190,908
Loans sold ... ... ... ... i, — — — —
ROE . e 40% N/A N/A 26%
. Netinterest margin ................. h e 5.45% N/A N/A 4.62%
Efficiency ratio , . ., .. ... .. ... oo ' 25% N/A N/A 41%
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The following provides details on the overhead costs for the years indicated (dollars in thousands):
Mortéage
‘ Servicing Banking Deposit Corporate(l)  Total Overhead
Year Ended December 31, 2007
Operating Results - -
Net interest income ... ............... $ 20 $ 833 $25349 $ (9,740) 3 16462
Provision for loan losses .............. —_ — — — —
Gain (loss) on sale of loans ............. (189) €} — — (192)
Service fee income . ..... [ —_ —_ — 2,263 2,263
Gain (loss) on securities. . . ............ —_ —_ —_ — —
Gain on sale and leaseback of building. . . . — - — 23,082 23982
Other income .......... e e 2,742 (1,857) 4,431 (422) 4,894
Net revenues {expense). .. ... ........ 2,573 (1,027) 29,780 16,083 47,409
Variable expenses. . ................ — — — — —
Severance charges ................. ) _ — — 31,850 31,850
Deferral of expenses under SFAS 91. ... — — — — —
Fixed expenses. .. ................. 25,643 " 48,355 53,164 150,681 277,843
Pre-tax earnings (loss} . .......... {23,070)  (49,382)  (23,384) (166,448} ' (262,284)
Minority interests . . . .. ........... — 28 3 12,444 12,475
Net earnings (loss). ... ......... $(14,050) $(30,101) $(14,244) $(113,130) $(171,525)
Performance Data .
Average interest-earning assets........ $ — $ 2427 § 176 $ 534,506 $ 537,109
Allocated capital .................. $ (155 $14362 § 4325 $141,973 $ 160,305
Loan production. . .. ............... — — — — —
Loanssold....................... —_ —_ — — —
ROE ... ... . e N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
, Net interest margin . Cee e N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Efficiency ratio ................... N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Year Ended December 31, 2006

Operating Results ) i

Net interest income . . ............. ... 3 (247 $§ 809 §$14364 F (7934 § 6992
Provision for loan losses . ............. — _— — _— —_
Gain (lossyonsale of loans ... ......... — — — — —
Service fee income . . ....... ... ... ... —_ — — 1,951 1,951

Gain (loss) on securities. . . ............ —_ —_ — — —
Otherincome ...................... 3,003 292 3,476 (2,854) 3917
Net revenues (expense). ... .......... 2,756 1,10¢ 17,840 (8,837) 12,860

Variable expenses. .. .............. . e — — — —_
Deferral of expenses under SFAS 91. . . —_— — —_
Fixed expenses. . . ................. 19,376 40,621 41,128 168,049 269,174

Pre-tax earnings (loss} ........... (16,620  (39,520) (23,288)  (176,886) (256,314)
Net earnings (loss). . ........... $(10,122)  $(24,068) $(14,182) $(102,440) $(150,812)

Performance Data '

Average interest-earning assets. ... ...... 5 2 % 2470 $ 181  $ 559,588 $ 562,241
Allocated capital .................. $ 205 $12643 % 2,108 § 251,360 $ 266,316
Loan production. . .. ............... , — - N/A N/A N/A —
Loanssold.................... S _ N/A N/A N/A —
ROE ... .. i N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Net interest margin . . .............. N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Efficiency ratio .. ................. N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

(1) Corporate overhead under the product profitability analysis is different from the corporate overhead under the
business segment results as certain elimination items are included here.
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The following provides details on the discontinued products for the years indicated (dollars in thousands):
Discontinued Products

HELOCs/
Seconds

Subdivision

Other .

Total

Year Ended December 31, 2007
Operating Results
Net interest income

$ 81218 $ 46602 §$ 1,797 $ 129,617

Provision forfoanlosses . . ...................... (29,960) (178,144) (1,525) {209,629)
Gain (loss)onsaleofloans . .. ................... (341,514) — — (341,514)
Service feeincome . ... ... ... L. i 24,246 — — 24,246
Gain (loss) on securities .. ... . ... .. ... ... ... (136,309) — — (136,309) '
Other INCOME . . .. v vt et ettt ine s 11,333 (577 — 10,756
Net revenues (EXPENSE) . . ... vvieeinrenennennns (390,986) (i32,119) 272 (522,833,
Variable expenses .. .. ... .. ... .. Lo oo 25,624 8,834 — 34,458
Deferral of expenses under SFAS 91 ............. {16,511) (5,950) — (22,461)
Fixedexpenses . ........ ... .. it 14,043 14,705 245 28,993
Pre-tax earnings (Joss) .. ........... ... ... (414,142) (149,708) 27 (563,823)
Minority interests. . . .. ......... ... ... 380 78 . 4 462
Net earnings (loss) . ..................... $(252,593) § (91,250) $ 13 3 (343,330)
Performance Data .
Average interest-earning assets. .. ...... .. 000 . $2,164,734  $1,222.646  $31,811  $3,419,19t
Allocated capital .. .............. ... ... $ 234295 § 91,802 $ 2,820 $ 328,917
Loan production ............. ... ... 3,493,521 976,018 —_ 4,469,539
Loanssold. .......... e e e e 2,209,143 -— — 2,209,143
MBRmargin.............. .. i, (14.29% N/A N/A (14.29Y%
ROE . ... e (108)% 99% N/A (105)%
Net interest margin . ........ ... ... ... ... .... 175% 181% 5.65% 3.719%
Efficiencyratio .. ........... ... . i )% 8% . 14% (1)%
Year Ended December 31, 2006
Operating Results
Net interest inCome . .. ............c.ouueinnonn. $ 90,832 $ 60422 $ 2202 §$ 153456
Provision for loanlosses . ... ........... ... ... .. (1,800) (3,800) (1,665) (7.265),
Gain (loss)onsaleofloans . . .................... (1,106) — (1 (1,117)
Service feeincome . ......... ... ... .. ... ...... 5,998 — _ 5,998
Gain (loss) on securities . ..............cuuuen... (17,508) — — (17,508)
Otherincome . ............ ... ... iiiiirennn. 10,452 1,867 — 12,319
Net revenues (eXpense) .. .........c.viinnennn. 86,868 58,489 526 145,883
Variable expenses . ..............iviiriinan. 52,746 8,682 — 61,428
Deferral of expenses under SFAS 91 ... .......... (33,776) (6,993) — (40,769)
Fixedexpenses . .......... . i iiiinn. 11,628 12,834 307 24,769 .
Pre-taxearnings.................covu ... 56,270 43,966 219 100,455
Netearnings........................... $ 34268 $ 26775 - $ 134 § 61,117
Performance Data
Average interest-earning assets. . .. .............. $2,666,823  $1,076,213  $40,627  $3,783,663
Allocated capital . ...........0 ... . ... ...... $ 233930 $ 104,123 § 3,584 . § 341,637
Loan production . ................c.. 0., 7,199,309 1,746,690 — 8,945,999
Loanssold. ... ... .. ... .. ...... .. ........... 6,192,913 — — 6,192,913
MBRmargin.......... .. ... . ... ... .. 0.58% N/A N/A 0.58%
ROE .. ... . 15% 26% 4% 18%
Net interest margin . ... ..........c o vuiuuenan.. 341% 5.61% 5.42% 4.06%
Efficiencyratio . .......... ... ... i, 35% 23% 14% - 30%
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TABLE 2. S&P LIFETIME LOSS ESTIMATES

One method we use to evaluate the credit quality of our production is the S&P Levels model. We believe this
model provides another objective, third-pasty method to evaluate our production. The S&P Levels model is the
oldest licensed mortgage loss model in the industry, developed and tested over various economic cycles, and one of
only two models accepted by the industry for evaluating securitizations. The loss estimates are shown to describe
the relative level of credit risk in*our loan production at the time of origination. Because we routinely sell the vast
majoﬁty of loans produced, these estimates do not reflect the amount of credit risk retained by us. In addition, recent
revisions to the model by S&P have resulted 1 1n significantly higher losses being estimated than prior versions of the
modcl .

The following summarizes the estimated lifetime losses for mortgage producuon usmg the S&P Levels model
for the years indicated (dollars in millions):

t Year Ended December 31

. 2007 2006
- Total S&P average lifetime loss estimates(1) ....................... T 114% 1.90%
Total S&P evaluated production(2). . .. .................oieein... $65,534 $74,077

(1) All loss estimates reported here have been restated to use S&P’s new 6.1 model which was released in
November 2007.

(2) While our productnon is cvalualed using the S&P Levels model, the data are not audited or endorsed by S&P.
S&P evaluated production excludes second liens, HELOC, reverse mortgages, and construction loans.

Total average lifetime loss rate for the year ended December 31, 2007 decreased 76 basis points to 1.14% from
1.90% for the year ended December 31, 2006. The year-over-year decrease was due to us substantially eliminating
subprime loans, low documentation Alt-A loans and 80/20 piggyback loans from our product offerings. For the
quarter ended December 2007, the S&P lifetime loss estimates on new production was 45 bps.

TABLE 3. PRODUCTION BY PRODUCT — FICO AND CLTV .

-“The following shows the average FICO and CLTV by portfolio for loans originated during the years indicated
(dollars in millions):

R Year Ended December 31
2007 2006
. . Production FICO CLTV  Production FICO CLTV
-Total production . . ... .. S 378,316 N/A N/A $91,698 N/A N/A
1Less: ‘
HELOCs(l)ISeconds ................ 3,496 711 85% 7,199 712 88%
" Reverse mortgages ... .............. 4,723 NA  57% 5,024 N/A  54%
Consumer construction{1) . ... ........ 3,182 726 75% 3,651 721 . T6%
Government - FHA/VA . . ., e 44 N/A N/A — N/A N/A
Commercial real estate . ... .......... 361 730 68% — N/A —
. Builder construction commitments(1) . .. 976 N/A 73% 1,747 N/A T4%

Total S&P evaluated production ....... $65,534 . 703 18% $74,077 701 80%

(1) Amounts represent total commitments.
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TABLE 4. SFR MORTGAGE PRODUCTION AND PIPELINE BY PURPOSE

The following presents SFR mortgage loan production and pipeline by purpose as of and for the years indicated
(dollars in millions):
As of and Fer the Year Ended

December 31
2007 2006 % Change
Production and Pipeline by Purpose:
SFR mortgage loan production:
Purchase transactions . . ... ..o vt ee it e e $26,197 3$35,189 - (26)%
Cash-out refinance transactions. . .. . .. .. ...ttt n.n- 34,740 41,764 (17)%
Ratefterm refinance transactions . . . ... vv v v v v enn e ean. s 16,042 12,998 23%
Total SFR mortgage loan production. .. .................. $76,979  $89,951 (4%
% purchase and cash-out refinance transactions. . . ......... 79% 86% (8)%
% of loan production GSE eligible ... ................... 53% 40% 33%
Mortgage industry market share . . .. .................... 3.30% 3.30% —
SFR mortgage loan pipeline at period ‘end(1): ’ _
Purchase transactions . . . . . v vt n it et e $ 253 $ 3914 (35)%
Cash-out refinance transactions. . . ........................ 2,891 4,193 (3%
Rate/term refinance transactions . . .. .. ...t ., 2,052 1,792 15%
Total specific rate locks . ....... ... ... . .. 7,506 l 9,899 24)%
Non-specific rate locks on bulk purchases . ................ — 1,922 N/A
Total SFR mortgage loan pipeline . .. .................. $ 7,506 511,821 (3N%

(1) Total pipeline of loans in process includes rate lock commitments we have provided on loans that are
specifically identified or non-specific bulk packages, and loan applications we have received for which the
borrower has not vet locked in the interest rate commitment. Non-specific bulk packages represent pools of
loans we have committed to purchase, where the pool characteristics are specified but the actual l6ans are not.

TABLE 5. SFR MORTGAGE LOAN PRODUCTION BY AMORTIZATION TYPE

The following presents SFR mortgage loan production by amortization type for the years indicated:

Year Ended December 31
2007 2006
SFR Mortgage Productien by Amortization Type:
Fixed-rate mortgages . ...... ... ... it i 28% 21%
Intermediate term fixed-rate loans . . . ... ... .. L o e . 1% 7%
Interest-only loans . ...... .. ... . . . .. . e 44% 37%
Payoption ARMS. . ... .. i i e 9% 23%
Other ARMS. .. ... .. e e e e _12% 12%

100% 100%
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TABLE 6. SFR MORTGAGE LOAN PRODUCTION BY GEOGRAPHIC DISTRIBUTION

The following presents SFR mortgage loan production by geographic distribution for the years indicated:

Year Ended

December 31

2007 2006

Geographic distribution:

California . . ... ... e e e 43% 45%
Florida . . ... . e e e 8% 8%
New York . ..o e e e 7% 6%
NewlJersey ........... O 4% 4%
F N .0 o U 3% 3%
Other .« . e e e 35% 34%
B Lo 100% 100%

TABLE 7. MBR MARGIN

The following shows a reconciliation of gross MBR margin to net MBR margin for the years indicated (in basis
points unless otherwise noted): )

Year Ended December 31

2007 2006 2005

Loans sold (inmillions). ... ........ .. ... . ., $71,164 $79.049  $52,297
Gross MBR . . ... i e 100 150 159
Pipeline hedging . .. ....... ... .. o i i (2) 9 11
MBR after hedging(a) .. ......... ... ... . 99 141 170
Net HFS credit losses ... ... oo i i i i e (66) 8 3
Secondary market reserve accrual. . ... oo Lo L L., (33) =) %)
Total production creditcosts(b) . ........... ... ... ... .. ... (98) (13) &
Production credit costs/MBR after hed_ging(bla') ............... . 99% 9% 5%
Net MBR after production credit costs/MBR after hedging .. .. ... — 128 162
FAS 9l deferred cost. . ... ... 0t i e i e (23) (22) (25)
Net MBRreported. . .. ....... ... ... e (22) 106 137
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TABLE 8. SERVICING FEE INCOME

The following presents the components of service fee income for the Company for the years indicated (dollars -

in thousands):

Service fee income:
Gross service fee income
Change in MSR value due to portfolio run-off

Service fee income, net of change in value due to
portfoliorun-off .. ....... ... ... ... .. ...
Change in MSR value due to application of external
benchmarking policiées
MSR valuation adjustment due to market changes
Gain (loss) on financial instruments used to hedge
MSRs

Year Ended December 31

BPS BFS BPS
2007 UPB 2006 UPB 2005 UPB
- 1
$ 705,637 43 $500904 45 $282420 44
(408,107) (25) _(37495%) (34). _(227,085) (3%)
297,530 18 125,949 11 55,335 9.
3920 — (16,459) (1) —_— =
156,327 10 34,180 2 (13,460)  (2)
61476 4 (323537 () 2360 —
$519,253 32 $10i,317 9 0§ 44235 7

As a result of the growth in our servicing portfolio and slower run-off of the portfolio, servicing income before
hedging activities increased during the year ended December 31, 2007, compared to the prior year. In addition, the
financial instruments used to hedge MSRs also experienced a gain of $61.5 million this year, compared to a loss of

$32.4 million in 2006.

~

TABLE 9. GAIN (LOSS) ON MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES

The following presents the components of the Company’s gain (loss) on MBS for the years indicated (dollars in

thousands):

Net gain (loss) on MBS:
Realized loss on available for sale securities
Impairments on available for sale securities

Unrealized gain (loss) on prepayment penalty securities. . . ..

Unrealized gain (loss) on late fee securities

Unrealized gain (loss) on AAA-rated and agency interest-
only securities. . .. ... ... ...

Year Ended December 31

Unrealized gain (loss) on non-investment grade residual

securities
Net gain (loss} on trading securities and other

instruments(1). . ............ e

Totat gain (loss) on MBS, net

2007 2006 2005
........... $ (486 $ 3715 $ 6,054
........... (40,036)  (10,238) (607)

(44215) 23,625 21,694
........... 183 — —
........... (1,204) 3,136 (13,864)
........... (146,378)  (1,444)  (3,106)
............ (207,577) 1,688 7,695
............ $(439,713) $20482 $17.866

(1) The amount for the year ended December 3'1, 2007 includes $126.2 million of credit related losses on non-

investment grade securities.

IR
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TABLE 10. MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES BY CREDIT RATING

The following presents fair values of MBS by credit ratings as of the dates indicated (dollars in thousands):

December 31, 2007

Current Net Premium December 31,
Face (Discount) to Amortized 2006
Value Face Value Cost Fair Value Fair Value
AAA-rated mortgage-backed securities: . )
AAA-raled non-agency securities. ... ... .. $6,127,260 $ 23,108 $6,150,368  $6,053.677  $4,648,446
AAA-rated agency securities . . .......... 46,465 (240) 46,225 45,296 65,175
AAA-rated and agency interest-only : ‘
securities . ... ........ e — — — 59,844 73,570
AAA-rated principal-only securities .. ... .. — — — 88,024 38,478
Total AAA-rated mortgage-backed ‘ '

SECUMMIES . . . ... iie i $6,173,725 $ 22,868 $6,196,593  $6,246,841 54,825,669
Prepayment penalty and late fee securities . . $ 82,027 $ 97,576
Other investment grade mortgage-backed

securities: ’

AA+. . ... .. B $ 23,230 $ (3076 $ 20,154 3§ 18,569 5 7513
AA. e 508,435 - - (28,019) 480,416 424,701 86,311
AA— e 18,944 ' (1,061} 17,883 14,364 14,138
At e 15,606 (3,702) 11,904 11,904 —
A e e e 199,054 (20,348) 178,706 146,737 2,160
A e 16,490 (2,865) 13,625 13,625 —
BBB+........... T P A S 5423 (67 . 5356 3,215 —
BBB......... .. 66,250 (24,753) 41,497 41,828 20,734
BBB— ... ........... R, 79,109 {26,518) 52,591 52,046 58,397

Total other investment grade mortgage-
backed securities. .. ....... s $ 932,541 $(110,408) $ 822,132 § 727,489 $ 189,253
Non-investment grade 'mortgage-backed .

securities: . .. .

BB+. . .. e 5 2,509 § (2494) % 15 % 15 5 7299
BB....... ... ..., e 132,546 , (53,589 78,957 79.85% 49,856
BB~ .. e 67,312 (37.941) .. 29371 29,371 21,170
B e 69,007 (46,165) 22,842 23,250 1,442
B— 44,405 (35,895) . 8510 . 8510 —
CCCH. i e — —_— — —_ _
CCC. ... e e 29,887 (25,489) 4398 4,416 —_
CC . e te 20727 . (20,191 536 . 536 —
L 24,353 (20,726) . 3,627 3,627 —
D....... . L7 1,226 (1,226) — —_ —
Other .. ...t 67886 (61.807) 6.079 6,164 _am

Total other non-investment grade .

mortgage-backed securities. .. ....... § 459,858 $(305,523) $ 154335 § 155748 % B0,174
Non-investment grade residual securities. . . , $ 116414 $ 250,573
Total mortgage-backed securities ., . . ... ., $7,328,519  $5,443,245

At December 31, 2007, other investment grade and non-investment grade MBS totaled $883.2 million, of
which 94% were collateralized by prime loans and 6% were collateralized by subprime loans.
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TABLE 11. OTHER RETAINED ASSETS

The carrying value of AAA-rated and agency interest-only, principal-only, prepayment penalty, late fee, non-
investment grade, and residual securities is evaluated by discounting estimated net future cash flows. For these -
securities, estimated net future cash flows are primarily based on assumptions related to prepayment speeds, in
addition to expected credit loss assumptions on the residual securities. The models used for estimation are
periodically tested against historical prepayment speeds and our valuations are benchmarked to external sources,
where available. We also may retain certain other investment grade securities from our securitizations and to a lesser .
extent purchase from third parties to serve as hedges for our AAA-rated and agency interest-only securities. '
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The following presents a summary of the activity of the retained assets for the years indicated (dollars in
thousands):

Year Ended December 31

2007 2006
AAA-rated and agency interest-only and other investment grade securities:

Beginning balance . . .o . oo o i e e $ 262,823 $ 170,851
Retained investments from Securilizations . . ., ... .. . oottt e 525,658 73,277
PUTCRESES . . . oo oo oot e e L P DU 277060 72,366
Transfer from MSRS . . . . L L e e 56,040 —
Transfer to non-investment grade SECULILES . . . . .. .. v vt i ittt ettt (61,360) —
I PAIIEIL . o . o it e e e e e e e e e (24,380) (183)
T 1 =7 LA (71,225) (32,735)
Clean-up calls eXerCised. . . . .. . . e e e — (107}
Cash received, net 0f ACCTEHON . L . . . . ittt e i i e e {35,949} (23,607)
Valuation gains before hedges . . . . ... ... .. e (141,334) 2,961

Ending balance . . ... ... . e $ 787,333 $ 262,823

Principal-only securities: .

Beginming Balitnee . . . . v oo v i e $ 38478 $ 9483
Retained investments from securflizalions . . . . . . . . ...ttt i i e e e 8,157 13.862
PUICHaSES . . . . ittt e e e e e e e e e e 44,472 121,281
Sales . ..........c... .. e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e — (100,761)
Cash received, net Of aCCrEtON . . . . ... . e e (1,231) (4,576)
Valuation gains (losses) before hedges . ... ... ... ... . {1,852) (811)

Ending balance . . ..ottt e e e e e $ 88,024 $ 38478

Prepayment penalty and late fee securities:

Beginning balance .. . . . ... ... e s $ 97576 $ 75741
Retained investments from secunitizations . . . . . .., .. ...ttt i e e 47,555 43,094
Transfer from MSRs/residual securities . . . . ... o . ... . e 3,359 4,523
Sales . L e e e e e e e e e — (2,078)
Cash received, net Of BCCTELHON . L. . L. . L it it e e e e e (224310 (47,329
Valuation gains (losses) before hedges . ... ... ... ... ... ... (44,032) 23,625

Ending balance . . . . . oo oottt e T T $ 82,027 $ 97570

Non-investment grade securities:

Beginning balance . . . . .. .. . . e e e $ 80,173 $ 57712
Retained investments from securitizations . . .. ... ..ot ittt e e e 128,896 34,205
PULCRASES . . . . . i e e e e 12,646 3,697
Transfer from investment grade SeCUMIEES . . . . . . .. L ittt i s 61,360 -
IMPaifmMentS . . . . ..ot e e e e e (5,877 {846)
Sales ... e e e e e e e e — (13,542)
Cash received, net of accretion . . . . ... .. ... ... e e e e 767 369
Valuation gains (losses) before hedges .. .. .. ... ... ... ... . (122,217) (1,421)

Ending balance . . . . . .. .. e e e $ 155,748 5 BD,174

Residual securities(1):

Beginning balance . . . . .. .. e e $ 250,573 % 167,771
Retained investments from securitizations, net{2). . . . .. ... it e e 40,178 224,014
Transfer to prepayment penally securities . .. .. ... ...t i e (3,076) 200
Transfer due to clean-up calls and other . .. ... . ... i i e i e e e (5,615) —
IMPaIMments . . . . oo it e e e e (9,778) (9,209)
SAlES . e e e e e e e e —_ (107,360)
Clean-up calls €XeTCISEd. . . . . .o ottt U (2,106} —
Cash received, net of acCrelion . .. ... .. .. .. e e (7,385) (22,362)
Valuation gains (losses) before hedges . ... ... ... ... . . . . L (146,377) (2,481)

Ending balance . . ... oottt e e e $116414 - $ 250,573

(1) Included in the residual securities balance at December 31, 2007 were $3.7 million of HELOC residuals
retained from two separate guaranteed mortgage securitization transactions. There was no gain on sale of loans
recognized in connection with these transactions.

(2) Amounts retained consist of 100% in HELOCs for the year ended December 31, 2007.
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TABLE 12. VALUATION QF MSRs, INTEREST-ONLY, PREPAYMENT PENALTY, AND RESIDUAL
SECURITIES

MSRs, AAA-rated and agency interest-only securities, prepayment penalty securities, and residual securities
are recorded at fair market value. The following presents relevant information and assumptions used to value these
securities as of dates indicated (dollars in thousands):

- ! Actual Valuation Assamptions
Gross Wid.  Servicing 3-Month Weighted Lifetime 3-Month Remaining
Collateral Average Fee/Interest Prepayment Average Prepaymenmt Prepayment Discount Cumutative
Book Value Batance Coupon Strip Speeds  Multiple  Speeds Speeds Yield Loss Rate{l)
December 31, 2007
MSRs ... ... .. i $2,495407 $181,723.633 6.89% 0.34% 9.7% 4.01 19.6% 15.1% 9.7% NIA
AAA-rated interest-only securities . . . . . $ 59844 § 5,246,602 6.60% 0.49% 8.5% 231 24.5% 129% 12.3% NIA
Prepayment penalty securities. . . . ... . $ 59,147 $ 18,736,650 12% NIA T0% NIA 23.0% 15.2% 19.0% N/A
Lot loan residual securities . .. ... . .. 53849 § 1783644 9.70% 421% 27.3% 131 32.5% 292% 21.8% 118%
HELOC residual securities . .. ...... 30573 %8 2.693.499 8.40% 2.58% 18.3% 044 19.9% 238%  2.0% 8.56%
Closed-end seconds residual securities . . . 14056 § 1862794 10.50% 312% 11.1% 0.20 21.4% 31.8% BA% 14.6%
Subprime residual securities. . .. ... .. 17936 $§ 1670520 8.60% 3.03% 23.5% 0.16 473%  256% 244% 14.4%
Total non-invesiment grade residual
securities . ... ... § 116414 !
December 31, 2006 .
MSRs .. ... i $1,822455  $139.816,763 7.05% 031%  202%° 357 258% 19.8% 8.8% NIA
AAA-rated interest-only securitics . . . . . $ 73570 $ 5957550 6.93% 051% 19.5% 241 164% 19.7% 15.4% N/A
Prepayment penalty securities. . .. ... . $ 97576 % 20282718 T.40% NIA 18.1% N/A 28.2% " 206% 26.3% NfA
Lot loan residual securities . .. ... ... 57640 5 2246833 9.24% 154% 35.6% 0.73 39.8% 37.9% 23.5% 0.61%
HELOC residual securities . ... ... .. 98,697 $ 3,039,555 2.59% 271% 43.7% 1.20 503% 476% 20.2% L%
Closed-end seconds residual secarities . . . 145712 § 1737859  1044% 169% 17.5% 023 37.1% 24.8% 24.6% 8.08%
Subprime residoal securities, . . . ... .. 79,664 § 4,848,859 7.74% 1.68% 33.0% 098 39.5% 38.1% 0.4% 5.85%

Towl non-investment grade residual
seeurties . .. ... ... § 250,573

(1) Asapercentage of the original pool balance, the actual loss rate to date totaled 2.21%, 3.75%, 1.02% and 0.02%
for HELOC, closed-end seconds, subprime, and lot loans, respectively, at December 31, 2007,

The lifetime prepayment speeds represent the annual constant prepayment rate estimated for the remaining life
of the collateral supporting the asset. The prepayment rates are projected using a prepayment model developed by a
third-party vendor and calibrated for our collateral. The model considers key factors, such as refinance incentive,
housing turnover, seasonality and aging of the pool of loans. Prepayment speeds incorporate expectations of future
rates implied by the market forward LIBOR/swap curve, as well as collateral specific current coupon information.

The weighted-average multiple for MSRs, AAA-rated and agency interest-only securities and residual
securities represent the recorded value divided by the product of collateral balance and servicing fee/interest
strip. While the weighted-average life of such assets is a function of the undiscounted cash flows, the multiple is a
function of the discounted cash flows. With regard to AAA-rated and agency interest-only securities, the
marketplace frequently uses calculated multiples to assess the overall impact valuation assumptions have on
value. Collateral type, coupon, loan age and the size of the interest strip must be considered when comparing these
multiples. The mix of collateral types supporting servicing-related assets is primarily non-conforming/conven-
tional, which may make our MSR multiples incomparable to peer multiples whose product mix is substantially
different.

Beginning in the fourth quarter of 2006, the calculation of remaining cumulative loss rate changed to using the
remaining lifetime loss projection divided by current collateral balance. All prior periods have been adjusted to
reflect such change. '
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TABLE 13. DEPOSITS BY CHANNEL

The following shows our deposits by channel as of the dates indicated {(dollars in thousands):

December 31
2007 R 2006
% of % of
Total Total
Amount Deposits Amount Deposits
Deposit Channel -
Branch. . ... ... .. .. $ 6,992,091 - 40% $ 5,211,365 48%
Internet ... ...... ... ... . ... [P 1,588,558 9% 1,185,423 11%
Telebanking . . ... ... ... ... ... ........ 2,017,128 11% 1,290,595 12%
Moneydesk............................ 6,492,273 36% 2,593,719 24%
Custodial . .. ....ooiitiii 725,193 _ 4% 616904 5%
Total deposits. . ........... i $17.815,243 100%  $10,898,006 100%

Our deposit products include regular savings accounts, demand deposit accounts, money market accounts,
certificates of deposit, and individual retirement accounts. Refer to “Note 9 — Deposits” in the accompanying
notes to consolidated financial statements for details of deposit category. '

TABLE 14, AVERAGE BALANCE AND RATE OF DEPOSITS BY CATEGORY

The following sets forth the average balance of, and the average interest rate paid on deposits, by deposit
category for the years indicated (dollars in thousands):

Year Ended December 31

2007 2006 2005
Average Average Average
. __Balance  Rate Balance Rate Balance Rate

Interest-bearing checking ...... $ 54842 143% $ 52875 126% $ 51437 1.17%

Savings .......... ... 2,322,158  489% 1,539,701 4.64% 1,302,158 2.88%

Certificates of deposit. . ....... 10,413,494 5.28% 7,071,201 4.77% 4,584,502 3.44%
Total interest-bearing ] \

deposits, ... ....... coee. 12,790,494 5.19% 8,663,777 4.71% 5,938,147 3.29%

Non-interest-bearing checking . ., . 75,733 0.00% 67,681 0.00% 60,778  0.00%

Custodial accounts . .......... 804,695 0.00% 643,124  0.00% 657,596 0.00%

Total deposits . .. .......... -$13,670,942 486% $9,374,582 4.35% $6,656,521 2.93%

Accrued but unpaid interest on deposits included in other liabilities totaled $1.6 million, $3.8 million and
$10.7 million at December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Market risk is the exposure to loss resulting from secondary market disruption, changes in interest rates,
foreign currency exchange rates, commodity prices and equity prices. The primary market risk to which we are
exposed is interest rate risk, including fluctuations in short and long term interest rates. An additional risk is the
early prepayment of loans held for investment, MBS and mortgage loans underlying our MSRs, AAA-rated and
agency interest-only securities and residuals. Our mortgage servicing division is responsible for the management of
interest rate and prepayment risks subject to policies and procedures established by, and oversight from, our
management-level Interest Rate Risk Committee, Variable Cash Flow Instruments Committee, management
level ERM group and Board of Directors-level ERM Committee. See “Item 7. Management’s Discussion and !
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Risk Factors That May Affect Future Results™ above
for further discussion of risks.

We utilize a variety of means in order to manage inferest rate risk. We invést in MSRs and AAA-rated and
agency interest-only securities to generate core interest and fee income. The value of these instruments and the
income they provide tends to be counter-cyclical to the changes in production volumes and gain on sale of loans that
result from changes in interest rates. With regard to the pipeline of mortgage loans held for sale, in general, we
hedge this asset with forward commitments to sell Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac securities of comparable maturities
and weighted average interest rates. To hedge our investments in MSRs, AAA-rated and agency interest-only and
residual securities, we use several strategies, including buying and/or selling mortgage-backed or U.S. Treasury
securities, forward rate agreements, futures, floors, swaps, or options, depending on several factors. Lastly, we enter
into swap agreements and utilize FHLB advances to mitigate interest rate risk on'mortgage loans and securities held
for investment. In connection with all of the above stritegies, we use hedging instruments to‘reduce our exposire to
interest rate risk, not to speculate on the direction of market interest rates.

The primary measurement tools used to evaluate risk include value at risk, duration gap, and NPV analysis.
These tools attempt to measure the sensitivity of our assets and liabilities to various changes in interest rates. See
“Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations -— Consolidated
Risk Management Discussion — CAMELS Framework for Risk Management — Sensitivity to Market Risk” for a
further discussion of our measurement tools used to analyze interest rate risk. o '

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The information called for by this Item 8 is set forth beginning at page F-1 of this Form 10-K.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A., CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES )

The management of Indymac is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective disclosure controls and
procedures, as defined under Rules 13a-15 and 15d-15 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. As of December 31,
2007, an evaluation was performed under the supervision and with the participation of the Company’s management,
including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and cperation
of Indymac’s disclosure controls and procedures. Based on that evaluation, management concluded that Indymac’s
disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 2007 were effective in ensuring that information required to
be disclosed in this Annual Report on Form 10-K (“Annual Report™) was recorded, processed, summarized, and
reported within the time period required by the SEC’s rules and forms. ) '

Management’s responsibilities related to establishing and maintaining effective disclosure controls and
procedures include maintaining effective internal controls over financial reporting that are designed to produce
reliable financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. As
disclosed in the Report of Management on Internal Control over Financial Reporting (“Report of Management™)
included in this Annual Report, management assessed the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of
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December 31, 2007, in relation to criteria for effective internal control over financial reporting as described in
“Internal Control — Integrated Framework”, issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission. Based on this assessment, management concluded the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting is effective as of December 31, 2007. The independent registered public accounting firm that
audited the financial statements included in this Annual Report has issued an attestation report of the Company’s
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, The Report of Management and
the attestation report are included in this Annual Report under Exhibit 99.1 “Reports on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting™.

There have been no significant changes in the Company’s internal controls or in other factors that could
significantly affect the Company’s disclosure of controls and procedures subsequent to December 31, 2007,

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.

PART III

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The information required by this Item 10 is hereby incorporated by reference to IndyMac Bancorp’s definitive
proxy statement, to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 days after the end of our 2007 fiscal year.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this ftem 11 is hereby incorporated by reference to IndyMac Bancorp’s definitive
proxy statement, to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 days after the end of our 2007 fiscal year.

ITEM 12, SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this Item 12 is hereby incorporated by reference to IndyMac Bancorp’s definitive
proxy statement, to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 days after the end of our 2007 fiscal year.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

The information required by this Item 13 is hereby incorporated by reference to IndyMac Bancorp’s definitive
proxy statement, to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 days after the end of our 2007 fiscal year.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this Item 14 is hereby incorporated by reference to IndyMac Bancorp’s definitive
proxy statement, to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 days after the end of our 2007 fiscal year.

PART IV

ITEM 18. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a) (1) and (2) — Financial Statcmcnfs and Schedules

The information required by this section of Item 15 is set forth in the Index to Consolidated Financial
Statements at page F-2 of this Form 10-K.

(3) — Exhibits
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Exhibit
No.

3.1*
3.2%

4.1*

4.2%

4.3%

10.1*

10.2*

10.3*

10.4%

10.5*

10.6*

10.7*

10.8*

10.9*

10.10*

10.11*
10.12*

10.13*

Description

Restated Certificate of Incorporation of IndyMac Bancorp, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1
to IndyMac Bancorp’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2000).

Amended and Restated Bylaws of IndyMac Bancorp, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to ~
IndyMac Bancorp’s Form 8-K filed with the SEC on September 21, 2007).

Indenture dated as of November 14, 2001 between IndyMac Bancorp and The Bank of New York
(“BoNY"}, as Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.8 to IndyMac Bancorp’s Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2001).

First Supplemental Indenture dated as of November 14, 2001 between IndyMac Bancorp and BoNY, as
Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.9 to IndyMac Bancorp’s Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2001).

Rights Agreement dated as of October 17, 2001 between IndyMac Bancorp and BoNY, as Rights Agent
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to IndyMac Bancorp's Form 8-K filed with the SEC on
October 18, 2001).

Amended and Restated Trust Agreement dated as of November 14, 2001 between IndyMac Bancorp, as
Sponsor, Roger H. Molvar and Richard L. Sommers, as Administrative Trustees, Wilmington
Trust Company, as Property Trustee and as Delaware Trustee, BoNY, as Paying Agent, Registrar,
Transfer Agent and Authenticating Agent and several Holders of the Securities (incorporated by-
reference to Exhibit 10.11 to IndyMac Bancorp’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001).

Unit Agreement dated as of November 14, 2001 between IndyMac Bancorp, IndyMac Capital Trust I,
Wilmington Trust Company, as Property Trustee, and BoNY, as Agent (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.12 to IndyMac Bancorp’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001).

Warrant Agreement dated as of November 14, 2001 between [ndyMac Bancorp and BoNY, as Warrant
Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to IndyMac Bancorp’s Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2001). '

Guarantee Agreement dated as of November 14, 2001 between IndyMac Bancorp, as Guarantor, and
BoNY, as Guarantee Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to IndyMac Bancorp’s Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2001).

IndyMac Bancorp, Inc. Cash Incentive Award Progrém Under the 2002 Incentive P]an; As Amended and’
Restated (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to IndyMac Bancorp’s Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended September 30, 2004). '

Form of Director Indemnification Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to IndyMac
Bancorp’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2006).

Employment Agreement entered into May 23, 2006 between IndyMac Bank, FES.B. and Charles A.
Williams (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to IndyMac Bancorp’s Form 8-K filed with the SEC
on May 30, 2006).

IndyMac Bancorp, Inc. Amended Director Emeritus Plan effective as of May 24, 2006 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to IndyMac Bancorp’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2006).
Amended and Restated Employment Agreement entered into July 1, 2006 between IndyMac Bank, F.S.B.
and James R. Mahoney (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to IndyMac Bancorp’s Form 8-K filed
with the SEC on July 5, 2006).

Letter Agreement entered into July 1, 2006 between IndyMac Bank, FES.B. and James R. Mahoney
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to IndyMac Bancorp's Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 3,
2006). '

Form of Director's Agreement, effective August 1, 2006 (incorporated by reference 1o Exhibit 10.1 to
IndyMac Bancorp’s Form 8-K filed with the SEC on August 2, 2006).

Summary of Terms of Stock Option Awards Granted to Executive Officers {incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.25 to Indymac Bancorp’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006).

2000 Stock Incentive Plan, as Amended (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to IndyMac Bancorp’s
Form 10-Q for the quarnter ended September 30, 2007).
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Exhibit
No.

10.14*

10.15%
10.16*
10.17
10.18
10.19
10.20
10.21
10.22
10.23

21.1
23.1
31.1
3.2
3z

322

99.1

* Incorporated by reference.

Description
2002 Incentive Plan, as Amended and Restated (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to IndyMac
Bancorp’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2007). .-

IndyMac Bancorp, Inc. Senior Manager and Non-Employee Director Deferred Compensation Plan
Amended and Restated on September 17, 2007 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to
IndyMac Bancorp’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2007).

IndyMac Bank, F.8.B. Deferred Compensation Plan, Amended and Restated Effective as of Januoary 1,
2008 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to IndyMac Bancorp’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2007).

Amended Director Compensation and Stock Ownership Policy Requirements, revised Janua:y 29, 2008.

Employment Agreement entered into May 23, 2006 between IndyMac Bank, F.S. B and S. Blalr
Abernathy, as amended effective January 29, 2008.

Employment Agreement entered into May 23, 2006 between IndyMac Bank, F.S.B. and Ashwm Adarkar,
as amended effective January 29, 2008.

Employment Agreement entered into May 23, 2006 between IndyMac Bank; F.S.B. and Scott Keys, as
amended effective January 29, 2008.

Employment Agreement entered into May 23, 2006 between IndyMac Bank, F.$.B. and Frank M. Sillman,
as amended effective January 29, 2008.

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement entered into September 17 2007 between IndyMac
Bancorp and Michael W. Perry, as further amended on February 15, 2008.

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement entered into September 17, 2007 between IndyMac
Bank, FES.B. and Richard Wohl, as further amended on February 15, 2008.

. List of Subsidiaries.

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm. :
Chief Executive Officer’s Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,
Chief Financial Officer’s Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,

Chief Executive Officer’s Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
' Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Chief Financial Officer’s Certification pursuant to 18 U.S5.C. Section 1350, as adopled pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Reports on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 13(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has
duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of
Pasadena, State of California, on February 29, 2008.

INDYMAC BANCORP, INC.
(Registrant)

By: /s/ MICHAEL W. PERRY

Michael W. Perry
Chairman of the Board of Directors
and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed by the
following persons on behalf of the Registrant in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ MicHaeL W. PerrRY Chairman of the Board of Directors February 29, 2008
Michael W. Perry Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)
/s/ Scort Keys Executive Vice President and Chief February 29, 2008
Scott Keys Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting
Officer)
fs/ Louis E. CALDERA ) Director February 29, 2008
Louis E. Caldera
/s/  Lvie E. GraMLEY Director February 29, 2008
Lyle E. Gramley
/s/ HuGH M. GraNT Director . February 29, 2008
Hugh M. Grant
/s Parrick C. HADEN Director February 29, 2008
Patrick C. Haden
/s/  Terranci G. HopeL Director February 29, 2008
Terrance G. Hodel
/s/ Rosert L. Hunt I Director February 29, 2008
Robert L. Hunt II
/s/ Lypia H. KENNARD Director February 29, 2008
’ Lydia H. Kennard
Is/  Senarvor Joun SEYMoUR (RET.) Director February 29, 2008
Senator John Seymour (ret.)
Vlsl Bruce G. WiLLIsON Director February 29, 2008

Bruce G. Willison
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Board of Directors and Sharcholders
IndyMac Bancorp, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of IndyMac Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiaries
(the Company) as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
shareholders’ equity and comprehensive income (loss), and cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2007. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits,

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Acéouming Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Company at December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the consolidated results
of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2007, in conformity
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in'Notes 1 and 7 to the consolidated financial statements, on January 1, 2006, the Company
changed its method of accounting for share-based payments in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 123 (revised 2004}, Share-Based Payment, under the modified-retrospective transition method, and
its method of accounting for mortgage servicing rights in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 156, Accounting for Servicing of Financial Assets, an amendment of FASB Statement No. 140.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
{United States), the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on criteria
established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission and our report dated February 28, 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

Isf ErnsT & Younc LLP

Los Angeles, California
February 28, 2008



INDYMAC BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Dollars in thousands)

December 31
. 2007 . 2006
_ ASSETS

Cash and cashequivalents. . . ...... ... ... .. it inrnrannnnnn, $ 561,832 § 541,725
Securities classified as trading. ... . . e e e 1,222,543 542,731
Securities classified as available forsale ... ... ... ... .. ... . oL 6,105,976 4,900,514
Loans held forsale . . .. .....oovuneirininn e, R 3,776,904 9,467,843
Loans held for investment, net of allowance for loan losses of $398,135 and :

$62,386 at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively . ........... ... ... . 16055911 10,114,823
Mortgage servicing rights . . .. ........ ... .. ..... e 2,495,407 1,822,455
L 11 7o) g1 £ S 2,515,895 2,105,225

Total ASSEES . . o vt e e e e e e T $32,734.468  $29,495.316

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY i

Liabilities:
=1 -3 P $17.815,243  $10,898,006
Advances from Federal Home Loan Bank . ... ........... ... ... ... ... 11,188,800 10,412,800
Other borrowings . .......... P .. 652,778 4,637,000
Other liabilities. . .. ... i 1,242,509 1,519,242

Total liabilities . ................. P D 30,899,330 27,467,048
Perpetual preferre(i stock in subsidiary. . ... ... . e ;191,314 —
Sharcholders’ Equity:
Preferred stock — authorized, 10,000,000 shares of $0.01 par value; none

T T S —_ —
Common stock — authorized, 200,000,000 shares of $0.01 par value; issued

108,860,912 shares and 102,258,939 shares at December 31, 2007 and 2006,

reSpeCtiVElY . . . L e 1,089 1,023
Additional paid-in-capital, common stock ............ ... . oL 1,750,419 1,597,814
Accumulated other comprehensive loss . ... ... ... ... oo L.. (139,221) (31,439
Retained earmings . . . ... ... ... .. e 238,972 983,348
TreasUry SIOCK . . ..ttt ittt e (507,435) (522,478)

Total shareholders” equity .. ....... ... ... i 1,343,824 2,028,268

Total liabilities and shareholders” equity. . .. ........ ... ... .. ... ... ... 332,734,468  $29,495,316

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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INDYMAC BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIIMARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Year Ended December 31

2007 2006 2005
Interest income .
Mortgage-backed and other securities . ....... e e $ 406376 § 319,846 § 208,560
Loansheld forsale . ........ ... ... ... ... . . ... 994,886 797,460 430,857
-Loans held forinvestment . .. ....... ... ... .. .. ... ... 712,783 585,738 405,855
Other . .. e 73,662 47,972 29,083
Total interest income. . . .' ............................ 2,187,707 1,751,016 1,074,355
Interest expense ) _
Deposits . .. .. e 663,217 408,208 195,528
Advances from Federa! Home Loan Bank . ... .............. 701,226 491,300 281,929
Other bormowings . ... ... ... i i e e 256,522 324,787 172,187
‘ Total interest EXPENsSe . ... ..o v vr e vnren ... P 1,620,965 1,224,295 649,644
Netinterest INCOME . . . . ... ..ttt it i e iiat i 566,742 526,721 424711
Provision for loan losses . . . ...t 395,548 19,993 9,978
Net interest income after provision for loan losses . .. ......... 171,194 506,728 414,733
Non-interest income (loss) )
Gain (loss)onsaleof loans. . . .. ... .. ... ... .. oo, (354,360) 668,054 592,175
Service fee INCOME . . . . ... ot e 519,253 101,317 44,235
Gain (loss) on mortgage-backed securities . . .. .............. (439,713) 20,482 17,866
Fee and otherincome ... ................. e 107,190 50,122 36,701
Total non-interest income (10s§) ... ..... .. .o v .. (167,630) 839,975 690,977
T A T3 T T 3,564 1,346,703 1,105,710
Non-interest expense. . . . . ... . ... it 975,411 790,083 619,088
Earnings (loss) before provision (benefit) for income taxes and
MUNOTILY INIETESES . . .. ..ottt it e (971,847) 556,620 486,622
Provision (benefit) for income taxes . ... ....... ... . ....... (380,060) 212,567 191,989
Net earnings (loss) before minority interests ................ (591,787 344,053 294,633
Minority inErestS . . .. ... it e e e (23,021) (1,124} (1,505)
Netearnings(loss). . .......... ... . ... . ... ....... . 3 (614,808) §$ 342929 § 293,128
Earnings (loss) per share:
JBasic ..o b (828) §% 507 % 4.67
Diluted(1). .. oo i e b (8.28) § 482 § 4,43
Weighted average shares outstanding:
Basic ... ... e 74,261 67,701 62,760
Diluted(1). . . ..o oo e e 74,261 71,118 66,115
Dividends declared pershare . . .......................... $ 175 % 1.88 % 1.56

(1) Due to the net loss for the year ended December 31, 2007, no potentially dilutive shares are included in the
diluted loss per share calculation as including such shares in the calculation would be anti-dilutive.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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INDYMAC BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
AND COMPREHENSIVE. INCOME (LOSS)
(Dollars in thousands)

Accumulated
Additlonal Other Total
Shares Common Patd-In- Comprehensive Retained Treasury Sharéholders’
Qutstanding Stock  Capital Loss Earnings  Stock Equity

Balance at December 31, 2004, retrospectively adjusted . . 61,995,480 $ 912 $1,254,793  § (20,304) § 564,705 $(519.835) -$1,280,271
Comprehensive income: . )
Net earnings, retrospectively adjusted . .. . ..... ... — - — o~ . 293128 - ,293,128
Other comprehensive income {loss), net of tax:
Net unrealized loss on mortgage-backed securities

available forsale . ................... — —_ — (16,733) — — (16,733)
Net unrealized gain on derivatives used in cash - . .
flowhedges. . ....... ... . ciiiaiin — — — 21,880 —_ — 21,880
Total comprehensive income . .. .. ... . ... .. — - — — — — - 298275
Exercises of common stock options . . . .......... .. 1,833,369 18 43,435 - _— — 43,453
Exercisesof warrants . . . . ... ... ... eanan 138,794 1 3,035, — \ — —_ 3,036
Compensation expenses for common stock options . . . . . — — 12,109 — T - — 12,109
Net officers’ notes receivable payments . ........... — — 101 — — - 101
Deferred compensation and restricted stock amortization,
net of forfeitures . . ... ... ... .. ., 295,544 3 5278 — - —_ 5281
Purchases of commen stock. .. . ... ... ... ... (16,420) — — — - (582) (582)
Cashdividends. . ... ... oo oot — — — (98,503) . — (98,503)

oy
2l

Balance at December 31, 2005, retrospectively adjusted . 64,246,767 9
Comprehensive income: .
Netearmings, o o oo oo e v v e e — — — — 342,929 - 342929
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax: :
Net unreatized gain on mortgage-backed securities , . ,
available forsale . . . . ... ... ... oL — — — 5,921 — —_— 5921

1,318,751 (15,157) 759,330 (520,417) 1,543,441

Net unrealized loss on derivatives used in cash flow : . . C
hedges . .......... ... .. . ... .. — e — (16,035) —_ — (16,035)
Total comprehensive income . .. ................ — — — — — — 332,815
Cumulative-effect adjustment due to change in accounting S ’

FOrMSBRS. .. .t e — — — — 10,624 — 10,624
Adjustment on initial application of SFAS 158, net of -

BB . e e e e — — — 6,168) — — (6,168)
Issuance of common stock .. ..., ... ... 3,532,360 35 148,435 — _ — 148470
Exercises of common stock options . . . ... . ... ... 857,489 9 23,486 — - — 23,495
Exercises of warmmants. . . ........... e 3,957,000 40 86,883 — — — " 86,923
Compensation expenses for common stock options . . . . . — - 9,630 — —. — 49,630
Net officers” noles receivable payments .. .......... — — {07 — — — 109
Deferred compensation and restricted stock amortization, :

netof forfeitures . .. ....... ... . ... ... . ... 475,468 5 10,520 - — —— 10.525
Purchases of common stock. . . . ..............:. (51,728) — — —_ — 2061 ' (2061
Cashdividends. ... ............. ... e — — — —  .(129,535) —  (129,535)
Balance at December 31,2006 . .. .. ............ 73,017,356 1,023 1,597,814 (31,439} 983,348 (522,478) 2,028,268
Comprehensive Toss: . .

Netloss. . ...t i v e — — —  {614,808) —  (614,808)

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Net unrealized loss on mortgage-backed securities

available forsale. .. ........ PN A — — — 97.769) - - - 97,769)
Net unrealized loss on derivatives used in cash flow
hedges ... ... e — — - (14,922) — — (14,922)
Change in pension liability . . ............... — — — 4,909 — — 4,909
Total comprehensive loss . .. ... ... ... ... .. . (722,590}
Issuance of common stock ... ................. 7.427,104 74 145,514 — — — 145,588
Exercises of common stock options . . ... ........ .. 145,033 — 1 — — 2,591 2,592
Fxercisesof warrants . . . ... ... ... . anas 63,888 1 1,405 — —_ —_ 1,406
Compensation expense for common stock options . . . . . . — — 7,943 — — — -, 7943
Net officers’ notes receivable payments . .. ......... — —_ 342 - — - o342
Deferred compensation and restricted stock amortization, .
netof forfertures . . ... ... ..t 275272 [¢)] {2,600) — — 14,009 11,400
Purchases of common stock. . .. . ... ... ... . ... (43,232) — — — —_ (1,557) (1557 -
Cashdividends. . .. ........ ... .. ... — — — — (129,568) —  (129,568)
21

Balance at December 31,2007 . ... ... ........... 80,885.421 §1,089 $1,750419  $(139,221) $ 238,972 $(507435) $1,343.824

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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INDYMAC:BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS-
(Dollars in thousands)

Year Ended December 31

2007 2006 2005
Cash flows from operating actmtles
Net (loss) earnings.«. . .....5 ... ... DO T R Hlleuvde.oo. 8 (614,808) 0§ 342929 % 293,128
Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) earnings to net cash used m'opcratmg . e * .
activities: ... ... ... .. e SR P . e .. g
Loss (gain)onsaleofloans. .. ...................... PP 354,360 (668,054) (592,175)
Compensation expenses related to stock options and resmcted stock ey 19,343 20,155 17,389
" Other amortization and deprec:atlon ..... s 126918 93,515 '59,393
Change in valuation of morigage scmcmg nghts e TR a, 120) 367,234 269,586
Loss (gain) on mortgage-backed securmes net : e e M e e 439714 j‘;'--. (20,482). - (17,866)
‘Provision for loan losses . ... ........ ... e '1"'.1' N A 395,548. 19,993 9,978
(Benefit) provision for deferred income taxes .................. e . (380, 060) 245,115 ., 166,369
Net (increase) ‘decréase in other assets and liabilities . ... ... PR 134,272 90,012 17,110
Net cash provided by operating “activities before activity for trading securities ~ : o
and loans held forsale .. ....... .. ... .. . 474,163 490,417 222,912
Net (purchases) sales of trading securities. . ... ................. R (436,971) 360,547 109,721
Net (purchases and origination) sales: of loans held forsale ........ e b (7,530,030) (8,253,670) (4,909,424)
Net cash used’in operaling activities . . J.+. ... .. R CLu (7,492,938) -(7,402,706) (4,576,791)
Cash flows from investing activities: T
(Additions to) repayments of loans held for investment, net. . .. ........ (857.854) {157,3713) 176,639
Proceeds from sale of loans held for investment. . . ................. 3,304,640 1,147,292 932,378
Purchases of mortgage-backed securitics available forsale ............ (622,347) (1,170,559} (819,997)
Proceeds from sales of and principal payments from mortgage-backed
securities available forsale . ....... ... ..l . 1,438,804 997,623 822,748
Net decrease (mcrcase) in investment in FHLB stock at'cost "L A 85,977 {205,792y,  (165,546)
Net (increase) decrease in real estate investment- . . . . . S TN (1,009) 10,780 (32,260)
Net sale {purchases) of property, plant and equipment ....t.......... 28,610 (99.947) (109,076}
Purchase of Financial Freedom minority interest . .. .. ... U R S . — (40,000) , —
Net cash provided by investing activities . .. ................. ca.n ot 3,376,821 482,024 . 804,886
Cash flows from financing activities: . o S . ‘
Netincrease indeposits ... ... .. ... ..o o er. 6,908,823 3,222,155 1,925,557
Net increase in advances from Federal Home Loan Bank . . . . . . T, 776,000 3,459,800 791,000
Net (decrease) increase in borrowings. .. ... ... ... .o o ... {4,040,448) 69,797 1,104,208
Net proceeds from issuance of common stock .. . .................. 145,588 148,470
Net proceeds from issuance of trust preferred securities . . .- . "N 4.0 fa. . 30,000 188,000 90000
Redemption of trust preferred securities . ......... ... .. ... .... (48,268) 47.271)
Nel praceeds from stock options, warrants, and notés receivable « .1 .2 ., - 4,340 110,527 © - 46,591
Proceeds from issuance of preferred stock.by.subsidiary . . ... .. ... .. 491,314 L= . —
LCash dividends paid ... ............... e e I . (129.568) (129,535) (98,501}
, Purchases of common stock. .. .................. .. ..., AP " {1,557) ©(2,061) (582)
Net cash provided by Fnancmg activities. .. ......... . 4,136,224 7,019,882 3,858,273
L to-, Pt . - T -
Net increase in cash and cash equwalents e e e 20,107 99,200 86,368
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning ‘of'year.. .. ........... I - 541,725 - 442,525 - 356,157
Cash and cash equivalents'at end of year A, U Lo $77561,832 0% 541,725 % 442,525
Supplemental cash flow information: S ’ ' T
Cash paid forinterest . .. ............... ... ..., I $ 1,546,637 §$1,168615 % 600,683
Cash paid (received)-forincome taxes .. .........:.:. . ... .. ..., $ . 12,185 .3 . (56.258)..% 70,312
Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing and financing activities: . TR
Net transfer of loans held for sale to loans held for investment .. .. -, ... $10,240,773  $2951,131 . $ 2,691,949
Net transfer of loans held for investment to loans held forsale .......... $ 1,865072 $ 957,563 $ 849689
Net transfer of mortgage servicing righté to trading securities ... .. ... . $' 54993 §' 4723 'S 8491
s N ' y ! S vt v . 3
LN o . r - L .
The accompanymg notes. are an mtegral pa.n of these consolidated financial statements. -
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INDYMAC BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1

- Financial Statement Presentation

IndyMac Bancorp, Inc. is a savings and loan holding company. References to “IndyMac Bancorp” or the
“Parent Company” refer to the parent company alone while references to “Indymac,” the “Company,” *we” or *‘us”
refer to Indymac Bancorp and its consolidated subsidiaries. '

The consolidated financial statements include the accourits of Indymac Bancorp and all of its wholly-owned
and majority-owned subsidiaries, including IndyMac Bank, F.S.B. (“Indymac Bank” or “Bank”) and variable
interest entities. All significant intercompany balances and transactions with Indymac’s consolidating subsidiaries
have been eliminated in consolidation. Minority interests and perpetual preferred stock in Indymac’s majority-
owned subsidiaries or variable inferest entities are either reported separately or included in other liabilities on the
consolidated balance sheets. Minority interests in Indymac’s earnings are reported separately on the consolidated
statements of operations.

. t
The consolidated financial statements of Indymac are prepared in conformity with U.S. generally accepted -
accounting principles (“U.S. GAAP”). Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current
year presentation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of these consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires manage-
ment to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and
accompanying notes. Significant estimates include the allowance for loan losses (“ALL”), lower of cost or market
(“LOCOM”) on loans held for sale, secondary market reserves and the valuation of our hedging instruments,
mortgage servicing rights (“MSRs”), AAA-rated and agency interest-only and principal-only securities, late fee
securities, prepayment penalty securities, non-investment grade securities and residual interests for which active
markets do not exist. Actual results may differ significantly from those estimates and assumptions,

New Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Interpretation 48, “Accounting for
Uncertainty in Income Taxes” (“FIN 48™), an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109, “Accounting for Income
Taxes”. FIN 48 clarifies the accounting and reporting for income taxes where interpretation of the law is uncertain.
FIN 48 prescribes a comprehensive model for the financial statement recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of income tax uncertainties with respect to positions taken or expected to be taken in income tax returns.
FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. The Company adopted this Statement on
January 1, 2007 and recognizes interest and penalties in other expense. The adoption of FIN 48 did not have a
material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (“SFAS 1577). SFAS 157
addresses how companies should measure fair value when they are required to use a fair value measure for
recognition or disclosure purposes under U.S. GAAP. SFAS 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for
measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS 157 is effective prospectively
for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. The Company will adopt SFAS 157 prospectively on January, 1,
2008, with no cumulative-effect adjustment to beginning retained earnings.

In February 2007, the FASB issued Statement No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities” (“SFAS 159”). SFAS 159 would allow the Company an irrevocable election to measure
certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses on the elected items recognized
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INDYMAC BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

in earnings at each reporting period. The fair value option may only be elected at the time of initial recognition of a
financial asset or financial liability or upon the occurrence of certain specified events. The election is applied on an
instrument by instrument basis, with a few exceptions, and is applied only to entire instruments and not to portions
of instruments. SFAS 159 also provides expanded disclosure requirements regarding the effects of electing the fair
value option on the financial statements. SFAS 159 is effective prospectively for fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2007. The Company intends to elect the fair value option effective January 1, 2008 for certain
existing and new loans held for sale, including reverse mortgage loans. This adoption will not have a material
impact en the consolidated financial statements.

In April 2007, the FASB issued FSP No. FIN 39-1, “Amendment of FASB Interpretation No. 39" (“FSP 39-1"),
FSP 39-1 amends FIN No. 39, “Offsetting of Amounts Related to Certain Contracts” (“FIN 39”), to permit a
reporting entity to offset fair value amounts recognized for the right to reclaim cash collateral (a receivable) or the
obligation to return cash collateral (a payable) against fair value amounts recognized for derivative instrumerits
executed with the same counterparty under the same master netting arrangement offset in accordance with FIN 39,
FSP 39-1 also amends FIN 39 for certain terminology modifications. FSP 39-1 is effective for fiscal years beginning
after November 15, 2007, with early application permitted. Upon adoption of FSP 39-1, a reporting entity is
permitted to change its accounting policy to offset or not offset fair value amounts recognized for derivative
instruments under master netting arrangements. The Company adopted FSP 39-1 on September 30, 2007 and
elected to offset derivative instruments executed with the same counterparty under the same master netting
arrangement and to net cash collateral paid or collected in accordance with FSP 39-1. The adoption of FSP 39-1 did
not have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements. ‘ '

In October 2007, the Securities Exchange Commission (“SEC”) issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No, 109,
“Written Loan Commitments Recorded at Fair Value Through Earnings” (“SAB 1097)."SAB 109 supersedés
SAB No. 105, “Application of Accounting Principles to Loan Commitments™ (“SAB 1057), to provide guidance
regarding written loan commitments accounted for at fair value through eamings. The SEC determined the expected
net future cash flows related to the associated servicing of the loan should be included in the measurement of all
written loan commitments that are accounted for at fair value through earnings. The Company will adopt SAB 109
prospectively for derivative loan commitments issued or modified beginning January 1, 2008. This adoption will not
have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements. o '

In December 2007, the FASB issued Statement No. 141 (revised 2007), “Business Combinations”
(“SFAS 141(R)™), which requires an acquiring entity to recognize, with certain exceptions, the fair value of
the acquired entity as a whole, regardless of the percentage ownership in the acquired entity or how the acquisition
was achieved. This Statement also recognizes contingent consideration arrangements at their acquisition-date fair
values, with subsequent changes in fair value generally reflected in earnings. SFAS 141(R) is effective for business
combination transactions for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting
period beginning on or after December 15, 2008, with early adoption prohibited. The Company will adopt this
Statement on January 1, 2009. '

In December 2007, the FASB issued Statement No. 160, “Noncontrolling interests in Consolidated Financial
Statements” (“SFAS 160™), an amendment of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51, “Consolidated Financial
Statements.” SFAS 160 is based on the econemic entity concept of consolidated financial statements, and all
residual economic interest holders in an entity have an equity interest in the consolidated equity, even if the residual
interest is relative to only a portion of the entity. This Statement requires the presentation of noncontrolling interests
and controlling interests as separate components of equity in the consolidated statement of financial position with
disclosures about attributes and transactions pertaining to noncontrolling interests. SFAS 160 also requires that
earnings attributed to the noncontrolling interests are to be recorded as part of consolidated earnings and not as'a
separate component of income or expense. The Statement requires disclosure of the attribution of consolidated
earnings to the controlling and noncontrolling interests on the consolidated income statement. SFAS 160 is effective
for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008, with early adoption prohibited. SFAS 160 is required to be

v
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INDYMAC BANCORP, INC, . AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

adopted prospectively, except for certain provisions which are required to be adopted retrospectively. The Company
will adopt this Statement on January 1, 2009, and is assessing the impact of the adoption of this Statement.

‘Cash and Casi; Equivalents

L

Cash and cash equivalents include non-restricted cash on deposit and overnight investments.

Mortgage-Backed Securities

Mortgage-backed securities (“MBS”) consist of AAA-rated senior securities, investment and non-investment
grade securities, AAA-rated and agency interest-only and principal-only securities, prepayment penalty securities,
late fee securities, residual securities, and agency notes. AAA-rated interest-only securities, prepayment penalty
securities, late fee securities, and residual securities, as well as the securities that the Company considers as hedges
of its AAA-rated interest-only securities, residual securities and MSRs, are carried as trading securities. All other
MBS are classified as.available for sale, including home equity lines of credit (“HELOCs”) residual securities
created in two separate securitization transactions through which HELOCs loans were recharacterized as securities
available for sale. All securities are carried at fair value, which is estimated based on market quotes, when available,
or on discounted cash flow techniques using assumptions for prepayment rates, market yield requirements and
credit losses when market quotes are not available. We estimate future prepayment rates based upon current and
expected future interest rate levels, collateral seasoning and market forecasts, as well as relevant characteristics of
the collateral underlying the assets, such as loan types, prepayment penalties, interest rates and recent prepayment
experience. These assumptions are estimates as of a specific point in time and will change as interest rates or
economic conditions change. Premiums or discounts on securitie$ available for sale are amortized or accreted into
income using the effective interest method. : . -

Securities classified as trading are carried at fair value with changes in fair value being recorded through
current earnings. Unrealized gains and losses resulting from fair value adjustments on investment securities and
MBS available for sale are excluded from earnings and reported as a separate component of other qomprehenswe
income (**OCT"), net of taxes, in shareholders’ equity. If we determine a decline in fair value of an available for sale
security is other than temporary, an impairment write-down is recognized in current earnings. Realized gains and
losses are calculated using the specific identification method.

Loans Held for Sale

Loans held for sale (“HFS™) consist primarily of residential mortgage loans, which are. secured by one-to-four
family- residential real estate located throughout the United States. We originate and purchase mortgage loans
generally with the intent to sell them in the secondary market. Loans HFS are carried at the lower of aggregate cost,
net of purchase discounts or premiums, deferred fees, deferred origination costs and effects of hedge accounting, or
fair value. Historically, the fair value of loans HFS was determined using current secondary market prices for loans
with similar coupons, maturities and credit quality. Given recent market disruptions, these current secondary market
prices generally relied on to value HFS loans were not available. As a result, the Company considered other factors,
including: 1) quoted market prices for to be announced (“TBA™) securities (for agency-eligible loans); 2) recent
transaction settlements or traded but unsettled transactions for similar assets; 3) recent third party market
transactions for similar assets; and 4) modeled valuations using assumptions the Company believes a reasonable
market participant would use in valuing similar assets (assumptions may include loss rates, prepayment rates,
interest rates, volatilities, mortgage-spreads). At December 31, 2007, the majority of the Company’s loans HFS are
GSE-eligibte. As these loans have reliable market price information, the fair value of these loans continues to be
based on quoted market prices of similar assets. For the non eligible for sale to Government Sponsored Enterprises
(“GSEs") loans, including loans transferred to held for investment at the lower of cost or fair value, the valuation of
these loans necessarily requires more reliance on recent third party market transactions for similar assets and
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INDYMAC BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

modeled valuations using assumptions the Company believes a reasonable market participant would use in valuing
similar assets. -

Sing:e there was very limited available price discovery due to the collapse of the secondary market for non-GSE
mortgages, the estimation of fair value in the second half of 2007 required significant management judgment.

While management believes its determination of fair values is reasonable in the circumstances, even small
changes in the underlying assumptions, application of different valuation approaches or a different assessment of
the weight of evidence from the available sources of information could have resulted in significantly different
estimates,

The Company adopted SAB 105 on April 1, 2004 and will adopt SAB 109 on Januvary 1, 2008 on a prospective
basis. In accordance with SAB 105, the Company no longer recognizes any revenue at the inception of a rate lock
commitment, and thus excludes the day one value on rate fock commitments from the fair value of loans HFS. Initial
value inherent in the rate lock commitments at origination is recognized at the time of the sale of the underlying
loans. Upon adoption of SAB 109, the Company will recognize revenue at the inception of a rate lock commitment.

The fair value of mortgage loans is subject to change primarily due to changes in market interest rates. Under
our risk management policy, we hedge the changes in fair value of our loans HFS primarily by selling. forward
contracts on agency securities. We formally designate and document certain of these hedging relationships as fair
value hedges and record the changes in the fair value of hedged loans HFS, as an adjustment to the carrying basis of
the loan through gain on sale of loans in current eamnings. We record the related hedging instruments at fair value
with changes in fair value also recorded in gain on sale of loans in current earnings. The non-designated pipeline
hedges are recorded at fair value in gain on sale of loans.

As part of our mortgage banking operations, we enter into commitments to purchase or criginate loans
whereby the interest rate on the loans is determined prior to funding (“rate lock commitments”). We report rate lock
commitments on loans we intend to sell as derivatives as defined in SFAS 133 and determine the fair value of rate
lock commitments using current secondary market prices for underlying loans with similar coupons, maturity and
credit quality, subject to the anticipated loan funding probability, or fallout factor. Similar to loans HFS, the fair
value of rate lock commitments is subject to change primarily due to changes in interest rates. In addition, the value
of rate lock commitments is affected by changes in the anticipated loan funding probability or fallout factor. Under
our risk management policy, we hedge these changes in fair value primarily by selling forward contracts on agency
securities. Both the rate lock commitments and the related hedging instruments are recorded at fair value with
changes in fair value being recorded in gain on sale of loans in current eamnings.

Our recognition of gain or loss on the sale of loans is accounted for in accordance with FASB Statement
No. 140, “Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities,”
(“SFAS 140™). SFAS 140 requires that a transfer of financial assets in which we surrender control over the assets
be accounted for as a sale to the extent that consideration other than beneficial interests in the transferred assets is
received in exchange. The carrying value of the assets sold is allocated between the assets sold and the retained
interests based on their relative fair values.

SFAS 140 requires, for certain transactions completed after the initial adoption date, a “true sale” analysis of
the treatment of the transfer under state law as if the Company was a debtor under the bankruptcy code. A “true sale”
legal analysis includes several legally relevant factors, such as the nature and level of recourse to the transferor and
the nature of retained servicing rights. The analytical conclusion as to a “true sale” is never absolute and
unconditional, but contains qualifications based on the inherent equitable powers of a bankruptcy .court, as well
as the unsettled state of the common law. Once the legal isolation test has been met under SFAS 140, other factors
concerning the nature and extent of the transferor’s control over the transferred assets are taken into account in order
to determine whether derecognition of assets is warranted, including whether the special-purpose entity (“SPE”) has
complied with rules concerning qualifying special-purpose entities.
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INDYMAC BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

The Company is not eligible to become a debtor under the bankruptcy code. Instead, the insolvency of the
Company is generally governed by the relevant provisions of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”)
‘Federal Deposit Insurance Act and the FDIC's regulations. However, the “true sale” legal analysis with respect to
the Company i is similar to the “true sale” analysis that would be done if the Company were sub}ect to the bankruptcy
code.

A legal opinion regarding legal isolation for each securitization has been obtained by the Company. The “true
sale” opinion provides reasonable assurance the purchased assets would not be characterized as the property of the
transferring Company’s receivership or conservatorship estate in the event of insolvency and also states the
transferor would not be required to substantively consolidate the assets and liabilities of the purchaser SPE with
those of the transferor upon such event.

The securitization process involves the sale of the loans to one of our wholly-owned bankruptcy remote
special-purpose entities which then sells the loans to a separate, transaction-specific securitization trust inexchange
for the considerations generated by the sale of the MBS issued by the securitization trust. The securitization trust
issues and sells undivided interests to third-party investors that entitle the investors to specified cash flows generated
from the securitized loans. These undivided interests are usually represented by certificates with varying interest
rates, and are secured by the payments on the loans acquired by the trust, and commonly include senior and
subordinated classes. The senior class securities are usuaily rated “AAA™ by at least two of the major independent
rating agencies and have priority over the subordinated classes in the receipt of payments. We have no obligation to
provide credit support to either the third-party investors or the securitization trusts. Generally, neither third-party
investors nor securitization trusts have recourse to our assets or us; and neither have the ability to require us to
repurchase their securities other than through enforcement of the standard representations and warranties. We do
make certain representations and warranties concerning the loans, such as lien status or mortgage insurance
coverage, and if we are found 1o have breached a representation or warranty, we may be required to repurchase the
loan from the securitization trust. We do not guarantee any securities issued by the securitization trusts. The
securitization trusts represent “qualified special-purpose entities,” which meet certain criteria of SFAS 140, and are
therefore not consolidated for financial reporting purposes.

In addition to the cash we receive from the sale of MBS, we often retain certain interests in the securitization
trust. These retained interests may include subordinated classes of securities, MSRs, AAA-rated interest-only and
principal-only securities, residual securities, cash reserve funds, securities associated with prepayment charges and
late fees on the underlying mortgage loans, or an over collateralization account. Other than MSRs! AAA-rated
interest-only and principal-only securities, and securities associated with prepayment charges and late fees on the
underlying mortgage loans, these retained interests are subordinated and serve as credit enhancement for the more
senior securities issued by the securitization trust. AAA-rated interest-only and principal-only securities, securities
associated with prepayment charges and late fees on the underlying mortgage loans, and non-HELOC residual
interests retained are included in “Securities classified as trading,” while other subordinated securities retained and
HELOC residuals are included in “Securities available for sale” on the consolidated balance sheets.

We usually retain the servicing function for the securitized mortgage loans. As a servicer, we are entitled to
receive a servicing-fee equal to a specified percentage of the outstanding principal batance of the loans or a fixed
dollar amount for our reverse mortgage servicing. We may also be entitled to receive additional servicing
compensation, such as late payment fees or prepayment charges.

Transaction costs associated with the securitizations are recognized as a component of the gain or loss at the
time of sale.

When we reclassify loans from held for investment to held for sale, we reclassify them net of the portion of the
ALL that is attributable to the transferred loans, with a cormresponding reduction in the ALL.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Loans Held for Investment

Loans are classified as held for investment (“HFT”) based on management’s intent and ability to hold the loans
for the foreseeable future. Loans HFI are recorded at their unpaid principal balance, net of discounts and premiums,
unamortized net deferred loan origination costs and fees and allowance for loan losses. Discounts, premiums, and
net deferred loan origination costs and fees are amortized to income over the contractual life of the loan using the
effective interest method. . '

Interest is recognized as revenue when earned according to the terms of the loans and when, in the opinion of
management, it is collectible. Loans are evaluated for collectability and, if appropriate, interest accrual is
discontinued and previously accrued interest is reversed.

When we have both the intention and ability to hold the loans for the foreseeable future, we reclassify loans
from HFS to HFI at the lower of cost or fair value. )

Non-Accrual Loans

Loans are generally placed on non-accrual status when they are 90 days past due and charged-off upon
foreclosure. Large groups of smaller-balance homogeneous loans are collectively evaluated for impairment.
Impairment is measured based on the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective
interest rate, based on a loan’s observable market price, or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral
dependent. Specific factors used in the impaired loan identification process include, but are not limited to,
delinquency status, loan-to-value ratio, the condition of the underlying collateral, credit history, and debt coverage.
For impaired loans on non-accrual status, cash receipts are applied, and interest income is recognized, on a cash
basis. For all other impaired loans, cash receipts are applied to principal and interest in accordance with the
contractual terms of the loan and interest income is recognized on the accrual basis. Generally, a loan may be
returned to accrual status when all delinquent principal and interest are brought current in accordance with the terms
of the loan agreement and certain performance criteria have been met. The estimated loss upon liquidation on all
other loans held for investment is charged-off prior to or upon foreclosure.

We account for troubled loans in accordance with FASB Statement No. 15, “Accounting by Debtor and
Creditors for Troubled Debt Restructurings.” Troubled debt restructured loans are tested for impairment under
FASB Statement No. 114, “Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan” (“SFAS 114™), and placed on non-
accrual status. If borrowers perform pursuant to the modified loan terms for at least six months and the remaining
loan balances are considered collectible, the loans are returned to accrual status.

' Allowance for Loan Losses

We maintain an allowance for loan losses (ihe “allowance” or ALL) on loans held for invesiment. Additions to
the allowance are based on assessments of certain factors, including but not limited to, estimated probable losses on
the loans, borrower credit quality, delinquency, prior Ioan loss experience and general economic conditions.
Additions to the allowance are provided through a charge to earnings. Specific valvation allowances may be
established for loans that are deemed impaired, if default by the borrower is deemed probable, and if the fair value of
the loan or the collateral is estimated to be less than the gross carrying value of the loan. Actual losses on loans are
recorded as a reduction to the allowance through charge-offs. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged-off are credited to the allowance,

For the loans held for investment portfolio, an ALL is established and allocated to various loan types. The
determination of the Jevel of the ALL and, correspondingly, the provision for loan losses, is based on delinquency
trends, prior loan loss experience, and management’s judgment and assumptions regarding various matters,
including general economic conditions and loan portfolio composition. Management continuously evaluates these
assumptions and various relevant factors impacting credit quality and inherent losses. We utilize several
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methodologies to estimate the adequacy of our ALL and to ensure the allocation of the ALL to the various portfolios
is reasonable given current trends and economic outlook. In this regard, we segregate assets into homogeneous

pools of loans and heterogeneous loans.
- + *

Homogeneous pools of loans exhibit similar characterlstlcs and, as such, can be evaluated as pools of assets
through the assessment of default probabilities and corresponding loss severities. Our homogeneous pools include
residential mortgage loans, consumer construction loans, HELOCs, closed-end seconds, manufactured home loans
and home improvement loans. The estimate of the ALL for homogeneous pools is based on recent product-specific
migration patterns and recent loss experience. '

Our builder construction loans generally carry higher balances and involve unique loan characteristics that
cannot be evaluated solely through the use of default rates, loss severities and trend analysis. To estimate an
appropriate level of ALL for our heterogeneous loans, we constantly screen the portfolios on an individual asset
basis to classify problem credits and to estimate potential loss exposure. [n this estimation, we determine the level of
adversely classified assets (using the classification criteria described below) in a portfolio and the related loss
potential and extrapolate the weighting of those two factors across all assets in the portfolio.

Our asset classification methodology was designed in accordance with guidelines established by our super-
visory regulatory agencies as follows:

e Pass — Assets classified Pass are assets that are weil protected by the net worth and paying capacity of the
borrower or by the value of the asset or underlying collateral.

* Special Mention — Special Mention assets have potential weaknesses that require close attention, but have
not yet jeopardized the timely repayment of the asset in full:

* Substandard — This is the first level of adverse classification. Assets in this category are inadequately
protected by the net worth and paying capacity of the borrower or by the value of the collateral. Substandard
assets are characterized by the distinct possibility some loss will occur if the deficiencies are not corrected.

« Doubtful — Assets in this category have the same weaknesses as a substandard asset, with the added
characteristic that based on current facts, conditions and values, liguidation of the asset in full is highly
improbable.

* Loss — Assets in the Loss category are considered uncoilectible and of such little value that the continuance
as an asset, without establishment of a specific valuation allowance, is not warranted.

A component of the overall ALL is not specifically allocated (“unallocated component”). The unallocated
component reflects management’s assessment of various factors that create inherent imprecision in the methods
used to determine the specific portfolio allocations. Thase factors include, but are not limited to, levels of and trends
in delinquencies and impaired loans, charge-offs and recoveries, volume and terms of the loans, effects of any
changes in risk selection and underwriting standards, other changes in lending pohcncs procedures, and practices,
and national and local economic trends dl‘ld conditions.

Impaired loans include loans classified as non-accrual where it is probable we will be unable to collect the
scheduled payments of principal and interest according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. When a loan
is deemed impaired, the amount of specific allowance required is measured by a complete analysis of the most
probable source of repayment, including the present value of the loan’s expected future cash flows, the fair value of
the underlying collateral less costs of disposition, or the loan’s estimated market value. In these measurements, we
use assumptions and methodologies that are relevant to estimating the level of impaired and unrealized losses in the
portfolio. To the extent the data supporting such assumptions has limitations, our judgment and experience play a
key role in enhancing the ALL esnmates

We transterred mortgage loans HFS to HFI and recorded a reducuon to the net investment, a portion of this
reduction represents credit losses we estimated in determining the market value of loans. This amount represents a
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“reserve” for future realized credit losses. If our estimate of inherent credit losses in the transferred pool increases,
we may record a provision for loan losses which will increase the ALL.

As the housing and mortgage markets deteriorated during 2007, we made adjustments to key assumptions used
to establish our loss reserves. Generally, we adjusted our assumptions as to frequency of mortgage loans moving to
default and the expected severities of losses from sales of underlying REO properties. We also adjusted assumptions
on our builder construction portfolio to give consideration to the prolect and market specific condition for loans in
this portfolio that have or are expected to default.

1

Secondary Market Reserve

The Company maintains a secondary market reserve for losses that arise in connection with loans we are
required to repurchase from GSEs and whole loan sales. This reserve has two general components: reserves for
repurchases arising from representation and warranty claims, and reserves for dlSpUIeS with investors and vendors
with respect to contractual obligations pertaining to mortgage operations. Reserve levels are a function of cxpccted
losses based on expected and actual pending claims and repurchase requests historical experience, loan volume and
loan sales distribution channels and the assessment of probability relatéd td such claims, and even small changes in
assumptions could result in significantly higher or lower estimate. While the qltifnale amount of repurchases and
claims is uncertain, management believes the reserve is adequate. We will continug (o evaltate the adequacy of our
reserve and may continue to allocate a portion of our gain on sale proceeds to the reserve going forward. Changes in
the level of provision to this reserve impacts the overall gain on sale margin from period to period. The entire
batance of our secondary market reserve is included-on the consolidated balance sheets as a component of “Other
liabilities™.

Mortgage Servicing Riéhts

We retain MSRs in connection with our mortgage banking operations. Under primary servicing agreements,
we collect monthly principal, interest and escrow payments from individual mortgagors and perform certain
accounting and reporting functions on behalf of the mortgage investors. Under master servicing agreements, we
collect monthly payments from various sub-servicers and perform certain accounting and reporting functions on
behalf of the mortgage investors.

We recognize MSRs as separate assets only when servicing is.contractually separated from the underlying
mortgage loans by sale or securitization of the loans with servicing retained or by separate purchase or assumption
of the servicing. MSRs are recorded at fair value with valuation changes, net of hedges, reported in “Service fee
income” in the consolidated statements of operations. Because a limited and illiquid market exists for MSRs, we
determine the fair value of our MSRs using discounted cash flow techniques. Using models primarily purchased
from third parties, we determine the fair value of recognized MSRs by estimating the present value of anticipated
future net cash flows. Estimates of fair value involve several assumptions, including the key valuation assumptions
about market expectations of future prepayment rates, interest rates and discount rates, which are subject to change
over time. Changes in these underlying assumptions-could cause the fair value of MSRs to change significantly in
the future. The Company maintains an economic hedge of its MSRs, designed primarily to mitigate the effects of
changes in market interest rates, however, there could be significant fluctuations in the fair value of the MSRs in
excess of the economic offset provided by the related hedging instruments. Prior to adoption of FAS 156, we carried
MSRs at amortized cost subject to periodic impairment assessment. For purposes of impairment evaluation and
measurement, we stratify our MSRs based on predominant risk characteristics, underlying loan type, interest rate
type, and interest rate level.
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Derivative Instruments

In seeking to protect our financial assets and liabilities from the effects of changes in market interest rates, we
have devised and implemented an asset/liability management strategy that seeks, on an economic basis, to mitigate
significant ﬂuctuatlons in our financial position and results of operations. We invest in MSRs, AAA-rated and
agency 1nterest-0n1y and residual securities to generate core fee and interest income. The value of these instruments
and the income they provide tends to be somewhat counter-cyclical to the changes in production volumes and gain
on sale of loans that result from changes in interest rates. With regard to the pipeline of mortgage loans held for sale,
in general, we hedge these assets with forward commitments to sell Fannie Mae (“FNMA™) or Freddie Mac
(“FHLMC") securities with comparable maturities and weighted average interest rates. Also, we use futures or
options in our pipeline hedging. To hedge our investments in MSRs, AAA-rated and agency interest-only and
residual securities, we use several strategies, including buying and/or selling mortgage-backed or U.S. Treasury
securities, forward rate agreements, futures, floors, interest rate swaps, or options, depending on several factors.
Lastly, we enter into interest rate swap and interest rate swaption agreements to hedge the cash flows on advances or
borrowings that are collateralized by our mortgage loans held for investment and MBS, ‘

SFAS 133 requires that we recognize all dcrlvatlve instruments on the balance sheet at fair value. If certain
conditions are met, hedge accounting may, be applled and the derivative instrument may be specifically designated
as: (a) a hedge of the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognized asset or Hability or unrecognized firm
commitment, referred” to as a fair value hedge or (b) a hedge of the exposure to the variability of cash flows of a
recognized asset, llablhty or forecasted transacnon refcrred to as a cash flow hedge.

In the case of a qualifying fair value hedge, changes in the value of the derivative instruments that are highly
effective (as defined in- SFAS 133) are recognized in current earnings along with the change in value of the
designated hedged item. In the case of a qualifying cash flow hedge, changes in the value of the derivative
instruments that are highly effective are recognized in “Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)” (“AOCI"}
on the consolidated balance sheets, until the hedged item is recognized in earnings. The ineffective portion of a
derivative’s change in fair value is recognized through earnings. Upon the occasional termination of a cash flow
hedge, the remaining cost of that hedge is amortized over the remaining life of the hedged item in proportion to the
change in the hedged forecasted transaction. We have derivatives in place to hedge the exposure to the variability in
future cash flows for forecasted transactions through 2017. Derivatives that are non-designated hedges, as defined in
SFAS 133, are adjusted to fair value through earnings. We formally document all qualifying hedge relationships, as
well as our risk management objective and strategy for undertaking each hedge transaction. We are not a party to
any foreign currency hedge relationships.

Foreclosed Assets

Real estate acquired in settlement of Joans is mmally recorded at fair value of the underlying property, less
estimated costs to sell, through a charge to the allowance for loan losses, secondary market reserve or to the related
valuation reserves for loans held for sale. Subsequent operating activity and declines in value are charged to
earnings. , . DL .

.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill, representing the excess of purchase price over the fair value of net assets acquired, resulted from
acquisitions we have made. Core deposit intangible asset is amortized using an accelerated method of amortization
over a period of ten years, which is the estimated life of the deposits acquired. Intangible assets from the acquisition
of the remaining shares of Financial Freedom Senior Funding Corporation are amortized on a straight-line basis
over a three-year period. Goodwill is not amortized, and we review our goodwill and other intangible assets for
other-than-temporary impairment at least annually If circumstances indicate that other-than-temporary impairment
might exist, recoverability of the asset is assessed based on expected undiscounted net cash flows.
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Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are included in other assets and are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization.
Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method in amounts sufficient to relate the cost of depreciable assets
to current earnings over their estimated service lives. Estimated service lives of furniture and equipment generally
range from three to seven years and 20 to 40 years for buildings. Leasehold improvements are amortized using the
straight-line method over the lesser of the life of the lease or the service lives of the improvements.

Software Development

We capitalize external direct costs of materials and services consumed in developing or obtaining internal-use
computer software and direct salary and benefit costs relating to the respective employees’ time spent on the
software project during the application development stage. The estimated service lives for capitalized software
generally range from three to seven years.

Income Taxes

Deferred income taxes in the accompanying consolidated financial statements are computed using the liability
method. Under this method, deferred income taxes are provided for d1fferences between the financial accounting
and income tax basis of our assets and liabilitics.

Share-Based Compensation

Our share-based compensation is provided to employees in accordance with the 2000 Stock Incentive Plan, as
amended, and the 2002 Incentive Plan, as amended and restated, which allow for the grant of various types of
awards (“Awards”) including, but not limited to, non-qualified stock options, incentive stock options, restricted
stock awards, performance stock awards, and stock bonuses to our employees, including officers and directors.
Awards are granted at the average market price of our stock on the gran: date.

The Company adopted FASB Statement No. 123 (revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS 123(R)™),
amendment of Statement No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” {“SFAS 123"} and Accounting
Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” (“APB 257), on January 1, 2006
using the modified-retrospective method, which requires the recognition of compensation expenses related to stock
options, and revised all prior periods in accordance with SFAS 123(R) at the time of adoption. See “Note 23 —
Benefit Plans™ for further details on stock incentive plans. '

The following summarizes net earnings as well as diluted earnings per share for the year ended December 31,
2005 (dollars in thousands, except per share data):

Reported net armings. . . . oo\ttt e e $300,226
Retrospective application of SFAS 123(R). .. ... ... . . . o i 7,098
A UStEd M AN S - . oL ottt et e e e e e $293,128
Adjusted average diluted shares . ....... ... ... ... .. ... e 66,115
Reported diluted earnings per share. . . ... ... .. . . .. e $ 454
Adjusted diluted eamings pershare. . .. ... ... . ... .. e $ 443

NOTE 2 — ACQUISITIONS

On April 1, 2007, the Company executed its definitive agreement with New York Mortgage Trust, Inc. to
purchase certain assets of the retail mortgage banking business of its wholly-owned taxable real estate investment
trust (“REIT”) subsidiary, The New York Mortgage Company, LLC (“NYMC"), for a purchase price of
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approximately $13.4 million. The Company purchased substantially all of the operating assets refated to NYMC's
retail mortgage banking platform, including the use of The New York Mortgage Company name, and assumed
certain liabilities of NYMC’s retail platform, including certain lease liabilities and obligations under the pipeline of
loan applications. The Company hired a majority of NYMC employees and assumed a portion of the retention and
severance expenses associated with the transaction. '

On July 16, 2004, the Company acquired 93.75% of the outstanding common stock of Financial Freedom
Holdings Inc. (“FFHI") and related assets from Lehman Brothers Bank, F.S.B. and its affiliates for an aggregate
cash purchase price of $84.6 million. In November 2004, FFHI merged into its wholly owned subsidiary, Financial
Freedom Senior Funding Corporation (“FFSFC”) in November 2004, with FFSFC as the surviving entity. The
Company owned 93.75% of the outstanding common stock of FFSFC, with the remaining 6.25% ownership held by
its Chairman (FFHI and FFSFC are referred to collectively as Financial Freedom herein). The transaction was
accounted for using the purchase method of accounting and resulted in $48.4 million recorded as goodwill. On
July 3, 2006, the Company acquired the remaining 6.25% of the outstanding common stock of Financial Freedom
from the Company’s Chairman for an aggregate cash purchase price of $40.0 million. Goodwill and other
intangibles recorded from the purchase were $29.1 million and $3.8 million, respectively. As a result of this
transaction, Financial Freedom became a wholly-owned subsidiary of Indymac Bank.

NOTE 3 — SEGMENT REPORTING

The Company operates through two primary segments: mortgage banking and thrift. The Company predom-
inantly uses generally accepted accounting principles to compute each division’s financial results as if it were a
stand-alone entity. Consistent with this approach, borrowed funds and their interest cost are allocated based on the
funds actually used by the Company to fund the division’s assets and capital is allocated based on regulatory capital
rules for the specific assets of each segment. Additionally, transactions between divisions are reflected at arms-
length in these financial results and intercompany profits are eliminated in consolidation. We do not allocate fixed
corporate and business unit overhead costs to our profit center divisions, because the methodologies to do so are
arbitrary and distort each division’s marginal contribution to our profits. To reconcile to our consolidated results,
commercial mortgage banking, mortgage banking overhead, elimination and other, and corporate overhead costs
are included in the “Other” column in the table below.

As conditions in the U.S. mortgage market have deteriorated, we have exited certain production channels and
are reporting them in a separate category in our segment reporting. These exited production channels include the
conduit, homebuilder and home equity channels. These activities are not considered discontinued operations as
defined by FASB Statement No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” due to our
substantial continuing involvement.

Loans are occasionally transferred (“sold”) from the production divisions to the thrift divisions at a premium
based on the estimated fair value. The premium paid for the loans is recorded as a gain in the production divisions
and a premium on the asset in the thrift divisions and eliminated in consolidation. In subsequent periods, this
premium is amortized as part of the thrift divisions’ net interest margin and the amortization is reversed in the
“Other” column in the tables below.
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The following presents segment information for the years indicated (dollars in thousands):

Mortgage Banking
Segment Conduit,
Mortgage  Mortgage Total Home Equity,
Production Servicing Thrift On-Geing  Homebuilder Total

Division Division Segment Other Business Divisions Company
Year Ended December 31, 2007 '
Net interest income (expense) . .. . .. $ 132,086 § (40,563) $ 234865 § 100225 § 426613 $ 140,129 °  § 566,742
Net revenues {expense) . . .. ..., ... 245,547 382,393 (236,306) 2,309 393,943 (390,379) 3.564
Net earnings (loss) . ... ... ...... 96,777) 181,427 (199247  (219.082) {(333,679) (281,129) {614,808)
Allocated average capital . ... ... .. 441,917 361,405 670,476 82,881 1,556,679 420,253 1,976,932
Assets as of December 31,2007 . ... $2,783,814  $3.839975 $21.811.374 $1,242243  $29,677.406 $3,057,062 $32.734,468
Retunonequity . ............. 22)% 50% (3% N/A (2% (6TY% 3%
Year Ended December 31, 2006
Net interest income (expense) . . .. . . $ 91648 % (11489 § 197333 § 67964 § 345456 § 181,265 § 526,721
Net revenues (expense) . ... ...... 700,248 161,441 257459 (20,954) 1,098,194 248,509 1,346,703
Net earmings (loss) - ... . ....... . 227,139 66,147 112,394 (175,118) 230,562 112,367 342,929
Allocated average capital . .. ... ... 370,703 253,235 536,943 * 197,506 1,358,387 437873 1,796,260
Assets as of December 31,2006 .. .. 34570229  $2,961,833 314309474 $1.005435  $22,846,971 56,648,345 $29,495316
Retornonequity . ... .......... 61% 26% 21% N/A 17% 26% 19%
Year Ended December 31, 2005
Net interest income (expense) . . .. .. $ 67931 § (4022) $ 199253 § 31464 § 294,626 $ 130,085 $ 44711
Net revenues (expense) . . ... .. . 654,636 78,980 238816 (32,535} 949,897 155813 1,105,710
Net earnings (loss) . ... ... ..., .. 242,995 27,992 108,481 (153,808) 225,660 67,468 293,128
Allocated average capital . . .. ... .. 260,591 119,071 421,345 297,992 1,098,999 281,868 1,380,867
Assets as of December 31,2005 . ... $2,758337 51493680 $10.598,882 $1,389.691  $16,240,590 $5.211,709 $21,452,299
Retunonequity . ............. 93% 24% 26% N/A 21% 24% 21%

IS
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NOTE 4 — MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES i

The following presents the composition of our MBS as of the dates indicated (dollars in thousands):

December 31
2007 2006
Mortgage-backed securities — trading
AAA-rated non-agency SECUrties . . ........ ... it $ 510371 § 43957
AAA-rated and agency interest-only securities .. .......... . ..., 59,844 73,570
AAA-rated principal-only securities .. ........ .. ... . 88,024 38,478
Prepayment penalty and late fee securities ..................... _ 82,027 97,576
Other investment grade securities . . ...... ... .o 275,691 29,015
Other non-investment grade securities. . ............o it 63,859 - 41,390
Non-investment grade residual securities. ... ................... 112,727 218,745
Total MBS — trading . . ... ... e e e e $1,222,543 § 542,731
MBS — trading pledged as collateral for borrowings . ........... $ 685869 $ 152,895
Mortgage-backed securities — available for sale
AAA-rated nON-agency SECUrities .. ... ... ..t T $5,543,306 $4,604,489
AAA-rated agency securities ... ... ... oL i i e 45,296 65,175
Other investment grade securities . ... ... ..o oo, 451,798 160,238
Other non-investment grade securities. ... ........ .. ... .o 61,889 38,784
Non-investment grade residual securities. ... ... .. e 3,687 31,828
Total MBS —available forsale ............. ... $6,105,976- $4,900,514
MBS — available for sale pledged as collateral for borrowings . . .. $5,685,770  $4,149.,201
Total mortgage-backed securities. . ........................... $7,328,519  $5,443,245

Contractual maturities of the MBS generally range from 10 to 30 years. Expected weighted average lives of
these securities generally range from several months to five years due to borrower prepayments occurring prior to

the contractual maturity.

The following summarizes the unrealized gains and losses of securities available for sale as of the dates

indicated (dollars in thousands):

December 31
2007 2006
AMOTHZEA COSE & o o o e e e e e e e et et e ettt a et $6,296,827 $4,930,825
Gross unrealized holding gains. . . ...... . . i 13,743 13,675
Gross unrealized holding losses . .. ... ... .. .. i (204,594) (43,986)
Estimated fair value. . .. .. ... .. $6,105,976  $4,900,514
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The following presents the unrealized losses and fair value of securities that have been in a continuous

unrealized loss position for less than 12 months and 12 months or greater as of the dates indicated (dollars in
thousands):

Less Than 12 Months 12 Manths or Greater ’ Total
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
’ Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value
December 31, 2007
Securities — available for sale:
AAA-rated non-agency o ‘
securities .. ............. $ (74,718) $2,980,556 $(33,446) $1,324,275 $(108,164) $4,304,831
AAA-rated agency securities. . . (137) 6,643 (1,233) 11,349 (1,370) 17,992
. Other investment grade
securities . .............. " {93,937 '_ 375,797 (1,123) 21,990 _ {95,060) 397,787

Total .......... ... $(168,792) $3,362,996 $(35,802) $1,357,614 3$(204,594) $4,720,610

December 31, 2006
Securities — available for sale:
AAA-rated non-agency

securities . ... ........... $ (1,482) § 460,767 $(39,315) $1,649,480 § (40,797) $2,110,247 .
AAA-rated agency securities. . . (585) 31,865 - (172) 16,498 (757 48,363
Other investment grade 7 ' -

securities .. ............. 477) 13,369 (1,891) 25,998 - (2,368) 39,367
Residual securities . ......... (64) 4,563 — —_ (64) 4,563 ,

Total ........ e $ (2,608) $ 510,564 $(41,378) $1,691,976 $ (43,986) $2,202,540 .

As of December 31, 2007, the available for sale securities that have been in unrealized loss position for
12 months or more are primarily related to AAA-rated non-agency securities issued by private institutions. These
unrealized losses are primarily attributable to changes in interest rates. Because we have the ability and the intent to
hold these investments until a recovery of fair value, which may be maturity, we do not consider these investments to
be other-than-ternporarily impaired at December 31, 2007. -

As a result of our periodic reviews for impairment in accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF")
99-20, “Recognition of Interest Income and Impairment on Certain Investments” (“EITF 99-20"), during the years
ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, we recorded $40.0 million, $10.2 million and $0.6 million, respectively,
in impairment charges on investment grade, non-investment grade and residual securities,

We value AAA-rated interest-only securities using an option-adjusted spread (“OAS™) methodology, in which
discount rates and future cash flows vary over time with the level of rates implied by each of 200 randomly-
generated forward interest rate paths. When available, market information is used to validate these assumptions.
The prepayment rates used to value our AAA-rated interest-only securities portfolio are based primarily on four-
factor prepayment models which incorporate relative weighted average coupon (“WAC™), seasoning, burnout, and
seasonality, as well as expectations of future rates implied by the forward LIBOR/swap curve, At December 31,
2007 and 2006, the weighted average constant lifetime prepayment rate assumption was 24.5% and 16.4%,
respectively, and the implied yield was 12.3% and 15.4%, respectively.

The fair value of our residual securities is determined by discounting estimated net future cash flows, using
discount rates that approximate current market rates and expected prepayment rates. Estimated net future cash flows
include assumptions related to expected credit losses on these securities. We maintain a model that evaluates the
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default rate and severity of loss on the residual securities’ collateral, considering such factors as loss experience,
delinquencies, toan-to-value ratio, borrower credit scores and property type.

The following details the assumptions used in valuing the residual securities as of the dates indicated:

December 31
2007 - 2006
Closed-End - Closed-End
Seconds Subprime Lot HELOC Seconds Subprime Lot HELOC
Weighted average discount rate . . . ... 23.1% 244% 21.8% 21.0% 24.6% 204% 23.5% 202%
Projected prepaymentrate . . . . ... ... 21.4% 247% 32.5% 199% 37.1% 395% 39.8% 503%
Remaining cumulative losses. ..... .. 146% 144% 32% 8.6% 8.1% 59% 06% 1.1%

There were no prime residual securities as of December 31, 2007 and 2006.

The fair value of all of our other investment and non-investment grade mortgage-backed securities is estimated
based on discounted cash flow techniques using assumptions for prepayment rates, market yield requirements and
credit losses, and market information when available.

As of December 31, 2007, the aggregate amount of the securities from each of the following issuers was greater
than 10% of consolidated shareholders’ equity (dollars in thousands):

Amortized Fair Market
Naﬂgu_s-s_tﬁ ) ) Cost Value
IndyMac INDX Mortgage Loan Trust 2007-AR21IP . ............... $1,592,652  $1,541,965
IndyMac INDA Mortgage Loan Trust 2007-AR8 .. ................ 185,933 172,264
IndyMac INDX Mortgage Loan Trust 2006-AR19 ................. 245,970 244,835
Residential Asset Securitization Trust Series 2006-A41P ... ... ... . ... 306,691 303,245
Residential Asset Securitization Trust Series 20060-A16. .. ........... 189,016 186,836
IndyMac Certificate Trust 2004-2. .. ... ... ... ... ... oo ont. 225,083 225,083
1 7 OO $2,745,345  $2,674,228

These issuers are qualifying special-purpose entities created by the Company in conjunction with the
securitization transactions with the objective to recharacterize loans as securities for the following purposes:
(1) lower our cost of funds; (2) improve our liquidity profile; and (3) improve our risk profile through the use of bond
insurance. Of the total securities from these issuers, 95% of the securities are AAA-rated asset-backed certificates.
Approximately $0.2 billion of these securities are insured by a third party.
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The following sets forth certain information regarding the weighted average yields and remaining contractual

maturities of our MBS portfolio as of December 31, 2007 (dollars in thousands):
More Than One  More Than Five

One Year or Year Years to Ten
Less to Five Years Years More Than Ten Years Total
Wid, Wtd. Wid. Wid. Wtd.
Fair Average Fair  Average  Fair Average Fair Average Fair Average

Value Yield(1) Value Yield{l) Value Yield{l) WValue Yield(1) Value Yield(l)

AAA-rated mortgage-backed securities

AAA-rated agency securities , , . ... .. $— - 3 - — 51908 645% § 43388 587% § 45296 S89%
AAA-rated non-agency securities . . . . . — — — — —_ — 6,053,677 5.75% 6,053,677 575%
AAA-rated and agency interest-oniy
securities . ... ... .. L. — — — — 169 15.95% 59,675 14.45% 59.844 14.45%
AAA-rated principal-only securities . .. — — — — — —_ 88,024 9.12% 88,024 9.12%
Total AAA-rated mortgage-backed .
SECURtIEs .. .........00nnn, — — — — 2,077 1.22% 6,244,764 5.88% 6,246,841 588%
Prepayment penalty and late fee . -
securities . ... ... .. ... ... ... 2 5728% 1,186 i5.00% — —_— 280,839 21.75% " 82,027 21.66%
Other investment grade mortgage- .
backed securities . . ... ....... ... — — 3810 8.04% — — 723679 170% 727489 7.90%
Other non-investment grade securities . . — — 17,067 11.27% - - 138,681 10.95%. 155748 1099%
Non-investment grade residual
securities . .. ... ... . o L. — 40846 22.00% — — - 75568 21.71% 116414 21.81%

i

“
(3]

Total mortgage-backed securities . . . . 57.28% $62,909 18.11% $2,077 7.22% $7.263,531 6.50% $7.328,519 6.60%

(1) The weighted average yield is computed based on the amortized costs of the securities.

Given prepayments on the undertying collateral of our MBS, we do not expect our MBS to remain cutstanding
throughout their contractual maturity periods. Therefore, contractual maturity is not a relevant measure of the
timing of our future expected cash flows. Actual economic cash flows are expected to be received much sooner.
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NOTE 5 — LOANS RECEIVABLE

The following represents a summary of loans receivable as of the dates indicated (dollars in thousands):

December 31,
2007 2006

Loans held for sale )
Principal balance of loans HFS. . . ... ... ... ... ... ... ... .... $ 3704681 % 9,331,112
Unamortized premiums and fees. . .. ......... ... ... ... ..... T 46,856 . 176,094
Hedge effects and other valuation adjustments. . ................. 25,367 (39,363)

Total loans held forsale . ........... ... ... ..o L $ 3,776,904 $ 9,467,843
Loans held for investment :
Principal balance of mortgage loans HFIL. . ... .. ................ $13,522,119  $ 6,828,862
Basis adjustment on transferred loans and unamortized premium on

mortgage loans HFT .. .. .. .. ... . . i {276,805) 89,306
Outstanding balance on other loans HFI(1) . . ... ... .. e 3,202,111 3,259,532
Unamortized net deferred loan fees on other loans HFT . ... ........ 6,621 (491)
Allowance for 10an LosSes. . ... oo e e {(398,135) (62,386)

Total loans held for investment . . .. ........................ $16,055,911  $10,114,823
Total loans receivable. . .. ..o o it e e $19,832,815 $19,582,666
Loans receivable pledged as collateral for borrowings .. ........... 514,498,952  $14,878,632

(1) Includes consumer and builder construction loans and revolving warehouse lines of credit.

The Company transferred mortgage loans in the fourth quarter of 2007 with a net investment of $10.9 billion
from HFS to HFI at the lower of cost or fair value as the Company no longer intended to sell these loans in the
secondary market. At the time of transfer, the mortgage loans carrying value of $10.3 billion included $0.6 billion
impairment loss which was recorded as a component of gain on sale of loans primarily during the third and fourth
quarters of 2007.

F-24




INDYMAC BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

The following presents our loans receivable by product as of the dates indicated (dollars in thousands):

December 31
2007 2006 \

Loans held for sale
SFRmortgage loans. . ... ... ittt e $ 3,286,886 $ 8,801,252
HELOCS . . i e e e e e 168,702 633,096
Commercial real estate loans . .. ... ... ... ... ... ... ...... 320,554 —_
Consumer ot 10ans . ...ttt e e 762 33,495

Total loans held forsale . . ........... .. .. $ 3,776,904 § 9,467,843
Loans held for investment
SFRmortgage loans. . . ......... .. ... ... ... ... ... ... .. .. $11,125,188  $ 6,519,340
Consumer construction f0ans . .......... it innnn., 2,342,060 2,225,979
Builder construction 10ans ... ....... ... ... e 818,035 786,279
HELOCs . . o e e e e e e 1,459,580 23,618
Land and other mortgage loans. . .. .......... ... .. ........... 600,550 375,215
Revolving warehouse linesof credit . ... ...................... 48,633 246,778
Allowance for loan 1osses. . . . ..ot i e e e (398,135) (62,386)

Tota! loans held for investment , . ... ...............c.0vv... $16,055911  $10,114,823

Our non-accrual/non-performing loans by collateral type are summarized as follows (dollars in thousands):

December 31
2007 2006 2005
Homebuilderloans .. .....................ccuuvuin.. $ 480,157 §$ 8981 $ —
Consumer construction loans .. . .. ..................... 77,562 25,957 9,446
SFR mortgage loans HFI and other non-accrual/non-performing
loans. . ... . 756,160 127,892 54,763
Total non-accrual/non-performing 08NS . ..o\ $1,313,885 $162,830 364,209

Of the total non-accrual loans at December 31, 2007, approximately $480.2 million of impaired homebuilder
loans were accounted for in accordance with SFAS 114. As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, there were no impaired
loans accounted for in accordance with SFAS 114. The average balance for the SFAS 114 impaired loans during
2007 was $127.1 million. The allowance for loan losses related to these SFAS 114 impaired loans was $95.0 million
at December 31, 2007. For the year ended December 31, 2007, no interest income was recognized on the SFAS 114
impaired loans subsequent to the determination of impairment. There were no significant non-accrual loans
accounted for under SFAS 114 at December 31, 2006 and 2005.

Troubled debt restructurings, where management has granted a concession to a borrower experiencing
financial difficulty, were approximately $33.1 million as of December 31, 2007. We have no significant com--
mitments to lend additional funds to borrowers with restructured loans. There were no significant troubled debt
restructuring leans at December 31, 2006 and 2005.

NOTE 6 — ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

Our determination of the level of the allowance for loan losses and, correspondingly, the provision for loan
losses, is based on management’s judgments and assumptions regarding various matters, including general
economic conditions, loan portfolio composition, loan demand, delinquency trends, and prior loan loss experience.
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The allowance for loan losses of $398. 1 million is considered adequiate to cover probable losses inherent in the loan
portfolio at December 31, 2007. However, no assurance can be given that we will not, in any particular period,
sqstain loan losses that exceed the allowance, or that subsequent evaluation of the loan portfolio, in light of then-
prevailing factors, including economic conditions, credit quality of the assets comprising the portfolio and the
ongoing examination process, will not require significant changes in the allowance for loan losses.

Summarized below are changes to the allowance for loan losses for the years indicated (dollars in thousands):

Year Ended December 31

2007 2006 2005
Balance, beginning of year .. .. .. ... ... ... Lo, $ 62,386 $55,168 $52,891
Allowance transferred to HFS loans ...................... C(1,574) — —
Provision forloan losses . ........... i 395,548 19,993 9978
Charge-offs: .
SFRmortgage loans . ... ......... ...t . (29,186) (6,003) (2,116)
Consumer construction loans. . . ...... ... ...t (19,835) {3,549) (2,422)
Other(1) . .. o e (7,138) (5,586) (4,979)
Total charge-offs. ... ....... ... ... .. .. (56,159)  (15,138) (9,517)
Recoveries:
SFR mortgage loans .. ........... ..., 1,200 470 639
ConSUMET CONSLIUCHON LOANS . « .+« v v v v e e e e e ee e 117 231 127
Other(1) .. ..ot e e DI 2,617 1,662 1,050
TOtal TECOVEMES - . v v vttt e et e e e e e e ettt an s 3,934 2,363 1,816
Total charge-offs, net of recoveries .. ..................... (52,225)  (12,775) (7,701)

Balance, end of year. . ... ... vit e $398,135 $62,386 $55,168

(1) Includes loans from the warehouse lines of credit, home equity lines of credit and of discontinued loan products.

NOTE 7 — MORTGAGE SERVICING RIGHTS

The following presents the assumptions used to value MSRs as of the dates indicated (dollars in thousands):

Decémber 31

2007 2006 2005
Actual
Carrying Value .. . ... ... ... .. ... .. $ 2495407 § 1822455 $ 1,094,490
Collateral Balance. . .. .......... ... .. ... .. 181,723,633 139,816,763 84,495,133
Gross Weighted-Average Coupon (“WAC™) ... .... 6.89% . 7.05% 6.19%
Servicing Fee . ... ..... .. ... ... i 0.34% 0.37% 0.37%
3-Moenth Prepayment Speed. .................. 9.7% 20.2% 21.7%
Weighted-Average Multiple.. . ................. - 401 3.57 3.54
Valuation Assumptions . :
Projected Lifetime Prepayment Speeds (“CPR"). ... 19.6% 25.8% 21.4%
Discount Yield .. ............. ... ... ... 9.7% B.8% 10.7%
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The following presents the changes in MSRs for the years indicated (dollars in thousands):
Year Ended December 31

2007 2006 2005

Balance, beginning of the year . . ... ................ $1,822,455 $1,094490 § 640,794
Cumulative-effect adjustment due to change in accounting

for MSRs. .. ... .. .. .. . — 17,561 —
Additions from loan sale or securitization . ............ 976,482 1,075,740 701,178
Purchase or assumption . ....... .. ... ............. 2,268 8,658 5,463
Transfers to prepayment penalty and/or AAA-rated and

agency interest-only securities. . .. ... ............. (57,065) (4,723) (8,491)
Transfers due to clean-up calls and other ............. (873) (274) (3,911)
Change in fair value due torun-off. . ... ............. {408,107) {376,718) —
Change in fair value due to market changes ........... 156,327 24,180 _
Change in fair value due to application of external

benchmarking policies .. ............. ... ... ..... 3,920 (16,459) —
AMOTZALOM . . . .t ittt e e e —_ — {227,084)
Valuationfimpairment . .. ............ vt nn.. — — (13,459)
Balance, end of the year. . ........................ $2,495407  $1,822.455  $1,094,490
MSRs as a percentage of the unpaid principal balance

(UPB) of the underlying loans serviced (in basis

POIMESY . . . .o e e 137 130 130

The following presents changes in the valuation allowance for impairment of MSRs for the years indicated
(dollars in thousands):
Year Ended December 31

2006 2005
Balance at beginning of the year . ... ...... ... ... ... ... ... .... $(127,818) % (87,997)
Remeasurement to fairvalue . . . .. ... ... i 127,818 —_
Provision for valuation . . . ... .. .. ... e — (42,502)
Clean-up callsexercised . . .......... ...t — 2,681
Balance atendof the year. . ........ ... ... ... . .. .. .. ... S —  $(127.818)

Upon the Company’s adoption on January 1, 2006 of FASB Statement No. 156, “Accounting for Servicing of
Financial Assets, an amendment of FASB Statement No. 140, Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial
Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities”, we elected to prospectively apply the fair value method for all classes of
its separately recognized MSRs with changes in fair value reflected in the service fee income in the statement of
operations. The difference between the fair value and the carrying amount, net of any related valuation allowance,
was recorded as a cumulative-effect adjustment to retained earnings as of January 1, 2006.
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NOTE 8 — OTHER ASSETS

The following presents the major components of other assets as of the dates indicated (dollars in thousands):

December 31
2007 2006 '

Investment in Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB") stock, at cost ... ... $ 676,077 § 762,054
Derivative financial instruments and hedging related deposits . .. .... .. 404,881 349,663
Servicing related advances . . ... ... ... ... ... L L il 346,125 108,835
Interest receivable . . .. ... ... e e e 343,324 “217,667
Real estate owned (“REQ™), net of valuation allowance of $60,939 and

$6,441 at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.............. 196,049 21,638
Fixed assets, net of accumulated depreciation of $157,826 and $122,113

at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively ................... 136,328 181,304
Goodwill and other intangible assets. ................. ... ... ... 123,937 112,608
Accounts receivable . . .. ... .. .. e e e . 08,255 102,597
Software development, net of accumulated amortization of $119,178 and

$81,984 at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. . ........... 88,308 94,509
1T e 102,611 154,350

Total Oher @S5S . . . . o ittt et it e e e $2,515,805 $2,105,225

The investment in FHLB stock consisted of capital stock, at cost, totaling $676.1 million and $762.1 million as
of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Total dividend income recognized was $39.9 million, $32.1 million
and $21.2 million, respectively, in 2007, 2006 and 2005. We earned a dividend yield of 5.20%, 5.37% and 4.44% in
2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The investment in FHLB stock is required to perrnit lndymac Bank to borrow
from the FHLB of San Francisco.

Hedging related deposits represent margin deposits with our clearing agent or counterparties associated with
our hedge positions. For further information on our derivative financial instruments, see “Note 14 — Derivative
Instruments.”

In the third quarter of 2007, the Company completed the sale and leaseback of one of its properties in Pasadena,
California for a purchase price of $116 million and entered into a lease agreement for a portion of the property with
an initial term of ten years. The leased portion of the property serves as our mortgage banking headquarters.
Accordingly, the Company removed the $54.8 million carrying value of related fixed assets from the balance sheet
and recognized approximately $60 million in total gain from the sale and leaseback transaction, with approximately
$24 million recognized upon sale in the third quarter of 2007 and the $36 million balance amortized over the term of
the lease.

Depreciation and amortization expense was $77.4 million, $63.7 million and $44.1 million for the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006, and 20035, respectively.
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NOTE 9 — DEPOSITS

The following presents a summary of the carrying value of deposits, rates, and remaining maturities of
certificates of deposit as of the dates indicated (dollars in thousands):

December 31
2007 2006
_Amount  Rate _ Amount Rate
Non-interest-bearing checking .. ................. $ 73343 00% $ 72,081 0.0%
Non-interest-bearing custodial loans servicing
ACCOUNLS . . ettt it e ettt it e eaa i anne e 725,194  0.0% 616,904 0.0%
Interest-bearing checking. . ..................... 68,977 1.5% 54,844 1.2%
SaVIIgS . . . .o 2,346,534 45% 1,915,333 5.0%
Total coredeposits . . ........... ... ... . 3,214,048 3.3% 2,659,162 3.6%
Certificates of deposit, due:
Withinone year . .. ... ... ... v, 14,360,754 52%  7970,763 52%
OnetoOtWO YEAIS . . . v v it iimi e vnninr s 150,023  5.0% 147,519  49%
Twotothree years . ... ...................... 39,626 5.0% 56,009 4.8%
Three to four years . ........ .. ... . ouvn... 38,826 5.2% 25879 5.0%
Fourtofiveyears. . ........... ... ... ... .... 11,839 5.0% 38475 52%
Overfiveyears .. ... ... ... i, 127 52% 199 5.1%
Total certificates of deposit. .. ............... 14,601,195 5.2% 8,238,844  52%
Total deposifs. . . ... $17,815243 48% 310,898,006 4.8%

The following presents interest expense by deposit type for the years indicated (dollars in thousands).

Year Ended December 31

2007 2006 2005
Interest-bearing checking .. ... ... $ 784 $§ 665 3% 603
SaVINgS . o e e 113,520 71,385 37,561
Certificates of deposit, ... . ... ... ... . i 548,913 336,158 157,364
Total interest expense on deposits . .................... $663,217  $408,208  $195,528

At December 31, 2007, accrued interest payable was $1.6 million for interest-bearing checking, savings and
certificates of deposit and is included in “Other liabilities” on the consolidated balance sheets.

The following summarizes certificates of deposit in amounts of $100,000 or more by remaining contractual
maturity as of the dates indicated (dollars in thousands):

December 31
. 2007 2006
Three months OF 1885 . . ... . ...ttt et e eans $ 5,250,166  $2,407.,796
Three to sixmonths . . .. ... . i i e e e e 2,981,531 1,604,348
Sixtotwelve months . . .. ... ... ... e e 1,731,101 848,732
Overtwelve monthS. . ... ... it et e e e 109,476 127,884

Total certificates of deposit ($100,000 ormore}. . ...... ... .. ... $10,072,274  $4,988,760
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NOTE 10 — ADVANCES FROM THE FHLB

As a member of the FHLB, we maintain a credit line based largely on a percentage of total regulatory assets.
Advances totaled $11.2 billion and $10.4 billion at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, and are collat-
eralized in the aggregate by loans, securities, all FHLB stock owned and by deposits with the FHLB, The maximum
amount of credit that the FHLB will extend for purposes other than meeting withdrawals varies from time to time in
accordance with its policies. The interest rates charged by the FHLB for advances typically vary depending upon
maturity, the cost of funds of the FHLB, and the collateral for the borrowing.

The following presents the scheduled maturities of advances from the FHLB as of the dates indicated (dollars
in thousands):

December 31
2007 2006
_Amount ~ Rate _ Amount ~ Rate
Withinoneyear. . ............ ... ... ... ..... $ 3,584,000 4.9% § 5,053,000 52%
One totwo Years . . . . ..ot iviii e 2,757,000 4.8% 1,151,000 4.8%
Twotothree years. ... ........ ... ... ..., 1,479,000 4.8% 1,491,000 4.9%
Three to four years . .......................... 1,789,800 5.2% 759,000 4.8%
Fourtofiveyears ............ ... ... ......... 805,000 5.1% 1,789,800 5.2%
Overfive Years . . ...t iiininnnnnann 774000 5.0% . 169000 5.0%
Total ............. P e $11,188,800 4.9% $10412800 5.1%

The following presents financial data pertaining to advances from the FHLB as of or for the dates indicated
(dollars in thousands):

As of or For the Year Ended
December 31

2007 2006
Weighted average couponrate,end of year . . ................... 4.9% 5.1%
Weighted average rate during the year, including hedge effect . . . . . .. 3.2% 4.7%
Average balance of advances from FHLB during the year ... ....... $13,531,225  $10,560,896
Maximum amount of advances from FHLB at any month-end . . . .. .. 514,546,800 $12,688,800
Interest expense forthe year. . ... ... ... ... .. .. .., $§ 701,226 § 491,300
Amount of advances subject to call/put options . ... .............. $ 899000 $ 309,000

We had $5.5 billion and $5.2 billion of unused committed financing from the FHLB at December 31, 2007 and
2006, respectively. : '
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.

NOTE 11 — OTHER BORROWINGS

The following presents other borrowings of the Corhpany as of the dates indicated (dollars in thousands):

December 31
2007 2006
Trust preferred debentures. . .. ... ... ... .. i $441,285 § 456,695
HELOC notes payable .. ..... ... ... . 0 iy 212,747 659,283
Asset-backed commercial paper .......... .. ... ... L Lo — 2,115,839
Loans and securities sold under agreements to repurchase .. ........... — 1,407,199
Other notes payable . .. ... ... .. . e e —_ 1,009
Others{l) . ... .. e {1,254) (3,025)
Total other borrowings . .................... e $652,778 - $4,637,000

(1) This represents the unamortized portion of the facility issue cost and commitment fee.

At December 31, 2007, we had $4.8 billion in committed financing whole loan firancing facilities. Of these
committed financing facilities, $1.0 billion was available for use based on eligible collateral. Decisions by our
lenders and investors to make additionat funds available to us in the future wili depend upon a number of factors,
These include our compliance with the terms of existing credit arrangements, our financial performance, eligible
collateral, changes in our credit rating, industry and market trends in our various businesses, the general availability
and interest rates applicable to financing and investments, the lenders’ and/or investors’ own resources and policies
concerning loans and investments and the relative attractiveness of alternative investment or lending opportunities.

Asset-Backed Commercial Paper

In April 2006, we established the North Lake Capital Funding Program, a single seller asset-backed
commercial paper (“ABCP”) facility, which allows us to directly issue secured liquidity notes backed by mortgage
loans. Both the collateral pledged and secured liquidity notes are recorded on our balance sheet as assets and
liabilities, respectively. The secured liquidity notes have been rated F-1+ by Fitch Ratings, P-1 by Moody’s
Investors Service and A-1+ by Standard & Poor’s, and arc supported by credit enhancements, such as over
collateralization, excess spread, and market value interest rate swaps provided by highly rated counterparties. We
are authorized to issue up to $4.0 biltion in short-term notes, with expected maturities not to exceed 180 days after
issuance and final maturities of 60 days following the expected maturities. As of December 31, 2007, we did not
have any secured liquidity notes outstanding. As a result of the disruption in the extendible ABCP market, we
actively paid down this facility during the third quarter of 2007. Additionally, the viability of the extendible ABCP
market and this facility is unknown and therefore, at this time, we are not relying on this facility for future funding
needs. As of February 2008, we are in the process of terminating this facility.

In November 2006, we established a multi-seller ABCP facility (which is supported by backstop liquidity
facilities from highly rated banks) to provide up.to $1.5 billion dedicated financing for our construction to
permanent, lot, and reverse mortgage toans. This is an annually renewable 364-day committed facility administered
by Citicorp North America, Inc. This facility was terminated effective November 2007.

Loans and Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase

We had no repurchase agreement borrowings at December 31, 2007 as a result of our strategy to increase our '
deposits and advances from the FHLB. The amount outstanding under loans and securities sold under agreements to
repurchase was $1.4 billion at December 31, 2006. Our outstanding repurchase agreements have an average
maturity of less than 30 days. These repurchase agreements generally reprice on an overnight-to-one-month basis
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for loans, and a one-to-three-month basis for securities, bearing interest at rates indexed to LIBOR or the federal
funds rate, plus an applicable margin. We were in compliance with all material financial covenants under these
repurchase agreements at December 31, 2007 and 2006. For the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, the
weighted average borrowing rate on repurchase agreements, including the multi-seller ABCP facility, was 5.8% and
5.2%, respectively. ’

The following presents additional information related to our repurchase agreements (including the ABCP
facility) as of or for the years indicated (dollars in thousands):

As of or For the Year Ended December 31

2007 2006 2005 -
Average balance during theyear. . .. ................ $2,088,580  $3,726,067 $2,947,552
Maximum balance outstanding at any month-end(1) ... .. 3,601,049 6,026,510 5,254,136
Balance at December 31 ........ ... . oo i, — 2,455,505 3,057,262
Weighted average interest rate, end of year . ... .. .. ..., —_ 5.5% 4.7%
Weighted average coupon rate during the year. .. ....... 5.8% 52% . 3.9%

(1) The maximum amount of borrowings outstanding occurred in February 2007, Febrﬁary 2006, and August 2005.

Trust Preferred Securities and Warrants

On November 14, 2001, we completed an offering of Warrants and Income Redeemable Equity Securities
(“WIRES") to investors. Gross proceeds of the transaction were $175 million. The securities were offered as units
consisting of trust preferred securities, issued by a trust formed by us, and warrants to purchase IndyMac Bancorp’s
common stock. As part of this transaction, IndyMac Bancorp issued subordinated debentures to the trust and
purchased common securities from the trust. The yield on the subordinated debentures and the common securities is
the same as the yield on the trust preferred securities. Also, we issued 3,500,000 warrants, each convertible into
1.5972 shares of IndyMac Bancorp’s common stock as part of the WIRES offering. Beginning on November 14,
2006, Indymac has the option to redeem the warrants for cash equal to the warrant value subject to the conditions in
the prospectus. During 2007, a total of 40,000 warrants were exercised at an exeréise price of $35.17 per share to
purchase 63,888 shares of IndyMac Bancorp’s common stock. During 2006, a total of 2.5 million warrants were
exercised at an average exercise price of $35.09 per share to purchase 4.0 million shares of IndyMac Bancorp’s
common stock. To date, total warrants of 2.6 million have been exercised and converted into a total of 4.2 million
shares of IndyMac Bancorp’s common stock. Subordinated debentures redeemed in conjunction with the warrant
exercises totaled $130.2 million and $64.5 million as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
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In 2007, we issued an additional $30 million in pooled trust preferred securities. To date, we have issued
$398 million trust preferred securities (without warrants attached). The following summarizes the trust preferred
securities by issuance at December 31, 2007 (dollars in thousands):

Face Amount Interest Rate Maturity Date

June 2007 ... ... $ 30,000 6.80% June 2037
December 2006 . .. ........... ... . ... 20,000 6.74% January 2037
December 2006. . .. ... .. ... ... ... ... - 40,000 - 6.90% March 2037
September 2006. . .. ... ... ... ... ... . ... 38,000 6.96% December 2036
June 2006 . ... ... 90,000 7.35% September 2036
December 2005 . .. . . i e 90,000 6.31% December 2035
December 2004 . . ........... e 30,000 5.83% March 2035
December 2003 . . . ...... ... ... . .. . o.. 30,000 6.30% January 2034
July 2003 e 30,000 6.05% July 2033

Total . oo $398,000

Interest rates on these securities are fixed for terms ranging from 5 to 10 year$, after which the rates reset
quarterly indexed to 3-month LIBOR. The securities can be called at the option of IndyMac Bancorp five or ten
years after issuance. In each of these transactions, IndyMac Bancorp issued subordinated debentures to, and
purchased common securities from, each of the trusts. The rates on the subordinated debentures and the common
securities in each of these transactions matches the rates on the related trust preferred securities. The proceeds of
these securities have been used in ongoing operations,

Recorded values of the subordmated debentures underlying the trust preferred securitics, Wl‘llCh represent the
liabilities due from IndyMac Bancorp to the trusts, totaled $441.3 million and $456.7 million at December 31, 2007
and 2006, respectively. These subordinated debentures are included in “Other borrowings” on the consolidated
balance sheets. '

Revolving Syndicated Bank Credit Facilities

In June 2005, a revolving unsecured syndicated bank facility in the aggregate amount of $75 million was
executed between IndyMac Bancorp and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., which was later increased to $100 million in June
2006. The interest rate is based on LIBOR plus an applicable margin. We did not draw on the line during 2007 and
2006 and this facility was terminated in November 2007.

Other Notes Payable

The Company participates in certain real estate construction projects through the builder construction division,
The special purpose entities formed related to these real estate projects have been evaluated and determined to be
VIEs under the definition of FIN 46R and we are deemed as the primary beneficiary of the VIEs, and thus, required
to consolidate the VIEs. At December 31, 2007, there was no notes payable in the VIEs.

Commitment Fees

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, we had deferred commitment fees totaling $1.3 million and $3.0 million,
respectively. Amortization of $4.7 million and $4.4 million was recognized as interest expense in 2007 and 2006,
respectively. We amortize these fees over the contractual life of the borrowings.
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" ‘ Pledged Assets for Borrowings - v

We pledged certain of our loans and securities for our borroMngs, which mainly consist of advances from
FHLB and loans and securities sold under agreements to repurchase. The following provides information related to
such pledged assets as of the dates indicated (dollars in millions):

December 31 -

2007 2006
Loans pledged for FHLB advances .. ............. ... ... . ... ... $11,896 % 8,747
Securities pledged for FHLB advances. . . ....... ... ... ... ... oo .ot 6,372 3,598
Loans pledged for repurchase agreements ................... .. ... ..., 1,347 4,058
Securities pledged for repurchase agreements. . . .......... ............. — 704
Loans pledged forother ... ... ... ... ... .. . . . i i 1,256 2,074
Total pledged loans and securities ... ....... ... ... .. ... . .. ... ... $20,871 $19,181

As of December 31, 2007, pledged assets exceeded our borrowings. The excess collateral was held by a trustee
and pledged to our lenders. -

The following details the amounts allocated among the various lenders as of the dates indicated (dollars in

millions):
December 31
PR 2007 2006
FHLB ........... PSP $7.079  $1,932
Federal Reserve . . ... it i et e e 1,256 662
Dresdner . ... e e e e 867 —
Morgan Stanley .................. e : 480 126 ,
CMerTll LYRCH . « o o e e e e — 1001
UBS Warhlrg. . oo oottt et et e e e — 513
Greenwich . ... .. e s — 378 -
CRCOID vttt e — 266
North Lake Capital Funding .. .......... . ... oo — 350
OHNET .« . e ettt e e e e e ' |
TOA] @XCESS © & o v v e e e e e e e S S $9.682  $5,249

Debt Covenants

The Company is subject to various debt covenants as a condition of its borrowing facilities. As of December 31,
2007, in addition to the standard covenants of timely repayments of interest and principal, the key debt covenants
include maintaining minimum well-capitalized capital ratios (5%, 6%, and 10% for Tier  (core) capital, Tier 1 risk-
based capital and total risk-based capital, respectively) and minimum net worth of $1 billion for the Company. As of
December 31, 2007, we believe we were in compliance with all material financial covenants under our borrowing
facilities.

F-34




INDYMAC BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

The following summarizes our sources of financing as of December 31, 2007 {(dollars in millions):

Financial Institution or Committed Outstanding

Instrument Financing Balances Type of Financing Maturity Date

North Lake Capital Funding .. ... $ 4,000 s — Asset-Backed Commercial Paper April 2010

Morgan Stanley . ............ — — Wheole Loan Repurchase Agreement (1)

Dresdner .. . ............... 750 — Whole Loan Repurchase Agreement  May 2008
Total . .................. 4,750 —_

Advances from FHLB ......... 16,732 11,189

HELOQOC Note Trust (2004-2). .. .. 213 213 . Note Trust October 2036
Sub-total financing. . .. ... ... 21,695 11,402

Deposits . . ................ — 17,815

Trust Preferred Debentures . . . . .. — 441 Trust Preferred Debentures November 2031 — June 2037
Total Financing . . .. ........ $21,695 $29,658

(1} This facility was terminated effective December 31, 2007.

NOTE 12 — PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following presents condensed financial statements of the Parent Company, IndyMac Bancorp, as of and
for the years indicated (dollars in thousands):

Condensed Balance Sheets _
December 31

2007 2006
Assets
Cash .. e e e e e e e $ 63952 % 153,839
Securities classified as trading .. ... ... ... L 1,224 1,556
Securities classified as available forsale .. .. ......... ... . ... . . 502 57,037
Loans held for investment, Net . .. .. ... it ittt ittt ittt ie e i 283 922
Investment in and advances to subsidiaries . . ... ..... . ... ... .. ... ... .. ... 1,711,582 2,304,573
Investment in non-consolidated subsidiaries. .. ....... . ... . . ... . ... 17,069 16,960
Other as88lS . . .. it ittt e e e 29,375 22,580
Total @SSelS. . . o it e e e $1,823,987 $2,557.467
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Trust preferred debentures .............. SR $ 441,459 % 458,218
Loans and securities sold under agreements to repurchase . ... ............... — 55,034
Other liabilities . ... .. ... . i e e e e 15,175 14,821
Shareholders’ equity . . . .. . .. ... e 1,367,353 2,029,394
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity ... ... ... .. ... ... ... ... . ... $1,823,987  $2,557,467

F-35




INDYMAC BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Condensed Statements of Operations
Year Ended December 31

2007 2006 2005
Interest income _
Securities available for sale and trading ........ [, $ 1423 $ 5357 § 7836
LOanS . . e e 120 196 328
L0 ) T 6,529 5,074 2,611
Total interest INCOME . . ..o v vt ittt e e i ean e nnnns 8,072 10,627 10,775
Interest expense
Trust preferred debentures .. ... ... ... ... Lo i o 31,927 26,652 17,182
0 14T A L 2,210 3,483 4,032
Total interest eXPense . . . . . . oo vttt it e e 34,137 30,135 21,214
Net interest eXpense . . . .. ... ouvenen e nnnen e e (26,065) (19,508) (10,439)
Provisionfor loanlosses ............................ e — 25 (500)
) Net interest expense after provision for loan losses . .. ........ L (26,065) (19,533) (9,939)
Non-interest income (loss} :
Equity in earmings (loss) of subsidiaries . .. .................... (570,050y 360,393 304,601
Net gain (loss) on securities . . .......... oo, e (2,066) 3,591 4,299
Other InCOMe, NEL . ... it it ittt taen e neteraenns 2 85 53
Total non-interest income (10SS) . ... ... it iin e (572,114) 364,069 308,953
Netrevenues (oSS}, . . oottt ittt e et e i earenn (598,179) 344,536 299.014
Non-interest expense .. ............... .0 ittt 9,859 13,461 17,376
Earnings (loss) before provision (benefit) for income taxes. . ......... (608,038) 331,075 281,638
Provision (benefit) for income taxes. . .......... .. ... ... ... (14,379) {11,100) (8,867)
Netearnings (10SS) . ... ... ... . . i, $(593,659) $342,175  $290,505
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" Condensed Statements of Cash Flows !

Year Ended December 31
2007 2006 2005

Cash flows from operating activities: :
" Net (loss) earnings . .................. [ $(593,659) $ 342,175  $ 290,505 !

Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) earnings to net cash (used in)
provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and net amortization (accretion) .. .............. 2,545 608 (1,869)
Compensation expenses related to stock options and restricted _ i
SEOCK . vt e e e e i e e e 2,827 3,275 10,067
Loss (gain) on mortgage-backed securities, net . . .. ... ... ... .. 2,066 (3,591 (4,299)
Provision for loan losses .. ...... ..., ' — 25 (500)
Loss (equity) in earnings of subsidiaries . . . . ................ 570,050 (360,393)  (304,601)
Payments from trading securities . . ... .. S - 253 7,703 19,332
Net (increase) decrease in other assets and liabilities . ........... {2,062) (9,440) 7,646
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities . . ........ {17,980) "(19,638) 16,281 [
Cash flows from investing activities: '
Net decrease in loans held for investment. . ................... ‘634 . 1,059 1,809
Net purchases of securities available forsale .................. — (22,207) (21,196)
Proceeds from sale of and net payments from available for sale .
=T a1 1o & <0 55,629, 39,474 41,304
Cash dividends from Indymac Bank. . . ........ ... ......... 186,244 178,132 146,212
Decrease in investment in and advances to subsidiaries, net of cash
PAYIIEIES . o v i e ittt e vt e e ettt ettt e 607 7,228 5,102
Capital contributions to Indymac Bank and other subsidiaries . .. ... (260,000) (354,127)  (247,265)
Net sale (purchases) of property, plant and equiprneni ............ (1) 2,552 (25)
Net cash used in investing activities . ... ................... (16,897  (147,389) (74,059)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of trust preferred debentures ............ 30,000 188,000 90,000
Redemption of trust preferred securities . . . .. . P (48,268) 47,271) —
Net decrease in borrowings . . ..........0 . ... .. ... .. ... (55,545) (14,461) (17,1‘1|8)
Net proceeds from issnance of common stock . ................ 145,588 148,470 —'
Net proceeds from stock options, warrants, and notes receivable . . . . 4,340 110,527 46,590
Cashdividends paid. ... ....... ... ... ... ... . . ... (129,568)  (129,535) (98,501)
Purchases of common stock . ... ... ... ...t (1,557) (2,061) (582)
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities . ........... (55,010) 253,669 - 20,389
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents .............. (89,887 86,142 (37,389)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year .. .. ... ... .. ..... 153,839 67,697 ' 105,086
Cash and cash equivalents atend of year . . .. ................... $ 63,952 $153,839 § 67,697
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NOTE 13 — TRANSFERS AND SERVICING OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

* .

Retained Assets

In conjunction with the sale of mortgage loans in private-label securitizations and GSE transactions, the
Company generally retains certain assets. The primary assets retained include MSRs, AAA-rated agency and non-
agency securities, and to a lesser degree, AAA-rated interest-only and principal-only securities, prepayment penalty
and late fee securities, other investment grade securities, non-investment grade securities, and residual securities.
The allocated cost of the retained assets at the time of sale is recorded as an asset with an offsettmg increase to the
gain on sale of loans {or a reduction in the cost basis of the loans seld).

The key assumptions used in measuring the fair valve of retained assets at the time of sale during the year
ended December 31, 2007 on a weighted average basis were as follows (dollars in thousands):

. Projected
Retained Lifetime  Discount Loss
Balance CPR Yield Rate’
MRS ..o e e $ 988,198 2211% ~ 7.72% N/A
AAA-rated agéncy and non-agency securities . . .. ... 2,006,563 ' '2251%  5.86% N/A
AAA-rated interest-only securities . .............. 6,044 - 2701% 17.64% N/A
. AAA-rated principal-only securities .. ............ 8158 1034%. 6.84% N/A
Prepayment penalty and late fee securities ......... 47,555+ 2262% 1264% N/A
Other Investment grade mortgage-backed securities. . . 519,613 24.68% 7.11% N/A
Non-investment grade mortgage-backed securities. . . . 128,896  20.13% 15.68%  2.00%

Non-investment grade residuval securities. . .. .. .. ... 40,179  31.31% 22.17%  4.93%
Total . ..ot $3,745,206 ' '

_ The following shows the hypothetical effect on the fair value of our retained assets using various unfavorable
variations of the expected levels of certain key assumptions used in valuing these assets'at December 31, 2007
(dollars in thousands): ) ) ) -

Other Non- .
Investment Investment
AAA-rated AAA-Rated Prepayment  Grade Grade

Mortgage Agency and AAA-Rated Principal- Penalty  Mortgage- Mortgage-
Servicing Non-Agency Interest-Only Only and Late Fee Backed - Backed Residual
Rights  Securities  Securittes  Securities  Securities  Securities Securities Securities  Total

Balance sheet carrying value of

retained interests . .. ... ... $2,485,407 $6,098,973 $59.844 $88.024 $82,027 $727,480  $155748 $116414 $£9,823,926
Prepayment speed assumption . . . . . 19.60% 2240% ° 24.50% 17.48% 22.14% 21.70% 25.10% = 23.30% N/A
Irmpact on fair value of 10% adverse .

change of prepayment speed . . . . . $ 152956 § (74,269) § 5,740 $(2,672) $(2,924) $ {1477 $ LR02Z % 12573 § 91,729
Impact on Fair value of 20% adverse : :

change of prepayment speed . .. ... $ 288464 § (9,430)  $10,67% $(5.048) $(6,180) % (2,804) $ 2,733 § 23,134 § 301,548
Discount rate assumption. . . . ... .. 9.70% 6.30% 12.30% 845%  1527% 11.20% 31.20% 22.20% N/A
Impact on fair value of 100 basis point o .

adverse change ... .......... 5 90,712 § 145912 $ 3,089 § 2,843 $ 1,376 $35390 $ 5661 $ 4637 $ 289,620
Impact on fair value of 200 basis point '

adverse change . .. .......... § 174,540 $ 286,511 $ 6,099 § 5,488 $ 2,664 $ 59,189 $ 10966 3 8865 $ 554,322
Net credit loss assumption . . . ... . . N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 5.00% 8.60% NIA
Impact on fair value of 10% adverse -

change in credit Josses . . .. . .. .. N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 313,810 $ 20782 5 34,592
Tmpact on fair value of 20% adverse

change in credit losses . . . . . .. .. N/A N/A N/A N/A . N/A N/A § 22712 336490 5 59202
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The adverse change of prepayment speed is assumed as an increase in prepayment speed as MSRs represent
our second largest retained assets at December 31, 2007 and most sensitive to changes in prepayment speeds. The
negative amounts in the table indicate increases in value resulting from changes in prepayment speed, which
partially offset the declines in value of other retained assets.

These sensitivities are hypothetical and should be used with caution. Changes in fair value based on a ten
percent variation in assumptions generally cannot be extrapolated because the relationship of the change in
assumption to the change in fair value may not be linear. The effect of a variation in a particular assumption on the
fair value of the retained interest is calculated without changing any other assumption, or considering the offsetting
hedging impacts. In reality, changes in one factor may result in changes in another, such as hedging strategies and
associated gains or losses, which might magnify or counteract the sensitivities,

Credit Risk on Securitizations

With regard to the issuance of private-label securitizations, we generally retain limited credit exposure in that
we retain certain non-investment grade securities and residual securities. These securities are subordinate to
investors’ investment-grade securities. We do not have credit exposure associated with non-performing loans in
securitizations beyond our investment in retained interests in non-investment grade securities and residial
securities. The value of our retained interests include credit loss assumptions on the underlying collateral pool
to estimate this risk.

The following summarizes the collateral balance associated with our servicing portfolio of sold loans, and the
balance of non-investment grade securities and residual securities retained at December 31, 2007 (dollars in
thousands):

Balance of Retained Assets
with Credit Exposure

Total Loans Non-Investment Residual
Serviced Grade Securities Securities
Prime
Indymac securitizations. . .................... $ 76,319,778 $112,703 $ 84422
GSES ..o i e e e 70,119,928 — —
Whole loan sales .. ....... ... .. ... ... . ... 29,676,055 — —
Subprime
Indymac securitizations. . .. .. .. .. ... ... .. .. 4,881,209 43,044 31,993
GSES ...t e ’ 452,466 — —
Whole loansales .......................... 186,543 — —
Manufactured housing securitization . ... ... ... .. 87,654 — —_
Total. . ..o s $181,723,633 $155,747 $116,415°

As part of the normal course of business involving loans sold to the secondary market, we can be required to
repurchase loans or make certain payments to settle breaches of our standard representations and warranties made
as part of the loan sales or securitizations. In anticipation of future expected losses related to these loans, we have
established secondary- market reserves and have recorded provisions of $232.5 million, $37.3 million, and
$19.6 million to this reserve as reductions to our gain on sale of loans during 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively.
The balance in this reserve was $179.8 million and $33.9 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively,
which is included on the consolidated balance sheets as a component of “Other liabilities”. The calculation of the
reserve is a function of estimated losses based on expected and actual pending claims and repurchase requests,
historical experience, loan volume and loan sale distribution channels, and even small changes in assumptions could
result in a significantly higher or lower estimate.
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Qualifying Special-Purpose Entities

All loans sold in our private-label securitizations are issued through securitization trusts, which are “qualifying
special-purpose entities” (“QSPEs”) under SFAS 140. The following presents cash flows received from and paid to
securitization trusts for the years indicated (dollars in thousands):

Year Ended December 31

2007 2006 2005
Proceeds from-new securitizations. . ... ........... $21,382,056  $29,557,068  $31,018,699
Servicing feesreceived . . ...... . ... ... ... 103,554 89,993 63,720
Other cash flows received on retained interests . . .. .. 491,575 340,843 240,703
Clean-upcalls ...... .. ... ... . i — (31,483) (141,487)
Loan repurchases for representations and warranties . . (36,562) (19,632) (8,400)

As part of our normal servicing operations, the Company advanced cash to investors totaling $1.2 billion and
$195.3 million during the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, and received cash reimburse-
ments from investors totaling $1.1 billion and $171.1 million, respectively.

From time to time, Indymac creates net interest margin (“NIM”} trusts for the securitization of residual
securities and securities associated with prepayment charges on the underlying mortgage loans from prior or
recently completed securitization transactions. NIM trusts issue notes to outside investors secured by the residual
securities and securities associated with prepayment charges on the underlying mortgage loans we contribute to the
trusts. The cash proceeds from the sale of the NIM notes to investors are paid to us as payment for the securities. The
NIM notes are obligations of the NIM trusts and are collateralized only by the residual securities and securities
associated with prepayment charges on the underlying mortgage loans. We are not obligated to make any payments
on the notes. These entities represent QSPEs and meet the legal isolation criteria of SFAS 140. Therefore, these
entities are not consolidated for financial reporting purposes in accordance with SFAS 140. At inception, the outside
investors have the majority interest in the fair value of the residual securities and securities associated with
prepayment charges on the underlying mortgage loans. We receive cash flows from our retained interests in the NIM
trusts once the notes issued to the investors are fully paid off. We created one NIM trust during 2007 and three NIM
trusts during 2006. At December 31, 2007 and 2006, our retained interests in these NIM trusts were valued at
$1.3 millicn and $89.1 million, respectively. Our retained interests in the NIM trusts are included as a component of
“Securities classified as trading” in the consolidated balance sheets.

NOTE 14 — DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

We follow the provisions of SFAS 133, as amended, for our derivative instruments and hedging activities,
which require us to recognize all derivative instruments on the consolidated balance sheets at fair value. FNMA and
FHLMC forward contracts, forward rate agreements, interest rate swap agreements, interest rate swaption
agreements, interest rate floor agreements, interest rate cap agreements, Evurodollar futures, and rate lock com-
mitments were identified as derivative financial instruments and recorded at fair value as of December 31, 2007 and
2006.

Generally speaking, if interest rates increase, the value of our rate lock commitments and funded loans
decrease and loan sale margins are adversely impacted. We economically hedge the risk of overall changes in fair
value of loans held for sale and rate lock commitments generally by selling forward contracts on securities of GSEs
and by using futures and options. Under SFAS 133, certain of these positions qualify as a fair value hedge of a
portion of the funded loan portfolio and result in adjustments to the carrying value of designated loans through gain
on sale based on value changes attributable to the hedged risk. The forward contracts used to economically hedge
the loan commitments are accounted for as non-designated hedges and naturally offset loan commitment mark-to-
market gains and losses recognized as a component of gain on sale. The loan commitments are initially valued at
zero, and the Company records only the change in the fair value of the loan commitments. The initial value inherent
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in the loan commitments at origination is recorded as a component of gain on sale of loans when the underlying loan
is sold. At December 31, 2007 and 2006, the fair value of these commitments amounted to $7.7 miilion and
$(9.8) million, respectively.

We use interest rate swaps, interest rate swaption agreements and interest rate caps to reduce our exposure to
interest rate risk inherent in a portion of the current and anticipated borrowings and advances. An interest rate swap
agreement is a contract between two parties to exchange cash flows based on specified underlying notional amounts
and indices. An interest rate swaption agreement is an option to enter into an interest rate swap agreement in the
future. An interest rate cap is a derivative that protects the holder from rates rising above the agreed strike price. The
holder receives money at the end of each period in which the interest rate exceeds the agreed strike price. Under
SFAS 133, the interest rate swaps, interest rate swaption agreements and caps used to hedge our anticipated
borrowings and advances qualify as cash flow hedges. As of December 31, 2007, our interest rate swaps and caps
carried deferred losses of $16.8 million, while our interest rate swaption agreements carried deferred losses: of
$18.9 million, The net deferred loss of $21.7 million (net of tax) was recorded as a component of AOCI. Future
effective changes in fair value on these interest rate swap, interest rate swaption agreements and interest rate caps
will be adjusted through AOCI as long as the cash flow hedge requirements continue to be met. AOCI contains
approximately $4.7 million (net of tax) in deferred cash flow hedge gains and $6.4 million (net of tax) in deferred
cash flow hedge losses that the Company expects to be realized into income over the next 12 months, based on the
respective December 31, 2007 valuations. At December 31, 2006, our interest rate swaps, interest rate swaptions
and caps carried a net deferred valuation loss of $6.8 million (net of tax), which was recorded as a component of
AOCL

We use instruments including Eurodollar futures, forward rate agreements, interest rate caps, interest rate
swaps and interest rate swaptions to economically hedge our MSR asset, thereby mitigating-valuation declines that
result from changes and volatility in the interest rate environment. Gains and losses on these derivative financial
instruments are classified as a component of “Service fee income” for mortgage servicing rights, and as a
component of “Gain (loss) on mortgage-backed securities”, for our AAA-rated and agency interest-only, principal-
only securities, and residual securities. '

Indymac recognizes ineffective changes in hedge values resulting from designated SFAS 133 hedges discussed
above in the same income statement captions as effective changes when such ineffectiveness occurs. Indymac
recognized gains (losses) totaling $6.2 million, $(3.0} million, and $(1.2) million of ineffectiveness in earnings for
the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively.
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The following presents derivative financial instruments as of the dates indicated (dollars in thousands):

Notional Expiration
Amounts Fair Value Dates
December 31, 2007 .
Loans held for sale/loans held for investment hedges:
Rate lock commitments ................. e $ 4840998 $ 7,713 2008
Forward agency and loansales .......................... 3,737,149 (21,908) 2008
Eurodollar futures contracts . ........ ... iveeneennnn.. 14,856,000 (24,950) 2012
Mortgage servicing and other servicing-related assets hedges:
Interest rate caps (LIBOR/Swaps) . ... ......... ... ... ... 146,474 1,737  2008-2012
Forward agency and loansales .. ................... I 12,152,000 73,880 2008
Forward rate agreements. . .................. . . 2,000,000 (2,780) 2008
Eurodollar futures contracts . ................. e 20,150,000 (8,096) 2008-2010
Swapspreadlocks. . ............. e 500,000 (2,590) 2008
Interest rate swaps (LIBOR) . .. .. ... ... ... ... ... ... .... 28,212,310 (28,408) 2008-2037
Interest rate swaptions (LIBOR) ... ... e e 13,745,000 472,281  2008-2018
Other MBS hedges: '
Forward agency and loansales .. ........................ . (80,000) - (681) 2008
Interest rate swaps (LIBOR) . ........... ... ... . ........ 1,340,000 (22,238) 2009-2018
Interest rate swaptions (LIBOR) ... ... ... ... .. ....... ..., 790,000 12,821  2008-2009
Eurodollar futures contracts ... ..............c..oeein.... 4,200,000 (5,660) 2008-2012
Borrowings and advances hedges: :
Interest rate swaps{LIBOR) .. .......... ... ... ........ 300,000 (18,646) 2014-2017
Interest rate swaptions (LIBOR) . .................1. ..., 295,000 520  2008-2009

$107,184,931  $432,995

December 31, 2006
Loans held for sale hedges:

Rate lock commitments .. .................... e $ B8I8LII1 $ (975D 2007
Forward agency and loansales . ..................ccou. ... 5,076,325 4,562 2007
Eurodollar futures contracts . .......... ..., 25,524,000 7,813  2007-2011
Mortgage servicing and other servicing-related assets hedges:
Interest rate caps (LIBOR/Swaps) . . ........ ... .. ........ 454,218 2918 2007-2011
Forward agency and loansales . . ........................ 1,115,000 {(4,938) 2007
Forward rate agreements. . . ... ... ... .. i 26,000,000 8,355 2007
Eurodollar futures contracts . ............ . coivirunennn.. 16,455,000 2,460  2007-2010
Interest rate swaps (LIBOR) . ... ......... ... ... ........ 16,105,316 17,453  2007-2036
Interest rate swaptions (LIBOR) . ............. ... ........ 4,780,000 165,212  2007-2011
Borrowings and advances hedges: :
Interest rate caps (LIBOR/Swaps) . ....................... 40,822 218 2007
Interest rate swaps (LIBOR) ... ........ ... ... .. ... ..., 1,943,476 21,054  2007-2016
Interest rate swaptions (LIBOR) . .. ...................... 745,000 3,623  2007-2009

$106,420,268  $218,979
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While we do not anticipate nonperformance by the counterparties, we manage credit risk with respect to such
financial instruments by entering into agreements with entities (including their subsidiaries) approved by a
committee of the Board of Directors and with a long term credit rating of “A” or better. For certain counterparties,
we do receive margin deposits (cash collateral) to support the financial instruments with these approved entities.

NOTE 15 — FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value estimates were determined for existing balance sheet and off-balance sheet financial instruments,
including derivative instruments, without attempting to estimate the value of certain assets and liabilities that are not
considered financial instruments. Significant assets that are not considered financial instruments under FASB
Statement No. 107, “Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments,” include MSRs, foreclosed assets,
fixed assets, goodwill and intangible assets.

The estimated fair value amounts of our financial instruments have been determined using available market
information and valuation methods we believe are appropriate under the circumstances. These estimates are
inherently subjective in nature and involve matters of significant uncertainty and judgment to interpret relevant
market and other data. The use of different market assumptions and/or estimation methods may have a material
effect on the estimated fair value amounts.

The following presents the estimated fair values of financial instruments as of the dates indicated (dollars in
thousands):

December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006
Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
Financial Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents . , ... ... $ 561,832 §$ 561,832 $ 541,725 $ 541,725
Securities classified as trading . . . . . 1,222,543 1,222,543 542,731 542,731
Securities classified as available for
sale. .. ... L. 6,105,976 6,105,976 4,900,514 4,900,514
Loans held forsale . ........... X 3,776,904 3,814,008 9,467,843 9,565,821
Loans held for investment . . ...... 16,055,911 15,647,700 10,114,823 10,184,055
Investment in.FHLB stock . .. .. ... 676,077 676,077 762,054 762,054
Financial Liabilities:
Deposits . .................... 17,815,243 17,823,350 10,898,006 10,673,718
Advances from the FHLB ...... .. 11,188,800 11,355,215 10,412,800 10,409,767 -
Other borrowings . ............. 652,778 461,336 4,637,000 4,679,943 '
Derivative Financial Instruments:
Commitments to purchase and
originate loans. . . ............ 7,713 7,713 (9,751) (9,751)
Commitments to sell loans and
SECUrities, . . ... v 51,291 51,291 (376) (376)
Forward rate agreements . ........ - (2,780) < (2,780) 8,355 8,355
Interest rate swaps. .. ........... (69,292) (69,292) 38,507 38,507 .
Interest rate swaptions. . . ........ 485,622 485,622 168,835 168,835
Interest rate caps, floors, flooridors .
and futures .. ............... (36,969) {36,969) 13,409 13,409
Swap spreadlocks ............. . (2,590) (2,590) — . —,
Total derivative financial .
instruments . . ................ $ 432995 § 432995 $ 218979 §$ 218,979
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The following describes the methods and assumptions we use in estimating fair values:
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Carrying amount represents fair value.

Securities Classified as Trading and Available for Sale.  Carrying amount represents fair value. Fair value is
estimated using quoted market prices or by discounting future cash flows using assumptions for prepayment rates,
market yield requirements and credit losses.

"Loans Held for Sale and Held for Investment.  The fair value of loans held for sale and held for investment is
estimated by considering: 1)} quoted market prices for TBA securities (for agency-eligible loans); 2) recent
transaction settlements or traded but unsetiled transactions for similar assets; 3) recent third party market
transactions for similar assets; and 4) modeled valuations using assumptions the Company believes a reasonable
market participant would use in valuing similar assets (assumptions may include loss rates, prepayment rates,
interest rates, volatilities, mortgage spreads). Certain portfolio valuation within the loans held for investment line,
namely builder and consumer construction, are solely based on present value models as no markets or transaction
exists for comparison.

Loans Held for Investment.  Fair value is estimated using quoted market prices or by discounting future cash
flows using assumptions for prepayment rates, market yield requirements and credit losses.

Investment in FHLB Stock. The carrying amount represents the fair value. FHLB stock does not have a
readily determinable fair value, but can be sold back to the FHLB at its par value with stated notice.

Deposits.  The fair value of time deposits and transaction accounts is determined using a cash flow analysis.
The discount rate for time deposits is derived from the rate currently offered on alternate funding sources with
similar maturities. The discount rate for transaction accounts is derived from a forward LIBOR curve plus a spread.
Core deposit intangibles are included in the valuation. :

Advances from FHLB. The fair value of advances from FHLB is valued using a cash flow analysis. The
discount rate is derived from the rate currently offered on similar borrowings.

Other Borrowings. Fair values are determined by estimating future cash flows and discounting those using
interest rates currently available to us on similar borrowings.

Commitments 1o Purchase and Originate Loans.  Fair value is estimated based upon the difference between
the current value of similar loans and the price at which we have committed to purchase or originate the loans,
subject to the anticipated loan funding probability, or fallout factor. The fair value represents the amount of change
in value since the inception of the commitments and does not include initial value inherent at origination.

Commirments to Sell Loans and Securities. We utilize forward commitments io hedge interest rate risk
associated with loans held for sale and commitments to purchase loans. Fair value of these commitments is
determined based on the difference between the settlement values of the commitments and the quoted market values
of the securities.

Forward Rate Agreements, Interest Rate Swaps, Interest Rate Swaptions, Caps, Floors, Flooridors, Futures,
and Put Options.  Valuing forward rate agreements involves forecasting forward mortgage and swap yields using
current interest rates and comparing the vaiue of each’'instrument versus market pricing indications. Fair vaiue for
the caps, floors, flooridors, and put options is estimated based upon specific characteristics of the option being
valued, such as the underlying index, strike rate, and time to expiration, along with quoted market levels of implied
volatility for similar instruments. Interest rate and Eurodollar futures are traded on the Chicago Board of Trade and
market pricing is readily available and continuously quoted on systems such as Bloomberg. Fair value for interest
rate swap and interest rate swaption agreements is estimated using discounted cash flow analyses based on
expectations of rates over the life of the interest rate swap or interest rate swaption as implied by the forward swap
curve.
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Further, we have identified: 1) intermediate term fixed rate or ARM loans that are subject to future payment
increases; 2) pay option ARM loans that permit negative amortization; and 3) loans with combined loan-to-value
ratios above 80%, underlying our assets whose contractual terms may give rise to a concentration of credit risk and
increase our exposures to risk of nonpayment or realization.

The following details the unpaid principal balance of these loans at December 31, 2007 and the related asset
carrying value {dollars in thousands): ' '
Non-lovestment Grade Non-Investment Grade

SFR Mortgage Loans HFI Mortgage Servicing Rights Securities Residuals
UPB of % of UPB of % of UPB of % of UPB of % of

Collateral Collaterat Collateral Collateral Collateral Collateral Collateral Collateral

Hybrid, Option ARM, and All Other

ARM Loans:
Hybod 211, . ................... $ 398443 J42% $ — — b — — 3 -_ —
Hybrid3n..................... 341,927 293% 3,573,134 218% 734,523 3.75%: 323314 323%
Hybnd /1. ... ... ._.......... 3,626,862 31.08% 38,902,096 23.68% 5715243 29.20% 214,831 275%
Hybrid 7/1. . ... ... ........... 852,157 1.30% 7,483,083 4.56% 1,502,742 7.68% 1,684 0.02%
Hybrid 10/L ... ................. 782,364 6.71% 10,987,108 6.69% 2.-4:58.722 12.56% 1,493 0.01%
Option ARMs. . . ................ 2,973,888 25.49% 27,170,661 16.54% - — — —
AlOther ARMs . .. .............. 332,406 2.35% 4,963,320 3.02% 2114097  10.80% 2,838,346  2835%

Total ... $ 9308047 - T0.78% § 93079402  56.67% S$12525327  6399%  § 3430668 34.36%
Leoans with Original Combined Loan-to- .

Value (“CLTV”"} Ratios Above 80%:
>80% —=90%. . ................ $ 1,702,777 14.60% $ 27,831,347 1695% $ 2,298,651 1174%  § 2714404 27.12%
>0 —=100%................. 1,669,367 14.31% 38,536,888 23.46% 915,778 4.68% 2,561,318  25.58%
PI00%. ... ... 8,752 . 0.08% 29921 0.02% 4,282 0.02% 5,663 0.06%

Total ..... ... ... ... ....... $ 3,381,896 2859% § 66,398,156 4043%  $ 3218711  1644%  § 5281385  52.76%
All Underlying Single Family Residential

Mortgage Loans and HELOCs:

Collateral ................... 511,667,013 $164,236,946 $19,573,334 $10,010,457

Assets. .. ... ... .. 311,411,464 § 2343165 $ 135,748 § 116414

Our mortgage servicing rights related to reverse mortgages of $152.2 million with underlying collateral of
$17.5 billion at December 31, 2007, were not included in the table above as these loans do not represent significant
risk of nonpayment.
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NOTE 16 — NON-INTEREST EXPENSE

The following presents a summary of non-interest expense for the years indicated (dollars in thousands):
Year Ended December 31

2007 2006 2005

~ Salaries and related . ... .. $ 770429 $°689,742 § 552,550
Premises and equipment . . .. c.. ... .. . ... oo, 167,112 79,102 55,424
Dataprocessing . ...... ...ttt 83,490 64,826 45,341
Office and related . . ... .00 it et 64,471 68,730 50,891
Loan purchase and servicing costs . .............. . 58,093 55,055 42,739
Operations and sale of foreclosed assets .. ................ 46,198 3,958 2,364
Professional services .. ........ccoiiiinr s, e _ 44,066 . 35,838 20,237
Advertising and promotion . . ... ... ... i 34,181 44,369 44,959,
Litigation settlement. . .. .. ... ......... ... ... . ... ... — — 9,000
Other. . ... e 24,857 13,586 10,391
Deferral of expenses under SFAS91.................. ... (259,206)  (266,246)  (224,399)
Total operating €Xpenses. . . .. ... oo et ieneennn.n 973,691 788,960 618,497
Amortization of other intangible assets . . . . ............... 1,720 1,123 391
Total non-interest eXpense. . . ... oo e e n e eneen.. $975411  $ 790,083 $ 619,088

NOTE 17 — INCOME TAXES

The following presents the income tax provision (benefit) composition for the years indicated (dollars in
thousands):
Year Ended December 31

2007 2006 2005

Current tax (benefit) expense )

Federal . ...... ... . i e i e ¥ —  $(35016) % 18,654

13 7 - — 2,468 6,966
Total current tax (benefit) expense. .. ............. el — (32,548) 25,620
Deferred tax (benefit) expense

Federal . . ... ... . . e e (318,823) 219,174 139,312

0 . 7= {61,237) 25,941 27,057
Net deferred tax (benefit) expense . ... .................. (380,060) 245,115 166,369
Total income tax (benefit) expense ..................... $(380,0600 $212,567 $191,989
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The following presents the tax effect of temporary differences that gave rise to significant portions of deferred
tax assets and liabilities as of the dates indicated (dollars in thousands):

December 31
2007 2006
Deferred tax assets
Net operating losses and credits .. ... ........... ... . ... ... .c.c..... $547456 5 12,988
Allowance forloanlosses . . ... .. .. ... ... . e 151,697 25,399
Mortgage-backed securities . . . ... ... . .. . o e e 52,442 —_
Compensation. . ........ ... . ... ... ... 46,041 22,927
State taxes . ...... R 41,078 33,403
Interest receivable. . .. ... L e e e e 18,759 - 2,815
Other, DL, . . v i e e e e e e e — 61
Total deferred tax assets ... 0... ... ... ... .. i, 857473 97,593
Deferred tax liabilities
" Mortgage Servicing Hghts . . .. .o uu v ut ettt (948,751)  {676,486)
Mortgage-backed securities . . ... ... ... L — (1,778)
FHLB StOCK .. v o ot e it e et et e e et (38,641) (27,601)
O RET . e e e e (4977 —
Total deferred tax liabilities . . .. ... ... ... e e e (992,369)  (705,865)
Deferred tax liability, Det. . . ... ..o ou ettt e $(134,806) $(608,272)

As of December 31, 2007, the Company had a net operating loss (“NOL”) carryforward for federal income tax
purposes of approximately $1.3 billion which expires in 2028. The NOL carryforward for state income tax purposes
of approximately $1.4 billion has various expirations ranging from five to twenty years through the year 2028.

The effective income tax rate differed from the federal statutory rate for the years indicated as follows:'

Year Ended
December 31
| . 27 200
Federal statutory rate . ... ... i i e e e e e 35.0% 35.0%
State income taxes, net of federal tax effect . ... ... e A41% 33%

Effective iNCOME tAX TAIE . . .. .\ttt ottt it eanecaearaneann. ... 39.1% 38.3%
The effective income tax rate on earnings was 39.1% and 38.3% for the years ended December 31, 2007 and

2006, respectively. The increase was due primarily to the fact that 2006 included the cumulative effect of a reduction
in the state income tax rate on the net deferred tax liability.
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NOTE 18 — EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE

The following is a reconciliation of the numerator and denominator of the basic and diluted éamings'(loss) per
share calculation for the years indicated (dollars in thousands, except per share data):

- Earnings Average Shares  Per Share

{Numerator) (Denominator) Amount
.Year Ended December 31, 2007 : . :
Basicloss . ...... ... ..., ... ... ... e 5(614,808) 74,261 $(8.28)
Effect of stock options, restricted stock and warrants(l) . .. -— — —
Diluted loss(1) ................. e $(614,808) 74,261 ° $(8.28)
Year Ended December 31, 2006 o '
Basic eamings. . ... .. .. e e . $342929 67,701 $ 5.07
Effect of stock options, restricted stock and warrants . . . .. —_ 3,417 (0.25)
Diluted eamings .. ...ttt $ 342,929 71,118 $4.82
Year Ended December 31, 2005 _
Basicearnings. .......... .. ... $293,128 62,760 % 4.67
Effect of stock options, restricted stock and warrants . . . .. — 3,355 (0.24)
Diluted eamings . ........... ... ..., $ 293,128 66,115 $443

(1) Due to the net loss for the year ended December 31, 2007, no potentially dilutive shares are included in the
diluted loss per share calculation as including such shares in the calculation would be anti-dilutive.

In November 2001, we issued 3,500,000 warrants,.each convertible into 1.5972 shares of IndyMac Bancorp’s
common stock, as part of the WIRES offering (described more in detail in “Note 11 — Other Borrowings™). At
December 31, 2007, there were 895,636 warrants remained outstanding at an average exercise price of $31.78 per
share. For December 31, 2006 and 2005, there were 935,636 and 3,413,100 warrants remained ouistanding at an
average exercise price of $31.68 per share and $31.59 per share, respectively. Qutstanding warrants were included
in our 2006 and 2005 dilutive earnings per share calculation.

Stock options to purchase 4,457,262 shares of common stock at a weighted average exercise price of $30.20
were outstanding at December 31, 2007. For December 31, 2006 and 2005, there were outstanding options to
purchase 56,100 and 47,000 shares of common stock at weighted average exercise price of $44.86 and $44.09,
respectively. These stock options were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share because the
stock options’ exercise prices were greater than the average market price of the common stock and, therefore, the

effect would be anti-dilutive. . _ )
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NOTE 19 — ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) "

The following presents the balance in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) for each component for
the years indicated (dollars in thousands): |

Year Ended December 31

2007 2006 2005

Net unrealized loss on mortgage-backed securities available for sale:
AAA-rated agency SECUMLEs . ... . ...\ ur v nenennannn. $§ (566) $ (387) $ (14D
AAA-rated noOn-agency SeCcuUrities . . .. .., . ... (58,885) (18,595)  (26,219)
Other investment and nén-investment grade securities. .. ......... . {56,771 523 1,354
Residual securities. . . ........ A — — 626
Net unrealized loss on mortgape-backed secunties available for sale. . . .. (116,228) (18459  (24,380)
Net unrealized (loss) gain on derivatives used in cash flow hedges. ... .. (21,734) {6,812) 9,223
Change in pension liability . .. ... ..., ... ... .0 i, (1,259) (6,168) —
Total. . .t e e e PP $(139,221) $(31,439) $(15,157)

The following presents the changes to accumulated other comprehensive loss and the related tax effect for each
component (dollars in thousands):

Year Ended December 31 )
2007 2006 2005

Net unrealized (loss) gain on mortgage-backed securities available for sale. . $(160,5_4.0] $ 9,987 $(27.658)
Relaied tax benefit (expense)... ......... e e, 62,771 (4,066) 10,925
Net (loss) gain on derivatives used in cash flow hedges .. .. .......... (24,503)  (26,430) 36,165
Related tax benefit (expense)................... I, : 9,581 10,395 (14,285)
Change in pension liability .. .............. ... .. .. ... ... ..... 8,061 {10,128) —_
Related tax (expense) benefit. . ... .......... ... ... .. i, (3,152) 3,960 —
Change to accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) . .......... $(107,782) $(16,282) $ 5,147

NOTE 20 — COMMITMENTS A’ND CONTINGENCIES

Legal Matters

In the ordinary course of business, the Company and its subsidiaries are defendants in or parties to a number of
legal actions. Certain of such actions involve alleged violations of employment laws, unfair trade practices,
consumer protection laws, including claims relating to the Company’s sales, loan origination and collection efforts,
and other federal and state banking laws. Certain of such actions include claims for breach of contract, restitution,
compensatory damages, punitive damages and other forms of relief. The Company reviews these actions on an on-
going basis and follows the provisions of FASB Statement No. 5, “Accounting for Contingencies” when making
accrual and disclosure decisions. When assessing reasonably possible and probable outcomes, the Company bases
its decisions on the evidence discovered and in its possession, the strength of probable witness testimony, the
viability of its defenses and the likelihood of prevailing at trial or resolving the matter through alternative dispute
resolution. Due to the difficulty of predicting the outcome of such actions, the Company can give no assurance that
it will prevail on all claims made against it; however, management believes, based on current knowledge and after
consultation with counsel, that these legal actions, individually and in the aggregate, and the losses, if any, resulting
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from the likely final outcome thereof, will not have a material adverse effect on the Company and its subsidiaries’
financial position, but may have a material impact on the results of operations of particular periods.

' o

Commitments

We enter into a number of commitments in the normal course of business. These commitments expose us to
varying degrees of credit and market risk and are subject to the same credit and risk limitation reviews as those
recorded on the conselidated balance sheets.

The following types of non-derivative commitments were outstanding as of the dates indicated {dollars in
thousands): :

- December 31,
, 2007 2006
Undisbursed loan commitments: . . )

Reverse MOMZages . . ..ot v iee i oo e $ 349208 $ 426977
CBuilder construction .. . .. .. e 465,688 858,525
CONSEMET CONSITUCTION . & v o vt v ettt it ettt i ne e ..]1,148,188 1,317,346
HELOC . . .. e e e e i e 1,573,522 1,582,748
Revolving warehouse lending . . ........... ... ... . ... ... 379,037 465,222
‘Lettersof credit . .. ....... .. ... . .. e 4,308 14,042

Our Homebuilder Division issues standby letters of credit to municipalities to guarantee the performance of
improvements related to tract construction projects. The risk of loss on the standby letters of credit is mitigated as
the funds to complete the improvements are included in the construction loan balance and supported by the
underlying collateral value. We have not incurred any loss on these standby letters of credit since the inception of
this practice.

Leases

We lease office facilities and equipnienl under lease agreements extending through 2016. Future minimum
annual rental commitments under these non-cancelable operating leases, with initial or remaining terms of one year
or more, are as follows for the years indicated (dollars in thousands):

Year Ended December 31

008 . . . $ 51,536
2000 ...... A T 46,494
010 .« o vt 38,558
2001 ......... S DS PR U 33,288
012 . SO 23,967
 Thereafter ......... e PR PN LTl 11,594
Total +\ovvvenn. .. e e PO $265,437

‘

Sublease rental income totaling $2.3 million reduced the above rental commitments. Rental expense, net of
sublease income, for all operating leases was $52.6 million, $33.5 million, and $22.0 million, in 2007, 2006, and
2003, respectively. , .
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NOTE 21 — RELATED PARTY LOANS

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, we had $1.6 million and $1.7 million, respectively, in notes receivable from
employees. There were no such loans outstanding with directors. These loans have varying interest rates and terms
and were mostly secured by Indymac stock or real estate.

NOTE 22 — REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

The banking industry, in general, is heavily regulated. As a savings and loan holding company, we are subject
to regulation by the Office of Thrift Superviston (“OTS"”), and Indymac Bank is subject to regulation by the OTS
and the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”). The economic and political environment influence
regulatory policies, and as such, any or all of our business activities are subject to change if and when our primary
regulators change the policies and regulations. We are also subject to inspection and examination by the OTS and
the FDIC,

Federal Reserve Board regulations require depository institutions to maintain certain deposit reserve balances,
Indymac Bank is a depository institution required to maintain deposit reserves under the Federal Reserve Board
regulations. At December 31, 2007, Indymac Bank’s deposit reserve balance of $4.7 million, included in “Cash and
cash equivalents” on the consolidated balance sheets, met the required level.

Indymac Bank’s primary federal regulatory agency, the Office of Thrift Supervision (“OTS"), requires savings
associations to satisfy three minimum capital ratio requirements: tangible capital, Tier 1 (core) capital and risk-
based capital. To meet general minimum adequately capitalized requirements, a savings association must maintain
(1) a tangible capital ratio of 1.5% of tangible assets; (2) a Tier 1 (core) capital ratio of 3% cof adjusted total assets for
strong rated associations that are not anticipating or expeiniencing significant growth and have well-diversified risks,
including no undue interest rate exposure, excellent asset quality, high liquidity, and good eamings, and 4% for
others; and (3) a total risk-based capital ratio of 8% of risk-weighted assets. Most associations are expected to
maintain capital levels in excess of the above-mentioned capitat levels. The OTS regulations also specify minimum
requirements to be considered a “well-capitalized institution.” A “well-capitalized” savings association must have a
total risk-based capital ratio of at least 10% of risk-weighted assets, a Tier | risk-based capital ratio of at least 6% of
risk-weighted assets, and a Tier 1 {core) capital ratio of at least 5% of adjusted total assets. In order not to be deemed
“critically undercapitalized” and therefore subject to immediate remedial action, a savings association must exceed
atangible equity to tangible assets ratio of 2%. As of December 31, 2007, Indymac Bank met all of the requirements
of a “well-capitalized” institution under the general regulatory capital regulations.

The Company’s business is primarily focused on single-family lending and the related production and sale of
loans. As such, the accumulation of MSRs is a large-component of our strategy. As of December 31, 2007, the
capitalized value of MSRs was $2.5 billion. OTS regulations generally impose higher capital requirements on
MSRs that exceed total Tier | capital. These higher capital requirements could result in lowered returns on our
retained assets and could limit our ability to retain servicing assets. While management believes compliance with
the capital limits on M5Rs wilt not materially impact future results, no assurance can be given that our plans and
strategies will be successful.

In the second quarter of 2007, the Bank received $491 million in net proceeds from the issuance of 20 million
shares of Perpetual Non-Cumulative Fixed Rate Preferred Stock with a liquidation preference of $25 per value (the
“Series A Preferred Stock™). Dividends, when declared by Indymac Bank’s Board of Directors, are payable
quarterly at a rate of 8.5%. At the option of Indymac Bank, the Series A Preferred Stock may be redeemed on or
after June 15, 2017 at $25 per share plus any declared and unpaid dividends. The Series A Preferred Stock qualifies
as Tier 1 {core) capital of the Bank under the OTS’s applicable regulatory capital regulations.

In December 2006, the federal bank and thrift regulatory agencies issued an interim decision that any amounts
reported in AOCI resulting from the adoption of FASB Statement No. 138, “Employers’ Accounting for Defined
Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans”, an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106 and 132(R)
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(“SFAS 158”). SFAS 158 should be excluded from regulatory capital until the regulatory agencies determine
otherwise. As a result, $4.9 million in AOCI was excluded from our regulatory capital at December 31, 2006.

The following presents Indymac Bank’s actual and required capital ratios and the minimum required capital
ratios to be categorized as “well-capitalized” as of the dates indicated (dotlars in thousands):

Capital Ratios
Tangible Tier 1 (Core) Tier 1 Risk-Based Total Risk-Based

December 3, 2007 :
As reported on Thrift Financial Report ... .. 6.24% 6.24% 9.56% 10.81%

Well-capitalized minimum requirement . . . . . 2.00% 5.00% 6.00% 10.00%
Excess over well-capitalized minimum :

requirement. ... ... ... $1,367,732 $399,280 $689,633 $157.907
December 31, 2006
As reported on Thrift Financia! Report . . ... o 7.35% 7.39% 11.40% 11.77%
Well-capitalized minimum requirement . . . .. 2.00% 5.00% 6.00% 10.00%
Excess over well-capitalized minimum .

TEQUITEMENt. . . o\t i r e e e $1,533,111 $679,311 $877.511 $288,242

IndyMac Bancorp, the holding company for Indymac Bank, is substantially dependent upon dividends from
the Bank for cash used to pay dividends on common stock and other cash outflows. We are required to seek approval
from the OTS in order to pay dividends from the Bank to the holding company. There is no assurance the Bank will
be able to pay such dividends in the future or that the OTS will continue to grant approvals. While the holding
company maintains cash and an unsecured line of credit to manage its liquidity, a disruption in dividends from the
Bank could cause the holding company to reduce or eliminate the dividends paid on common stock.

Under the capital distribution regutations, a savings association that is a subsidiary of a savings and loan
holding company must notify the OTS of an association capital distribution at least 30 days prior to the declaration
of a dividend or the approval by the Board of Directors of the proposed capital distribution. The 30-day period
provides the OTS an opportunity to object to the proposed distribution if it believes that the distribution would not
be advisable.

An application to the OTS for specific approval to pay a dividend, rather than the notice procedure described
above, is required if: (a) the total of all capital distributions made during a calendar year (including the proposed
distribution) exceeds the sum of the institution's year-to-date net income and its retained income for the preceding
two years; (b) the institution is not entitled under OTS regulations to “expedited treatment” (which is generally
available to institutions the OTS regards as well run and adequately capitalized}; (c) the institution would not be at
least “adequately capitalized” following the proposed capital distribution; or, (d} the distribution would violate an
applicable statute, regulation, agreement, or condition imposed on the institution by the OTS.

In addition to applicable OTS regulatory requirements, Indymac Bank is required to maintain compliance with
various servicing covenants such as a minimum net worth requirement. Management believes indymac Bank was in
compliance with all material financial covenants as of December 31, 2007 and 2006.

NOTE 23 — BENEFIT PLANS
Stock Incentive Plans

The Company has two stock incentive plans, the 2002 Incentive Plan, as amended and restated, and the 2000
Stock Incentive Plan, as amended (collectively, the “Plans”), which provide for the granting of non-qualified and
incentive stock options, restricted and performance stock awards, and other awards to employees (including
officers) and directors. On April 25, 2006, the 2002 Incentive Plan, as amended and restated, was approved by
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shareholders to increase the total number of shares of common stock reserved and available for issuance from
6,000,000 to 11,200,000. Each share tssued pursuant to a full value award (such as restricted stock) will reduce the
number of shares of common stock available for future grant by 3.5 shares. The term of stock options granted under
the 2002 Incentive Plan (the “Plan”) was reduced from ten years to seven years, and the Company is no longer able
to grant stock appreciation rights, bonus stock, stock units, performance shares or performance units under the Plan,

Stock options granted under the Plans have an exercise price equal to the fair market value of the underlying
common stock on the date of grant, and generally vest based on one, three or five years of continuous service. Grants
issued after April 25, 2006 will expire in seven years from the grant date, while grants issued prior to April 25, 2006
continue to have a ten-year term. Certain stock option and share awards provide for accelerated vesting if there is a
change in control (as defined in the Plans}. The fair value of each stock option award is estimated on the date of grant
using an enhanced binomial lattice model.

Prior to lanuary 1, 2006, the Company accounted for the Plans under the recognition and measurement
provisions of APB 25 and related Interpretations, as permitted by SFAS 123. Effective January [, 2006, the
Company adopted the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS 123(R) using the modified-retrospective-transition
method. Under this method, compensation cost recognized for 2006 includes compensation cost for all stock
options granted prior to, but not yet vested as of January 1, 2006, and all stock options granted subsequent to
January 1, 2006, based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of Statements 123
and 123(R), respectively.

The fair value of each stock option award is estimated on the date of grant. For grants issued on and after
January 1, 2006, the fair value is determined using an enhanced binomial lattice model. For stock options granted
prior to January 1, 2006, the fair value of these awards was based on the fair value calculated for purposes of the
SFAS 123 pro-forma disclosures which used the Black Scholes option pricing model.

The following presents the assumptions used in the valuations for stock options granted during the years
indicated:

December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Expected volatility . ..................... 26.68-30.20%  28.11-2844%  25.96%-29.42%
Expected dividends . .................... 5.08-6.76% 4.00-4.60% 3.52-4.65%
Weighted average expected term (in years) . . . . 5.20-5.50 6.89-7.34 5.00
Risk-free rate . . . . ... I 4.58-4.82% 4.54-4.73% 4.16-4.64%

Expected volatilities are based on the historical volatility of the Company’s common stock and other factors.
For the Black Scholes valuation model, the expected term of the stock options is estimated based on historical
option exercise activity. For the enhanced binomial valuation model, the Company uses historical data to estimate
assumptions for expected stock option exercise and expected employee termination rates. The expected term of
stock options granted is derived from the output of the binomial model and represents the period of time that stock
options granted are expected to be outstanding. The range given above results from certain groups of employees
exhibiting different behavior. The risk-free rate for periods within the contractua!l life of the stock option is based on
the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant.
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The following presents the impact of stock option compensation cost to the statements of operations for the

years indicated (dollars in thousands, except per share data):

Year Ended December 31,

2000 2006 2005
Stock option compensation cost, before tax . ..., ... .. ... ... $7.943  $9,630 $12,109
Stock option compensation cost, aftertax. . . ....... ... . .. 5,230 5,951 7,098
Effect on basic earnings per share . .. ............oiueirien... 0.07 0.09 0.11
Effect on diluted earnings pershare. . . ........ ... .. ... . ...... 0.07 0.08 0.11

The following presents stock option activity under the Plans for the year ended December 31, 2007 (dollars in

thousands, except share data):

Weighted
Weighted- Average
Average Remaining
Exercise Contractual Aggregate
Stock Options: Shares Price Term Fair Value
Outstanding at December 31, 2006............ 7,703,205 $26.31 — —
Granted . . . vt e e 1,088,913 29.61 — —
Exercised. . ... ...t (143,542) 24.60 — —
Canceled, forfeited and expired .............. (125,288) 35.58 — —
Outstanding at December 31,2007 ............ 8,523,288 26.62 4.90 $7.31
7.49

Exercisable at December 31,2007 .. .......... 6,766,319 25.01 4.39

The weighted average grant-date fair value of stock options granted during the years ended December 31,
2007, 2006 and 2005 were $5.43, $9.13 and $7.68, respectively. For the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and
2005, the total fair value of options exercised was $1.0 million, $5.7 million and $10.9 million, respectively.

The following presents nonvested shares activity for the year ended December 31, 2007:

Weighted-Average

Grant-Date

Fair Value
Nonvested Stock Options: Shares per Share
Outstanding at December 31,2006 ............... ... ... .... 1,668,512 $8.27
Granted . . .. o e e e e e 1,088,213 543
/] (= (946,981) 8.02
Canceled, forfeited andexpired . . .. ... ... ... ... . ... ... (53,475) 7.92
Outstanding at December 31, 2007 . e e 1,756,969 6.63

As of December 31, 2007, there was $6.0 million of total unrecognized compensation cost, net of estimated
forfeitures, related to nonvested stock options under the Plans. That cost is expected to be recognized in less than
three years. The total fair value of shares vested during the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, were

$7.6 million, $12.8 million and $14.3 million, respectively.

Cash received from stock options exercised under the Plans for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and
2005 was $3.5 million, $20.1 million and $31.5 million, respectively. The actual tax benefit for the tax deductions
from stock option exercises totaled $0.7 million, $6.6 million and $15.7 million, for the years ended December 31,
2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. To the extent the tax deductions exceed the amount previously expensed for
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financial accounting purposes; the related tax benefit on the excess is credited to equity, but only if that benefit can
be realized currently.

The Company recorded compensation cost of $9.0 million, $10.1 million and $5.6 million related to the
restricted stock granted under the Plans for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

The following presents restricted stock activity under the Plans for the year ended December 31, 2007:
Weighted-Average

Grant-Date

Fair Value
Restricted Stock: . Shares per Share
Qutstanding at December 31,2006 . ......................... 889,117 - $39.14
Granted . ..ot e e 648,228 2791
Vested ... e e (163,851) 37.22
Canceled and forfeited . ... ... . i (373,054) 36.58
Outstanding at December 31,2007 ... ... ... ... .. ... ... .... 1,000,440 33.13

Pension Plan and Other Postretirement Benefit Plan

Through December 31, 2002, Indymac Bank provided a defined benefit pension plan (the “DBP Plan™) to
substantialty all of its employees. Employees hired prior to January 1, 2003, with one or more years of service, are
entitled to annual pension benefits beginning at normal retirement age (65 years of age) equal to a formula
approximating 0.9% of final average compensation multiplied by credited service (not in excess of 35 years),
subject to a vesting requirement of five years of service. Our policy is to contribute the amount actuarially
determined to be necessary to pay the benefits under the DBP Plan, and in no event to pay less than the amount
necessary to meet the minimum funding standards of employee. Employee Retirement Income Security Actof 1974
(“ERISA”). Employees hired after December 31, 2002 are not eligible for the DBP Plan.

In April 2007, the Board of Directors, at management’s recommendation, approved a resplutfdn to freeze the
DBP Plan effective May 31, 2007. Participants would no longer accrue additional benefits starting with the 2007
Plan year. As a result, we recognized a net pre-tax curtailment gain of $10:3 million ($6.3 million after tax) as a
reduction to pension expense. This pre-tax curtailment gain was recorded in accordance with FASB Statement
No. 88, “Employers’ Accounting for Settlements and Curtailments of Defined Benefit pension Plan and for
Termination Benefits” and includes the gross pre-tax curtailment gain of $20.0 million related to pension benefits
partially offset by approximately $8.1 million of actuarial net loss and prior service cost and $1.7 million of pre-
curtailment pension expense.
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‘The foltowing sets forth the change in the pension benefit obligation, pension plan assets and accrued pension
costs recognized in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets for the years indicated (dollars in thousands):

, Year Ended December 31
o _ ] 2007 2006

Change in benefit obligation .
Projected benefit obligation, beginning of year ....................... $ 46,680 §$ 37,895
BIVICE COSL . v o vttt e ettt e n e e e 1,626 6,052
R R A+ 1 A 2,003 2,301
SFAS 88 curtailment. . . . .. .ottt e s (20,000} —
Benefits paid including expense .. ... .. ... .o i (49) (30)
Actuarial 10ss {Zain) . .. ..o e (4,008) 462
Projected benefit obligation, end of year ..... ... ... . ... ... o $ 26,252 $ 46,680
Accumulated benefit obligation,endof year ........... ... ... L $ 26,252  $ 28,228
Change in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets, beginning of year . . ........... ... ... .... $ 34817 § 27,579
Actual return on plan assets .. ... ... e i e 1,586 3,427
Employer contributions. . . . ...« vvn ettt e ) — 3.841
Benefits paid including expense .. ........ ... i (49) (30)
Fair value of plan assets, end of year. . .. ......... .. ... . ot $ 36,354 $ 34817
Accrued pension costs .
Funded status, end of year . .......... ... e $ 10,102 $(11,863)

Accrued pension cost was included in “Other assets” at December 31, 2007, and “Other liabilities” at
December 31, 2006 on the consohclatecl balance sheets. ’

.

" The following presents the components of net periodic expense for the DBP Plan for the years mchcated
(dollars in thousands):

- Year Ended
December 31
. . 2007 2006
G ETVICE COBE . v v v et e oo e e ettt it m e et aae s $1,627 $6,052
TIEETESE COSE . o v o v v vt e e e et it et e et an e e e 2,003 2,301
Expected returml On ASSEIS . .. oot v it ie i ia et (2,627) (2,212)
Recognized actuarial 105S . .. ... .. i e e 48 376
Amortization of prior S8rvice COSt. . .. . ... i 15 56
Net periodic EXPENSE . « ..o vvv vt e et ie e $1,066 %6573

Included in AOCI at December 31, 2006 were unrecognized prior service costs of $0.5 million and
unrecognized actuarial losses of $7.5 million. These amounts were fully recognized in pension expense during
the year ended December 31, 2007 when the DPB Plan was frozen. Accordingly, the Company is not required to
fund the DBP Plan in 2007.
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The following presents the weighted average assumptions used in computing the preceding information for the
years indicated:

Year Ended
December 31
w07 2006
Benefit obligations:
DISCOUNE TALE . . . .. .ottt ittt e et ettt e im et a et n i naeenn 6.60% 6.00%
Rate of compensation increase ........................... S N/A  4.00%
Net periodic costs:
DISCOUNE TALE . . . . . .ttt it ettt et 6.00% 6.00%
Rate of compensation increase .. .. ... ... e 4.00% 4.00%
Expected return o assets . . .. ... 7.50% 7.50%

The following presents the DBP Plan’s weighted average asset allocation as of the measurement date, by asset
category, for the years indicated: :

v
L]

Year Ended

December 31

. | 2007 2006
Bond and mortgage. . ... ... ... L 32% 32%
Largecapstock indeX . . ... ... . e _68% _68%
Total ... e e 100% 100%

The investment goals and the allocation of the plan assets are determined jointly by the Employee Benefits
Fiduciary Committee and Principal Life Insurance Company, the investment manager of the Plan. The assets of the
DBP Plan are invested to provide safety through diversification in a portfolio of equity investments, common stocks,
bonds and other investments which may reflect varying rates of return. Only classes or categories of investments
allowed by the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (“ERISA”) as acceptable investment choices are
considered. The overall return objective for the portfolio is a reasonable rate on a long-term basis that would balance
the benefit obligations with the appropriate asset allocation mix consistent with,the risk.levels established by our
Employee Benefits Fiduciary Committee.

" The Company’s 2007 and 2006 pension expense was calculated based upon a number of actuarial assumptions,
including an expected long-term rate of return on plan assets of 7.5% for both years. In developing the long-term
rate of return assumption, historical asset class returns as well as expected returng were evaluated based upon broad
equity and bond indices. The expected long-term rate of return on plan assets assumes an asset allocation of
approxitmately 68% in equity and 32% in fixed income financial instruments. The Employee Benefits Fiduciary
Committee regularly reviews the asset allocation with its plan investment manager and periodically rebalances the
investment mix to achieve certain investment goals when considered appropniate. Actuarial assumptions, mcludlng
the expected rate of return, are reviewed at least annually, and are adjusted as necessary.

The discount rate that was utilized for determining our pension obligation and net periodic cost was based on a
review of long-term bonds that received one of the two highest ratings given by a recognized rating agency. The
discount rate for our pension obligation remained the same at 6.00% in 2007.
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The following indicates the benefits expected to be paid in each of the next five fiscal years, and in the
aggregate for the five fiscal years thereafter (dollars in thousands):

Year Ended December 31

2008 L . e e e e e e $ 210
200G .. e e e e e , 225
2000 . e i e e e 291
L0 1 1 374
.13 B 466
2003200 . . e e e e e 3,798

B o -1 $5,364

The Company adopted FASB Statement No. SFAS 158, “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pensions
and Other Postretirement Plans,” on December 31, 2006 and the following shows the incremental effect of applying
the provisions of SFAS 158 on individual line items in the consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2006 (dollars
in thousands):

Before Application After Application
of SFAS 158 Adjustments of SFAS 158
Accrued PenSiON COSL. .. ... ot 3 3,802 $ 8,061 $§ 11,863
Accrued postretirement cost. . ............... — 2,067 2,067
Deferred income taxes . .. ....... ... o 612,232 (3,960) 608,272
Total Habilities ........ ... ... ... ..., 27,460,880 6,168 27,467,048
Accumulated other comprehensive loss. .. ...... (25,271) (6,108) (31,439)
Total shareholders” equity .................. . 2,034,436 (6,168) 2,028,268

b

Defined Contribution Plan

We also offer a defined contribution plan (the “401(k) Plan™) covering substantially all of our employees.
Employees with one full month of continuous service may contribute up to 40% of annual compensation to a
maximum of $15,500 of pre-tax annual compensation in 2007. We may determine, at our discretion, the amount of
employer matching contributions to be made. During 2007, 2006 and 2005, the Company matched, for eligible
participants following the completion of one year of service, 75% of the first 3% of the annual compensation
contributed by the employee and 25% of the second 3% of the annual compensation contributed by the employee to
the 401(k) Plan. We contributed a total of $7.0 million, $8.4 million, and $6.3 million during the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The employer matching contribution was made in cash.

NOTE 24 — PERPETUAL NON-CUMULATIVE PREFERRED STOCK

In the second quarter of 2007, Indymac Bank received approximately $491 million in net proceeds from the
issuance of 20 million shares of Series A Perpetual Non-Cumulative Fixed Rate Preferred Stock with a $25.00
liquidation preference vatue (the “Series A Preferred Stock™) and distributed $100 million of the net proceeds to the
Parent Company. As of December 31, 2007, $491 million is reflected as *“Perpetual preferred stock in subsidiary” on
the consolidated balance sheets.

Dividends, when declared by the Bank’s Board of Directors, are payable quarterly at a rate of 8.5%. At the
option of the Bank, the Series A Preferred Stock may be redeemed on or after June 15, 2017 at $25 per share plus
any declared and unpaid dividends. Outstanding shares of Series A Preferred Stock rank senior to the Bank’s
common shares both as to dividends and liquidation preferences but do not have any voting rights.
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NOTE 25 — SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS PLAN

Our Board of Directors adopted a Shareholder Rights Plan (the “Rights Plan™) on October 17, 2001. The
Board’s purpose in adopting the Rights Plan is to protect shareholder value in the event of an unsolicited offer to
acquire us, particularly one that does not provide equitable treatment to all shareholders. In connection with the
adoption of the Rights Plan, we declared a distribution of one right to purchase one one-hundredth of a share of
Series A Junior Participating Preferred Shares (“Preferred Shares™) for each outstanding share of common stock,
payable to the shareholders of record on November 1, 2001. These rights automatically become associated with
outstanding shares of commeon stock on our books, and individual shareholders need take no action with respect
thereto. The rights will not become exercisable unless an investor acquires 15 percent or more of our commeon
shares, or announces a tender offer that would result in the investor owning 15 percent or more of gur common
shares or makes certain regulatory filings seeking authority to acquire 15 percent or more of our common shares. If
someone does acquire 15 percent or more of our common shares, or acquires us in a merger or other transaction,
each right would entitle the holder, other than the investor triggering the rights and related persons, to purchase
common shares, or shares of an entity that acquires us, at half of the then current market price. The Board of
Directors authorized and directed the issuance of one right with respect to each common share issued thereafter until
the redemption date (as defined in the Rights Agreement). The terms of the rights are set forth in the Rights
Agreement between us and the Bank of New York, as Rights Agent, dated as of October 17, 2001. The rights will
expire at the close of business on October 17, 2011, unless we redeem them earlier. The Preferred Shares have a par
value of $0.01 per share, are junior to all other series of our preferred shares, and are entitled to quarterly dividends
at a rate equal to the dividends paid, if any, on 100 common shares. Each one one-hundredth of a Preferred Share
entitles the holder to one vote on matters submitted to a vote of our shareholders. The Rights Plan can be terminated
or amended by the Board at any time. '
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NOTE 26 — QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA — UNAUDITED

The following presents selected quarterly financial data for the years indicated (dollars in thousands, except
per share data): : ’

Quarter Ended
March 31 June 30 September 30  December 31

2007 '
Interest income ......... l. o $532,677 $554477  $ 557,851 $ 542,702
Interest Xpense, . . .. .. ..o i 397,607 405,233 415,673 402,452
Net interest inCoOme . .. ..o v vn v mcneanennn 135,070 149,244 142,178 . 140,250
| Provision for loan losses .............. ... ..... 10,687 17,204 98,279 269,378
: Gain (loss) on sale of loans and securities, net . . .. .. © 112,196 54,683 (334,788) (616,166)
Net eamnings (J0SS), . . -« v vvveerreneeenneenn. 52,382 44,639 (202,717) (509,113)
Eamnings (loss) per share(1):
BasiC. .o e e $ 072.% 062 $ (27H % (643
| Diluted(2) ... vv e e e 0.70 0.60 Q.77 (6.43)
' 2006
INterest iNCOME . . .o vttt i i e et e e ene e e $377.846  $412,211 $ 446,751 $ 514,208
Interest expense. . ... ....o.ovunooloaan.. R 250,636 282,057 310,040 381,562
Net interest INCOME . . . .. . vttt it enrennnnn 127,210 130,154 136,711 132,646
Provision for loan losses . ....... .ot inev oo 3,822 2,230 4988 8,953
Gain on sale of loans and securities, net. . ......... 138,584 209,917 179,193 160,842
Net €armings .. .....oveimmornmannnnensnn. 79,849 104,659 86,180 72,241
i Eamings per share(1):
’ BasiC. . oottt e e e e e $ 124 § 157 $ 1.25 $ 1.02
Diluted ................. D e 1.18 1.49 1.19 0.97

(1) Earnings per share are computed independently for each of the quarters presented. Therefore, the sum of the
quarterly eamnings per share may not equal the total for the year.

{(2) Due to the net loss for the quarters ended September 30, 2007 and December 31, 2007, no potentially dilutive
shares are included in the diluted loss per share calculations as including such shares in the calculations would
be anti-dilutive.

i NOTE 27 — SUBSEQUENT EVENT

| In January 2008, the Company announced a further reduction in its global workforce of roughly 2,400 people,
| or 24% of overall workforce, spread throughout the Company, including a 27% reduction in staff with our
outsourced and temporary vendors.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Board of Directors and Shareholders
IndyMac Bancorp, Inc.

We have audited IndyMac Bancorp, Inc.’s (the Company) internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). The Company's
management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment
of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Report of
Management on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

‘We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonabie assurance about
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of the internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Because management’s assessment and our audit were
conducted to also meet the reporting requirements of Section 112 of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
Improvement Act (FDICIA), management’s assessment and our audit of the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting included controls over the preparation of financial statements in accordance with the Office of
Thrift Supervision Instructions for Financial Reports. '

A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of
the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of
the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, IndyMac Bancorp, Inc. maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the consolidated balance sheets of Indymac Bancorp, Inc. as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and
the related statement of operations, shareholder’s equity and comprehensive income (foss), and cash flows for each
of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2007, and our report dated February 28, 2008 expressed and
unqualified opinion thereon.

Eamit LLP

Los Angeles, California
February 28, 2008




Report of Management on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Financial Statements

IndyMac Bancorp, Inc. (the “Company”) is responsible for the preparation, integrity and fair presentation of its
published consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2007, and for the year then ended. The consolidated
financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States. '

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

We, as members of management of the Company, are responsible for (i) preparing the consolidated financial
statements of the Company, and (ii) establishing and maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting,
including correct preparation and reporting of the Company’s consolidated financial statements presented in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States and the Office of Thrift Supervision
Instructions for Thrift Financial Reports (the “TFR Instructions™). Internal control over financial reporting is
designed to provide reasonable assurance to the Company’s management and board of directors regarding the
prepar'ation of reliable published consolidated financial statements. Internal control over financial reporting
includes self-monitoring mechanisms and actions taken to correct deficiencies as they are identified.

Because of the inherent limitations in any internal control, no matter how well designed, misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected, including the possibility of the circumvention or overriding of
controls. Accordingly, even effective internal control over financial reporting can provide only reasonable, not
absolute, assurance that the objectives of such controls are met. Further, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies and procedures may deteriorate.

Management assessed the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as it relates to its consolidated
financial statements presented in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States and
the TFR Instructions as of December 31, 2007. This assessment was based on criteria for effective internal control
over financial reporting described in “Internal Control — Integrated Framework” issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. We believe our assessment is consistent with the
applicable guidance issued by the Securitics and Exchange Commission and provided in Public Company
Accounting Over51ght Board Auditing Standard No. 5. Based on this assessment, we assert that, as of December 31,
2007, and based on the specified criteria, the Company maintained effective internal control over financial
reporting, including the preparation and reporting of the Company’s consolidated financial statements presented in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States and the TFR Instructions.

Our independent auditors, Ernst and Young LLP, have independently assessed the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007.

h S .

Michael W. Perry Scott Keys
Chairman and Executive Vice President and
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

February 28, 2008
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ANNUAL MEETING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The annual meeting of shareholders will be held at Certain statements contained in this Annual Report may be
9.00 a.m. (PDT} on Thursday, May 1, 2008 at the Indymac deemed to be forward-looking statements within the meanin
Mortgage Bank Headquarters at 3445 E. Foothill Blvd.. of the federal securities laws. Words such as "anticipate.”

Pasadena, CA 91107, “believe,” "estimate,” “expect,” "project,” “plan,” “forecast,”
“intend.,” "goal.” "target.” and similar expressions, as well a

The mosl recent certifications of our Chief Executive Officer future or conditior?al verbs. such as "wi.ll," would,""should”

and Chief Financial Officer. as required by section 302 of “could"or “may. " identify forward-looking statements thal

the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, are filed as exhibits to

our Form 10-K for the year-ended December 31, 2007,

In addition, the Company has filed the CEQ's Annual CED

Certification with the New York Stock Exchange as required

by section 303A.12(a) of the New York Stock Exchange

Listed Company Manual.

are inherently subject o risks and unceriainties, many of
which cannot be predicted or quantified. Actual results and
the liming of certain events could differ materially from
those projected in or contemplated by the forward-looking
statements due to a number of factors, including: the effect
of economic and market conditions including, but not limite
to, the level of housing prices, industry volumes and margins
the level and volatility of interest rates: indymac’s hedging
strategies, hedge effectiveness and overall asset and liabilit
management; the accuracy of subjective estimates used in
determining the fair value of financial assets of Indymac;
the various credit risks associated with our loans and other
financial assets, including increased credit losses due to
demand trends in the economy and the real estate market
and increased delinquency rates of borrowers: the adequac
of credit reserves and the assumptions underlying thermn;
the actions undertaken by both current and potential new
competitors: the availability of funds from Indymac’s lenders,
loan sales, securitizations, funds from deposits and all
other sources used to fund mortgage loan originations

and portfolio invesiments: and the execution of Indymac’'s
business and growth plans and its ability to gain market
share in a significant and turbutent market transition.
Additional risk factors include the impact of disruptions
triggered by natural disasters: pending or future legislation.
regulations and regulatory action, or litigation. and factors
described in the reports that Indymac files with the
Securities and Exchange Commission. including its Annual
Repart on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports an Form 10-Q,

and its reports on Form 8-K. Indymac does not undertake
to update or revise forward-looking statements to reflect
the impact of circumstances for events that arise after the
date the forward-looking statements are made.

©2008 Indymac Bank, F.S.B. Registered trade/service
marks are the property of Indymac Bank, FS.B. and/or
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ABOUT INDYMAC BANK

IndyMac Bancorp. Inc. (NYSE: IMB) {Indymac®) is the holding company for IndyMac Bank.
£.5.B. {Indymac Bank®}. the 7" largest savings and loan and the 2" largest independent
mortgage lender in the nation. Indymac Bank. operating as a hybrid thrift/mortgage
banker, provides cost-efficient financing for the acquisition of single-family homes.
Indymac also provides financing secured by single-family homes and other banking
products to facilitate consumers’ personal financial goals.

For more information about Indymac and its affiliates. or to subscribe to the Company’s
E-mail Alert feature for notification of company news and events, please visit
hitp.//about.indymacbank.com/investors. To visit Indymac’s corporate blog.

please visit hitp://www.theimbreport.com.
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